
City of Prosser, WA 
601 7th Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. 
TUESDAY, MAY 27, 2014 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

5. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS

6. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Approve Payment of Payroll Checks Nos. 600058 through 600060 in the Amount of
$2,173.87, and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $12,137.98, for the Period Ending
May 15, 2014 ......................................................................................................................... Page 4 

b. Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 16260 through 10695, in the Amount of
$162,024.25, and Electronic Payments in the Amount of $110,260.15, for the
Period Ending May 27, 2014 ................................................................................................. Page 6 

c. Approve Payment of Washington Trust Bank Claim Check Nos. 1048 through 1051
in the Amount of $26,771.36, for the Period Ending May 27, 2014 ................................... Page 16 

d. Accept Invoice for Operation of the Visitor Information Center Reimbursable
Tourism and Promotional Expenses for the Month of March, April and May and
Authorize Payment for Those Services in the Amount of $19,5000.00 .............................. Page 20 

e. Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice Voucher No. 4,
in the Amount of $9,058.20, for the Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements Project
and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Documents ................................................................ Page 41 

f. Approve Contracts with the US Bank for the Use of Credit Cards by City Staff and
Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Contract Documents ........................................................ Page 49 

g. Review and Confirm the Appointment of Council Member Aubrey to the Yakima
Sub-Basin Recovery Board as Appointed by Mayor Warden ............................................. Page 54 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2890 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1457 



h. Approve the May 6, 2014 Meeting Minutes ........................................................................ Page 57 
 

i. Approve the May 13, 2014 Meeting Minutes ...................................................................... Page 62 
 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a.) Proposed Amendments to the Adopted 2014 – 2019 Six Year Transportation 
Improvement Program ................................................................................................. Page 65 

 
~ Open Public Hearing 
~Receive Citizen Comments 
~Close Public Hearing 

 
8. COUNCIL ACTION 
 

a.) Consideration of RESOLUTION 14-_____ Approving the Amendments to 
City Prosser adopted Six Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
2014 – 2019....................................................................................................................... Page 71 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt RESOLUTION 14-_____ approving the 

amendments to City Prosser adopted Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) 2014 – 2019. 

 
b.) Approve Payment of Claim Check No. 10696 in the Amount of $1,015.90, for 

the Period Ending May 27, 2014 .................................................................................. Page 107 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve payment of claim check no. 10696 in 
the Amount of $1,015.90, for the Period Ending May 27, 2014. 

 
c.) Consideration of ORDINANCE 14-_____ Closing funds 442 and 443 

Regarding the 1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond and Amending the 2014 
Budget  ........................................................................................................................... Page 109 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ Closing funds 

442 and 443 Regarding the 1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond and Amending 
the 2014 Budget. 

 
d.) Consideration of ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending the 2014 Budget for 

Fund 001, General Fund .............................................................................................. Page 161 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending the 

2014 Budget for Fund 001, General Fund. 
 
 
 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2890 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1457 



e.) Consideration of ORDINANCE 14-_____ Amending PMC 2.16 Changing 
City Hall Office Hours .................................................................................................. Page 167 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to adopt ORDINANCE 14-_____ amending 

PMC 2.16 changing City Hall Office hours. 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a.) Shoreline Master Program 
 

~ Open Public Hearing 
~Receive Citizen Comments 
~Continue Public Hearing to June 24, 2014, Prosser City Council Meeting 
at 7:00 p.m. 

 
b.) Updates to the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map 

 
~ Open Public Hearing 
~Receive Citizen Comments 
~ Continue Public Hearing to June 24, 2014, Prosser City Council Meeting 
at 7:00 p.m. 

 
10. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 

a.) Review of two ORDINANCES related to the Shoreline Master Program .............. Page 172 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Review and discussion of proposed ORDINANCES. 
 
 

b.) Review of ORDINANCE related to the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use 
Map (For Comprehensive Plan See Separate Attachment) ...................................... Page 412 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and discussion of proposed ORDINANCE. 

 
 

11. ADD ON ITEMS 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 14-2890 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 14-1457 



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
1 Agenda Title: Approve payment of payroll Meeting Date: 

check nos. 600058 through 600060 in the May 27, 2014 
amount of $2, 173.87 and direct deposits in Regular Meeting 
the amountof $12, 137.98 for the period 
ending May 15, 2014 

Degartment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Progosal: Account Number: 
$14,311.85 Various 

Amount Budgeted: 
Various amounts in salaries, wages, and benefits. Name and Fund# 

Various 

Reviewed by Finance DeQartment: 

itM 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Payroll Check Register I 

Summaiy Statement: 
Payroll check nos. 600058 through 600060 in the amount of $2, 173.87 and direct 
deposits in the amount of $12, 137.98 for the period ending May 15, 2014. 

Consistent with or Comgarison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment payroll check nos. 600058 through 600060 in the amount of 
$2, 173.87 and direct deposits in the amount of $12, 137.98 for the period ending May 
15,2014 

Reviewed by Degartment Reviewed by Citv Attorney: Aogroved by Mayor: I 

Director: tYJuJ-' 
~ffi°' ~ NIA 

)- 2J-l'f Date: s. ').',l.. '),()\<-.\ Date: Date: 
I Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: I 

! 

I Mav 22, 2014 I 

4



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Time: 13:15:44 Date: 05/13/2014 
MCAG#: 0205 05/15/2014 To: 05/15/2014 Page: 1 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk# Claimant Amount Memo 

1797 05/15/2014 Payroll l EFT 138.52 May Draw 
1798 05/15/2014 Payroll l EFT 704.72 May Draw 
1799 05115/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 1,015.85 May Draw 
1800 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 554.10 MayDraw 
1801 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT l,617.98 MayDraw 
1802 05/15/2014 Payroll l EFT 642.90 May Draw 
1806 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 554.10 May Draw 
1807 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 595.45 May Draw 
1808 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 1,3 71.50 May Draw 
1809 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 689.22 May Draw 
1810 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 1,545.63 May Draw 
1811 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT 1,556.82 May Draw 
1812 05/15/2014 Payroll 1 EFT l,15l.l9 May Draw 
1803 05/15/2014 Payroll I 600058 411.75 May Draw 
1804 0511512014 Payroll 1 600059 1,155.67 May Draw 
1805 05/15/2014 Payroll l 600060 606.45 May Draw 

514 Financial, Recording & Elections 2,561.48 
521 Law Enforcement 6,256.07 
524 Protective Inspections 744.97 

001 General Fund 9,562.52 

534 Water Utilities 3,510.98 

403 Water F1md 3,5 l 0.98 

535 Sewer 1,238.35 

407 Sewer Fund 1,238.35 

14,311.85 Payroll: 14,311.85 

Signature Date 

5



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
check nos. 10626 through 10695, in the May 27, 2014 
amount of $162,024.25 and Electronic Regular Meeting 
Payments in the amount of $110,260.15 for 
the period endina Ma 27, 2014. 
Dei;iartment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Proi;iosal: I Account Number: 
$272,284.40 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

Reviewed by Finance De!1artment: 

ti-\ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Check Register# 10626 through 10695 

Summa!}' Statement: 

Check Payments 'Amount 
10626 throuoh 10695 $162,024.25 
Electronic Payments Amount I 
IRS Federal Taxes I $4,406.34 Dept of Revenue $13,274.22 
American West Bank $221.29 Modern Payments $16.45 
Bank of America $6,237.00 City of Prosser $102.68 
Bank of New York $39,306.25 WA Trust Bank $7,216.61 
Com lete Merchant Solutions $137.06 Wa De t of Licensin $36.00 

'I Consistent with or Comi;iarison to: 
. City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment of 10626 through 10695, in the amount of $162,024.25 and Electronic 
Payments in the amount of $110,260.15 for the period ending May 27, 2014 

I 
Reviewed by Dei;iartment 
Director: 

·~~ 
Date: 5·'.l'l.· :i.o 14 
Today's Date: 
Ma 22, 2014 

N/A µ~~ 
Reviewed by Citv Attorney: 

I Date: , Date: )~2-J~(c+-
Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

6



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

0511512014 To: 05/15/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

1817 05/15/2014 Payroll EFT !rs Federal Taxes 

514 Financial, Recording & Elections 
521 Law Enforcement 
524 Protective Inspections 
580 Non Expeditures 

qm Gener:il Fund 

534 Water Utilities 

403 ;water Fund ·. 

535 Sewer 

407 Sewer F:miil. 

Signature 

Time: 13 :26:08 Date: 05/13/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

4,406.34 941 Deposit For 05/15/2014 -
05/15/2014 

221.85 
558.83 

65.03 
3,076.15 

3;921:86 

323.83 

.. ;3.23.:83 

160.65 

4,406.34 Payroll: 

Date 

4,406.34 

7



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 16:33:25 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

05/21/2014 
1 

1986 05/27/2014 Claims l EFT American West Bank 221.29 Analysis Charge 

221.29 Analysis Charge 001-51423 49 000 -Miscellaneous 

1987 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT Bank Of America 6,237.00 Fire Station Bond Interest 

229 - 592 22 83 000 - Interest On Long-Term Exterr 6,237.00 Fire Station Bond Interest 

1988 05/27/2014 Claims l EFT BankOfNewYorkMellon 39,306.25 Pool Bond-Interest 

233 - 592 75 83 000-Interest on Long-Term Extern 39,306.25 Pool Bond-Interest 

1989 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT Complete Merchant Solutions 137.06 Credit Card Fees 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 34.27 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 34.26 
448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 34.26 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 34.27 

1990 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT Dor Electronic Payments 13,274.22 AprH Excise Tax 

001 - 514 30 44 000 -External Taxes 0.59 
001 - 524 20 44 000 - External Taxes 13.73 
403 - 534 80 44 000 - External Taxes 5,348.50 
407 - 535 80 44 000 - External Taxes 3,600.01 
448 - 537 80 44 000 - External Taxes 4,005.06 
001 - 571 22 44 000 - External Taxes 292.95 
001 - 576 20 44 001 - External Taxes 13.38 

1991 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT Modern Payments 16.45 Electronic Check Payment< 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 4.12 Electronic Check Payments 
407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 4.11 Electronic Check Payments 
448 - 537 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 4.11 Electronic Check Payments 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 4.11 Electronic Check Payments 

1992 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT Prosser, City Of 102.68 Check Printing 

403 - 594 34 63 003 - Capital Other Improvements-] 102.68 Check Printing 

1993 05/27/2014 Claims 1 EFT WA Dept Licensing-Cpl 36.00 Concealed Pistol License 

1994 05/27/2014 

1995 05/27/2014 

001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie Disburst 36.00 Concealed Pistol License 

Claims 1 EFT Washington Trust Bank 

403 - 594 34 63 003 - Capital Other Improvements-] 

7,216.61 North Prosser Loan Interest 

7 ,216.61 North Prosser Loan Interest 

Claims 1 10626 Abadan Inc 321.28 Front Desk Copy Machine 
Maintenance; Annex Copy 
Machine Maintenance; PD Copy 
Machine Maintenance; Finance 
Copy Machine Maintenance 

001 - 514 23 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 141.82 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
001 - 514 23 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 129.79 
001-51423 48 000 -Repairs & Maintenance 21.44 PD Copy Machine Maintenance 
001 - 514 23 48 000 -Repairs & Maintenance 16.25 Finance Copy Machine Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.39 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.53 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.39 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.53 
448 - 537 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.39 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
448 - 537 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.53 
403 - 539 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 2.39 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
403 - 539 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.53 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.02 Front Desk Copy Machine Maintenance 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.28 

1996 05/27/2014 Claims l 10627 American Water Works Assoc 200.00 Membership Renewal 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 200.00 Membership Renewal 

8



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 16:33:25 Date: 05/21/2014 
Page: 2 

Amount Memo 

1997 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10628 Are-Sea Carpet & Floor 
Service 

616.00 VCT Tile Waxing-City Hall & 
Library; Carpet Cleaning-Police 

001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 3 I 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 I - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 I - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 I - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 I - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 I - 518 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 l - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
00 l - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

1998 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10629 Autozone 

Carpet Cleaning 
250.00 Tile Scrub/Wax 

Windows & Bldg Wash 
Carpet Cleaning 
Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 
Window & Bldg Wash 
Carpet Cleaning 

216.00 Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 
Windows & Bldg Wash 
Carpet Cleaning 
Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 
Window & Bldg Wash 
Carpet Cleaning 
Carpet Cleaning 

150.00 Tile Scrub/Wax 
Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 
Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 
Carpet Cleaning 
Tile Scrub/Wax 

112.42 59-DL Duralast Battery; Bosch 
Super Plus Spark Plug 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 108.28 59-DL Duralast Battery 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 4.14 Bosch Super Plus Spark Plug 

1999 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10630 Aztec Farms 50.00 Business Registration Refund 

001 - 321 99 00 000 - General Business Registratior -50.00 Business Registration Refund 

2000 05/27/2014 Claims l 10631 BJ Paint & Carpet 65.76 White Paint 

001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 65. 76 White Paint 

2001 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10632 Beaver Bark 233.91 Con"ete Mixer Rental 

001 - 576 20 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 233.91 Concrete Mixer Rental 

2002 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10633 Benton Franklin Counties 291.13 2% Liquor Taxes 

001 - 566 00 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 291.13 2% Liquor Taxes 

2003 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10634 Benton Franklin Dist Health 96.00 Drinking WaterBa<teria 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 96.00 Drinking Water Bacteria 

2004 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10635 Benton PUD 

001 - 518 31 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
403 - 534 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
407 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
403 - 539 20 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
102 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
J 02 - 542 63 4 7 000 - Public Utility Services 
102 - 542 90 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
001 - 569 21 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
001 - 572 50 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
001 - 576 20 47 000 - Public Utility Services 
001 - 576 80 47 000 - Public Utility Services 

2005 05/27/2014 Claims l 10636 Biko 

974.69 
11,558.68 
10,204.14 

91.26 
3,685.84 

29,460.14 Electric Bill; Electric BiH-WCR 

64 7.3 l Electric Bill-W CR 
330.94 
425.10 
397.26 
793.21 
351.71 

271.23 Replacement SS Lock 9



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 16:33:25 Date: 05/21/2014 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 Page: 3 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

403 - 534 80 31 000-0ffice & Operating Supplies 271.23 Replacement SS Lock 

2006 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10637 Bleyhl Farm Service Gas 2, 789.89 PW Fuel Charges; 'NW And City 

001 - 511 60 32 000 - Fuel 
001 - 524 20 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
403 - 534 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
407 - 535 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
403 - 539 20 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
102 - 542 90 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 
001 - 576 80 32 000 - Fuel Consumed 

2007 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10638 Blumenthal 

001 - 521 20 21 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 5212021 000 - Uniforms & Equipment 
001 - 5212031 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equiprn 

2008 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10639 Boys & Girls Clubs 

001 - 5712241 001 -Professional Services 

HaJI Fuel 

50.44 WW And City Hall Fuel 
153.16 WW And City Hall Fuel 
518.37 PW Fuel Charges 
512. 78 WW And City Hall Fuel 
518.38 PW Fuel Charges 
518.38 PW Fuel Charges 
518.38 PW Fuel Charges 

2,572.13 Holster; LED Battery, LED DC 
Only; Radio Holder; Vest-Colvig 

188.39 Holster 
165.59 Radio Holder 
412.79 LED Battery, LED DC Only 

1,805.36 Vest-Colvig 

6,250.00 Boys And Girls Club 

6,250.00 Boys And Girls Club 

2009 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10640 CK Home Comfort Systems 4,688.85 Cleaning Rotobrush Duct; Service 

2010 05/27/2014 

2011 05/27/2014 

001 - 518 31 48 000 -Repairs & Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
102 - 542 90 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 569 21 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

001 - 572 50 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
001 - 576 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10641 Campbell's Resort- Lake 
Chelan 

001 - 511 60 43 000 - Travel 

Claims 1 10642 Cascade Analytical 

407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

Check Heating/Cooling 
System-WWTP; Service Check 
Heating/Cooling System-Senior 
Center; Clean Ducts At WWTP; 
Service Check 
Heating/Cooling-City Shop; 
Service Check Heat 

682.29 Service Check Heating/Cooling-City Hall 
303 .24 Service Check Heating/Cooling-Water Dept 
649.80 Cleaning Rotobrush Duct 
987.39 Service Check Heating/Cooling 

System-WWTP 
379.05 Clean Ducts At WWTP 
205. 77 Service Check Heating/Cooling-City Shop 

1,048.11 Service Check Heating/Cooling 
System-Senior Center 

346.56 Service Check Heating/Cooling-Library 
86.64 Heating/Cooling Service Cheek-Pool 

420.33 Hotel Stay-LEOFF Confrence 

420.33 Elder LEOFF Conference May 12-15 

82.62 Fecal Coliform MPN Solid 

82.62 Fecal Coliform MPN Solid 

2012 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10643 Cascade Engineering Services 1,710.00 Radar Calibrations 

001 - 5212041 000 -Professional Services 1,710.00 Radar Calibrations 

2013 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10644 Central Pre-Mix Concrete Co 17.16 Silica Sand #16 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2014 05/27/2014 Claims l 10645 Centurylink 

00 l - 518 31 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Communications 
407 - 535 80 42 000 - Communications 
448 - 53 7 80 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 539 20 42 000 - Communications 
102 -542 90 42 000 - Communications 
102 - 543 30 42 102 - Communication 

17.16 SilicaSand#l6 

1,199.67 
384.95 
363.73 
l 01.28 
101.28 
266.82 
101.25 

2,538.94 Telephone Bill 

10



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

001 - 576 20 42 000 - Communications 19.96 

Time: 16:33:25 Date: 05/21/2014 
Page: 4 

Amount Memo 

2015 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10646 Charter Communications 7 .64 PD Basic Cable 

7 .64 PD Basic Cable 001 - 521 20 42 000 - Communications 

2016 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10647 Cole Industrial Inc 776.50 Boiler Maintenance 

776.50 Boiler Maintenance 

2017 05/27/2014 

2018 0512712014 

2019 05/2712014 

2020 05127/2014 

407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10648 Cook's True Value 

001 - 518 31 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10649 Denchel's Ford Country 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

Claims 1 10650 Robert C Elder 

001 - 5116043 000 -Travel 

Claims 1 10651 Fastenal Company 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

160.89 Fasteners; Ever 4pk C Alk Battery; 
Return Ever 4pk C Alk Battery; 
Fasteners; Redu Bushing; Key 
Cutting; Wiper BladeNVhcle#OSl; 
Ext. Cord; Aero Gry AP Primer; 
Bypass Lopper; Tongue Grove 
Plier, MPT Plu 

1.61 Key Cutting 
6.49 Wiper Blade-Vhcle#081 
6.97 Fasteners 

27.58 Ever 4pk C Alk Battery 
-3.25 Return Ever 4pk C Alk Battery 
30.31 Ext. Cord 
47.18 Tongue Grove Plier, MPT Plug, Flip Cover 
27 .06 Bypass Lopper 

5.65 Fasteners 
4.10 Redu Bushing 
7 .19 Aero Gry AP Primer 

35.09 Fuel Saver Package 

35.09 Fuel Saver Package 

297, 72 LEO FF Confrence 

297.72 LEOFF Confrence 

107.06 HCS l-8x5.5 ZS, USS F/W !" Z, 
1 "-8 Fin Hex Nut 

107.06 HCS l-8x5.5 ZS, USS F/W l" Z, l "-8 Fin 
Hex Nut 

2021 0512712014 Claims 1 10652 G&r Ag Products 370.03 Belt, Tube/Bearing, Roller 

102 - 542 70 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 185.01 Belt, Tube/Bearing, Roller 
001 - 576 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 185.02 Belt, Tube/Bearing, Roller 

2022 0512712014 Claims l 10653 Grainger Inc 35.42 Shop Towel Rolls 

I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 35 .42 Shop Towel Rolls 

2023 05/2712014 Claims l 10654 Huibregtse, Louman & Assoc 10,236.05 2014 General Sorvkes; Zone 2.5 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
l 02 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 
420 - 594 34 41 420 - Professional Services 

2024 05/27/2014 Claims I 10655 Irrigation Specialists 

403 - 539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2025 05127/2014 Claims 1 10656 The Janitor's Closet 

001 - 576 80 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 

Water Supply 

691.3 5 2014 General Services 
308.00 2014 General Services 
178.50 2014 General Services 

9,058.20 Zone 2.5 Water Supply 

846.80 l\'.laxi-Paw Part/Full Circle 

846.80 Maxi-Paw Part/Full Circle 

455.17 Sky Almond Soap, Misty 
Vandalism Remover 

455.17 Sky Almond Soap, Misty Vandalism 
Remover 

2026 05127/2014 Claims 1 10657 Language Line Services Inc 5.06 Over The Phonolnterpretation 

001 - 521 20 41 000 - Professional Services 5.06 Over The Phone Interpretation 

2027 0512712014 Claims 1 10658 Language Testing International 140.00 Bilingual T"ting 

407 - 535 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 140.00 Bilingual Testing 11



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

0512712014 To: 05/27/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 16:33:25 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

05/21/2014 
5 

2028 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10659 Leaf 413.33 Front Desk Copy Machine 
Maintenance 

2029 05/27/2014 

001 - 514 23 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
403 - 534 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
407 - 535 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
448 - 537 80 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
403 - 539 20 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 
102 - 542 90 45 000 - Operating Rentals & Leases 

Claims l 10660 MCR Medical Supply Inc 

001-57620 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

001 - 576 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

317.04 
23.89 
23.89 
23.89 
23.89 

0.73 

71.35 CPR Rescue MaskW/Valve 

17.27 Adult, CPR Rescue Mask W/Valve No 
Case-Single 

54.08 Adult, CPR Rescue Mask W/Valve No 
Case-Pack JO 

2030 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10661 The Markets LLC 37 .07 Super Chill Water; Super Chill 
'\\later; Dry Ice 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 19.68 Super Chill Water 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 13.90 Super Chill Water 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 3.49 Dry Ice 

2031 05/27/2014 Claims l 10662 John Markus 230.00 Sergeants Academy-Meals 

001 -5212043 000 -Travel 230.00 Sergeants Academy-Meals 

2032 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10663 Mid-Columbia Library 14,869.91 Mid Columbia Library 

001 - 572 20 51 000 - lntergov't Professional Servic 14,869.91 Mid-Columbia Library Services 

2033 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10664 Office Depot 110.92 Metal Engraved Sign 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 23.26 Metal Engraved Sign 
001 - 5212031 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 87.66 Metal Engraved Sign 

2034 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10665 Brian Ohler 115.00 IDS Symposium Travel 

001 - 521 20 43 000 - Travel 

2035 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10666 Oxarc 

Reimbursement 

115.00 IDS Symposium Travel Reimbursement 

2,970.37 Sodium Hypochlorite; Oxygen, 
Acetylene Dissolved 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 2,723.75 Sodium Hypochlorite 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 246.62 Oxygen, Acetylene Dissolved 

2036 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10667 The Print Guys Inc 176.86 Window Security Envelopes 

00 I - 514 23 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies l 06.16 Window Security Envelopes 
403 -534 80 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 14.14 Window Security Envelopes 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 14.14 Window Security Envelopes 
448 - 537 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 14.14 Window Security Envelopes 
403 -539 20 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 14.14 Window Security Envelopes 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 14.14 Window Security Envelopes 

2037 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10668 Prosser Chamber Of Commerce 19,500.00 VlC Operations And TourisimAnd 

130 - 573 90 41 000 - Professional Services - Chaml 
131 - 573 90 41 131 - Professional Services 

2038 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10669 Prosser Napa 

l 02 - 542 67 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2039 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10670 Prosser Rentals 

I 02 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2040 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10671 Prosser, City Of 

Promotion Area-March, April, 
May 

15,000.00 VIC Operations And Tourisim Promotion 
4,500.00 Tourisim Promotion Area 

177 .1 O Starter-Remfd-Standard, Core 
Deposit; Air Filter 

39.83 Air Filter 
137.27 Starter-Remfd-Standard, Core Deposit 

43.32 Vibta Plate 

43.32 Vibta Plate 

67 ,035.23 Water Utility Tax; \Vaste Water 
Utility Tax; Garbage Utiliy Tax 

12



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 16:33:25 Date: 05/21/2014 City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 Page: 6 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk # Claimant 

403 - 534 80 44 000 - External Taxes 
407 - 535 80 44 000 - External Taxes 
448 - 537 80 44 000 - External Taxes 

Amount Memo 

24,451.80 Water Utility Tax 
38,664.65 Waste Water Utility Tax 
3,918.78 Garbage Utiliy Tax 

2041 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10672 Q-Tech Auto Service Ctr 466.52 Oil Change, Change Oil Filter; 
Alternator 

407 - 535 80 48 000 - Repairs & Mainienance 
102 - 542 90 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2042 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10673 Rainwater Water Co 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2043 0512712014 Claims 1 10674 Rotschy Inc 

403 - 594 34 63 002 - Capital Other Improvements-] 

2044 05/2712014 Claims 1 10675 Sajugomico 

001 - 321 99 00 000 - General Business Registration 

2045 05127/2014 Claims 1 10676 Saxton Riley, PLLC 

001 - 512 50 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 - 515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 -515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
00 l - 515 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
001 -515 30 41 000-Professional Services 
001 -515 30 41 000 -Professional Services 
00 l - 524 20 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
I 02 - 542 70 41 l 02 - Professional Services 
I 02 - 542 90 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 558 60 41 000 - Professional Services 

2046 05127/2014 Claims 1 10677 Shi International Corp 

001 - 518 88 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 518 88 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 518 88 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 518 88 31 000 -Office & Operating Supplies 

2047 05/2712014 Claims 1 10678 Tom Stewart 

403 - 534 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
403 - 539 20 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
l 02 - 542 90 49 000 - Miscellaneous 
001 - 576 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous 

2048 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10679 Sunnyside Glass 

00 l - 5 I 8 31 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 

2049 05127/2014 Claims 1 10680 Swana 

l 02 - 542 70 49 000 - Total Other Services & Charg 

398.69 Alternator 
67.83 Oil Change, Change Oil Filter 

24.00 Waler 

24.00 Water 

8,852.12 Disinfection, Filtration And Source 
Improvements 

8,852.12 Disinfection, Filtration And Source 
Improvements 

50 .00 Business Registration Refund 

-50.00 Business Registration Refund 

9,678.52 1952 Mountain View Drive 
(Parsons); Administration (Civil); 
Charter Franchise; Code 
Enforcement; Heard; Planning; 
14-01Reynosa;14~02 Christensen 
LLC; 14-04 Mercer Estates; 
Prosser Police Deprtment; 

4,209.63 Prosser Police Deprtment 
382.50 1952 Mountain View Drive (Parsons) 

2,626.39 Administration (Civil) 
60.00 Charter Frauchise 

120.00 Heard 
82.50 Records Request (Civil) 
22.50 Records Request (Criminal) 
15.00 Code Enforcement 

172.50 Water Dept 
457.50 Sewet Dept 
45.00 Public Works Dept 
30.00 Streets 

1,155.00 Planning 
210.00 14-01 Reynosa 
30.00 14-02 Christensen LLC 
60.00 14-04 Mercer Estates 

335. 73 US Media Reader, Lightning USB 
Cable, Power Adapter; Tripp Lite 
Mounting 'Kit 

102.88 Kingston USB Media Reader 
86.64 Apple Lightning USB Cable 
92.06 Apple USB Power Adapter 
54.15 LCD Mounting Kit 

55.00 CDL Physical 

13.75 CDL Physical 
13. 7 5 CD L Physical 
13.75 CDL Physical 
13.75 CDLPhysical 

249.09 Repair Door-City Hall 

249.09 Repair Door-City Hall 

200.00 Association Dues 

100.00 Association Dues 

13



CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 16:33:25 Date: City Of Prosser 

MCAG#: 0205 05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 Page: 
05/21/2014 

7 

Trans Date Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo 

001 - 576 80 49 000 - Miscellaneous I 00.00 Association Dues 

2050 0512712014 Claims I 10681 Taurus Power & Control Inc 621.53 Robicon Base Driver Board 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

2051 0512712014 Claims 1 10682 The Print Guys Inc 

409 - 586 00 00 000 - Utility Deposits Refunded 

2052 0512712014 Claims I 10683 Tolman Electric 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 

621.53 Robicon Base Driver Board 

250.00 Refund Utility Deposit 

250.00 Refund Utility Deposit 

227 .43 Service Call Repair Standpipe 

227.43 Service Call Repair Standpipe 

2053 0512712014 Claims 1 10684 Total Energy Management 521.14 Filter Plant' Calibrate Bubbler 

403 - 534 80 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 521.14 Filter Plant: Calibrate Bubbler 

2054 0512712014 Claims I 10685 Utilities Underground Loe 33.54 Excavation Notification 

2055 0512712014 

2056 0512712014 

403 - 534 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims I 10686 Valley Pipe Co 

407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
407 - 535 80 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 80 31 000- Office & Operating Supplies 

001-57680 31 000 - Office & Operating Supplies 

Claims 1 10687 Valley Publishing Co Inc 

001 - 514 30 41 000 - Professional Services 
001 - 5 58 60 41 000 - Professional Services 

2057 05127/2014 Claims 1 10688 Verizon Wireless 

001 - 518 88 42 000 - Communications 
403 - 534 80 42 000 - Commm1ications 
407 - 535 80 42 000 - Communications 
001 - 576 20 42 000 - Communications 

2058 0512712014 Claims 1 10689 WAAuditor's Office 

103 - 543 30 51 103 -Road & Street Administration 

2059 0512712014 Claims 1 10690 WA Dept Of Enterprise 
Services 

403 - 534 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
407 - 535 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
448 - 537 80 41 000 - Professional Services 
403 - 539 20 41 000 - Professional Services 

16.77 Excavation Notification 
16.77 Excavation Notification 

4,202.47 Credit: 10" 90 Degree Lasco; ion 
Pre Flanges, 10" TIS Water Valve; 
Plumbing Materials For WWTP; 
Return Funny Pipe; Male Fitting 
AD, STD Valve Box, Repari 
Coupler; lrritrol Valve, Hardie 
Solenoid, Funn 

-299.82 Credit: 10" 90 Degree Lasco 
392.38 10" Pre Flanges, 1 O" TIS Water Valve 
868.95 JO" Pre Flanges, JO" TIS Water Valve 
868.95 Plumbing Materials For WWTP 

1,924.33 Plumbing Materials For WWTP 
-49.82 Return Funny Pipe 
224.56 Male Fitting AD, STD Valve Box, Repari 

Coupler 
272.94 Irritrol Valve, Hardie Solenoid, Funny Pipe 

120.00 Ordinance Summary 2884-2888; 
Notice Of Public Hearing-Shorline 
Update 

84.00 Ordinance Summary 2884-2888 
36.00 Notice Of Public Hearing-Sherline Update 

285.14 Pool Inter-Data Usage; Building 
Dept MiFi Card; 4G Mobile 
Broadband 

40.01 Building Dept MiFi Card 
60.02 4G Mobile Broadband 
60.01 4G Mobile Broadband 

125.10 Pool Inter-Data Usage 

501.60 TBD Financial Audit 

501.60 TBD Financial Audit 

533.79 
533.80 
533.80 
533.80 

2,135.19 April Utility Statement 

2060 0512712014 Claims l 10691 WA Dept Of Revenue 176.92 Business Licen.e' Credit Card Fees 

001 - 514 30 51 000 - Intergov't Professional Servic 176.92 Business License: Credit Card Fees 

2061 0512712014 Claims 1 10692 WA Patrol Budget & Fiscal 33.00 Police Baokground Check 
Srvc 

14



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 16:33:25 Date: 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 Page: 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount ·Memo 

001 - 586 00 01 000 - Concealed Pistol Lie Dis burs< 33.00 Police Background Check 

05/21/2014 
8 

2062 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10693 Walter Clore Wine & Culinary 50.00 Business Registration Refund 

001 - 321 99 00 000 - General Business Registration -50.00 Business Registration Refund 

2063 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10694 Erin Weber 

403 - 343 41 00 000 - Water Revenues 
407 - 343 60 00 000 - Sewer Revenues 
448 - 343 71 00 000 - Garbage Service Charges 
448 - 343 72 00 000 - Refuse Tax Collection 
448 - 343 74 00 000-Administrative Fee 
403 - 343 90 00 000 - Irrigation Fees & Charges 
448 - 359 90 00 000 - Miscellaneous Penalties 

2064 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10695 Tonelle M Yost 

001 -5712231 001 -Office & Operating Supplies 
001 - 576 20 49 001 - Miscellaneous 

001 General Fund 
102 Street Fund 
103 Transportation Benefit Distric 
130 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 
131 Tourism Promotion Area Fund 
229 1996 GO Bond - Fire Station 
233 2011 GO Bond - Pool 
403 Water Fund 
407 Sewer Fund 
409 Consumer Utility Deposits Fund 
420 Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improv 
448 Garbage Fund 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

-108.66 
50.43 
22.46 

1.40 
2.80 

-28.46 
2.00 

58.03 Refund inactive customer credit 
balance 

191.85 When2Work Registration 
Reimbursement; Tee Ball Baseballs 

26.85 Tee Ball Baseballs 
165.00 When2Work Registration Reimbursement 

47,881.45 
6,647.41 

501.60 
15,000.00 
4,500.00 
6,237.00 

39,306.25 
67,375.94 
62,510.63 

250.00 
9,058.20 
8,609.58 

-----Claims: 
267,878.06 

S/2t11 '-+-,. . I , 

Date 

267,878.06 

15



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of Meeting Date: 
Washington Trust Bank claim Check nos. May 27, 2014 
1048 through 1051 in the amount of 

1 $26,771.36 for the period ending May 27, 
Regular Meeting 

2014 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
$26,771.36 See Attached 

I 

Amount Budgeted: 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. Name and Fund# 

See Attached 
Reviewed bl£ Finance DeQartment: 

~M. 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Accounts Payable transactions by account and department 
2. Check Nos. 1048 through 1051 
3. Checks for Approval 

Summary Statement: 

Checks have been reviewed and approved by department heads, the Finance Director, 
and Mayor as necessary. Washington Trust Bank claim Check nos. 1048 through 1051 
in the amount of $26,771.36 for the period ending May 27, 2014 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

! Approve payment of Washington Trust Bank claim Check nos. 1047 1048 through 1051 
in the amount of $26,771.36 for the period ending May 27, 2014 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

'\:(~~ N/A '7:fc://j_ Reviewed by City Attorney: 

Date: 5 H... :lJl)ti.\- Date: Date: S-.r-L"j-- { <..f. 
Today's Date: ' Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

Ma 22, 2014 

I 

i 

16



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

04/29/2014 To: 04/29/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 10:37:45 Date: 05/06/2014 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

1530 04/29/2014 Claims 7 1048 Total Energy Management 8, 780.25 North Prosser Improvement 

403 - 594 34 63 003 - Capital Other Improvements-! 8,780.25 North Prosser Improvement 

1531 04/29/2014 Claims 7 1049 Huibregtse, Looman & Assoc 6,655.53 North Prosser Improvement; North 
Prosser Improvement 

403 - 594 34 41 003 - Capital Professional Services-
403 - 594 34 41 003 - Capital Professional Services-

594 Capital Expenditures 

!f{)3 witter "Etina 

v 
Signature 

4,262.50 North Prosser Improvement 
2,393.03 North Prosser Improvement 

15,435.78 

• ?E5;4~,11·8 

----- Claims: 
15,435. 78 

. . 
Date 

15,435.78 

17



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

1869 05/14/2014 Claims 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/14/2014 To: 05/14/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

7 1050 Huibregtse, Louman & Assoc 

Time: 13:12:31 Date: 05/15/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

5,567 .10 North Prosser Water System 
]mprovements; North Prosser 
Water System Improvements 

403 - 594 34 41 003 - Capital Professional Services
. 403 - 594 34 4 I 003 - Capital Professional Services-

4,262.60 North Prosser Water System Improvements 
1,304.50 North Prosser Water System Improvements 

403 Water Fund 

Signature 

5,567.10 
----Claims: 

5,567.10 

Date 
, . 

5,567.10 

18



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/14/2014 To: 05/14/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Time: 13:28:22 Date: 05/15/2014 
Page: 1 

Amonnt Memo 

1870 05/14/2014 Claims 7 1051 Huibregtse, Louman & Assoc 5, 768.48 North Prosser '\Vater System 
Improvements; North Prosser 
Water System Improvements 

403 - 594 34 41 003 - Capital Professional Services-
403 - 594 34 41 003 - Capital Professional Services-

403 Water Fund 

4,262.50 North Prosser Water System Improvements 
1,505.98 North Prosser Water System Improvements 

5,768.48 
-----Claims: 

5,768.48 

Date 

5,768.48 

19



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Accept invoice for Operation Meeting Date: 
of the Visitor Information Center and May 27, 2014 

I Reimbursable Tourism and Promotional Regular Meeting 
Expenses for the month of March, April, 
and May and authorize payment for those 
services in the amount of $19,500.00. 
Department: Director: Contact Person: I Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost I (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
$19,500.00 130-573-90-41 

131-573-10-41 
Amount Budgeted: 
$102,000 Name and Fund# 

• $80,000- Hotel/Motel #130 Hotel/Motel Tax 

• $22,000- Tourism Promotion Area (TPA) #131 Fund #130 
Tourism Promotion 
Area #131 

Reviewed by Finance De~rtment: 

'l;M_ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Invoice number 4144 for March, April and May 2014 services 
2. Monthly Reports for February, March, and April 2014 

Summar:y Statement: 

• Check has been reviewed and approved by department heads, the Finance Director, and · 
Mayor as necessary. Check no. 10668 in the amount of $19,500 has been generated for 
Council approval. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended Citv Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Accept invoice for Operation of the Visitor Information Center and Reimbursable Tourism 
and Promotional Expenses for the month of March, April and May 2014 and authorize 
payment for those services in the amount of $19,500.00. 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

Reviewed by Citv Attorney: 

N/A A?:?z'~ 

. 

t)---LJ-l'1 I 
I ~f(I.;.. M.~ 

5 ;;i.:~ Q..o\t..J Date: Date: Date: 
· Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

May 22, 2014 

20



Prosser Chamber of Commerce 

1230 Bennett Avenue 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Bill To 

City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Quantity Description 

City Contract for VIC Operations I March 
City Contract for Touris1n and Promotion I March 

City Contract for VIC Operations I April 
City Contract for Tourism and Pro1notion I April 

City Contract for VIC Operations I May 
City Contract for Touris1n and Pro1notion I May 

Working together we can accomplish so much 1nore. 

P.O. No. Terms 

Rate 

Total 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

5/712014 4144 

Project 

Amount 

5,000.00 5,000.00 
1,500.00 l ,500.00 

5,000.00 5,000.00 
1,500.00 1,500.00 

5,000.00 5,000.00 
1,500.00 1,500.00 

$19,500.00 

21



Attachment to the invoice for Hotel I Motel Reimbursement for 

February 2014 

During this reporting month the following work was performed or completed. 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce operated the Prosser Visitor and 
Information Center in conformance with paragraph 4.A. 

Days of Operations _ 20 _ 
Brochures and Mailings _ 62 __ 
Business Referrals _ 71 _ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce updated and maintained the attractions 
directory. 

Yes 
No 
Previously Completed 

x -·--

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce provided the attractions directory 
electronically to the City. 

Yes __ X_ 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce maintained a web site as customary in the 
industry. 

Yes __ x __ 
No 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce attended a convention, conference or 
trade show specifically targeted at tourists. Minimum 5. 

Yes 
No 
Total Number YTD 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted the following Bureau Advertising: 
Washington Wine Commission Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Complete 

I 
22



During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce produced weekly E-Zines. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Total Number (month) 9 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce participated in the HAR site. 
Yes __ x __ 
No 

In addition to the above activities and services, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted regional 
advertising in the following manner: (Portland, Seattle, Spokane, radio, cable and print, distinctive, consistent and unified) 

The purpose of the advertising is to promote Prosser as a destination travel venue which will increase our 
over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to promote Prosser as a travel destination through partnerships with the Tri-City Visitor & 
Convention Bureau and the Yakima Valley VCB through website advertising promoting our local events. 

Listed below are additional marketing programs intended to bring visitors and increase over~night stays. 

The Chamber continues to distribute our anchor visitor's brochure the Attraction Directory, which is available to 
visitor at over 100 locations in Prosser. We continue to market Prosser through social media outlets like Facebook 
and Twitter. Chamber continues to update our tourism website to include a mobile application site to make it easier 
for visitors to research Prosser on any smart phone adding convenience to their travels 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce marketed the following community 
events: 

The Prosser Chamber of Commerce has complied with all the rms of the contract including not utilizing 
Hotel/Motel funds for items listed in Section 5 of the co act. 

irect , Prosser Chamber of Co1nmerce 

2 

23



Monthly Income & Expense Report - February - 2014 

Reyenues Received - $ 6500 Revenues Invested -

Marketing Program Cost Potential Impact on Hotel Stays 

Visitor Information Center 
Personal greeting with visitors provides opportunities for recommendations 

administration and operation 
2500.00 regarding lodging. Handle accommodations requests from phone, e-mail, & 

website 

Weekly & Quarterly E-zines provide potential visitors with up-to-date 
information regarding events and attractions in Prosser. They serve as a 

E-Zine 37.45 quick reference point and reminder of what's happening here. Our current 
e-zine mailing list reaches over 875 recipients all over the Pacific 

Northwest. 

Providing prospective visitors with detailed information about our city and 
it's attractions, the website promotes Prosser 24 hours a day in all parts of 

Tourism Website I tourprosser.com 1390.60 
the world. More visits to the site come from lodging inquiries than any 
other category. We track hits to the site and market in those areas. We 
added a mobile feature to our site making it easy for travelers to access 

from their smart phones 

Wine enthusiasts, outdoor sports and recreation travelers recognize the 

Yakima Valley Visitor Guide 575.00 
Yakima Valley Visitors Guide as great location for leisure travel. Given our 

proximity, partnering with the bureau expands our advertising reach 
therefore creating more opportunities to book rooms locally. 

I Total Expenses! 4503.05 

24



4:15 PM 

05/20/14 

"Accrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

Income 
Administration & Chamber 

Membership Dues 
M iscellanous 

February 2014 

Total Administration & Chamber 

Chamber Events Income 
Community Awards Banquet 

Banquest Ticket Sales 
Banquet-Table Sponsors 
Community Awards Banquet - Other 

Total Community Awards Banquet 

NW Preparedness Expo 
Vendor Fees 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Chamber Events Income - Other 

Total Chamber Events Income 

Community Events 
Harvest Festival 
Miss Prosser & Float 

Miss Prosser Sign Revenue 
Miss Prosser & Float - Other 

Total Miss Prosser & Float 

Scottishfest 

Total Community Events 

Total Income 

Expense 
Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Advertising 
Casual Office Labor 
Depot Rent 
Equip Rental 
Insurance 
Office Supplies 
Payroll Expenses 

Labor & Industries 
Payroll Expenses - Other 

Total Payroll Expenses 

Postage 
Printing/Copy Costs 
Telephone & Internet 
Administration, Chamber & VIC - Other 

Total Administration, Chamber & VIC 

After Hour Chamber Social 
Chamber Event Costs 

Community Awards Banquet Costs 
Banquet Event Expense 

Total Community Awards Banquet Costs 

Chamber Event Costs - Other 

Total Chamber Event Costs 

Chamber Retreat 
Community Event Costs 

Harvest Fest Costs 
Miss Prosser & Float 

Total Community Event Costs 

Feb 14 

235.65 
52.72 

288.37 

630.00 
120.00 
480.00 

1,230.00 

50.00 

50.00 

50.00 
----· ----

1,330.00 

1,500.00 

125.00 
1,905.00 

2,030.00 

-289.66 

3,240.34 

4,858.71 

2,313.41 
187.50 
650.00 
917.30 
696.82 
868.40 

90.13 
3,858.90 

3,949.03 

49.00 
658.71 
160.90 
500.00 

10,951.07 

120.72 

7,321.79 

7,321.79 

26.95 
------

7,348.74 

52.63 

271.61 
65.00 

336.61 

Page 1 

25



4:15 PM 

05/20/14 

Accrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

February 2014 

Tourism & Promotion 
Printing and Copying Costs 

Total Tourism & Promotion 

Total Expense 

Net Income 

Feb 14 

1,424.26 

1,424.26 

20,234.03 

-15,375.32 

Page 2 

26



Attachment to the invoice for Hotel I Motel Reimbursement for 

March 2014 

During this reporting month the following work was performed or completed. 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce operated the Prosser Visitor and 
Information Center in conformance with paragraph 4.A. 

Days of Operations _ 21 __ 
Brochures and Mailings _53 __ 
Business Referrals _ 62 _ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce updated and maintained the attractions 
directory. 

Yes 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce provided the attractions directory 
electronically to the City. 

Yes __ x __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce maintained a web site as customary in the 
industry. 

Yes __ X __ _ 
No 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce attended a convention, conference or 
trade show specifically targeted at tourists. Minimum 5. 

Yes 
No x -- --
Total Number YTD 0 ---

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted the following Bureau Advertising: 
Washington Wine Commission Guide 
Yes X -- ---
No 
Previously Completed 

Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Tri~Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Complete 

Other: --------------------------

l 
27



During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce produced weekly E-Zines. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Total Number (month) ~9-

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce participated in the HAR site. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 

In addition to the above activities and services, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted regional 
advertising in the following manner: (Portland, Seattle, Spokane, radio, cable and printi distinctive, consistent and unified) 

The purpose of the advertising is to promote Prosser as a destination travel venue which will increase our 
over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to promote Prosser as a travel destination through partnerships with the Tri-City Visitor & 
Convention Bureau and the Yakima Valley VCB through website adve1tising promoting our local events. 

Listed below are additional marketing programs intended to bring visitors and increase over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to distribute our anchor visitor's brochure the Attraction Directory, which is available to 
visitor at over 100 locations in Prosser. We continue to market Prosser through social media outlets like Facebook 
and Twitter. Chamber continues to update our tourism website to include a mobile application site to make it easier 
for visitors to research Prosser on any smart phone adding convenience to their travels 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce marketed the following community 
events: 

The Prosser Chamber of Commerce has complied with all the terms of the contract including not utilizing 
Hotel/Motel funds for items listed in Section 5 of the contract. 

Hum be 

2 

28



Monthly Income & Expense Report - March - 2014 

Revenues Received - $ 6500 Revenues Invested -

Marketing Program Cost Potential Impact on Hotel Stays 

Visitor Information Center 
Personal greeting with visitors provides opportunities for recommendations 

administration and operation 
2500.00 regarding lodging. Handle accommodations requests from phone, e-mail, & 

website 

Weekly & Quarterly E-zines provide potential visitors with up-to-date 
information regarding events and attractions in Prosser. They serve as a 

E-Zine 37.45 quick reference point and reminder of what's happening here. Our current 
e-zine mailing list reaches over 875 recipients all over the Pacific 

Northwest. 

Providing prospective visitors with detailed information about our city and 
it's attractions, the website promotes Prosser 24 hours a day in all parts of 

Tourism Website I tourprosser.com 930.00 
the world. More visits to the site come from lodging inquiries than any 
other category. We track hits to the site and market in those areas. We 
added a mobile feature to our site making it easy for travelers to access 

from their smart phones 

Trade Show Booths/Redesign 2385.00 Complete redesign and printing of new tradeshow booth display. 

I Total Expenses! 5852.45 

29



4:10 PM 

05/20/14 

-Accrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

March 2014 

Income 
Administration & Chamber 

Membership Dues 

Total Administration & Chamber 

Chamber Events Income 
NW Preparedness Expo 

Vendor Fees 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Total Chamber Events Income 

City Contract 
Tourism & Promotion Funding 
VIC Funding 

Total City Contract 

Community Events 
Harvest Festival 
Miss Prosser & Float 

Miss Prosser Sign Revenue 
Miss Prosser & Float - Other 

Total Miss Prosser & Float 

Scottishfest 
PSF - Dance 
PSF - Vendors 
Scottishfest - Other 

Total Scottishfest 

Total Community Events 

Total Income 

Expense 
Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Advertising 
License & Permits 
Office Supplies 
Payroll Expenses 
Telephone & Internet 

Total Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Community Event Costs 
Miss Prosser & Float 
NW Preparedness Expo 

Office Expense 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Scottishfest 

Total Community Event Costs 

Tourism & Promotion 
Advertising Costs 
Tourism & Promotion - Other 

Mar 14 

300.00 

300.00 

425.00 
-----

425.00 

425.00 

3.000.00 
10,000.00 

13,000.00 

60.00 

100.00 
-457.94 

----
-357.94 

7.00 
155.00 
130.00 

292.00 

-5.94 

13,719.06 

9.99 
119.00 

70.34 
3,858.90 

160.90 ____ ,,.., __ _ 
4.219.13 

264.34 

50.99 

50.99 

624.24 

939.57 

1,230.00 
2,385.60 

Total Tourism & Promotion 3,615.60 

Total Experise 8,774.30 

Net Income 4,944.76 

Page 1 

30



Attachment to the invoice for Hotel I Motel Reimbursement for 

April 2014 

During this reporting month the following work was performed or completed. 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce operated the Prosser Visitor and 
Information Center in conformance with paragraph 4.A. 

Days of Operations _ 22 _ 
Brochures and Mailings _ 86 _ 
Business Referrals _92 __ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce updated and maintained the attractions 
directory. 

Yes _X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce provided the attractions directory 
electronically to the City. 

Yes __ X_ 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce maintained a web site as customary in the 
industry. 

Yes __ X __ 
No 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce attended a convention, conference or 
trade show specifically targeted at tourists. Minimum 5. 

Yes __ X_ 
No 
Total Number YTD __ 6_ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted the following Bureau Advertising: 
Washington Wine Commission Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ x __ 
No 
Previously Complete 

Other: _________________________ _ 

I 

31



During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce produced weekly E-Zines. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Total Number (month) __ 9_ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce participated in the HAR site. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 

In addition to the above activities and services, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted regional 
advertising in the following manner: (Portland, Seattle, Spokane, radio, cable and print, distindive, consistent and unified) 

The purpose of the advertising is to promote Prosser as a destination travel venue which will increase our 
over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to promote Prosser as a travel destination through partnerships with the Tri-City Visitor & 
Convention Bureau and the Yakima Valley VCB through website advertising promoting our local events. 

Listed below are additional marketing programs intended to bring visitors and increase over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to distribute our anchor visitor's brochure the Attraction Directory, which is available to 
visitor at over I 00 locations in Prosser. We continue to market Prosser through social media outlets like Face book 
and Twitter. Chamber continues to update our tourism website to include a mobile application site to make it easier 
for visitors to research Prosser on any smart phone adding convenience to their travels 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce marketed the following community 
events: 
Spring Barrel Weekend 

The Prosser Chamber of Commerce has complied with all the terms of the contract including not utilizing 
Hotel/Motel funds for items listed in Section 5 of the contract. 

r Chamber of Commerce 

2 

32



Attachment to the invoice for Hotel I Motel Reimbursement for 

April 2014 

During this reporting month the following work was performed or completed. 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce operated the Prosser Visitor and 
Information Center in conformance with paragraph 4.A. 

Days of Operations _22_ 
Brochures and Mailings _ 86 _ 
Business Referrals _92 _ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce updated and maintained the attractions 
directory. 

Yes _X __ 
No 
Previously Completed 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce provided the attractions directory 
electronically to the City. 

Yes 
No 
Previously Completed 

x 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce maintained a web site as customary in the 
industry. 

Yes X 
No 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce attended a convention, conference or 
trade show specifically targeted at tourists. Minimum 5. 

Yes _X_ 
No 
Total Number YTD ___ 6_ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted the following Bureau Advertising: 
Washington Wine Commission Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ x ___ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes X __ _ 
No 
Previously Complete 

Other: _________________________ _ 

I 

33



During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce produced weekly E-Zines. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Total Number (month) 9 -- --

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce participated in the HAR site. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 

In addition to the above activities and services, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted regional 
advertising in the following manner: (Portland, Seattle, Spokane, radio, cable and print, distinctive, consistent and unified) 

The purpose of the advertising is to promote Prosser as a destination travel venue which will increase our 
over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to promote Prosser as a travel destination through partnerships with the Tri-City Visitor & 
Convention Bureau and the Yakima Valley VCB through website advertising promoting our local events. 

Listed below are additional marketing programs intended to bring visitors and increase over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to distribute our anchor visitor's brochure the Attraction Directory, which is available to 
visitor at over 100 locations in Prosser. We continue to market Prosser through social media outlets like Facebook 
and Twitter. Chamber continues to update our tourism website to include a mobile application site to make it easier 
for visitors to research Prosser on any smart phone adding convenience to their travels 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce marketed the following community 
events: 
Spring Barrel Weekend 

The Prosser Chamber of Commerce has complied with all the terms of the contract including not utilizing 
Hotel/Motel funds for items listed in Section 5 of the contract. 

Chamber of Commerce 

2 

34



Attachment to the invoice for Hotel I Motel Reimbursement for 

April 2014 

During this reporting month the following work was performed or completed. 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce operated the Prosser Visitor and 
Information Center in conformance with paragraph 4.A. 

Days of Operations _ 22 _ 
Brochures and Mailings _ 86 _ 
Business Referrals _92 _ 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce updated and maintained the attractions 
directory. 

Yes 
No 
Previously Completed 

x ---

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce provided the attractions directory 
electronically to the City. 

Yes 
No 
Previously Completed 

x -- --· 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce maintained a web site as customary in the 
industry. 

Yes 
No 

x -- ---

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce attended a convention, conference or 
trade show specifically targeted at tourists. Mininuun 5. 

Yes _X_ 
····No 

Total Number YTD 6 ---

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted the following Bureau Advertising: 
Washington Wine Commission Guide 
Yes __ X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Yakima Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ _ 
No 
Previously Completed 

Tri-Cities Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitors Guide 
Yes __ X __ 
No 
Previously Complete 

Other: _________________________ _ 

1 

35



During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce produced weekly E-Zines. 
Yes __ x __ 
No 
Total Number (month) 9 -- ·-

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce participated in the HAR site. 
Yes __ X __ 
No 

In addition to the above activities and services, the Prosser Chamber of Commerce conducted regional 
advertising in the following manner: (Portland, Seattle, Spokane, radio, cable and print, distinctive, consistent and unified) 

The purpose of the advertising is to promote Prosser as a destination travel venue which will increase our 
over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to promote Prosser as a travel destination through partnerships with the Tri-City Visitor & 
Convention Bureau and the Yakima Valley VCB through website advertising promoting our local events. 

Listed below are additional marketing programs intended to bring visitors and increase over-night stays. 

The Chamber continues to distribute our anchor visitor's brochure the Attraction Directory, which is available to 
visitor at over 100 locations in Prosser. We continue to market Prosser through social media outlets like Facebook 
and Twitter. Chamber continues to update our tourism website to include a 1nobile application site to make it easier 
for visitors to research Prosser on any smart phone adding convenience to their travels 

During the month noted above the Prosser Chamber of Commerce marketed the following community 
events: 
Spring Barrel Weekend 

The Prosser Chamber of Commerce has complied with all the terms of the contract including not utilizing 
Hotel/Motel funds for items listed in Section 5 of the contract. 

r Chamber of Commerce 

2 

36



Monthly Income & Expense Report - April - 2014 

I , Revenues Received - $ 6500 Revenues Invested • 

Marketing Program Cost Potential Impact on Hotel Stays 

Visitor Information Center 
Personal greeting with visitors provides opportunities for recommendations 

administration and operation 
2500.00 regarding lodging. Handle accommodations requests from phone, e-mail, & 

website 

Weekly & Quarterly E-zines provide potential visitors with up-to-date 
information regarding events and attractions in Prosser. They serve as a 

E-Zine 37.45 quick reference point and reminder of what's happening here. Our current 
e-zine mailing list reaches over 875 recipients all over the Pacific 

Northwest. 

Providing prospective visitors with detailed information about our city and 
it's attractions, the website promotes Prosser 24 hours a day in all parts of 

Tourism Website I tourprosser.com 930.00 
the world. More visits to the site come from lodging •inquiries than any 
other category. We track hits to the site and market in those areas. We 
added a mobile feature to our site making it easy for travelers to access 

from their smart phones 

RV Show Booth Expenses 1300.00 In partnership with Wine Country RV. 

Taste 208 150.00 Wine lovers from the NW gather at the annual Taste 208 event in Boise ID. 

, 
.• 

I Total Expenses I 4917.45 

37



- . 
4:16 PM 

05/20/14 
·Accrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

Income 
Administration & Chamber 

Miscellanous 

April 2014 

Administration & Chamber - Other 

Total Administration & Chamber 

Total Income 

Expense 
Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Advertising 
Equip Rental 
License & Permits 
Payroll Expenses 
Travel and Meals 
Administration, Chamber & VIC - Other 

Total Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Chamber Event Costs 
Community Awards Banquet Costs 

Banquet Event Expense 
Community Awards Banquet Costs - Other 

Apr14 

251.52 
-93.75 

157.77 

1,300.00 
0.00 

180.00 
5,000.85 

608.64 
___ 1,_362.80 

0.00 
574.28 

8,452.29 

Total Community Awards Banquet Costs 574.28 

Total Chamber Event Costs 574.28 

Community Event Costs 
Miss Prosser & Float 250.00 
NW Preparedness Expo 

Facilities 
Speaker Costs 
NW Preparedness Expo - Other 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Scottishfest 
Advertising 

Total Scottishfest 

Community Event Costs - Other 

Total Community Event Costs 

Tourism & Promotion 
Trades how 

Total Tourism & Promotion 

583.00 
574.99 
500.00 

1,657.99 

412.32 

412.32 

525.00 

2,845.31 

300.00 

300.00 

Total Expense 12,171.88 

Net Income -12,014.11 

Page 1 

38



4:44 PM 

05/.20/14 

Aecrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

January through April 2014 

Income 
Administration & Chamber 

Membership Dues 
Miscellanous 
Administration & Chamber - Other 

Total Administration & Chamber 

Chamber Events Income 
Community Awards Banquet 

Banquest Ticket Sales 
Banquet Auction Cash Donations 
Banquet Table Sponsors 
Community Awards Banquet - Other 

Total Community Awards Banquet 

NW Preparedness Expo 
Vendor Fees 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Chamber Events Income - Other 

Total Chamber Events Income 

City Contract 
Tourism & Promotion Funding 
VIC Funding 

Total City Contract 

Community Events 
Harvest Festival 
Miss Prosser & Float 

Miss Prosser Sign Revenue 
Miss Prosser & Float - Other 

Total Miss Prosser & Float 

Scottishfest 
PSF - Dance 
PSF - Vendors 
Scottishfest - Other 

Total Scottishfest 

States Day 

Total Community Events 

Donations 
Harlem Ambassadors 

Total Income 

Expense 
Administration, Chamber & VIC 

Advertising 
Bank Fees 
Casual Office Labor 
Depot Rent 
Education 
Equip Rental 
Equipment 
Insurance 
License & Perm its 
Miscellaneous 
Office Supplies 
Payroll Expenses 

Employment Security Liability 
Labor & Industries 
Payroll ExPenses - Other 

Total Payroll Expenses 

Jan. Apr 14 
---·-~ ---

715.65 
411.68 

-265. 11 

862.22 

1,290.00 
577.71 

2, 160.00 
480.00 

4,507.71 

475.00 

475.00 

50.00 ---
5,032.71 

29,500.00 
10,000.00 

---
39,500.00 

1,560.00 

425.00 
1,375.12 

1,800.12 

7.00 
155.00 

-159.66 
---

2.34 

-84.00 
---~------

3,278.46 

0.00 
·472.32 

48,201.07 

17,722.95 
15.00 

187.50 
650.00 
400.00 

1.418.41 
512.10 

1,423.23 
299.00 

0.00 
1.419.22 

79.59 
316.21 

13,386.54 

13,782.34 

Page 1 

39



4:44 PM 

05120114 

Accrual Basis 

Prosser Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss 

January through April 2014 

Postage 
Printing/Copy Costs 
Telephone & Internet 
Travel and Meals 
Administration, Chamber & VIC - Other 

Jan - Apr 14 

49.00 
809.93 
580.59 
608.64 

1.962.80 
------

Total Administration, Chamber & VIC 

After Hour Chamber Social 
Chamber Event Costs 

Community Awards Banquet Costs 
Banquet Auction Items 
Banquet Event Expense 
Community·Awards Banquet Costs - Other 

Total Community Awards Banquet Costs 

Chamber Event Costs - Other 

Total Chamber Event Costs 

Chamber Retreat 
Chamber Truck 
Community Event Costs 

Art Walk & Wine Gala Costs 
Harvest Fest Costs 
Miss Prosser & Float 
NW Preparedness Expo 

Facilities 
Office Expense 
Speak er Costs 
NW Preparedness Expo - Other 

Total NW Preparedness Expo 

Scottishfest 
Advertising 
Scottishfest - Other 

Total Scottishfest 

Community Event Costs - Other 

Total Community Event Costs 

Tourism & Promotion 
Advertising Costs 
Printing and Copying Costs 
Trades how 
Tourism- & Promotion - Other 

Total Tourism & Promotion 

Total Expense 

Net Income 

41,840.71 

50.00 
7,338.04 

784.28 

8, 172.32 

26.95 

120.72 

8,199.27 

52.63 
74.78 

1,060.70 
706.59 
579.34 

583.00 
50.99 

574.99 
500.00 

1,708.98 

412.32 
624.24 

------

1,036.56 

525.00 

5,617.17 

9,005.00 
1,424.26 
1, 149.00 
2,385.60 

13,963.86 

69,869.14 

-21,668.07 

Page 2 

40



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

I AGENDA BILL 
[ Agenda Title: Approve Drinking Water [ Meeting Date: 
, State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) j May 27, 2014 

Invoice Voucher Request No. 4 in the I Regular Meeting 
amount of $9,058.20 for the Zone 2.5 ' 
Water Supply Improvements Project 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
documents. ~ 

[ Department: ] Director: Contact Person: I Phone Nu~ I 

'I Public Works f L.J. DaCorsi I L.J. DaCorsi I (509) 786-2332 l 
CoSt--of Proposal: ] Account Number: 
I Estimated Total Project Cost $881,500.00 

I 
DWSRF Invoice Voucher Request No. 4 - $ 9,058.20 1

1 'I 

Name and Fund# 
i Amount Budgeted: Zone 2.5 Water 

I 
Funding derived through an approved low-interest loan from Supply I 

I, the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) I lmpr~~~~ents I 

I Reviewed by Finance Department: 
420 

----1]1 

1. 'R~ 
r·Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 'I 

·1 1. Public Works Board - DWSRF Project Status Report , 
2. WA State Department of Commerce Form 19-1A Voucher Distribution for I 

· $9,058.20 dated 05/14/14 
3. HLA Invoice Number 13109E-005 for $9,058.20, dated 5/01/2014 ·1 

4. Project Cost To Date Breakdown Sheet, dated 5/13/2014 

I Summary Statement:------------- ' 

! The City of Prosser applied for and received 2013 Drinking Water State 
'i Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan monies to construct 4,000 linear feet of new 12" [ 
water transmission main from the Water Treatment Plant on SR 22 to the Painted 

1 

Hills Booster Station. Included in the project is the demolition of the Booster ' 

I 
Station and retiring of service of the Painted Hills Reservoir which will no longer 

. be necessary upon project completion. The total original contract amount is 
[ $890,315.00. The project budget is $881,500.00 and the loan fee is $8,815.00. 

I NOTE: 
: (On August 13, 2013, the Prosser City Council approved the contractual i 
• agreement between the City of Prosser and the Public Works Board for this I 
I project. The funds originate from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and I 
Lare appropriatec:f_by_!he Public Works Board from the Drinking Wa_ter Assi<;!<'JJ1Ce I 

41



I Account (DWSRF). The Board then enters into contract with the City of Prosser ' 
i to disburse the funds, oversee the loan, and perform other services as defined in 
I the Contract. The City also has contractual obligations that it must adhere to for 
I the life of the loan, which in this case is 24 years. The tim(;i.ofperfprmance for this, 
1 project is 48 months from the Contract execution date to Project Completion date. [ 
j Design is currently underway and should be completed in May-June 2014 .. 

I 
Construction is tentatively scheduled to commence November 2014 and reach 
completion by August2015.) 

I This Agenda Bill is to approve DWSRF Invoice Voucher Request No. 4 in the I 

I 

amount of $9,058.20 for engineering services to date on this project and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the documents. This cost includes Project 

I Administration, Design, Final Plans and Specifications. This portion of the project 
I is 4% complete. 

As with standard procedures for other City utility projects funded by state and 
I federal agencies, Council must approve the pay voucher requests before the 
I funding agency can rele~se any monies. , 

I.consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES ORACTIONS TAKEN BY 
· 1 THE COUNCIL 

i--·~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~~~~~---J 

[ Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: ! 

I
' Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice Voucher I 
1 

Request No. 4 in. the amount of $9,058.20 for. the Zone 2.5 Water Supply 
: Improvements Project and authorize the Mayor to sign the documents. I 

~ - ·~ ·1 j Reviewed by Department j Reviewed by City ' Approved by Mayor: 

1

1 °''~: ( ~··. cf7JC/J_ .. ~JI. -/u JiQ 

I Date: :?,• I If ~ 9 Date: r ~)-('+ I 
lroday's Date~ Revision . File Name and Path: 

I 

---~---L 
I I May 14, 2014 
L 

42



Submitter: 

Date of Submission: 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum Street SE 
Post Offi<"c Box 42525 
()lyn1pia, VVashington 98504-2525 

DWSRF PROJECT STATUS REPORT 
Paul Warden - Mayor 

I 
This form must be completed each time you submit a reimbursement request. Reimbursement 
requests will not be processed unless accompanied by a current Project Status Report. 

I • l Client Name: 

I Contract Number: 

Project Name: 

j Scheduled Project 
Completion Date: 

i Prosser 
-_DMll-952-140 
i 

j Zone 2.5 Watew Supply Improvements 

19/30/2017 

1) Project Progress 

Please describe the progress you have made to date on your project's scope of work 
(see Attachment A in your contract). 

Design engineering, surveying and environmental compliance required for the project are ongoing. 

l Approximately, what percentage of the project is complete? 

When do you expect the project to be completed (month/day/year)? I 12/01/2015 

if the anticipated completion date is different from the one above, what factors led to the change in the 
completion date? 

---------· ----------------------

43



2) Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) 

Did you award any DBE contracts this Quarter? NO 

Total DBE contracted out this Quarter or Reporting Period: $ 0.00 

I Type of Business 

[ Minority Owned Business 

Women Owned Business 

Small Business in Rural Area 

Small Business Enterprise 
SBE 

Historically Underutilized 
Business (HUB) Zone Small 
Business Concerns 
Labor Surplus Area Firms 
(LSAF) 

.

1 

Other Entities Meeting EPA's 
. DBE Rule Criteria 

Contract Total Award Date Indicate Type 
of Service 

'construction 

• supplies 

*services 

) • equipment 

Contractor Name 

3) Federal Funds Expenditures 

What is your jurisdiction's fiscal year? January To: December 

I Contractor Address 

' 

During the fiscal year, how much has your system expended in (.all sources) federal funds? $1444174.55 
(2014) 
(Fiscal year is your fiscal year as determined by your organization) 

Note: Borrowers that expend $500,000 or more in federal funds (all sources) in their fiscal year must have an 
audit conducted in accordance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) revised Circular A-133. The audit 
must be conducted within nine months of the end of the fiscal year in which the audit was "triggered." The 
applicable federal category for the DWSRF is CFDA 66.468. 

4) Dedicated Repayment Account (Private Systems Only) 

Please enter the current account balance for the repayment account: $ 0.00 

Administrnl.iv.c services provided by the Washington Slate Department ofC:omrnerce 
(360) 725-3150 Fax (360} 586-8440 W\\·'\V.p\vb.wa.gov 

44



~~ 
WASHINGTON STATE 

It' DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
AOONGr N~MS~H 

I 

ShortCodo Commorco Con!ract /lumbar c.........-j:=. 
Form VOUCHER DlSTRIBUTION 

A1ll-1A DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 1030 DM13-952-140 PO BOX425Z5 i OLYMPIA, WA $8604-2525 

VENDOR OR CLAJMANT (Warrant is to be payable to:) i!NSTRUCTIONS 70 VENDOR OR CLAIMANT: 

Submil 1hln form la cl"im poyment for malelial•. mercnar.di•e, or •C<li;ceo. 
Show complete detail foi oacli Hem 

City of Prosser Vendcr'• Certifioote: The i"dM<lusl "lgnlng\\>ls \loUcliar bolowwarranto Hrny hnvethe<>ulhorlly lo do oo as 

601 Seventh Street nutharizod ond on lhn behalf of tho enmy idon!1fied In :he Vando11Cli~nt ooctlon, The lndividlllll •lgning below~ertifl•H; 
under penalty o( pe1jury lhill the items ond totals ~sl~d herein ore proper chmg~$ for moteri~ls, m~rchunrlise m 

Prosser WA, 99350 ~=Ices fmrnslrnd to lhe State ol WMhlnl)!on, e'!d the! ell aoods fwmi•hod andlarscrv:ces ron®r"dhnve boe~ 
provide~ "'1\houl dlsoriminafon beceuoo of O(ie, sex, morilnl status. rooe a~od, coior, nol!onal origio, handtt:<ip, 
re~gion orVie~l""' enl or dis obied va1erons •lahm. 

Cantact Person: Toni Yost 
Phone: (509) 786-2332 
Comr~ct Period 9/30/2017 By: 

REPORT" PERIOD 04/0i/14 - 04/30/14 
(SIGN IN BLUE INK) 

r~ 
---·""[TITLE) (DATE) 

Original Contract Amount $890,315.00 

Loan Fee (if any) $8,815.0Q 

Dale DESCRIPTION Budget Previously Requested Amount of This Invoice Award Remaining Balance 

5/1412014 Desion and Final Plans and Soedfications, Environmental, Proi Admin $881,500.00 $38,130.00 $9,058.20 $834,31 'l.80 

Voucher No. 4 

' 

~·--- -· -

' ' 
I ' 

·----

Totals $881,500.00 $38, 130.00 $9,058.20 $834,311,80 

M•toh: Yoor/Oollmi Codln~ rROGMM APPROVAL 1"1o "~I"°'' ''B'"U <1;'' ""'""''~"'""" •1"11 """'"° "'-"'~'11"9(!'"'"'"°"''""1 IDATE 

DOC OArE I CURRENT OOC NO REFERENCE DOC NO !VENOORllUMBER ontlSUfflX 

' I swvoo 1595s-oo 
ACCOUNT NO ASDNUMBER !VENDOR MESSAGE 

28185i 

lllDEX I 
SUi'I ! 

I TRAllS '"' ACCT I CODE MASTER SUB OBJ '"" " sussm AMOUNT INVOICE 

--·-·· 
I.· 

~ 

I 
I 
I 

' 
! 

I 
SIG~ATUR£ Of ACCOUNTING PREPARfR fOR PAYMENT um I WARRANT TOTAL 

i 
ACCOUNTl1l0 APPROVAL FORPl•YMEllT OATE I 

Prepared on 5/13/2014 

45



-LA 
· Httlbxegtse, Louman Associates, lnc. 

Civil E!ig;i!leering •Land Sm:veying* l'laru:i!ng 

City of Prosser 

601 Seventh St 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Payment is Due within 30 Days of the Date of this Invoice. 

FOR: 

Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. 
2803 River Road 

Yakima, WA 98902 

Invoice number 

Date 

13109E-005 

0510112014 

Project 13109E Prosser - Zone 2.5 Water Supply 
Improvements 

Professional Engineering and Land Surveying Services in connection with the Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements project, per your 
request, for services performed April 1 through April 30, 2014. 

Description 

Phase 4 ·Design and Final Plans and 
Specifications 

Phase 1 ·Environmental Compliance 

Licensed Professional Engineer 

RelssMLandreau Research 

Phase 2 - Project Administration 

Contract Administrator 

Total 

Contract Percent 
Amount Complete 

79,500.00 49.00 

79,500.00 49.00 

Subtotal 

Phase subtotal 

Phase subtotal 

Prior Total 
Billed Billed Current Billed 

35,775.00 38,955.00 3,180.00 

35,775.00 38,955.00 3,180.00 

Billed 
Hours Rate Amount 

6.50 145.00 942.50 

Cost Billed 
Amount Multiplier Amount 

4,460.00 1.07 4,772.20 

4,460.00 4,772.20 

5,714.70 

Billed 
Hours Rate Amount 

1.50 109.00 163.50 

163.50 

Invoice total 9,058.20 

46



City of Prosser 

Project '!3109E Prosser. Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements 

HUIBREGTSE,LOUMAN ASSOC., INC. 

Jeffrey T. Louman, PE 

President 

Pl-/ASE 1 - ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 
Contract Amount: $10,000.00 
Total Amount Biiied to Date: $7,524. 70 
Contract Balance Remaining: $2,475.30 

PHASE 2 - PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 
Contract Amount: $10,000.00 
Total Amount Billed to Date: $708.50 
Contract Balance Remaining: $9,291.50 

PHASE 3 - EASEMENT AQUISITION ASSISTANCE 
Contract Amount: $5, 000. 00 
Total Amount Billed to Date: $0.00 
Contract Balance Remaining: $5,000.00 

Invoice number 

Date 
13109E-005 

05/01/2014 

47



City of Prosser 
ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 

DWSRF Project No.: DM13-952-140 

Invoice 
Date 

01/01/14 
02/01/14 
03101114 
04101/14 
05101114 

Total 

HLA ·contract -
Contracto 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

PE Phase 1 
70.00 

725.00 
-

1,015.00 
5,714.70 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

7,524.70 

PE Phase 2 
$ 144.00 $ 
$ 148.50 $ 
$ 198.00 $ 
$ 54.50 $ 
$ 163.50 $ 
$ $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - s 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ - $ 
$ 708.50 $ 

Ex . to Date $ 7,524.70 $ 708.50 $ 
DWSRF Fund Loan Balance 

Phase 1 - Environmental Compliance 
Phase 2 - Project Administration 

Phase 3 - Easement Acquisition Assistance 

Phase 4 - Design and Final Plans and Specifications 

Phase 5 - Services During Construction 

HLA Project No. 13109 

Project Costs To Date 
PE Phase 3 PE Phase 4 

- $ 6,360.00 $ 
- $ 13,515.00 $ 
- $ 11,925.00 $ 

$ 3,975.00 $ 

- $ 3, 180.00 $ 
- $ - s 

$ - $ 

- $ - $ 

- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 

$ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 

$ - $ 
- $ - $ 
- $ - $ 

$ - $ 
- $ - $ 

$ 38,955.00 $ 

$ 38,955.00 $ 

CE Prag Est - Construct'ion Progress Estimates -Popuiated at Bid Opening/Award 

G,\PROJECTS\2013\13109\DWSRF INFOIVOUCHER ROST NO_ 4\2014-05 PROJ COST BREA!<OOWN 4.l<l> 

CE Phase 5 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

5/13/2014 

CE Prog Est Project Total 
$ - $ 6,574.00 
$ - $ 14,388.50 
$ - $ 12,123.00 
s - s 5,044.50 
s - $ 9,058.20 
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - s 47, 188.20 

:s< -. ,190,mo;oo, 

I $'-i 881;500;QO I 

$ $ 47,188.20 
$ 834,311.80 

48



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGE·f>JDA BlLL 
--------~--~----~-~~~-=------

' Agenda Title: Approve Agreements with 1 Meeting Date: 
i US Bank for the use of Credit Cards as I May 27, 2014 
! part of State Contract WSCA 00612. ! Regular Meeting 

L--------· -- ·---------+------------
1 Department: 'j' Q_irector: c::;_i;mtact Person: 
: Administration Paul Warden Regina Mauras 

I Phone Number: 
I (509) 786-822s 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
N/A N/A 

1 Amount Budgeted: 
'NIA 

I R~"''w00 by Firtecco 0e,,rtmeot-
1 

Name and Fund# 

N/A I 

I \~ A\.cuA v1,~,-
~ments to Agenda Packet Item: 

J 
I 

I 
1. Political Subdivision Addendum 
2. Political Subdivision Request to Participate Form 

Summary__$tatement: 

! On May 7"', the City Council took action approving contracts with the US Bank for the ! 
use of credit cards pursuant to state contact. Following the meeting, the executed 
documents were forwarded to US Bank for processing. Shortly thereafter, we were 
notified that the contract had recently been renewed and, as a result, new forms needed 
to be submitted in place of the out of date forms. 

' 
The attached agreements and substantially the same as those previously presented with 
modifications made to contract number reference, dates, and other administrative 
updates to terminology. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

. EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

L. ·------------
1 Recommerided City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve Agreements with US Bank for the use of Credit Cards as part of State 
Contract WSCA 00612. 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

l_oate: 

49



WSCA-NASPO Contract 00612 - Commercial Card Solutions - Participating Addendum 

WSCA-NASPO POLITICAL SUBDIVISION ADDENDUM 

This Political Subdivision Addendum constitutes an addendum to the Participating Addendum dated March 5, 2014 entered into by U.S. Bank 
N af1onal Assoclat'1on ("U.S. Bank") and the government entity of the State of Washington ("State") whkh constitutes an addendum to the WSCA-NASPO 
Contract dated January 1, 2014 between U.S. Bank and the State of Washington. This Political Subdivision Addendum is entered into by U.S. Bank and 
the Political Subdivision identified herein and shall become effective upon signing by the latter of the parties ("Effective Date"). 

RECITALS 

A. The State has entered into the Partlclpating Addendum for the purpose of making available a Purchase Card, One Card, Fleet Card or Corporate Card 
Program as described ln the Participating Addendum for use by the State, Its Agencies and Political Subdivisions; 

B. The State is willing to permit Political Subdivision to participate in the Card Program provided that Political Subdivision assumes all responsibility 
and liability for Political Subdivision's performance of the terms and conditions of the Participating Addendum as if Political Subdivision was the 
entity signing the Participating Addendum. The State shall not bear liability or responsibility for Political Subdivision under the Participating 
Addendum or this Polltical Subd'1vision Addendum; and 

C. Political Subdivision has received a copy of the Participating Addendum from the State, and after a thorough review of the Participating 
Addendum, desires to participate as a Political Subdivision under the Participating Addendum. Political Subdivision assumes all responsibility and 
liability for Political Subdivision's performance of the terms and conditions of this Political Subdivision Addendum, as well as the Participating 
Addendum, as lf Political Subdivision was the entity signing the Participating Addendum, but Political Subdivision shall not be liable for the acts and 
om·1ssions of the State under the Part\cipatlng Addendum or this Political Subdivision Addendum. 

AGREEMENT 

Now therefore, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, the mutual premises and covenants set forth in the Participating Addendum which are 
incorporated herein by reference, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby ai:knowledged, all parties 
agree as follows: 

L Definitions, Capitalized terms used in this Political Subdivision Addendum and not otherwise defined in this Political S.L'ibdivision Addendum are used 
with the same respective meanings attributed thereto in the Participating Addendum. 

2. Political Subdivision Respons"ibil!ty, Political Subdivision agrees to accept and perform all duties, responsibilities and obligations required of Sta.te 
as set forth in the Participating Addendum. Cards shall be issued to designated employees of Political Subdivision upon execution of this PolitLcal 
Subdivision Addendum by Political Subdivision and U.S. Bank. 

3. Financial Information. In order to determine credit qualifications for Political Subdivision, Political Subdivision shall provide U.S. Bank with the last 
three (3) years of audited financial statements with this signed Political Subdivision Addendum. Political Subdivision shall provide to U.S. Bank 
annual financial statements thereafter. U.S. Bank will review the financial statements and notify Political Subdivision of the approval or decline of 
its credit qualification. Jf such financial statements can be independently obtained by U.S. Bank, Political Subdivision will not be required to 
provide such financial statements. 

4. Payment. Political Subdivision shall make payment to U.S. Bank for all Debt incurred by Political Subdivision, its Cardholders and Accountholders 
as provided in the Participating Addendum. "Debt'' means all amounts charged to a card and/or account inciuding without limitation all amounts 
related to purchases, fees and other Charges that are owed to U,S. Bank by Political Subdivision, its Cardholders and Accountho!ders. 

5. Authority. The representations, warranties and recitals of Political Subdivision set forth in this Political Subdivision Addendum and the 
Participatlng Addendum constitute valid, binding and enforceable agreements of Political Subdivision. All extensions of credit made to Political 
Subdivision pursuant to this Political Subdivision Addendum and the Participating Addendum will be valid and enforceable obligations of Political 
Subdivision and Political Subdivision shall pay to U.S. Bank all Debts incurred by Polftlcal Subdivision in accordance with the terms of the 
Participating Addendum and this Political Subdivision Addendum. The execution of this Political Subdivision Addendum and the performance of 
the obligations hereunder and under the Participating Addendum are within the power of Political Subdivision, have been authorized by all 
necessary action and do not constitute a breach of any contract to which Political Subdivision is a party or is bound. 

6. Purpose of Card Use. Political Subdivision declares that cards shall be used for official Political Subdivision purchases only, and shall not be used 
for individual consumer purchases or to incur consumer debt. Political Subdivision warrants that it possesses the financial capacity to perform all 
of its obligations under the Participating Addendum and this Political Subdivision Addendum. 

7. Governing Law. Except as provided to the contrary herein, the law of the state of Washington and applicable federal laws and regulations shall 
apply to all services provided by U.S. Bank under this Political Subdivision Addendum. 

Pagelof2 50



WSCA-NASPO Contract 00612 - Commercial Card Solutions - Participating Addendum -- Political Subdivision Addendurn 

8. Card Products and Card Product Enhancements: U-5. Bank may provide the following card Products to Political Subdivision and its Cardholders. 

Political Subdivision shall mark here the products requested. 

1~. 0 Purchase Card with Corporate liability (Travel Accident Insurance not included with this product) 
D Central Billing Accounts [Central Travel Account/Event Planner/Central Relocation) 

0 Managed Spend (Declining Sa!ance functionality/ 
D Emergency Response Cards 

G. ['.i9 One Card with Corporate Liability (Travel Accident Insurance included with this product) 
0 Central Billing Accounts (Central Travel Account/Event Planner/Central Relocation) 
0 Managed Spend (Declining Balance functionality} 

0 Emerp,ency Response Cards 

C. D Fleet Card with Corporate Liabifily 

D. D Corporate Card (/"ravel Accident Insurance included) 
0 Contingent Liability 

0 Joint and Several Liability 

9 The notice address for Po!iticai Subdivision is: 

City of Prosser 

601 ih Street 
.~~~~~~~~~· 

_?rosser, WA 99350 

Attn: Toni Yost 

10. Authorization. Political Subdivision certifies to U.S. Bank that the person executing th ls Political Subdivision Addendum is authorized by Political 

Subdivision in accord with its organization rules and applicable law to bind Political Subdivision to the Terms and Conditions of this Political 
Subdivision Addendum, including the authority to incur Debt in the name of Political Subdivision. 

11 Execution. By signing below, the individuai(s) signing this Political Subdivision Addendum acts in hls or her capacity as an authorized signing officer 

of Political Subdivision and not in his or her personal capacity, and certifies and warrants that (l} all action required by Political Subdivision's 

organizational documents. to authorize the signer(s) to act on behalf of Political Subdivision in all actions taken under this Political Subdivision 

Addendum, including but not limited to, the authority to incur Debt on behalf of Political Subdivision has been taken, {2) each signer ls empowered 
in the name of and on behalf of Political Subdivision to enter into all transactions contemplated in this Political Subdivision Addendum and (3) the 
~ignatures appea1·ing on ali supporting documents of authority, if any, are authentic. 

12. Reliance. Political Subdivision has read, understands and agrees to all terms and conditions in this Political Subdivision Addendum, and U.S. Bank is 

entitled to act in reliance upon the authorizations and certifications set forth herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have, by their authorized representatives, executed this Polltical Subdivision Addendum. 

Dated this ___ day of ______ ~ 20 

By Political Subdivision: 

City of P:~o_s_se_c ___ ~~~~---~---
(Name) 

(Signature of Authorized Signer) 

Paul Warden 

(Printed Name of Authorized Signer} 

Mayor 

(Printed Title of Authorized Signer) 

Approved asiR!!1~· ···-··--·· 

(Signature of Attorney for Political Subdivision) 

Howard Saxton Ill ---------------· .... ~--~ ... -
(Printed Name of Attorney) 

Dated this~- day of ______ ~ 20_ 

By U.S. Bank: 

U.S. Bank National Association 

{Signature of Authorized Signer) 

Kelly M. Caspers 

(Printed Name of Authorized Signer) 

Vice President 

(Printed Title of Authorized Signer) 

Page2of2 

51



State of Washington WSCA Program ® 
Political Subdivision Request to Participate Form (RTP) 

____________________ City of 
Prosser --------------------(Insert Legal Name of Agency/Entity on above line} 

Does this agency have an existing Corporate /Purchasing/One Card Program? (Circle one) Yes No 

What payment programs do you plan to implement (circle all that apply): 

Purchasing/Peard Corporate/Travel OneCard Central Billing Account/Ghost Declining Balance Payment Plus 

Tax ID Number: 91-6001268 
(Cities, Counties, School Districts, and Special Districts) 

Washington State Master Contract Agreement Org Number __ 15958 ______ (first 5 digits) 
***US Bank on\y - This number is entered in the "spouse" field within tsys during account set up 

Agency Point of Contact: The person designated below will serve as the initial point of contact for establishing an account 
or accounts with U. S. Bank. 

____ Toni Yost _________ _ 
(Name) 

601 y'h Street --- -----------(Mai Ii n g Address) 

_ Prosser, WA 9935 _________ _ 
(City, State, ZIP) 

# ? __________ _ 

Estimated Number of Pcards or OneCards 

#--------,~---~----
Estimated Number of Corporate/Travel Cards 

#----,..,-,--,----,-,,--~-----,cc--c-=~--
E st i mated Number of Central Billing/Ghost accounts 

#~-,--,..,-,--,----,=--,,-~--:o~----,---
E st i mated Number of Declining Balance cards 

# _________________ _ 

Estimated Number of Payment Plus SUA's or PAL's 

_ __ 05/15/2014 ______ _ 
(Date) 

__ 509-786-2332 ______ _ 
(Phone) 

___ tyost@cityofprosser.com __ _ 
(Email address) 

$ 10,000.00 ______ _ 
Estimated Annual Peard or OneCard spend 

$ ______________ _ 

Estimated Annual Corporate Card spend 

$~-~~-----,-,-------
Estimated Annual Central Billing/Ghost account spend 

$---,---~--,~--~----
Estimated Annual Declining Balance spend 

$c-c-c-c-c---~----,,,.,----,--
E st i mated Annual Payment Plus spend 

Web address for financials: __ www.cityofprosser.com _______ _ 

Upon receipt of this Request to Participate and other properly completed*, required documentation as listed below, U.S. 
Bank will begin to process your request. Contract/Credit review should be completed within 30 business days. 

Political Subdivisions - Local agencies; cities, counties, special districts, school districts and other non-state agencies, 
are required to complete and submit the following to U.S. Bank: 

• A signed Political Subdivision Addendum, which can be found at WA ST DES website 
• Three years of audited financials (it is preferred to provide web address if posted online, see above) 
• Request to Participate Form· 

*Properly completed documents include the following: 
• Legal agency names; legal documents with abbreviations and/or variations of legal names cannot be processed. 
• The Authorization and Execution section of the Political Subdivision Addendum is completed (signatures and 

titles must dated and match Certificate of Authority.) 
• If a Certificate of Authority is required, it must be completed in accordance with the instructions. Titles on the 

Certificate of Authority must match titles on the Political Subdivision Addendum. 

5/20/2014 

52



• The option is available to mat/ completed hard copy documentation to the address below. Or for qwcker service, 
you may image the completed documents and send electronic document to the web address provided below. 

• If your agency requires that you have original signature documents on file at your agency, please send more than 
one set of the above documents to U.S. Bank. 

Please send completed documents to: 

QUESTIONS? Email us at : 

WSCA Sales Coordinator 
U.S. Bank CPS 
1025 Connecticut Ave. NW Suite 510 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
cpsmidmarketsalescoordinator@usbank.com 

For U.S.Bank Use Only 
Date Submitted ______________ _ 

Banker's Employee fD ______ Treasury Management Employee ID ___ _ 
/PM RM/AM __________ _ 

5/20/2014 

53



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Review and confirm the Meeting Date: 

I appointment of Council Member Aubrey to May 27, 2014 I the Yakima Sub-Basin Recovery Board as Regular Meeting 
' I 

appointed by Mayor Warden. I 

-·-"· 
1 Degartment: I Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
i City Clerk 
! ! 

Rachel Shaw Rachel Shaw (509) 786-8218 

.•. 
Cost of Proposal: I Account Number: 
n/a 1 n/a 

I Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
! n/a n/a 

I --
I 
1 

Reviewed by Finance Degartment. 

I n/a 

Att h A d P k t It ac ments to gen a ac e em: 

1. City of Prosser Boards, Commissions, and Committee Appointment Listing 

I Summarv Statement: 
I 

Mayor Warden has appointed Council Member Aubrey to the YSBR Board to replace 
Council Hamilton. 

, Attached is the Appointment Listing made by Mayor Warden to be confirmed by City 
i Council. 

I Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Confirm the appointment of Council Member Aubrey to the Yakima Sub-Basin Recovery 

I 
Board as appointed by Mayor Warden. 

----

I ~~~~~~d by ~:partm~t Reviewed by City Attorney: oov~ ;,~ 

~C~\L0~~la>. ~- ~ I 
\_ID,l_f'al.l.E'te::_: -~illt:.f!.!i.LJ_J_DL,J<al_!Etei:__: __'::'€:LQ Date: ) .----2)- f'f 

I 

Today's Date: Revision Number a : File Name and Path: 

, Ma 22, 2014 

54



City Boards, Commissions & Committees 

'.\/Iecting Location 
Beginning 
of Current Term 

Date of 
Appointment or 

---··---- "crm Dav(fimc . Meding Location Address --·-·--·· _____ Term Ex1j!ation Rcappointm\>nt __ 

TBD IF1oodHazard\fanagcmcntliti7ensAdvisoryCommittcc i As:'.'Jccdcd --·-·--··== i ·-- r __ ~ __] 
Length of 
To 

's,;;;;-13;z,;:;;--- I Good Reed; Commil>eo i 3od \v;<l~0ii.£;;,+--- I -- 1 g, 2008 ----- l s 2008 

Paul W'.'.!:~--- Good Roads Cornmitt~c (Alternate) ----- 3rd ~Y-~dnc5day. 6:00 .,,.;;:;--·--------·--·---------·- l 8 ~008 ____ l 8 2008 

P~---------~··· Bento;·1;;-~i-;~·--·Continuurn of Car~ I ---·-- 2nd Wcdncsdav. 3j{i""',~m BF 1\ction Offi:;.c ?.~E!}~--- ------i ----

I Becky Yearna!.:I Hotcl'\-1~~~ /l._9,·isorv Co1~~~Ttlcc.·TPA , vu. 

wrcd Lamb Hotcl/;\:lotcl Local Tax Ad,·isory Cornrni1tec.'TPA 
I Tom Denka -·-·-- Hotdi~vl'.?~~l Local Tax :Yh:isory Commit1cdfPA 
?vfanlvn Dalstrn Hotel:'l.,fotel Local Ta~_/\dvisorv Comn:ntteetfl'A 

·"ar tcnn I As Needed -- I City I I;Ji-· 1601 7th -
~arterm As Needed Citv Hall 1601 7th::,, r!()~~"' 
1 year tenn As ~ceded City Ha)J..._. I 60 l 7th St Prosse 
1 year tenn As "leeded City Hall i601 7th St. Pross'?.~ 

:SL l:'rosser I l/1/2014 1213112014 -·lii4/2014 
c_ ---- ·-·---

~- ~ 1/1/2014 12/31/2014 1/14/?_Ql.± 

I 1/1/20!4 12/31/2014 1/1412014 
l/l/2014 12131 12014 }/,!_"~ 

ar 1en11 As Needed City llall ,_, 1601 7th St. Prosser. lfl/2014 12/3li2014 _.,l(J4;2014 
As >Jccdcd ·'"'"'~·"'' I lfl/2014 12131/2014 1/14/2014 

Morgmi Everett Hotcl/\lotel Local Tax Advisory CmJ'.mittu.'TPA I' Y' 

1Rob S~~clmrm Hotel':v!otcl L::.cal Tax Advisory Comll:!,!!tcciTPA __ , I ye"' '"'"' 
Deb Aur:usrnvo Hotcl·'\,fote\ Local Tax Advisory Com~!.ttcc.'TPA , ,_, 

Ci'.:!'. !fall .. ml 7th .... ~ 
'••A-.r temi !As Needed- Ci.!i:::....!_!'.\_!_l,_. 1 7th :St. l:'rosser -- -· l/J/2014: - -l2/3Jl20l4 _ .. 111412014 

~~i~-, -----· ILEOFF:.~.?ard ·-- j2 Y';':_~.!~\'{~dne~d~Y, 2:00 p;n lc0imt);-c·~~r;~~·-1620 \farkc_~.Prosser 1111201'.;li""- _12131/20161 _)g,&12014 

TBD IMidCol_i,nnbia Lihrmy Board (,<\ppointed bv.thc County) 17 Y~::!.s !3rd \fonday. 7:00 pm ~JMidColumhi~--ijhrn1y - 1405 S. Day-~on, Kennewick, j ~-------

r-:---:-------:-.-·-·"' ·---------
\,1arnn \V:ird ___ .. PEDA -~ 1st ·nrnrsday, 5:30 pm Qg_lot Conference Roo!:'.1.J 1230 Bennett .J!ll2014 12/3112014 ~ 5/6/2014 
Paul \Vflnlen (altcma1c) PEDA ---------.... 1st ·nn!!'sdny. 5:30 pm De ot C0nfcr~ce Room 1230 Benn~ lfl/2014 .J?/3112014 li,28.'20!4 

Glenda Sehi::_~dt, Chai1 Plannin Commission .!:ysition :\o 3 ve.'.:.'.Jerm 3rd Timrsdav, 6:00 pm .. LCitv Hal! 601 7th St. Prosser ~/~Q.~O l 1 I 6 110.'2_? 141 3/22/20l1 

1 
Trevor Dav _ Planmn<> Col'.?!.nission Pos1110n ~o 2 3 vear term 3rd Thm:sday, 6:00 pm. ICJty Hall 601 7th St_ P'..osscr 6/26120121 ___ 61. 30/20151 1 l/26t201_I 

Rohm Sierne.:is !Plannmg C:lmm1ss1011 Pos1t1on N'o 3 3 year term 3rd 'Jlrnp;day. 6:00 pm City I-fall 601 7th SL Prosser ~~~0/2013 I 6130120 !.~ _____ _, 5/6/20 llj 

DorothyEvans . PlanningCf>rnmissionPo~!.tion:\o 4___ 3yeartem1 3rdT~ur~dav,600pm Citv!lall 6017thSt.P~osser 6/26/2012 _6.130'2015 6126/20121 
Jeremy L)1m Plannmg Con:_'.:'lission Position ~o- 5 ·~-------- 3 vear tcnn 3rd Thursd~-, 6-00 nm Citv Hall 601 7th St. Prosser 6/30/2013 6/30'2016 7/9/201~-
Samuel Fitch Planning Com_mi~sion Position \'o 6 3 v~~Eterm 3rd Thursday. 6:00 pm City !!all 60] 7lh St Prosser (;,:130/2013 6/30/2016 7.'9-'2013 

~Devina Rioia;:; Phmni1w Commission f'.:?c>ition :"0. 7 -.-·-· ------·-· 3 vear te1m 3rd Timrsday, 6:00 im JS:ity Hall 601 7th St_ Prosser 6/3012011 6/30/2014 ·--- 3/~_2/2013 
' ' 

I Bob E19.~.'._-___ Re<>ional l·:~~h·:-Bo~ -·-· ----- Fire Dcpmtment -··-.... ------. . 1110;'206 --.-.c,------,-/-1/_2_0_". 
\forgm1 Everett Regmn'.'!.I>.r_o_A_«_<h_o_ri_1Y_!3oard Fire Denartmcnt -·~j____ .. ~.. 3/24/2009 3/24/2009 

Randv Tavlor Regional. Fire Authorit):_~.oard ·--~"-------"F"·ir0ocDc2=="c'nn='c"'~---l----------

' 
RandvTaylo: RTPO(Rcf!.iS?~~Trnnsporhlti0n) -.. :=--~==-~-~- i2ndThursd:_iy. 7:00am --... .-. ------· t"' ----.-·-·t==-- _.., ___ _ 
TBD School District Facilities Committee ------+----1c-'c'c'c

1

~-~.~-"--- -.-.. ~·-!---------!------

Pan! Warden I Sign Committee 

Don Aubrey 

!Steve Zetz 

I 

Last Modified: 5/22/2014 

Yakinrn Sub-Basin Recovel)~ .. Board 

Ben1on and Frnnklin C-;;~~t~ii,-Cornmit1cc 

·~·~--- -.-..---

As Needed- ---·----- -.-·-j 1/8/20081 118/2008 

I year tenn \Quarterly, 2 p.m. I 1 !O West Lincoln Ave. J ! l 10 \\lest Lincoln AYe 

Annnally 

·----cYc'1<c·cin0rn"- !Yakima j l/1/20141 1_213112014 

Dept of Buman Services j7207 \\'c~i Deschutes Ave 
Kennewick 

5/2712014 

Page 2 of2 
5/2212014 10:52 AM 

H·\Clerks Deoartme"t\Boards & Commissions\Boards. Commissions, Commrttees Master L1st\Boards Commissions Committees List 5·27"2014 55



City Boards, Commissions & Committees 

Beginning Date of 
Length of Meeting Lorntion -Of Current Tenn Appointment or 

Name Committee Term Dayfrime ~lc..-ting l,oeation Address Term Kxpiration Reappointment 

~!~ve Beck en ·--~·.. . 
1 
Ben f:fa .. nklin Trnnsii_Board i 2 ycar_.tcnn 2nd Tlmrsday 7·00 m --:~j·rThrcc RiYcrs Tnmsi1 _

1
171 Q? \\' OkanO"".!~ Pl lii'i~,O 13] l/l/20151~ l '8-'2() 1 '3 i 

Randy Taylor (\fayor Pro- Ben Franklm Transn Board li yr:ar tem1 2nd Thursday_ 7:00 pm Kennewick 

\em-Alternate) _ +--~----·... . _ . ----------+ 111/2013 11112015 1/8/2013 

Paul \Varden I Benl?n Cmmty T .;iw & Justice ('ommitte°''~-------1-- 12ndTnesdav. 12:00pm I j l-'1_.l'.'0081uponrcsignati0n 1 ·s:2oos 

[Bioma~ Grot•rn Benion c-;,~~Control Board ~!:..~~ l/J/2013 ! 12~11/20 li 12!11/2012 

~t-~~:·~ ~ecken j&m~~"J0r_anklin Commnnily .. '.~cii~~unci! --·-· t=- 14th Th1:i:.~~}O p~·BfActi~n OHice =tno \V Court St. Pasco --·-· I !18'2008\upon rcsignatiO!'., • l l\/2008 

Benton Frankhn ~'ouncil ofGoyemrnents 
Benton franklin C'onncil ofGovcmments 

·-~··_::-_ ay, ·-' am i 1·8·~.00l\ upon rcsn:nat10n ' 1 'l:V2008' 'dFrid W'O I ' ···1 '. . . . ·~ 
'rdl·nd11v Jl-30am =+== ' I - .- - ·-- l/!120Q8 u onrcs1gnat10n Jf3.'20Q.~ 

Bob Elder !Benton Frnnklin Solid \\'as-;~· Athisory Co;mcil iWSU Ex1, County Annex 5600 E W Canal Dr. 

f------ ·---+-- Kc1~:.i.~.~ ll!__f2pl21 L'.]!2014 

Qumtcrly, 6 p.m 
J.'H/2015 

ITammv'.'vkKeim~n Boardof!\d-ustmcnt 3vcartenn_ ilsrT1lursdav 6·()0qn CitvHall. 6017thSt_Prosscr _ 5!8tp:!__!1L____ 11117017 __ 1/14/2014 
:Vlike Kelley ··----- Bciard cif Ad"us1mcn_, ____ 3 vear term I ls! Thursday ~m Citv Hall _ 601 7th St_ Prosser 111/~0J l 1/l/2017 1.'14/2014 

Bil.! Rile) ·-·-- Bciard of Adjustment 3 vear 1en11 1st T!nirsday. 6:00.nm City Hal!. ---~! 7th St. Prossc~-- 1/1/2012 l/1/20l.~. 2/14 12012 
Idalia !\11nikir Board of i\djnstment 3 year tenn 1st ll1ursdav 6:(\\1 nm Citv Hall 60 I 7th St_ Prosser l/I !2012 J tl 120 l 5 8;'27 12012 

&9-' Krebs ·---- Board of Adjiistment 3 uear tcnn !st "f!lursday. 6:00 rm City HaJ! 60! 7th St Prosse:: 111h'o13 1 11112016 11!26/2013_ 
EricSta' BoardofAdjustment 3veartenn ls!Thursday.6-00rm City!Iall 6017thSLProsscr l/112013 1/112016 5,'10'2011 
Dan Baldwin Bomicif AdiustmenT 3 year teni; lst Thursday, 6-oo" nm Citv Hall 601 7th St. P~:?.~5cr- l/li2013 _1!l.12016 -~~ 5/22 12(Ji0 

~t? ·--- Boar~-~f Health 

\farvin Ward B11dger & Finance Committee 

~:·Taylor )Budget & Finance Committcc 

Steve Becken Budget & Finance C'omminee 

--r---·- 4th ll1ursdny, 7:00 pm 

2nd & 4th T11csday_ 
5:30vm 

2nd & 'Ith Tucsda) 
5:JOprn 

BFHD Office 412 \V Clark St.. t~c'='~-+-- j----··--

-+-- ---!----·· __ _, 
City ffaU 601 7tl1 St_ Prosser 

City Hall 601 7th St. Prosser 
I l/l/;IOJ4j .. ?6120!4 

City Hall 6011th51. Prosser .+-----1fl{20!3 2nd & 4th Tuesday, 
5:30 m ---+ ... -------------i---t="=----1--

~~;1 A11brey I Cham be·,· oBc,,-"'c"c-----

1 /Rf20Q.1 

J/8.'20081 1/112013 -----. 

2nd Friday, 7am Chamher Conference 1230 Bennett Prosser 
l !):'2014 ------+-----+--- _ ,R.oom b=·-·· ---

\\-'vat! Cone ~Service Cornm1ss1on 
Dan Bald"~n 1C 1v1] Service Comm1ss10n 

)Glenda Schmidt__ I Chi I Scn·icc Commission 

12/31/2014 

§ 'car tmm 2nd :rhursdav, 1 o·JO am City Hall 60 l 7th St Prosser l/1!2012 12/~ l/20 l 5 

6 year tenE.__ 2nd Tinirsdav, 19:30 am __ Cit· Hall 601.Zth St. Prosser l/J.1?012 12/31/2016 
6year1erm 12ndThursdav, lO<•Oam_ CitvHall 6017thSt.Prossei l/J/2ql2 12/31120171 

J/28/2014 

3!13/2012 
1/8/2013 

j/U/2012 

0J_:i;:gan Everett 
Randy Tavlor 
TBD _ 

Council Policv ~nd Pn2ccdurcs Committee __ As ~c''-'"'~"cl __ _ 
Council Policv and Procedures Committee As Needed 

City Tfoll 601 7th St_ Prosser l/\/2008,,_____ E 
City Hali·- 601 7th SL Prosser l/1/2008J___ __ -~~- ·----I 

·t Council Policy a~d- Procedn'.~~:5 Committee As :\ceded S'itylfall 6017thSt Prnsse:: !fl-:?~ --·-· 

!Ifil>=___ . ~~k_forn Commlttoc ___ kNocdcd T . .... I TBD_ .. Coecw Sm• T"'k Fo.cc Commlaoc l . ~' ~ecdcd I j-
1 1 

···--·--' 

~----·---~ Dero!, Inc , i\s l\eeded __ _,, __ _ 

TBD Downtown Rcvirnlizatrnn C~ 

Steve Becck'~"~----L·---- Fanncr's \farket Liason 

:lrd \fonday, noon =-l:!?;p\>I Conf~_!:cncc ~·;:;;;m 11230 Bennett, Prosser 

4tl1 \fonday_ 7_~2,9 pm I I us;209·8 ]/R.:2oos 

Page 1of2 
5122/2014 10:52 AM 

H:\Clerks Department\Boards & Comm1ssions\Boards, Comm1ssim1s, Committees Master List\Boards Commrssicins Committees List 5-27-2014 56



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 
601 7TH STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2014 

Mayor Warden called the Special Meeting of the Prosser City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Prosser Heights Elementary "Kid that Cares" Matthew 
Gonzalez. 

ROLL CALL 
Council Members Aubrey, Taylor, Hamilton, Ward, Becken, and Elder were present. Council 
Member Everett requested an excused absence. 

Others in attendance were City Clerk Shaw, Finance Director Mauras, Finance Manager Yost, 
City Planner Zetz, Police Chief Giles, and City Attorney Saxton. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
Debbie Breitenfeldt, 943 Alice Street, read aloud statics related to the "Older Americans Month" 
and thanked Council for their support. 

Chris Flodin and Nicole Flodin, 455 N River Road, were in attendance to speak in favor of the 
Nomadic Vendors item on the agenda. 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
Proclamation Reading - "Older Americans Month" 
Mayor Warden read aloud a proclamation declaring the month of May 2014 as "Older 
Americans Month." 

Mayor Warden stated Council was provided with a letter regarding police response to false 
security alarms and expressed his desire to hear from Council members by the end of the week 
regarding the proposed action. The item would be brought back to Couucil for consideration on 
May 27, 2014. 

Couucil Item 9d was removed from the agenda. City Attorney Saxton explained the City 
received a letter from Benton County notifying staff that the County had consolidated the parcels 
related to this item. The ordinance will come back at a future City Council meeting once staff 
works with the County to remedy the issue. 

Council Member Taylor provided a status update on the RF A Plan and thanked City Attorney 
Saxton for his work with the Fire District's Attorney Brian Snure. 

57



Council Member Becken informed Council there is a new general manager for Ben Franklin 
Transit. 

CLOSED RECORD DECISION HEARING 

REZONE FROM COMMERICAL DOWNTOWN (CD) TO COMMERICAL GENERAL 
(CG) AT 804 6rn STREET 
At 7: 13 p.m., Mayor Warden recessed the Special Meeting of the Prosser City Council to 
conduct a Closed Record Decision Hearing on a rezone from Commercial Downtown (CD) to 
Commercial General (CG) at 804 6'h Street. Mayor Warden read aloud the Quasi Judicial 
disclosure statement and inquired if any members of the Council and a conflict related to the 
item. 

There being no conflicts, at 7: 15 p.m., Mayor Warden closed the Closed Record Decision 
Hearing and reconvened the Special City Council Meeting. 

COUNCIL ACTION 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE REGARDING SITE SPECIFIC REZONE FROM 
COMMERCIAL DOWNTOWN (CD) TO COMMERCIAL GENERAL (CG) AT 804 6rn 
STREET 
City Planner Zetz handed out an ordinance that was inadvertently omitted from the Council 
packet and explained staff would bring the item forward for consideration at a future meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

NOMADIC VENDORS 
At 7:21 p.m., Mayor Warden recessed the Special Meeting of the Prosser City Council to 
conduct a Public Hearing on nomadic vendors. Mayor Warden called for public comment. 

Chris Flodin, 455 North River Road, expressed her desire to start a lunch truck in the area next to 
Albreight Glass on Wine Country Road. Nicole Flodin stated they would like the truck to be 
stationary and will be working off of catering license. 

With no further comments, Mayor Warden closed the public hearing and reconvened the Special 
Meeting of the Prosser City Council at 7:25 p.m. 

Council Member Ward asked if there was a conflict with the vendors already in that area. City 
Planner Zetz provided Council with a handout showing the exemptions provided by the Revised 
Code of Washington (RCW). 

58



COUNCIL ACTION 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 14-2884 ESTABLISHING A LICENSING POLICY 
FOR NOMADIC VENDORS AND ALLOWING THEM TO OPERATE WITHIN THE 
CITY OF PROSSER SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Ward to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2884 establishing a licensing policy for nomadic vendors and allowing them 
to operate within the City of Prosser subject to the conditions of the Municipal Code. Motion 
passed 6 YES, 0 NO, l ABSENT (Everett). 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 14-2885 MODIFYING THE ZONING CODE TO 
COMPLY WITH THE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING NOMADIC 
VENDORS WITHIN THE CITY OF PROSSER 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Cow1cil Member Ward to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2885 modifying the zoning code to comply with the adoption of an ordinance 
allowing Nomadic Vendors within the City of Prosser. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT 
(Everett). 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 14-2886 ADOPTING A MORATORIUM ON THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF MEDICAL CANNABIS DISPENSARIES AND COLLECTIVE 
GARDENS; DEFINING "MEDICAL CANNABIS DISPENSARIES" AND 
"COLLECTIVE GARDENS;" DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; ADOPTING A WORK 
PLAN, AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Aubrey to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2886 adopting a Moratorium on the establishment of medical cannabis 
dispensaries and Collective Gardens; Defining "Medical Cannabis Dispensaries" and "Collective 
Gardens;" Declaring an Emergency; adopting a work plan, and establishing an effective date. 
Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT (Everett). 

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 14-2887 ADOPTING A PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATION PLAN TO GUIDE THE PROCESS TO ADOPT AN AMENDMENT 
TO THE PROSSER ZONING REGULATIONS REGARDING MEDICAL CANNABIS 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Aubrey to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2887 adopting a Public Participation Plan to guide the process to adopt an 
amendment to the Prosser Zoning Regulations regmding medical cannabis. Motion passed 6 
YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT (Everett). 

CONSIDERATION ORDINANCE 14-2888 ADDING A DEFINITION FOR "CRIMINAL 
ACTIVITY" TO THE CITY'S RENTAL HOUSING LICENSE ORDINANCE CODIFIED 
AS PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 15.30 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Becken to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2888 adding a definition for "Criminal Activity" to the City's Rental Housing 
License Ordinance Codified as Prosser Municipal Code Chapter 15.30. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 
NO, 0 ABSENT (Everett). 

59



CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 1485, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 1471 AND 1462 REGARDING ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE SPRAY FIELD 
This item was pulled from the agenda. 

REVIEW AND CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES AS APPOINTED BY MAYOR WARDEN 
A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Hamilton to 
confirm the appointment of Council Member Ward to the PEDA Board and Budget and Finance 
Committee as appointed by Mayor Warden. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, I ABSENT (Everett). 

A motion was made by Council Member Aubrey, seconded by Council Member Taylor to 
confirm the appointment of Rob Siemens to the Planning Commission, Position No. 3, as 
appointed by Mayor Warden. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, l ABSENT (Everett). 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Taylor to 
approve Consent Agenda Items "A - E". Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT (Everett). 

a. Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice 
Voucher Request No. 2 in the Amount of $26,511.50, for the Zone 2.5 
Water Supply Improvements Project and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the 
Documents 

b. Approve Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Invoice 
Voucher Request No. 10 in the Amount of $594,858.05, for the 
Disinfection, Filtration and Source Improvements Project and Authorize 
the Mayor to Sign the Documents 

c. Approve the March 11, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

d. Approve the March 25, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

e. Approve the April 1, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

REVIEW, DISCUSS AND POTENTIALLY TAKE ACTION TO APPROVE 
CONTRACTS WITH THE US BANK FOR THE USE OF CREDIT CARDS BY CITY 
STAFF 
A motion was made by Council Member Aubrey, seconded by Cow1cil Member Taylor to 
approve the contracts with the US Bank for the use of credit cards by City Staff. Motion passed 
6 YES, 0 NO, I ABSENT (Everett). 

60



REVIEW AND DISCUSS POTENTIAL AMENDMENTS TO PROSSER MUNICIPAL 
CODE (PMC) 13.10.150, REGARDING LATE FEES 
Mayor Warden provided an overview of the proposed changes to the PMC, discussed the options 
and asked Council to provide staff direction on their preference. Council directed staff to bring 
back the Code amendment with language that incorporates a $100.00 cap to the late fee. This 
item will be considered at a future City Council meeting. 

REVIEW ORDINANCE CLOSING FUNDS 442 AND 443 REGARDING THE 1997 
WATER/SEWER REFUNDING BOND AND AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET 
Mayor Warden introduced the ordinance as required per RCW 35A.33.090. Council Member 
Taylor inquired if there was money in the funds. Finance Manager Yost explained the bond 
associated with these funds has been paid in full and there is $73,500 in fw1d 442 and $628,500 
in fund 443. All remaining dollars will be transferred into the reserve fund. This ordinance will 
be brought back to the May 13'11 Council meeting for consideration. 

ADD ON ITEMS 
Council Member Hamilton asked how much of a burden the response to false alarms is to the 
Police Department. Chief Giles said it is a tremendous financial impact to the Police Department 
and ties up officers who would otherwise be on patrol or responding to other calls, due to the two 
officer response requirement. 

Council Member Aubrey requested that Mayor Warden and staff resubmit the two ordinances 
related to amending the City Hall office hours. Mayor said that item will be brought forward for 
Council's reconsideration at the May 13 111 Regular City Council meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the City Council at this time, the Special Meeting of the 
Prosser City Council was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

Mayor Paul Warden 
Attest: 

City Clerk Rachel Shaw 

61



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
601 7TH STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 13, 2014 

Mayor Warden called the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to order at 7 :00 p.m. 

PLEDGE O"F ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Prosser Boys and Girls Club Members of the Month 
Cooper Johnson and Belle McCombs. 

ROLL CALL 
Council Members Aubrey, Taylor, Hamilton, Everett, Ward, and Becken were present. Council 
Member Elder requested an excused absence. 

Others in attendance were City Clerk Shaw, Finance Director Mauras, Police Chief Giles, and 
City Attorney Saxton. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (None) 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
Council Member Taylor reported that Transportation Director Mark Kushner retired. 

Chamber o,{Commerce Quarterly Report 
Humberto Rodriguez, Executive Director, provided a handout and discussed the highlights of 
both the 4th and 1st Hotel/Motel Quarterly Reports. 

Historic Downtown Prosser Association Quarterly Report 
Dan Smith, Executive Director, discussed the highlights of both the 4th and 1st HDPA Quarterly 
Reports. Mr. Smith provided a draft Request for Proposal handout m1d discussed the scope of 
work for the proposed renovation plan. Additionally Mr. Smith requested Council review the 
document and provide any feedback. There was discussion regmding the First Friday event and 
the plan for the downtown trees to be replaced. 

First Quarter 2014 Operational Summary 
Police Chief Giles provided Council an overview of the 2014 First Quarter Operational 
Summary including patrol, training, investigation, reserve officers, burglar alarm responses, 
domestic violence incidents, and infractions. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Taylor to 
approve Consent Agenda Items "A - F". Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT (Elder). 

62



a. Approve Payment of Payroll Checks Nos. 600045 through 600057 in the 
Amount of $21,417.43, and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $102,496.55, 
for the Period Ending April 30, 2014 

b. Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. I 0530 through I 0539 and l 0541 
through 10625, in the Amount of $212,377.29, and Electronic Payments in 
the Amount of$77,83 I .91, for the Period Ending May 13, 2014 

c. Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for 
the Month of April 20 l 4 and Authorize Payment for Those services in the 
Amount of $2,166.66, and Authorize Payment in the Amount of $1,416.67, 
for Grant Writer Services 

d. Approve Maintenance Contract Renewal with Abadan for Konica Minolta 
Bizhub 751 Copier and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Contract 

e. Approve the April 8, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

f. Approve the April 22, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

COUNCIL ACTION 

APPROVE PAYMENT OF CLAIM CHECK NO. 10540 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$60,091.20 FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MAY 13, 2014 
Council Member Hamilton recused himself due to a conflict of interest. A motion was made by 
Council Member Everett, seconded by Council Member Taylor to approve payment of claim 
check no. 10540 in the amount of $60,091.20 for the period ending May 13, 2014. Motion 
passed 5 YES, 0 NO, I ABSENT (Elder), I ABSENTION (Hamilton). 

ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 14-2889 AMENDING THE ZONING MAP FOR THE CITY 
OF PROSSER FOR A SITE SPECIFIC REZONE AT 804 61 u STREET 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Aubrey to adopt 
Ordinance No. 14-2889 amending the zoning map for the City of Prosser for a site specific 
rezone at 804 6th Street. Motion passed 6 YES, 0 NO, 1 ABSENT (Elder). 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

REVIEW ORDINANCE CLOSING FUNDS 442 AND 443 REGARDING THE 1997 
W ATERJSEWER REFUNDING BOND AND AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET 
Mayor Warden explained at the May 6, 2014, City Council meeting the proposed ordinance was 
introduced with the intent of brining it forward for Council adoption, however, after that meeting 
an error was discovered and therefore it is necessary to reintroduce the amended ordinance for 
Council's review. Following this discussion, staff will bring this ordinance back at the May 27th 
City Council meeting for action. 

63



ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the City Council at this time, the Regular Meeting of the 
Prosser City Council was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 

At 7:45 p.m., the Regular City Council meeting was reconvened and Council Member Aubrey 
requested City Hall lohby hours and potential employee be brought back for discussion and 
possible action at the Regular Meeting scheduled for May 27, 2014. Mayor Warden stated these 
items would be brought back for Council consideration at the regular meeting. 

There being no further business before the City Council, the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City 
Council was adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 

Mayor Paul Warden 
Attest: 

City Clerk Rachel Shaw 

64



I 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
j Agenda Title: Public Hearing to Meeting Date: 
! Receive Citizen Comment on Proposed 
j Amendments to the Adopted 2014-

May 27, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

, 2019 Six-Year Transportation 
~ovement Proaram. 
·, Department: \ Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

I Public Works I L.J. Da Corsi \ L.J. Da Corsi (509} 786-2332 
Cost of Proposal: Account Number: j 

NIA 

I 

1 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
NIA 

I 
• 

j Reviewed by Finance Department: 
, NIA I 

--·~~--~ I Attachments to Agenda Packet i-te_m_: __ 

1. Public Hearing Notice I 
2. TIP Amendment Project Priority No. 3: Old Inland Empire Highway - ! 

Phase 2 (1 page) j 

3. TIP Amendment Project Priority No. 16: Old Inland Empire Highway -
1 

Phase 3 (1 page) [ 
4. TIP Amendment Project Priority No. 17: 7th Street ADA Sidewalk Ramp , 

Improvements (1 page) ___j 
Summary Statement: ·1 

The City of Prosser is eligible to receive federal funding for three transportation , 
projects, two of which are listed in the current adopted Prosser Transportation j' 

Improvement Program (TIP) 2014-2019, and one which is new and not listed in 
the 2014-2019 TIP. Due to obligation requirements of the funding programs, and 'I 

the addition of the new project, the current 2014-2019 TIP must be amended and 
approved by the Council, and resubmitted to the BFCOG and State of. 
Washington. j 

i 
Federal funding to be received/expended in 2014-15 is as follows: j 

• Transportation Alternatives Program Small Urban (TAP(US)) - $14,041 , 
obligated for the 7'h Street ADA Sidewalk Ramp Improvements Project [ 
(Preliminary Engineering - 2014) 1 

• Surface Transportation Program Small Urban (STP(US)) - $245,000 [ 
obligated for the Old Inland Empire Highway - Phase 3 Project 1 

(Preliminary Engineering and Right of Way - 2015) ~1 

• STP(US) - $100,580 obligated for the Old Inland Empire Highway Project-
Phase 2 (Prelimincm' Engineering - 2_0_1_5~) _________ _ 

65



-------- --~ 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Open Public Hearing, receive citizen comment on proposed amendments to the 
Adopted 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program, and close 
Public Hearing. 

Reviewed by Department 
Director: 

Reviewed by City I Approved ti.Y Mayor: 

-=-= ff,/t!J 
14i { ~r;_-I/( I 7-2)-{~ 

Date: Date: / /' I;/ I Date: 
~T:;=o'"d°"a"'y-,'s-;::/-:~'--'..,L-___,L-_+.R::'e"'v'°'is"ci,--o-n-=N7u-m-fbe-r708te:-- ; File Name a-nd Path: 

May 12, 2014 

66



City of Prosser, Washington 
Public Hearing Notice 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Notice is hereby given by the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Prosser, Washington, 
that the Prosser City Council will conduct a Public Hearing on Tuesday, May 27, 2014 at 
7:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as may be heard, for the purpose of receiving citizen 
comments and reviewing the proposed Six Year Transportation Improvement Program. 
The Public Hearing will be held in the City Council Chambers, Prosser City Hall, 60 I 7th 
Street, Prosser, Washington. 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend. No qualified individuals with a disability 
shall be excluded or denied the benefit of participation in the Public Hearing. If you 
require assistance to comment at the Public Hearing, please contact Prosser City Hall at 
(509) 786-2332 at least 7 days prior to the date of the Public Hearing to make 
arrangements. 

Dated: May 7, 2014 

~tl~YY\Si~) 
Rach Shaw, CMC 
City Clerk 

Publication Dates: May 14th and May 21st, 2014 

67



-•ll \fht'&hint1h111 State 
DePQrtment of "I'i'flnsportatlon 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Agnncy: Prosser 

County: &nton 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG N Inside Y Outside 

~~~-,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~~~~~~~~ 

"' 3 
" " ,, ~ A. PlN/Project No. 

§ z C. Pro]m::t Titl" l> 
Cl g_ t:: 0. Ro::id Nam,. or Number ~ [} 
or g g. E. B!!gin S. End Termini ::!. ~ 

1 l:: ,!!;, !f: F. Project Oescrfplion G. Structure ID ~ lt 1 ,.. 1 ., , 

8.STIPID ~ 
-, 

> 

I 
~ c ~ 

3 • 
~ 

.. • . • ~ [ . g r n 0 
3 " . ~ 

' ~ ~ g ~ " 
08 3 PROSSER 10 06/25113 06f25f13 I I·-.·-- 1 

- - -,.,.,.,,u 
"' 1v.-;::.TW 0-250 CE 

Funding 

Old Inland Empire Highway - Phase 2 

Wine Country Road 10 Wamh<i Road 

Re<;:0nslruct and wldrm roadway, cutb an.d gutlar, sidewelk, s1orm drainage, streel 
nghUng. hot mix aspha\l and pavement marMngs. 

Status Phase Phase Start Y<ii!T (YYYY} F!!deral Fund Code F!lderal Funds 

s PE 2015 STP(US) 100,580 

p CN 2016 STP(US) 861,370 

Totats 961,950 

IE)l:Pendltun! Schedui;~ .. ~---

Phase "' '"' ,,. 
PE 0 116,270 0 

CN 0 0 995,800 

Totals 0 116,270 995,t!OO 

Report Date: Februa!'j 26, 2014 

--

Sfatl'! Fund Code State Funds Lo<:<1! Funds Total Funds 

0 15,690 116.270 

0 134,430 995,800 

0 150,120 1,112,070 

"h 5th & 6th 

0 0 

0 0 

' 0 

, 
~· , 

~ 

l ~ 

~ ~ • " ~ c ;;:· 
~ n 

No 

Page@) 

68



..... 
il1 Washington State 

Oapsrtmenl of li'an<J.portaHon 
Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

From 2014 to 2019 
Agency: Prosser 

County; Benion 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

~ 

s 

N !m;ide Y Outside 

8.STIP !D 'Tl ~ A. P!N/f'roj"d No. 
§ z C. Projact Title x > 

o Jl c: D. Road Naml! or NnmbH ~ g. 

l ~ 

~ > 
3 " 3 • • , ~ ' ~ , 

iii" g 5- E. Begln & End Termini 3. "!?. 
: !!!,_ ii: F. ProjN:I Description G. Structure !D ,E &. I ;:::. I )-' 1 "' 1 

I ; iii ~ 

c ~ • 
" [ 

j 0 • 
~ ~ 

08 16 WA-06502 08125113 06125/13 I.·- . o.;-1~.io ' co I\..<!-'::> TW 0.510 CE 

Old Inland Empire Highw;:iy - Phase 3 1. 

Wamba Road to Gr.int Road 

ReCOl'\$(fllr:t and wlden roadway, curb and gutter, sidllwalk, storm drainage, s!ree! 
c___ lighting, ho1 mbc asphalt, and pavement markings. 

Funding 

St;;tus Phase Phase Ste rt Yaar {YYYY) Federal Fund Code federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds loca! Funds Total Funds 

p PE 2Q15 STP(US) 160,900 0 25,100 185,000 

p RW 2015 STP(US) 50,000 0 9.000 59,000 

p CN 2016 STP(US) 1,658,000 0 258,000 1,916,000 

Totals 1,869,900 0 292,100 2,161,000 
··--· 

----·- --El(pendlturo? Sehodulo 

Ph<1se '" '"d 3cd '" 5th &6tli 

PE 0 186,000 0 0 0 

RW 0 59,000 0 0 0 

CN 0 0 1,916.000 0 0 

Totals 0 245,000 1,916,(IQO 0 ' 

Report Date: February 26, 2014 

~ 

~ , 
i'1 ; , 
~ [ 
~ 

;g < 

[ . 
Ye; 

P8gB{f) 

69



-•1' Washington State 
Dep.!Jrtmenl of T'rans?Qrlatfon Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

From 2014 to 2019 
Agency: Prosser 

County: Ben\on 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

~ , 
~~ 
~~ 

I 
z 
~ .. 

A.. P!N!ProjEc\ No. 
C. Profect Tit!!' 
0. Road Name or Numb11r 
E. Begin & End Termini 
F. Pro)!!Ct Description 

N Inside Y Ouis;de 

8.STIP ID 

& 
~ 

[ G. Strocture ID 
• 1 

06 17 WA-06503!06125f13 06125113 

Funding 

Status 

s 
p 

71h Street ADA Sidewalk Ramp 1mprovemen\s 

Bennett Ave lo Dudley Ave 

lns!all ADA cmrip'.kmt sidewalk ramps inelur!lng curb tmd guttor and asphalt patching 
et 1hreB in\wse(:lfons 

·-·-

Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY} Fadaral Fund C11de Fadaral Funds 

PE 2014 TAP(US) 14,041 

CN 2015 TAP(US} 64,980 

Totals 79,021 

State Fund Code 

--·------ -~~--.- ·-----------------··· 
Expnndltt1re. Sehe-dule 

Pha5e "' '"' 3'd 4th 

PE 16,200 0 0 

CN 0 75,120 0 

Totals 16,200 75,120 0 

Fedwa! Funds 

Grand Tola!s for Pr<.1sser 4,978,951 

Report Dale: February 26, 2014 

0 

0 

0 

3 
~ 

~ ~ > 3 g ~ 
~ , 

~ • ~ 
~ 

, 
z ~ 

' ~ 
13-1426 21 

State Funds Lor:a! Fonds 

0 2,159 

0 10,140 

0 12,299 

·-

5th & 6th 

0 

0 

0 

State Funds loc:il Funds 

777,439 

c i = 
~ r 
0 . 
0 , 
• !l g 

CPSTW 0.150 CE 

Tol;;il Funds 

16,200 

75,120 

91,320 

Total Funds 

5,756,390 

~ a , 
~ 

! ~ 

~ i 
~ c 

;:j" 
~ • 

No 

.,,., 
Pag<(j 

70



r 

I I CITY AGENSDRAWBILNLTON 
~-· -· ·---r~~-~-----~· 

I Agenda Title: Adopt Resolution_ 14- j Meeting Date: 
, Approving the Amendments to May 27, 2014 
City of Prosser adopted Six Year I Regular Meeting 

·-1 
Transportation Improvement Program [ 

. (TIP) 2014-2019. , 

I: p•rt"ll)ot TD;mctoc 

_ic_W_o_r_k_s __ L_L.J. Da Corsi 
' Cost of Proposal: N/A 

I Cori-tact Person: j Phone Number: 

I L.J. Da Corsi ~_(§Q.fil 786-2332 
Account Number: 

' Amount Budgeted: NIA 

1-R~;owed by F;ooooo Dep•rtmeot 
! 

1. Resolution No. 14-------
2. Proposed Amended 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program (17 pages) 
3. Existing Adopted 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program (15 pages) 

J Summary Statem.ent: 
I The City of Prosser is eligible to receive federal funding for three transportation 1 

I projects, two of which are listed in the current adopted Prosser Transportation 
' Improvement Program (TIP) 2014-2019, and one which is new and not listed in 
the 2014-2019 TIP. Due to obligation requirements of the funding programs, and 
the addition of the new project, the current 2014-2019 TIP must be amended and, 
approved by the Council, and resubmitted to the BFCOG and State of 
Washington. 

I ' 

I 
Federal funding to be received/expended in 2014-15 is as follows: ' 

. • Transportation Alternatives Program Small Urban (TAP(US)) - $14,041 
obligated for the ih Street ADA Sidewalk Ramp Improvements Project 
(Preliminary Engineering -2014) 

• Surface Transportation Program Small Urban (STP(US)) - $245,000 
1 

obligated for the Old Inland Empire Highway - Phase 3 Project 
(Preliminary Engineering and Right of Way - 2015) 

• STP(US) - $100,580 obligated for the Old Inland Empire Highway Project - ,
1

. 

Phase 2 (Pr(;[_if1'1i!1.Cl.I)' Engineering - 2015) 
~----

71



' Consistent with or Comparison to: , 

! EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL I 
[ Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: ---1 
! 
j Adopt Resolution_ 14- Approving the Amendments to City of Prosser 
~dopted Six Year Transportation Improvement ~~ogram (TIP) 2014-2019. 

1 

i R~viewed by Department I Reviewed by City Approved by Ma~ 
[Director: I A;~~~Y~:::·::: ;;) (J?J V~ I 
I Date: fl/ _ _j Da::~J~~;Cj ._Date:~ ZJ'-/~J 
Today's Date: I Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: I 

May 5, 2014 I 

72



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTIONNO. 14-__ _ 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ADOPTED 2014-2019 SIX-YEAR 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PLAN. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser is required by State Statute to adopt a Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution Number 13-1426 adopted the 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program; and, 

WHEREAS, said 2014-2019 Six-Year Transpmiation Improvement Program must be 
amended for the purpose of obligating TAP-US and STP-US funds to specific 
transportation projects; and, 

WHEREAS, said amended projects are described in the amended 2014-2019 Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference; ai1d, 

WHEREAS, all public hearings pursuant to RCW 35.77.010 have been held by the City 
Council, and all public comments have been received and have heen considered by the 
Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the attached m11ended 2014-2019 Six-Year-Transportation Improvement 
Progran1 is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Prosser to so adopt said amendment to 
the 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Prosser 
that the 2014-2019 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, is adopted by the City Council as its 2014-2019 Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program replacing. the Program adopted by Resolution 
Nnmber 13-1426. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Prosser this _____ day of , 2014. 

PAUL WARDEN MAYOR 

73



Attest/ Authenticated: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

Approved as to Form: 

HOWARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

74



i 

-.. '"""'"""'°"-" Department of Tninsportaticm 

,Agency: Prosser 

Ct:>tmty: Benion 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG 

"' oil -o 
~ §. 

08 

j 
z 
~ 
~ 

A. PlNJProjcct No. 
c. ?ro/~ct Tii!>? 
0. Road Namn or Number 
E. Begin & End T"'rrn!nl 
F. Project Oesc6pt1o:i 

Old \l'l:and Emp'.re Higlw;ay ;mptC'.mmerrts 

i\Vcr..1 City Urr.its ti:i V/ine Ccvr;\ry Road 

N Inside 

RE!r.nnsnu::t 3r>d wt<:len ro-ildm:iy. r,vrb aOO \)Vi'.1~r, s'rJswaik, storm drainage, sn.H<t 
L~--· ;:;;Min;;. ixil !T'lx ~lt anct p[!>·('rw;n\ m;.!lk•r:gs 

i'"""'"' 

AMENDED 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outside 

-~----··· 

B.STIPJ 
"' 3 ~-~ 

" ~ • j ~ 
, 

" > • 3 0 • E :OE 3 ,,. 3 • 
> • • , 

?! x 
~ 

, g. , • [ • ~ 0 ~ 

~ 
0 • ~ 0 • ~ 0 

G. Structure !O I ~ • ~ If ~ ~ a· 
~ ~ ~ :I ~ ~ ~ 

PROSSER 7!06125/13 06125113 I 13-1425 04 CPSTVV R760 CE I No 

I Status i'ha1.e I P~ase srart Year [YYYY) F<.>d<>t<;f Fu11d Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds i Local Funds Total Funds 

I p PE I 2014 STP(U) 247,113 01 38,567 255.630 

I p CN I ?0'14 STP(U) 2.069.CSO cl 3~2.9.2C 2,392,000 

I ToU!is 2,316,~9l •I 361,4S7 ~-2,677 ,680 
"--~ 

I Expenditure St;hcdufo 
-· I 

I ...... '"' I 2"d '"' '"' 5th & 6th ' 
' PE •I 28$,$8(1 c 0 0 

CN 01 2,392.000 0 a 0 

Tota• •I Z,677,680 0 0 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 1 

75



-~ ~ngioriStlid.e OepartrtW«'lt Q.f 1'nllntlportation 

Agency: Prosser 

Courity: Benion 

MPO/RTPO; S"'CG 

g' 
o& :g . .. 

06 

""""'"" 

~ 
" I 

2 

A. PINJ?rojl1Cl No. 
C. Pmf&ct Tit!.t 
O. RO<ld Nam4 Qt Number 
E. SQgin & End T•rmlni 
F. Pmj~i:l Oes.-;dptlon 

7\h Stroe1 lt:ipovcneo\$ 

Gmr.r Av;::r.\lf! !0 Me;:dc Avc.iuo 

Stafo> I Phasa I Phase Start Year (YYYY) j 
p I Ail I 2015 I 

--
Expenditure Schedule 

Ph;.u:e I 1¥! I 
I ALL I 01 
I Totalsj o\ 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

N if's·rfo 

and sklew~K 

Feder.al Fund Code 

Tota!s 

2nd I 
502,000J 

so2,noo_L. 

B.STIP ID 

G. Structur1! ID 

Six Year Transportation improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

"' ~ , 
~ 

Y Outside 

~ 
l 

~ 
3 
~ • 3 • ~ 

3 
~ 

~ • • ~ • • 3 
~ • 

" • , 
;;/ 

" ~ • . 

"' , 
~ 

j ;1 ~ " " [ 3 " r ![ • n • n 
• , ;;/ • 
m- ... ~ ;; - • • 

PROSSER '17/ ~6/251;3 Dfr'251i3 13-1426 06 CPSTW 0 380! No 

I 
' 

Federal Fund!f State Fund Code S111\~ Ftm.tls. lr>c<tl Funds I Total Fund$ 

0 0 502,0001 502:,Cco 

0 0 502,000! 502,CIOO 
-

3'd 4th 5th & 6th 

0 0 D 

0 0 ( 

Page 2 

76



-""" Washington State 
Department of Ttan$port.ITTion 

Agi:incy; Prosser 

County: Ben!cn 

MPOtRTPO: BFCG 

l,Jf " o· 
""fl ~ 
< " g s 

(')~ :::$ 
., g g-

P!NJProject No 
C, Project Tiiie 
D. Road Name or Number 
€. 80:9in & End Tl.'tn'lini 
F, Project Descrfpt!on 

0'.ct !ri1'1nd Errpiro Highway· PNrno 2 

\-\~1w -C.:our1try Ro<id :0 Wc;ri1ba R0nd 

N l!'.Sldu 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y outs;de 

31 g; 
< 

-a 3 
< c ~ 

p 

~ • ~ ~ 3 zy • p x 
~ r ~ • 

" ~ ~ ;;! p 

I ;;! 0 

~ :; • . • • . . p 

04 CPSTW o 25DI CE No 

BSTIPlr··r-
" ~ • p • • 

G. "'"'"" IDI JI ~ 
PROSSER 1ohs12s:13 loei25113 

I 
> I g 
3 • • 

I 
" , 5· 0 

~ 
, 
z 

e ? 

13-1426 

o •"'W.o•ctew;,,~lonn dntragB, s'.rcmt 

''""""' Status Phase l Phase StartYear(YYYY) j Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Coda State Funds Local Funds Total Funds 

s PE 201s I STP[US} 100.580 0 15,690 116,270 

p CN i 2016 I STP(US) 861,370 0 134,430, 995,800 
. 

150,120[ Tota/,,. 901,950 0 1,i12,0101 
----·--·---·-· - ~. 

~--------, ··-·· --··~-------·--,-~·~· .. ·--
Expendltura Schedule 

Phase "' I 2od 3cd I 4th 5th & 6th 

PE oj 116,270 01 0 0 

I o) 
. 

995,800! oj ; CN 0 D 

' Totals Oj iifi,270 """"' 0 0 I 

Repor. Date: February 26, 2014 Page 3 

77



r 
I 

-ill WilllirltJ{Ori St.st• 
~t nf Tnle'n111mvi•Uon 

A.g1mcy; Prosser 

County: Benton 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

" [ 
~ " 

A. PIWProjec! No, 
e C. ProJ~<:t T1tfo s z 

o& " 0. Read Name or >himbN 
3 E. Sogin & End lennln\ iilg ~ 

:: !!. ~ F. Pn::>jecl Dcscdptlon 

09 4 

N Inside 

K.innsy Way! Cor c:mti! F..'.arket Sidewa'I; !rnprovener>ts 

Pari<: Av1.mJ~ to St'l1e Rcu1e 22 

I Cccb ood gctte" ocd 

<eunomo 

I Status Phase I Phase Start Year f'(YYY) Fedora! Fund Code 

! ? PC I 2015 

I p CN I 2016 

i iotals 

~· 

I Phase 1;t 2nd I 
" 

i PE 0 61.000 

i CN 0 0 

i Totals 0 61,00Q 
"" 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

I 

-.- --

B. STIP ID 

G. Struetur1.1 fD 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Oufa'.de 

IT-
________ ,, ________ 

"' 3 f u a ,. ~ < c i ~ 3 .. • i ~ 3 
I 

,. ~ ;. • 0 '{! 

~ 
0 0 0 a n r [ D 0 3 0 ~ 0 

. 
~ 

e 
" 

, 
~ • z 0 ~ a ~ ~ ~ 

~ 0 a o . " I • 0 

PROSSER 3 05/25,""'.:J '~6125"/13 113-1426 21 

"""'1 
1.000 No 

I 
Federal Funds State Fund Code State f'urids ' Local Fund11 Total Funds 

0 OTHER 55.000 6,000 61,CQD 

0 OTf-JER S!SJ)OO 63,0!}0 ~3S.O:JO 

0 630,00-0 69,00U 699,000 

,,. 4th 5th & 6th I 
0 ' Oi -

€38,0GD 0 01 
638,000 0 •I 

----~ 

Page 4 

78



-w -"""""~partl'ntt¢lf of T n11nsppria~ 

Agency: Prosser 

County: Benin~ 

MPO/RTPO: SFCG 

I ~ 
Io£. 
I!~ 

~ ,,. 
~ 

~ 
~ 

A. PIN/Proj~ct N-t>. 
C. Project Title 
0. Road N;Jll>'$ Of Number 
E. Begin & End Termini 
f'. Proj<:ct CescripHcn 

N bside 

EL STIP10 

G. Structur. ID 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

f 
~· 

Y Outside 

~ 
[ 

,,. 
3 • • ~ 
3 • L_ 

-~· 

3 
~ 1l 
~ I 0 

~ .. 0 • ;;/ t ~ . 

m • 3 
~ i 

• ~ 3 • ~ • ~ !I 0 .. ~ 

il. • _, 
~ ~ j • • ~ 

09 

SL.f;i>nb,1 Rt>.')f) !rrprovemcr.t<s • f'h1D£ ' 

PROSSEH 5!05175113 06/25/13 i3-1426 04 iCPSTW 0.44'.1! I No 

I Old lol"d Err.pico Highw•y !p MPrloi D'"' 

I-Rc«>Mlr.:¢\ "'"d \\i.den t<;.~(f;;ay, curb <!!'.d gt.:t'.er. ~ld"wal\( s<:om1 drainage, streei 

hghlin(J. hot rni>. >i~o~:! l'"'d t.tTipjr-c""-· -------------------

''"""'"' i Status I Phase Phase 5f4rt Ye:ir {YYVY) ! Federal Fund Code Federal Funds stm Fund Code state Funds Local Funds Total Fund:. 

! p I PE 2016 I 0 OTHER 70,G:'.lb 75,000 15f,ODO 

I p I CN 2017 I 0 OTHER 61'!$,Q:)'.) UB7.0CC 1.37:l-/lD0 

l Totals • f62,00() 152,000 1,524,1)0(1 ---
I Eiq:> .. l'\dltur# $.;;h~d~~-· 

I Phase isl I 2nd I ,,, I 4th 5th & 6th 

I PE 01 'I 1s1.oo-oi 0 c 
I c" cl llJ 01 1,373-.000 0 

I Toa1s •I 01 1s1,~::~L __ 1,373,000 0 --

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 5 

79



-iJi \thWt~StM:• Ocpurtmewu of Tram:pMbHion-

Agam;:y; Prosser 

County: Bentcn 

M?O/RTI'O; BFCG 

<' 
~ 

n~ i;>g 
:~ 

°' 

~ 
" ~ 
~ • 

A. P!NJ?rojec! No. 
C. Project Tith> 
D. Ro:.d N<rm-P er Nvmbnr 
E. Begil' a, End T(!rn:ini 
F. Project Descriptien 

' 
W<0rnb<1 Road lmprnvemonb- Pl>ase 2 

Wine Ccurtry Rr.arl iO Old ln\an<j Empfrti Highway 

N !nside 

Ref'..Onstruct and \11\i;&n ro11™'1;iy, curb ;rnd guttm, sldewal'<. s1mm dra0nage, shm1 
lighting, hol mix asnM!I, and p;:111nmcnt mark'rgs 

iFuodioo 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Out.s\M 

m -1 

B. STIP ID 

il' 
?!. 

> 
3 

> g. • • 

3 

"' ~ • ~ • .. 3 s. • .. • 
lil ~ 
ft ~ 

~ 

! , 
~ • ;;: ~1 

~ 
~-[ 0 

n ~ 

~ 
, 

i 0 :;! z g ~ ~ 0 ~ G. StTUcture lOf ~ 

PROSSER 6106i25/13 05125113 13--1426 04 CPSTW! 0.150 No 

I Status Phalie Phali& Start Year f'NYY) ! Ftidera! Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Cod& Stats Funds: Local Fund'i Total Fund11 

l p PE 2016 I 0 OTHER 26,C::lO 33,00C 58,COO 

i p CN 2017 I 0 OTI<ER 218.UCO 291,000 509,00Q 

I ioiahi 0 244,000 324,000 568,000 ·----
! Exs:iendltura Schedule 

.. 

Phase fat 2od ,,. 4th 5tl1&6th 

PE 0 0 59,000 0 0 

CN 0 0 0 509,00C 0 

Totals 0 ' 59,000 509,000 0 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 6 

80



-iJi W.ihin(ltoo.sute 
Oeparimwil of ~sportation: 

Ag8ncy: C'rosse' 

County~ Benton 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG ·--,--1-·-· 
~ I [ A PlNIProjit-el No 
§ ~ C. Prnjeet irtlr. 

n a_ t: 0. Road N.ame- or Number 
-;- g §. E. Begin & End T1trm!ni ~ "- • I •. P<ojoO< Oualo<lo<> 

I 07 

I 
7 

t$y1on Road L'nprcvi>rr-0nt$ 

I . 

N !rsidec 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outsick 

! I [I 
"' I ' 0 I • 0 , 

> ~ ~ 5 ;; 3 ~ 
3 - 3 = - Q 

g a ~~ e!. ~r:;i 
c. o - n r _ .&J • , I -! 0 ~ .;I E. 
£ ~ :g : 5' ~I i 

~ 
G. Structuta ID{ ,5° 

> 

f 
B. STIP\D 

PROSSER $!C6/25i13 0512$113 i3·i426 1 04 CPSTW 0.950! j No 

I l I S!v.i:H:l;:in Ave nm: to West City Li·Tlits 

; R.'.cor:sh.1:.t .and wiOOn 1C<Jc\v11y, curb and (;i.f.".et. sidewall storm dra;n3\)tt. st"l;e: 
! __ . ·---.~~_2l1Gn:_1. lwl m\)( ;ir.pha!!. ;VYJ r.:r1111rr-0n~ n·,ad(ri;p; -~· ---------- -'------! .L-~. 

i'"""'"' 
l Status Phase I Phase Start Year f(YYY) 1 Federal Fund Cod!t Faderal Funds State Fund Coda I Stale Funds I local Funds Total Fund:;; 

! p PE I 2ll17 I 0 OTHEF! I 214,ccoj 55,000 259.00[} 

I p CN I 2018 I 0 OTHER i t874.000i 4€9.000 2.34::!.0Q[) 

i ""' 0 ___ L .. 2,oss,0001 514,000 2,612,000 

J Expettdlture schedul$ 

! Phase fat '"' i 3'd 4th Sth & 6th I 
! 

I PE 0 0 0 269,000 ol 

i CN 0 0 0 0 2,343,000l 

r Totals 0 0 0 269,000 2,343,000i 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 7 

81



-vii W<ililiingtoriState 
Oe~ of Tnlnsporilrtio" 

Agency: Pmssar 

County: Benton 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

~ 
c 

li~t· :: !! 

°' 

t 

a
~ 
:c 
i 

s 

A. PINlf>roject No. 
C. Project title 
0. Road N-11rn0: Qr Nurrtb11r 
E.. Begin&, End lerm1nl 
f. f'roJe<:t Descriplfon 

Nunn Ro<ld !mprov.i;meni1 

Wcs1 City Llrr".it5 to WC ~s: cf Cai;i Ccurt 

N bside 

Raconstn.Jcl :md widen roadwoiy. C\.ifb 1n1C (lliti:M, ~idswa!k. stCr:"\ dr:i;naga, s:reet 
F9h1ir:9. hoi m!x 3sphtt;t ar>d p<lvnnw.nl mP,<k._i"c·oc'---

''"'"'"• 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outside 

B. STJP ID 

i 
G. Structure \l'.,l / Ji 

'""'T~' 
~ 
~ 
0 

061251~ 3 

~~--~-

3 

" ~ ,. g < 
!?. • 3 3 • ~ • • 0 ~ 0 
0 3 ::; . z t 

~ 0 • 
~3-1426 04 

m , 
< 
~ 
0 

~ 
~ • ll • 3 
§' • Ji §: "Ii r 

" • D 
0 • ::; ~ 0 

~ 
= 

t • 0 

CPSTW 03901 No 

! 
I 

Status Phalli! Phase St..rt Year (YYYY) Feder.JI Fund Code- Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds I Loc31Funds Total Funds 

p PE 2017 0 TPP 102.oooj 11,000 113.000 

p CN 2018 Q :pp 918,0:jO! 103,000 1.019,\)CO 

Totals 0 1.018,oooj 114,0IHI 1.1~2.000: 

'Sohedu1' 

Pha- ,,, I 2od I ,,, 4th 5th &ti1h 

PE oi 01 0 113.0CO 0 

CN nr 01 0 0 1.0Hl,OOOj 

'""" •I of 0 10,000 1,019,000! - - -

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 8 

82



-ill ~mm.t• -lolT"'"-

Agency: Prosser 

County: Bentol'I 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG 

I ~ 

l,J "' A< P!Nlf>ro)ui:t No. 

" C,Pro}cr.!Tll!ii z 
0 D. Road N<Jmc or NumtHH 
3 ;org e E., Begin & End T•n-rnlni 

1::::. • F, Prof(l<:t Ccs;cdl)lfort 

I 09 ' 

I 
Prosser Avenue im;::rnve'l"lents 

~farkot St1eet to Memorial Street 

N Inside 

I Reconstruct erd widen roiildway, curb a'>d gu';~er, sidewalk. storm dr:h1ago, s'.reet 
Fghting, ho1 mix asphalt and pavement rmirkhgs 

1>unamg 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outside 

-:J-- -
m 

3 , 
"-~ 0 fl ~ ~ ~ 
, 

"' > • • 3 "' i 0 3 ~ "- • 

G- Str"°'"'° '°' j 
" " 0 "' l> 0 g 1 ! E Q 

~ 

t n !; D 0 
~ 0 ~ 

c 

l " ~ " i 3- ~ 

" p • ~ 

PROSSER 11 0()/25113 06/25/13 13-1426 04 CPSTW 0 500 No 

I - -· 

Statu11 l Ptuu;• j Phase St:artY11ar (YYYY) I Federal Fund Codi. ffl<leral Funds Stare Fund Cod• State Fund~ I loc:a! Funds Total Fundi: 

p I ALL I 2017 l 0 O[ 1,668,000 1.U63,8DO 

Tot3!11 0 o[ 1,668,000 1.&611,000 
-~·-··-

-· ~·--
Expenditure SctwdU111" l 

Phase "' 2od aru 4'h Sth & 6th 

AU. 0 D ' 1,6138,0CO ' I Totals ' 0 ' 1,66$,0t!O • 

Report Date: .June 28, 2013 Page9 

83



-fa W.l'hingi.Qri SW• 
De1>ariment of ~oriJftioft 

Agency: PrusSl'lr 

County; Benton 

MF>OIRTPO: BFCG 

~ 

n~ ..-g 
~ e;,. 

09 

~ 

} 
z 

~ • 
10 

A. PINff'roj11<;t No. 
c. Pro)ei::I Tifa• 
D. Road N<!me l'>• Numtier 
E, Bogin & End T"n:n!ni 
F. Projccl Ooscflptlo!'f 

AleX<t!'lder Cour11mptov!Hl>ltf!te , Pttaee 1 

H:gh\;i,._l'.f Drive lo ?a!Jm.on Ro&! 

N 1<>side 

J R('CCr<S:rvci nnd y,1de~ rmut+roy. curb <>nd g_u~:ur. sioewalk, storm drainage, strea! 
ic~ntm:. hot m.x :;nrma,t n"d pavemN·,t T.an:rrgs 

-· 
Funding 

B. STJP lD 

G. Sl:nK:ture 10 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y C1.;lsido 

m 
3 0 

~ ~ ~ 
~ 

< ~ ~ 
0 ~ 

i! 0 3 ~ 
0 i! " s: • [ p 

~ 0 a [ 0 g n • » • ;;; 0 

41. ;;; ~ . z 0 
0 ? ~ ~ " 0 ~ 0 

~ 

! 1 
P~OS$EH ~2!06125.1~3 ()6!25113 13-1426 04 CPSTW 0.310 No 

J_ 
-· -· 

Status i f'hasn j Pha~ Start Year (YYYY} I Federal Fund Code Federal Funds I Slate fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds 

p I AU. I 2018 I ol 0 973,000 973}]'(\{) 

Totals •I 0 973,000 973,000 

l"Expenditura Sehedu1 
' 

I Phase 1•t 2od '"' 4th 5th & 6th 1 

I ALL 0 0 0 () 973,00G) 

l Totals 0 0 0 0 973,000) 
-

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 10 

84



-w -..;,;;,wn St.$ 
~t qf Transporl11tion 

Agetu::y: Prosser 

County: Benton 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

~ 
c 
~ oc -o . " : !!!. 

09 

II a· 
2: A. P!Wf'rnjeel Nn. 
~ C. Proji:1etT1Ue 
e 0. Road Na-me M Number 
,®. E. Begin&. End Termi~t 
S: F. Project O!'.'scrlp1ion 

11 

Alexander Court 1rnproveref".s - pr.,as(J 2 

\.Vine Ccur.try Road to Hi!)h!and Or!vc 

N Inside 

R•rol"!·cct ''° wideri roadway, cmb ,.,,q s1d11walk storm drak.age. street 

!Funding 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

B. STIP IO 

:c 
~ 

G, Structure !D ! cE 

y outside 

I:: 
~ 
~ 
0 

PROSSER 13!05125113 C€125/13 

' 
f 
l 

13-i42S 

3 
u a 
~ 
3 • a 
~ 
~ 
~ • 

Q4 

m 
0 

~ 
~ ~ 3 "' E • " ... 0 "' " :; [ • D 
0 0 ~ 

~ 0 

~ 
~ g ~ 
0 0 

CPSTW 0.230 No 

I Status I Phase j PhaseStartYear(vYYY) ! Fedara/ Fund Code Fede.ral Funds State Fund Code State Funds loctll Funds Total Funds 

I p I ALL I 2018 I 0 D 700,000 700.000 

I Totals ' ' 700,000 700,000 

fE;cpendltun Schedule 

I Phase "' '"" '"' '"' 5th & 6th 

I ALL 0 0 0 0 100,000: 

L Totals 0 0 0 0 700,000! 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 11 

85



-w; W~hington stMe 
Dep.Ollrtl"ncf'lt o:f Tr.-iwporlln«>n 

Agency: PrO'>Sar 

County: Ser.ton 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG 

i § 
'log, -o 
i?J [ 

°' 

~ 
~ 
0 

~ 
z 
1i 
I!' 

i2 

A. ?!WProJ<td No. 
c. ?rnl•ct Ti'll<ll 
D. Road N11m1: or Numb1tr 
E. $J;l9ln !$.End T<:'tmini 
F. Pwjcct Description 

. !3()nto~ AvtF'rC!C :mplO\l('"'i{!!'ltS 

N irls\d~ 

' I I"'"" Cow1 "Al""''" Coort l I Rf!cons\rvct arid 1\idl'.H110ndw;;iy_ c~m <nd guttar, sidewalk. storrn d•a1r1ag0, hot m~x 
~-......___ r asphalt. a'1d pavernont marklrgs 

fF~;·;~;; 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y O~ide 

m 

1 ' < 

" I a a· ,. • I < 

j -< ' " • • 3 " 3 0 3 E • • ;; • ' " ' ;;: • Q, " a 
~ :; ~ 

3 0 

i ~ 
;;; 0 

• " ~ u • a ? • • Q, 

B. ST!P ID 

f 
~ 

,. 
i G, Structure 10 

PROSSER ~")05125/13 06125113 13·~426 °' CPSTW Q_2QQ No 

'~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~'L... J.......__.___l._... 

I Status I Phai;;e j PlrnsestartYear(YVYY} j federal Fund Code federal Funds Sta~e Fund Code State Funds lo(;<ll Fund5 Total Funds 

' p I All I 201B I ' 0 589,00C 589,000 I 

I Totals 0 ' 589,00C 589,000 

l Expenditure Schedule 

Phase '" 2nd '"' 4th 5th & Gth 
-All 0 0 0 0 589,000 

Totals ' 0 0 0 589,0~ 
"~-

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 12 

86



-f'/.i 'YfllifhMg-ton Sti.ii'e 
&partmerri of 'Thansporlatiic;r.n 

Ag&ncy: Prosser 

County: Benion 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG 

~ 
0 

!oil, 
;;;g 
i;'l~ 

07 

~ 
[ 

" ~ 
i 

13 

A. PlNlPr-ojed No. 
c. Project Titlc 
D. Road »~mv Of N<1m!Hlr 
E. Beghi & End lctrninl 
F. Proj~cl Dcscriplki» 

1-f!gh'a'"ld Drive 1rnprcv1H':'ent9 

N !:--.side 

Aiex;;w.rkr Court to State >zoute 22 

clJD af'd gut(}r. sidewa;k., siomi d'flinago. r.e:c mix 

wund>og 

8. STIP!P 

G. Structure !f.l 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outs!de 

m • s I 

I 
g· i 

)> 
3 • • 

f " ~ 
0 3 
~ • a 

a 

~I a -< 
, 
3 ~ • ~ " • E .. ~ 0 ~ • -< 0 • ;;! 0 . f 

~ ~ ~ " a ~ ~ " ~ ~ 

?ROSSER 15!06125/13 06125113 13~1426 04 CPSTW 0.280 No 

I Status I Pha:i;e J Phase StlrtYoar (YYYY) j Federal Fund Code Federal Fund5 State Fund Code State Funds Local funds I Total Funds 

i p I ALL I 2019 I 0 0 1,09.J.,OOO! 1.09,l,O(;O 

i Tota!& ' ' 1,053,(iOOj 1,093,000 

~-
Expenditure Schedule 

Phase 1st I 2nd '"' 4th 5th &6th 

ALL oj 0 0 0 1,093,000 

T(ltal!i •I • • • 1,093,000 --

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 13 

87



-•II ~ingtoostM• O.~ of Tr11;nsp<Wtation 

Agen<;}': Prosser 

County: Bento'1 

MPO/RTPO; l;lFCG 

" 

~ 
~ 

I 
A. P!N!P1oje-ct No, 
C. ?roftt.;;l T1tl.c: 
D. 1';q;id Nam• Qr Number 
E. Begin & End Temilr.l 

N lrside 

8. STIP !D 

w ~ /F. Pw-/ect Do,.;cription G. Structur9 ID F. Pw-/ect 1 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

f 
! 

Y Outslcie 

! 
,,. 
• • , 
0 • ~ 

" ~ 
"-• g: , 
z 
? 

-·-~-----· .. [l 
f c 

i 3 § g :f l . " , " 
~ " j ~ . ' 

~ ~1 ~ 0 
~ ~ ~ . ~ : • 0 

13-i426 06 PSTW O.i70 No 

I • , " ~"" '"'"'"' I CO.vn'::vm 11\.•tits'll<;~-On l:nptC;1l'!N;l""a ~!h $"net 

flV"i'el' S"t1c: to t/c.ad0 S;ru.:i: I ,~-- ,, --'"'" "'" "'''""'' '"'" ~· - I 1 1 gu'•or sidew,1'k ~t01m dra>ll.i}(j<.t a"d ;:;:i.vement mar'Kl11gs _ 

()6125113 

.... L--
. - ·-----··· 'Funding 

I Status I Phase I PhaseStartYear{YYYY) I Federal Fund Code i Fe-dera! Funds State Fund Code State Fund:io local Fund"ll Total Funds 

I p I ALL I 2019 I I c Q :}35.COD 335,000 

i Totals! 0 0 335,000 335,000 
~ 

) Expend1turn Schedule 

Phase fat 2nd ,,. 4lh Sth&&th 

ALL D D 0 0 335,noo 

Totals 0 0 0 0 335,00Q 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 14 

88



-iii W..iriijtonSLtt• 
Dt-pairlo'wiflt t;tf Trw'I•~ 

Ag1mcy: Prosser 

County: Benton 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG 

I ~ 
l

0
g, 

wg 
~· 

07 

~ 

1 
z 

I 
15 

A, PlNJProject No, 
C. Prc)eet Titil) 
D. Road N11n1<i er Number 
E, Be9in 5. End Totmlni 
F. Project Oe,;;etiplion 

N lns[de 

'Nirle ('..-0orrtry Rood] Merlo! Dr!ve/ G;:ip Road instarsectlcris 

1o 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outside 

m 
3 , 

~ 

! 

~ l a ,. 

I 
~ -< • ~ • • 0 3 

3 ~ 3 [ • • • "' 
0 ~ ii " r ![ • 0 • D 

3 0 

"' 
0 0 "' ~ • z ~ 

~ 1' • ~ 

" I 0 • • 

8. S11P ID 

! 
G. Structure ID f ~ 

PROSSER 1f06!25113 06!25113 13-1426 03 CPSTW 0.200 y., 

I 

I I Char1neFzoifam.vi.den;'1gand_c_,_w_·1_"_ffic_,_,_1_,,_,,_1. ___________________ ~~---~----~------~-----~-~-------~ I 
Status I Phase t Phase stariYear (YYYY) 1 Fedor.ii Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Cod~ State Funds I Loe.a! Funds I Total Funds 

P ! PE ! 2017 -0 OTHER Hi6J'.l::l0 19.000 185,000 

! p I RW I 2018 0 OTHER 250,080 2$.000 289,000 

p I CN I Z01S 0 OTHER 1.551\000 174,000 1.732,000 

0 t Totals 
··-------------·~-----

1,!'lS:4,!JOO 222,000 2,2C6,001} 

I Expondlture Schedule 

j Phase 1'1 '"d 3'd 4th 5th & 6th 

! PE c 0 0 185,00C 0 

I RW G 0 0 0 289,000 

j CN oJ 0 0 c 1,732,00C 

" 0 0 185,000 2,021,00(1 
--~ 

L .-- _ Totals 

----MO~-

fl.'deral Fund;:.:l State Funds Local Funds Total Funds 

Gr.ind To~ls for Prossaf! --
5,080,193 6,726,000 6,724,<187 20,530,680 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 15 

l 

89



-•2' Washington Stato 
Department of Trao$porhi1tion 

Agency: Prosser 

County; Benton 

MPOiRTPO: BFCG 

? 
n& f 
rug I Zl ~ 

08 

'---~---L---• 

I'"""'"' 

~ 

g: 
"' 2 
0 
3 • 
' 

~5 

A. P1NIProjoct No. 
C. Project Title 
0. Road Name or Number 
E. Begin & End Termini 
F. Prbjl'.!tt DeseflpUon 

Old lnlan·j E-,1pho H'ghway - 0rase 3 

\V;jm\J8 Ro;;j to Grant :;;oad 

I Sia Ills I Phase J Phase Start Year fYYY';1 I 
I p I PE I 2015 I 

p . 

I RW I 2015 I 
I p I CN I 2016 I 
I 
[E;pendlturn Schedule 
I 

Phai;e I ' 1st 

PE OJ 
KW oj 
CN oj 

Tolol' Of 

Report Date: February 26, 2014 

N hs''..ln 

sidnwaik:, slonn dmlmige, sl1'?st 

8. STIP !D 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outside 

T- ·~-- -- --1 - ~--·;.;.,-,-----i 

3 
~ 

~ a 
> < c ~ 

3 0 ~ ~ g 
~ " 0 

0 if 0 
0 ~ 0 f 

> 

G. Structure mt ~ 
~ 
[ 

3 
0 
0 "' z 

p ~ 

0 6 J_j g-
• s 

VJA<l6502 I G5i25!13 I os:2s1'.::. 13-1426 ' 04 CPSTV11 D.5HJ! CE I Yes 

···--------------ck~---~--- ~-----.L...---1 

federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Coda State Funds Local Funds Total H;nds 

STf'(US) 160,900 0 25,100 Hl6,QO;J 

STP{US) 50.""' ( 9,0CO 59,GOO 

STP(US) 1,6'8.00< ( 2~e.o::m 1,916.~00 

Totals 1.568.900 ( <n,lUU 2,161,00-0 

·-~, 

2od I '" 4th 5th & 6th 

1sB.00~1 0 0 0 

59,tl;JQ[ 0 0 0 

01 1,915.000 0 0 

245,000j 1,916,000 0 ' 

Page 16 

90



-vZ,,. Washington State 
Dep.uriment of 'J\oaosport.ation 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Ag011cy: Prosser 

County: Benkn 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG N ~nside Y Oulslde 

c 1- I I 
I ~ 
' a l ..,., ~ A. P!NIPro)ect No. B. $TIP JD 
I § z C, Proj.1ct TU!e :i: :;<-

1 0 g c D. Road Namt! or Numb-er "' g. 
l 01' g g. E. Bcgln & End Tcnnln: ~ "):!. 
J l:: !?!... I ~ F. Projccl Oc:;cri;::tion G,_ Structure m ii. ~ 

> g 
a • g 
a 

°' I " 'NA.'.J65D3! 05125113 D6125it3 

j 7th Street ADA Sidewillk Ramp irnprovernents 

j Ber:nen A>1e lo :'.lw!ley /wt; 

Install A01\ cornp1br.t s:Cewaik r<>rnp::> 1nr!.ud!n9 curb and gu'.ter i3nd asr;hi;'. p'1khtng 
at lhrnu inl<;;1sec11ons 

~~-~~~~~~~ 

>oM>og 

St;;lus Phasa J Phase Start Year (YYYY} Federal Fund Code Feder11l Funds I 
s PE I -2014~----- ;"AP(US) 14,041! 

p CN I 2015 TA?(US) 64,9801 

Totals 79,021 t 

,-_--.-._ -~····.--:~·-.~---~--· ~-~~-

~hase I "' I 2nd I ''" 
f or· PE ~6,20C 0 

I CN I 0 75,120] 0 

L --~L_ 16,2!}0 1s,i2ol Q 

----~-···-- ---~~--------

Fed~;;i Funds 

Grand Tota!s for Pross~r 4,978,951 

Report Date: ~ebruary 26, 2014 

Stale fvnd Code 

-
·--··-~--· 

4th 

D 

D 

Q 

Stat0 Funds 

5th & 6th -

State Funds 

3 ~I 
~ 

~ 3 
• < e 
~ 3 §i 
c "' .:;?' 

Zf ~ fl 
a ~ a z ~ • 
? .. "' 

a· 
-< a ~ 3 
~ • ~ 

a ~ 
~ 

;;: 
~ -< 

~ ~ ~· 

" ~ • 
13-i426 21 CPSTW 0.15C 1CE No 

f Local Funds Tot.a! Funds 

01 2,159 16,2CO 

of 10,140 75,120 

Of 12,299 91,320 

I 
Oj 

01 
01 

Local Funds Tota! Funds 

777,439 5,756,390 

Page-17 

91



-""'"' """""""'°""' -w1.r Orr;~ of 'ft~~-..tioo 

Agehcy· f'n:c;se1 

County: Benlon 

MPOIRTPO: B~CG 

Gl
-----i 

I ' i ~ I 
I g_ A_ ?\Nl?roj,;,et Ne 

.:z G. Project !rt!>:< 
'If 0. R<>>\d NMl1!! <JrNurnher 

_ - c 3 c_ augln & EndT<HTrtfrd 
! ~ f I ~ F. Prcjzyct Dr:scriptfon 

" Ole !1'1~'1d Ernplro HijJhw~y lmprovnrnent'l 

West Cfy Utn\ts 10 Wine Countiy Ro<id 

N hsltJe 

l
·Ree>Jr-;gtwci o"'li W1<lan roocNllK'f, cu1b vrxJ gv~:er, sfrfowillk. storm drwnage, strnsl 

~-~---~h"g-!'ti_m0oc' h-'-'-"-'"-~:;p~all, and fAIVe~nl mar1':.iri;js.. 

!Funding 

EXISTING 

y 01J'.$ilfo 

--T--
I 

f!i, .STIP !D) > 

> ~ r 
0 

p 

~ • ~ l G. Stn.ictl.!fil- iDi 
p ~ ~ 0 

PROSSER 7 0&/25/13 05.12511::1 

Status Ph::iM> Ph111rn. Sb rt Yw:u r'fYYYI Fedara! Fund Cede Fl!dera! Funds srat,-, fund Code St.I-Iii Fumfa 

p EE 2014 STP{U) ~47, 113 

p CN 2014 S7P(U) 2.069.0111) 

Toti!l-; 2,liS,193 

Expendltun:: Sch,,dule 

lst I 2oct "" "' Sth 8. Glh 

01 ?85,6&0 0 

ol 2,392,000 0 

~ 
OJ 1,6n,6BO 

Report Datw June 28, 2013 

I ~ 
~ ~ ~ 

~ ~ g- ~ 
0 :;' 

" u . 
13--1426 I 04 

Lr.,,,.; Fl111ds 

0 

322.920 

0 l61,4S7 

0 

0 

c 

~ 
0 
0 

~ . 

Program 
4 to 2019 

~ 
~ 
[; 
p 
~ 

~ 

CPSTW 0.76oice ! No 

To"b! Funds 

235,650 

2,392,000 

2,l!71,€-l!tl 

Page 1 

92



-"'" ~Sl:tdia De~t -of T~~tlit.lf:m 

A;;ancy' Prosser 

Cour<ty: Senkm 

MPO/RT?O: 8FCG 

~ 

5 oa 
f~ 
·~ 

06 

''""''"" 

v 
3 
ii' 
z 
~ 
!! 

2 

7\h Stice! lrnpmvcmcnts 

G00n\ Avenue le Meade t.ven:Je 

L Sta11..1~ I Phasa ! Pha~a SiartYeu fYYl'Yl j 
r-p I ALL ! 2015 I 
I .. 

!Expendflure Schedule 

I Phaso w 
i ALL 0 

I Totals ' 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

N :nsiCe 

Federal F\Jr.d Codo 

Totals 

2nd 

502,000 

$02,00{1 

Transportation Improvement Program 
2014 to 2019 

Y O<;tside 

B. STIP!O 

G, S!rm;turn !O 

> g-
l 
~ 

I 
g 

~ 

j" 
m 

~ ~ t 
" > s j " 3 

~ 
e 

~ 
e g " " E ~ f r E " 0 • n 

i ;;! • " ;;! ~ z e 

" ~ • ~ 3 ? • 7 • • 
06/251~3 13-14:'.'S 06 Cf'STW o :mo Ne 

L 

I 
Federal Futul!i St<ile Fund Code State Fund" Loca1 Fund11 Total Flmds 

0 0 502,000 502,000 

0 0 SOZ,000 soz,ooo 

I 

3;d 4th 5th & 6th 

0 0 

0 0 

Page 2 

93



-vZ, ~n{f{OO Sf.MO 
tlep.u~l qf Tl'l!Wl'.!i!:pqrl1$t~ 

Ag.,l"lcy: Pro%N 

C<'!unty: 80r.lcn 

MPO/RTPO: SFCG 

~--IC-
~ 

~ I ~ A FNP '•""' § ~ C p () 1f?ct-1' 

n;.:. o= D R:om1 Nam!! or Numhn• 
;; 0 g_ E l1«gln & End Tmmlri1 : ~ ~ I, p,,j~tO"'"'''"' 

08 

Okl 1ri1snd Empini H!!jfr>\'<'•y · Phase 2 

Wiflfl Count')' Road tc Orrm: Rml'd 

Six 

N !r,sicle Y 00.slde 

-:I IT -B 5TIP\D 

" > g; g-
F ~ 

G Sln.,ct\Jre lD g ~ 
PROSSER. 'O!OBl2.5i"!J 013!25!1:3 

Rocorm!Nt\ !lr1r.l wUWn w~y, sidewalk, storm :lr..i1Mge, s1nm! 
lighting, he! mh: a.phal!, and p11vem~nt 

fFund\ng 

Sta'"" Ph::<sn Ph;;:s\l St:irt Year {YYYY} fed~ral Fund F'1:ederal Fund'> S!<1!e Fln1d Code 

Improvement Program 
From 2014 19 

rn 
3 ' u 

" ,, F ~ 
j ~ ~ 

~ 

3 ll. 3 g ~ 

• ~ • ~ ~ 0 0 
~ n • " I 

0 

"' 
0 0 ~ ~· z 

" g © ~ ? • ~ ' 1J-.142S. 04 C;PSTW 0. 760 y,, 

Sh1fl!F1.md1> 

m 
P PE 2015 S=TP~(=R~)~~--}-·~~~-·"=~--}~~--~~--~-f~~~~~~~-c+~~~~~~::;;;:t~~-
p RW 2015 STP(R} 

P CN 2016 

Tohts ol 

Q<pen<,il!vre Schedul<> 

P.h~ .... i<it ,,, 3rd 

RW 

34'1,IlQl.J 

Report DBte: June ?8, ?013 Page3 

94



A;i,,ricy: Prosser 

Co;mty: S<er.t:;;-, 

Mf>OIRTPO: BFCG 

~ on ;; g 
~ !:'.. 

00 

~ 
.w 
f • 

A. ?iWPrcjl)"cl No. 
C. Project TlH;; 
0. !fo~d Nuft\e or Humber 
£. Bllgln & End T~rmlni 
F. f>r(>ject Doscrlp1kin 

t,; !'lsid" 

Kinmiy Wsy/ Cmiwrd! \·'larllet &dewi!lk lmprcYemar:ts 

Funding 

Status ?hase Phase Start Year {YYY'f) Ferl,...,1 Fund Cotle 

p PE 2015 

p CN 2016 

Tot.i!s 
--

1· ----·-··--· .-. .• -, .•..•.. ,,, ___ _ 
E:.qrnnd!1<1ct> Sdtedulo 

Phwse ht '"' PE 0 61,00\i 
-

CN 0 0 

Tcta1,. 0 61,!JOO 
~~--

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

' 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

S. SllP ID 

G, Strvctme lD 
f 
it 

y Ou-,;;lcto 

> n 
p 

~ 
n 

PROSSER :iio512sr3 06/2S/13 

feda~! Funds St31:1! Fund Code. 

0 OTHER 

0 OTt!ER 

Q 

------------- --~------ - -----
,,. 4•n 

0 t 

638.000 0 

636,000 0 

I I f I % 

I 
> g ~· 
' I l [ • a 
3 p :;/ 

I . 
~ ~ a ' 

I 
13-44'.!S 21 

I 

J_ ___ l I 

State Funds l<.;ca1 Funds 

55,000 E,OOC 

515,000 63,DOD 

!i30,000 ~9,000 

·~-, 

'"' & "" 

' 

' 
' 

-·- - - -· 

c ~ ~ 
~ • [ ~ 
0 r Q 
p ~ c 
n 1 a p • ~ n 

CPSTW\ 1-00(1 No 

Total Fum:ls 

61.000 

538,000 

699-,llOO 

Page 4 

95



-w Wa4hmwtoo SlMit 
~ot't'nm~~ 

Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Agency: Prosser 

Count)''. Henion 

MPOIRTl'O: Ef'CG N h•"<d" 

'"""'"' 

~ 

it zy 
~ 

i 

r "Nhj•c<No-. ---------~~~~--- ---------------

C, Projecl '1\ie 

5 

0. Road Name Ot Numl>er 
E. 131:11-!n & EM Termlr1l 
F. Project O"'scriptlon 

Wa:rnb.a Ro<Mi lrnpmvomanls: · P-has;i 1 

, 016 ln!aOO €rnpim Hlghwqy to Mqrfo\ O.Pie 

'Reeof!ll\rlx;1 a"!d wld'Jrl fl;)<>d-,1,")', C\irb ar'<d gultM, wlowal;;, storm dram'-'\1B, ttee\ 
figf;lil'1g. hot mb: ;isphat\ und stt\p1n<;j. 

Y Otli•ml" 

B. ST1P lD 

"' 2 
P. 

G. SlmdlJr~ IO] ,ii 
PROSSER Sl-06/25ft3 

I 

f 
'" 0 

06125(13 

Sta tu!!. f>hmrn f'h;u;.r, Stirt Year ('(YYY) Fsd.,ral Fund Code F\t<l.,,..1 furn:is St<Jfu Fu11d Code 

p PE 2016 Q OTHER 

p CN 2017 0 OTdER 

Tot.ab 0 -

3 

f " ~ 
f ~ 

iJ. 

"' z 
~ p 

13-1426 04 

Slate F<Jnds: L"c:alF1.mds 

715.000 75,000 

i;f;\6,(1()0 687,000 

762,00U 762.,000 

fuiP~dlture s.~:!:;;d~~-·- -----·· ·~----··----~ . ---~·~----·-~---- - -------- ---~--~--~-------------, 

,---- '"" '"' 
-

?ha"SU 1st Ud 5th & liih 

PE 0 0 ~$1,000 0 0 

CN 0 a a 1,:rn,000 0 

Totals -~ a 151,000 1,373,000 0 
-·-

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

2014 to 19 

m 

~ 
~ 4 

p 

ii 
ci· §_ g 

" " 
§'. " Q ~ 

0 p i 
0 

* ~ ti 

" CPSTW 0,44C No 

T<rlal Fu!'lds 

15~.ooo 

i,:173,000 

i,514,(100 

Page 5 

96



-=:!!': _..,,.__. 

"" -···-""" Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
2014 to 2019 

AglH'lcy; Pro5Sf!r 

County: 8enlnr 

MPOfRTPQ: BFCG 

~ 

Q~ 
'~ a. 
I " 

~ • " " I 
6 

A.. Pln;Prnjm::t Ho. 
C. Project Titl<J 
0. fl;o;>d NruTl(t or Numb'ir 
E. Sugfo 5, Cnd T'ilmilf<! 
F. Project tles~iip{!on 

Wamn."l Road frnp(1'.r!/(lments - f>h.-,se 2 

Wirie Cour>\Jy Roa<l 1.o Old lr<Jand EfTlpira Hlgi"rway 

N IMid" 

Reco<1»!ruct and \OJiden flK!&Jray, Cdrb 11'1d gutter, sidnwalk, O'itomi drmr;age, slfflet 
Hghting, hnt mi:>:: U5pM!I, ond pavemer.1 '1"'.;il\l11gs 

Funding 

Y Q\J1,;\_.-jp 

--,-- ! 

R STIP IOI 

" x 0 . 0 

G. Stnlct.m:i 10! " i • 
PROSSER &I 06/25113 ()6!25!13 

I I 

I I 

I 'l "' < 
~ 0 

" 3 

~ > ~ ~ ~ d ll 3 "- 3 ~ g 
~ £ ~ ~ 
4 " n ~ 

ft " 3 0 .;; 0 ;;! 0 

0 " g ~ 8: 3 ? ll ll 
13--1426 04 CPSTW 0.150 I No 

Status 

p 

Phase 

PE LU.<lOO 

Loca!Fu_rn1_, __ ~

1 
_________ -J 

· :i:u,x10 ss,ooo 
~~~blrtYe1:1r{YYYY) f federnlFvndCode I Focill'ralFundSc I StatnfundCode _ _, ________ +----

2016 0 OTHER 

T"hl l'unds Stilt.I. Funds 

p CN 2017 I l OTHER 21SJJOO 291,0QO 509,0CD 

Totals 0 244,(IO:O 324,0flO SS8,00fi 

Expundlhlre Schedule 

Phase isl lnd 3;d 4fa 5\h &6th 

PE c 59,000 c 0 

CN c 0 c 50:9,000 c 
Tot:iJs ' 0 SSl.000 0 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page6 

97



Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Ag'>ncy· ?m~S.flr 

County; ffon\or> 

MPOIRTPO· RFCG 

~ 
01:1 
rJ g 
·~ 

07 

~ 
~ 
z 
0 

ll-
' 7 

A. l='lN!Pto)<>ct No. 
c. Pr-oJl7'Ct T•1!e 
0. Road N.;1-nm or NumtH.-1 
E. lleghi S. fod T!rrrofni 
F. Pro]ilet D4seriptlol'\ 

ShBii<ian Av&noo ic W0:st City Um1ts 

N !nsldt> Y Ours.ice 

B:.STIPlD 

~ 

l G. St:rur.;turn to 

if 
~ 
m 

PROSSER 8\06125113 05125!13 

~ 

I 
I 

m 
3 ~ 

» ~ 0 0 • I < ~ -; 3 "' • 

I 
0 ~ 0 

~ Ji 
2 

E" 2 [ iii g ~ 
~ j " ~ i ~ z li ~ ? ~ 

1~1426 I "' CPSTW 0.950 No 

By'~ Rooct Imp"~='-" 1· I ,. 
Reo:mstruci and wl&!-n madway, <.:IJI!J and gut:sr. sid•,.'Wai.K storm drainage, ~ir"'"' I I 
hghlif>!J. ho! mh: a1<µlm!l., '.'rod paWfrl(!f\f marki~~~~-··~~· ·----"·----~· ----"·------~----~---~---~---~-~--

c•oomo 

Sb.trni f'h<tsfl Pha11e Start Year (YYYY) Fed1.1111.! Fund Cod(! Federal funds smta Funtl code State Funds Local Funds Totl! Funds 

p PE 2Qi7 0 OTHER 214.00D 55,000 26S,000 

p CN 2018 c OTHER 1,B74,000 459,VOO 2,343,COO 

D 
'---

Totals 1,-0l!B,000 $24,000 2,612,0Q-0 
·---· ·--···-

..... 
omomo 

?has<> '" 2nd ,,d 4th 5th & !i!h 

PE 0 0 0 269,000 0 

CN 0 0 0 0 2,343,0CO 

' 
Totals 0 0 0 1:69,000 1:,143,00!l 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 7 

98



Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
2014 to 2019 

Agancy: P;-i):>SO: 

C<it.mty: Rento.-i 

MPQ!RTPO: BfCG 

A.. ?IN!Pn:jec1 N<i 
C. Project T;11~ 
D. RO;Jd Nilr!'!'lOr Numb-er 
E. B<!gln & End T<:1rmtnl 
F. ProjactO&'icrlpUon 

oa e 
N1mn Road lrnprOV<tnl~l'\ts 

N 1ns1du 

B, STIP' tD 

~ 
G-. StnH.:turn 10 ~· 

Y Om«ide 

~ 
~ 
[ 

PROSSER 9 0$125/13 C6/Z5111 

Wes1 City Lirrl<ts !n 200 ew;\ cf C11s1 Court . 

~ 
3 
g 
~ 
3 . • 

m 
3 

~ 
~ ~ 0 0 ~ < c ~ " • • = [ 3 " 3 ii • [ ~ 

p 
~ 

0 g ![ 
~ 

ct p 

" • z u i '; u ~ p . • ~ 

13--14Zll 04 CPSTW, 0,390 No 

Raconslruct and widen roadway, curb and gUtt<J" sidowalk, stour1 drainaga. stnrn1 I _L 
!!¢'ling, hotmb;;e.tpMlt, and p.ttWl!'IWl'll l'T\8rkirlgs _ ________L_ __ ,____ "---~------~----~--~--~~---~-~-~ 

~log 
Stat!Jij ?has~ ?trn.sf.! Start Y~r {YYYY) Fm:foral Fund Code F~dera! Funds Stat.. Fund Code Sta tu Funds Lt.lea! Funds Total Funds 

p PE 2017 0 TPP 102,000 i1,000 113,000 

p CN 2ots f I o! TPP I 916,ooo! 103,oool 1.vrn,000 
Totals Of ! 1,016,~1_______ 1i4,0~ 1.'1:!2.~Q 

--~·------ - -------------------- -------~-------------- ------
E~e11dfum: Schedule 

Ph<JS<I M 2od ,,d "" 5th & 6th 

PE D! o! of ; n,oaol o 

CN oJ cl o! ot 1.019.000 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 8 

99



Agem;;y: Prosser 

Co1mty: E'lenlDr 

MPOIRTVO: RFCG r.I Inside 

~ 

~ 
~ r 

,-
-A. P!N:P<cject No. 8- 5Tif> to 

I tf 
I~ 

z 

~ • 
I
C, f'f<.ije--ct Tit:e 
0. Road Nama nr N.umtrnr 
E. Bogin & EndTarmln! 
F. Pn;jm::t Onsi::ripik•n G. Strm:turn !D 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

" ~ 

" 

Y Outside 

~ c c 
~ 
3 
c 
3 I 

I 

ii 
~ 

~ 

I 
c 
2 g 

"' 
I 

I 
m 
0 

~ 
s ~ 

0 

~ J) ~ ~ 
IE '1 

0 • D 
0 0 ~ c 
~ '!I ~ 8: ~ 1l 

"' I PKOSS:OR 11J05;1sr11 06.125113 13"1425 I 04---JCP"SlW o.scc Ne 

Pmsser AvePUe lr;--rrrwem!lnts 

Mmke\ Stred to Memorial Stred 

Roconsir>.;ct and widan rn;;d"way, curb and gvte1, sid,,wafk, storr;-i drn!nage. st,ee1 
~-~---~'"igch_!in"g",_hc_t_m_i_x a~phoill, al'ld p<iver1wint rn:arklngs. 

Funding 

Statu-11 I l'i\a!Hl I Ph:.ist1Sti.rtYmv(YYYY) l F00ar1'1! Fund Code Fedo?raf Funds 

p I All I 2it17 I 
Tot.!" 

'~cccwc 

'""' m 2nd '" 
"' ( 0 

•mo.c I ' •.•...... 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

~----

St<IW Fund Code Stl,te Flm1fo local Funds Tota! Funds 

0 0 1,6€8,000 1.m:m.000 

0 ' i,665,00-0 1,SW,000 

"" Sth & £th 

' 1 ~\">~- 1nr 0 

I '""·'"" ( 

Page9 

100



-ill IOI-SIM• 
~t ofT»m~,tdion 

Agem;y: Prosser 

Connty: Ber1bn 

MPOIRTPO: BFCG 

~ 
4 

o~ 
OfC" 
" 0 ""-

09 

~ 

ii· 
~ 
" ~ 
' 10 

A. PlWP,ojec: No. 
C. f'rojed Title 
o_ Ro&d Nnttw Ot Number 
E. 8119!11 & E'nd Tetmlfll 
F. P-mjact D.>iscriptlon 

Ne~al'\d:w Cow\ 1mprovii:ITTi:l'\\s • P!\a~e 1 

N lr;sfde 

Transportation Improvement Pn:>m·a 

Y OL:~ii:i<" 

S. STlP 10 

x 

} f 
[ G. Stn1ctufl" lO 

I "' i 
f 
rr 

i 
" ! 

PROSSER 12!08.~5113 C€!25111 \J-1426 

~ 
ci 
~ 
g 

~ 
~ 

~ 
04 

~ 

~ 
~ 
ll 

CPSTW 

4 

~ 
h 

~ 
0.3~0 

~ 
:; 

I 
'!: 
;;! 
~ 

11 
'fl 
~ 
[ 

No I 
"'"''°dDme\QI'<""'""""'° I I Ll L j I _J lJ 
R&ooMtr'Ju\ nnrl w\tfrm 101:1&,.."ily, ,._urh "1<ll?Wa1~, storm d.rainc;g•\ st-rrn'. 

1 
. J . . 

f!ghlmg, hot mix asphalt, arn:,l JWV"-IT'Rnl ~-----L......___..._- . __ ------ ----- ___ _ 

F1.mdlng 
- - - ····----, 

Status I f'ha8a / Phase Start Year (YYYYi I fmforat Fund Code Fe.clera! Funds Slata fund Cvde Stale Fun<ls Lora\ Funds Total Funds 
.. ·----p I ALL I 2QHl I 0 ' 973.000 973.000 

Totals ' 0 "'""' S7.l.OOO - ---~-- -··-

Phase M Zod 3nl ·~ S!h & tith 
·-

ALL { 0 0 0 973,000 

Totals ( 0 0 a 973,00() 

Report Dale: June 28, 2013 Page 10 

101



-ir;?, _SI .. • 
~toi~tatroo 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Agency: ""o•se· 

County: Genl1x1 

MPO/RTPO: 8FC'G 

~ 
0 , 

ofl: -o 
&5 ·-OS 

~ • " z 
j 

~ 
11 

A. PllW>ro]Etet NI'!. 
C. Project TI He 
IJ. Read Nsme qt N1.1mb<:ir 
E. Sogln &_End T!lrrn!n! 
F. Projiw;ttlcs.i:ription 

Nn:andtn Coulj 1rnpn:ove!'"1c<'"'.:s · Pha~c 2 

N lt1side y Outside 

B, ST\P ID 

G, Stn11:hre 10 

r 

i 
~ 

~ 

t 
PROSSER 1:)]:J6/25113 05125113 

~ , 
0 

~ 
E 

I 
Wirio Cotmty Road tc Highl;md Drive 

\ Reconstrnct and wider roadwey, w1ti ;1;;d gu~r_ sid'3walk.. sforrn drnlnage, shwt 
!krhtkio. hot rnii m;nka,\_ a'>d oavmned marking>. I I I 

. 
F1mding 

Status I Phase I Phase Start Ymn {YYYY) I fedora\ Furid Code Fl':dcral fund:i Stats Ful'ld Code Stale F1.n1ds 

F I All I 2013 I 0 

Total,. 0 
n 

[ Expimd!ture Si;:hm:h;fe 

"""" fat 2cd . ''° "" 5fu & 6th 

All l 
... -~--

0 0 0 ··------
··~· 

c ' 0 ' 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

4 2019 

I. , 
~ 

~1 ~· 

§ l ,. 

I ~ 
4 

g 
0 3 

0 

"' e: ~ ~ , 
0 I; ~ 

;;! 0 0 ;;! 0 
0 'il a • • • 0 . 0 0 

'!3-1426 04 CPSTW 0.230 No 

lcca\ Funds. Tcta1 funds 

D 70'.J.DfJD lt!0,000 

0 700,!}00 700,01)(1 

'00.COC 

nee"'' 

Page 

102



Agenc;y: P.,;tHoc 

C:r>untr Ge>!on 

MPO/RTPO; 'a"'CG 

~ 

' FI 
09 

• ii 
~ 
z 

~ 
~ 

12 

A. "'L'Vi'ro·"·~1 No. 
c. Project Twe 
0. Ro11d N!irm!' 01 NiJmber 
E. S09ln & End !ltl'rnlni 
F. ?ro)<i<:>t Oo!i;1;dp!la11 

fl!3f'ISOfl Ave:iue lmprovemm'\t:S 

Mcr?Jr Court to Alexa<'<de1 Court 

N fM:de 

R&coos!rt«ct and 11,-icten roadway. curb and gu~r. sid,,walk. slorn 'frilinagfl. hot n'<X 
usp'iall and pavement rn.arl\ings.. 

Funding 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y Outiice 

8, STlP ID 

~ 
'!_ 

G. StruetuN'.t 1D I '5 
PROSSER 14l86/2S/13 

> 

f 
[ 

!OS/25/1?. 

I 
" 

~ 
~ 

~ , 
if 

l'.J...1425 

I 
' ~ 
~ 
i 
i 

04 

c 
;; 
ii' 
~ 

~ 
CPSTW 

~ .. 
~ 
? 

0.200 

-------

~ 
~ 
~ 
;;_ 

i 
No 

Sl:atos I Phase ! Phase Start Ye:ir fYYY'() I Fedar:d Fund Crimi fed<tra! Fund$ State Fund Code State Funds lo<:11I Funds Totll!l Funds 
-

p I All I 2013 I 0 0 5119,000 589,000 

Totals 0 ' Sll9,0(10 589,0110 
--

Expe11dlt1Jre Schm.!um 
-?Nase "' '"' ,,. 4th Sth & Sth 

NL 0 0 0 Q 589,000 

T<>t•ds ' 0 ' 0 589/,!0(l -----

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page t2 

103



-;z; ==';\~ .. - Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

A\p>ncy: Pn1sv;r 

Coun\y: Si:f'\1"1 

MPO/RTPO: BFCG N h~ade 

I 
OI -· .. 
g: ~ 

07 

F1.mdi1'<9 

~ 
"" I 

" 

A. PiN.'Proj,,c;; N<:>. 
C. Ptoji:ct THI~ 
D_ Rnlld WJ§ma or N1Jmber 
E 6egln & Erw:t Turmln! 
F. Projft1;:! DeJ;t:rlpflon 

I Hlgt-,iard Dr;ve 1mpmv1tf'1en:s 

jNexander RDu\e 22 

RO<oonstruct and widen roadw-.iy, c11r'.J and g0ttor, sid<'>W!>i'K. s1mm drainage. hnt mix 
asphall, and ptiverne.nt marking;; 

Y Outside 

B, STIP m[ 
> x 
~ 

~ ~ G. S1r\Jcture ml ~ • 
PROSSER i5JC6f}Sf11 06!.?5/1'.,l 

Sbtus I Phase ] f'h~"- Start Y<>at (YYYY) I F•deral Fund Code Fed1N<1! Funds State Fund Code 

p I AlL I 201S I 0 

Totals 0 
-~~'" 

Expenditvr-u Sch11du!E 

Phase 1Gt '"' '"' '"' Atl 0 0 0 0 

Totals 0 0 0 0 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

From 2014 2019 

3 

I 
~ 

~ 1 a 
g c ~ 

, 
ll 

I 
> g g ~ ~ 

= [ Q' , '§! , g a 0 I i 
< 

0 ~ g ~ 
. I c;/ 

" " • ~ 0 ~ ~ 
u • . 0 

I i3·1428 04 CPSTW\ (JZSO No 

-

smw Fonds lo.cal Fund!!: Total Fttl'ids 

0 1,093,DOO 1,093,00Q 

0 1,09l,OOU 1,093,000 

- -

5th & Stlt 

1,093.0\'JO 

1,093,0QO, 

Page 13 

104



I 

-iJi WaW1iftf¥lon State 
~parlm@ntef ~~ 

Ag1mcy: P'Gt,t.of 

Cou11tr B~nton 

Ml>O/RTPO; B FCG 

I ~ 

' ~ 
j 

' 
A P!t-!!Prcjec1 No. 
C. ProJact Till~ 

O' -o 
"• l4!.-

°' 14 

D. Road l'hm<o or Number 
E Beg1n & End T·~r'n;n\ 
F. Projilct Oe!!ctfritkm 

Downlown lnter:iec!.iOn lrnprovemar1ts - 5\h. Sttcet 

N !11~10,-, 

B. STW \0 

G. Structure ID 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
From 2014 to 2019 

Y O.Jfsitlr. 

" l 

I m 

I 
, 

i I a· 
> g " 

0 li • 3 
~ " 

3 !l i: • g 0 

f 0 

~r 0 r E • ~ 3 0 3 ;;/ 
0 

~ 
~ • '!'. [ 0 ~ ~ ~ • 0 I 

PROSSER 16J06/2SliJ ,)6./25/-13 13-1426 C5 PSTW o. 170 No 

Serina!! Slmet tn 1.t'.eade SVee! I . 
L. I 'iln!an;ecfa:m lmprW6ffillnit fndOOin\'I ~,:y.e.2 hol mix <lSphait overlay, Cl.lrb ii rid I 

__L ____ flli\\or, ~&!k, storm dm!oage. 'l"'' plilVCmen( m;J;r1r.!11gs. . • ~---~-~--
·~ 

Funding 

SUtU1> I l'hasf! ! f'h'llitl Start Y1>ar (YYYY) I fad.,ra,1 Fund Cmie Federal fundt. St.it.I Fund Co-dn State Fund!i t.ocat Fundi; Tcta! Funds 

p I AU. I 2019 I 0 0 335.000 335,COO 

Toh:!is 0 0 335,l)OO 335,UOO 

------
j£xpenditurii: S<:lledufe 

I Phaae ht ,,. ,,. 41h 5th&. Sth 

' ALL 0 0 0 0 336,000 

I Totals ' ' 0 ' 33:>,v_~J 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 Page 14 

105



-ili ~orlStatti ~Qfil"lll¥'!!:ll~ 
Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

From 2014 to 2019 
Agencit Prns.ser 

County; Benton 

M?OIRTPO: 5F(;G N lnsid~-

~ 
ii gg 

•o i:;,"!. 
07 

' j 

J 
15 

A- Plf.;JPmject No. 
C. ?roJ~et Tltl" 
tL R<:1<Jd Nam<!c•>r NumbeT 
E. Segln & End rerm!nf 
F. PrujedCl<!'$'.Crlptlon 

V>/ine Country Read/ Mnr!u\ Drive/ Gap Road hs1ersect!c"s 

lo 

Y Owi5ide 

6. STIP ID 

G. Stroetvrn ID I 
PROSSER 1!06/25!n 

~ 
~ 
~ 

06125113 

3 
u 

~ a 
> $ 

« Jl ~ 
0 3 it ~ E 

0 " -, g ;:. 0 k 0 • "' 0 0 • z .,, g- '!-!. 
~ p . . ~ 

i'.l-1426 03 CPSTW 0200 

~I 
a1 
~· ~ 

~ 

[ ~ 

"' 
~ 

~ ~r • • 
y,, 

I 
I L..... .i Channel;wtkm, w\denll\g and new traffic -">lgnaL 
~---~-~ 

-
Furn:!lrllJ 

Status Phas11 Ptiasa Start Year (YYYY) fed;.~! Fund Code Fsdt>ral Funds Sbta futtd Code State Funds Local Funds Total fUTicis 

p 

p 

p 

PE 20t7 0 OTHER 16"!>,0CO 19,0JO 

RW 2018 0 OTKER 260,0CO 2$,000 
·--~ --

CN '.201S 0 OTHER 1,558,0CO i74,llOD 

Tqtals ' 1,SS-4,000 Z22,000 
---

'""'""" 
Ph<>s<l 1st 2nd Jrcl 4m :,m "'.,.,, 

PE C 0 1 ', 85,000 

kW ( __ Q Q 289.0CC 

i...N 0 D {) [) 1,T32J}[Jf 

HHW.~ (i 0 ~ (l 11)!5,0(l[} 2,02LOCU 

state Furid;,;---y--c;-::::c;c;•:o:--~~,-----; 

l;',72€,000 

Report Date: June 28, 2013 

185,000 

289,000 

\,732,000 

2,2.0G,OOIJ 

Page 15 

106



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
Check no. 10696 in the amount of May 27, 2014 
$1,015.90 forthe period ending May 27, Regular Meeting 
2014. 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Regina Mauras Toni Yost (509) 786-2332 

I Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
$1,015.90 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: 
1 

Name and Fund# 
See 2014 budget for each item listed. I See Attached 

I 
Reviewed by Finance Department: I 

{lM 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Check Register # 10696 I 

Summani: Statement: 
Approve payment of claim check no. 10696 in the amount of $1,015.90 for the period 
ending May 27, 2014. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 
I 

City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. I 

Recommended Ci!}! Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
Approve payment of claim Approve payment of claim check no. 10696 in the amount of 

I 
$1,015.90 for the period ending May 27, 2014. 

Reviewed by Department Reviewed by Ci!}! Attorney: 

µv:A~ Director: 

i~O.. M.~ N/A 

I )-ZJ-(Cf Date: S · l'l. · U>\ i..l- Date: Date: 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

107



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

05/27/2014 To: 05/27/2014 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

2065 05/27/2014 Claims 1 10696 Transamerica Life Insurance 
Co 

l 17 - 517 91 20 00 I - Personnel Benefits 1,015.90 

117 Employee Benefits Security 

Time: 16:54:44 Date: 05/21/2014 
Page: 1 

Amount Me1no 

1,015.90 Long Term Care Insurance 

1,015.90 
----Claims: 

1,015.90 

Date 

1,015.90 

108



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

L ____ A_G_E_NDA __ B_l_LL ___________ _ 
· Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance 14 - Meeting Date: 
1--- closing fund 442 and 443 May 27, 2014 
I regarding the 1997 Water/Sewer Regular Meeting 
: Refunding Bond and amending the 2014 
j Budget. 

, Department: Director: ContactPerSon: I Phone Number: 

I Fina_n_c_e ____ --'_R_e_g_i_na_M_a_u_ra_s __ __LI T_o_n_i_Y_o_s_i __ · I (509) 786-8215 r Cost of Proposal: -----kcount Number· 
i n/a I . 

I Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
· n/a 1997 Water/Sewer 

Refunding Bond 
I Redemption (442) I 

1997 Water/Sewer 1· 

Refunding Bond 

l-c-------c---~---c---=-~-c-------------R-e-se-r-ve-(-4~43) I. Reviewed by Finance Department: 

'R~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

, 1. Ordinance 14 - ____ _ 
I 2. Ordinance 97-1934 
i 

~ummarv Statement: , 

! In 1997 _the City Council adopted Ordinance 97-1934. This ordinance combined the I 
I outstanding debt of several water and sewer bonds and created one bond, the 1997 j 

I Water/Sewer Refunding Bond. ' 

I in December of 2013 the last payment was made on this bond and the debt has been I 
I paid in full. Therefore, the attached ordinance has been drafted to close these funds ' 

because they are no longer needed and return any remaining balance to the water and 
sewer utilities. (54% to water and 46% to sewer). This ordinance also amends the 2014 
budget to allow for these transfers. 

\ RCW 35A.33.090 requires that budget amendments of this type must be introduced and 

I
' reviewed at least 5 days prior to the Council taking action on the amendments. Because 

this ordinance was presented and reviewed at the May 13th meeting of the City Council it 
j can now be considered for adoption. 

I . 
L__ _________ _ 

109



1i Consistent with or Comparisonto: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

I Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I Adopt Ordinance 14 - closing fund 442 and 443 regarding the 1997 Water/Sewer l Refunding Bo~d and amending the 2014 Budget. 

I Reviewed by Department I Reviewed by City Attorney: I Approved by Mayor~ 

1~:: ~ I~ :f'/V~i 
lDate: 6·'1):)0\'-f I Date: /o:;:1q~--+· D.~ate~:c---~ 
J Today's Date: Revision Number!D§ie'. File Name and Path: 

I 
j May 14, 2014 

110



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING THE 1997 WATERJSEWER REFUNDING BOND 
REDEMPTION FUND NUMBER 442 AND THE 1997 WATERJSEWER REFUDNING 
BOND RESERVE FUND NUMBER 443; AND AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 13-2859, ORDINANCE 14-2871, AND ORDINANCE 14-2883; AMENDING 
THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE 1997 WATERJSEWER REFUNDING BOND 
REDEMPTION FUND (442) AND 1997 WATEH/SEWER REFUDNING BOND 
RESERVE FUND (443) FOR UNAPPROPRIATED REVENUE RESERVED BY THE 
CITY DURING 2014. THE ORDINANCE ALSO PROVIDES FOR EXPENDITURE OF 
THOSE APPROPRIATIONS AND DECLARES AN EMERGENCY. THE ORDINANCE 
AMENDS THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUND AT THE FUND LEVEL AND 
FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET ARE JN THE BEST INTEREST 
OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR 
TO MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO 
ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE. THE ORDINANCE ALSO 
DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE 
FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ORDINANCE AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 97-1934 was adopted on May 29, 1997, creating the 1997 Water 
and Sewer Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bond by combining a number of outstanding 
revenue bonds for the water and sewer utilities, and 

WHEREAS, fund 442 and fund 443 were created per the bond requirements; and 

WHEREAS, in December, 2013 the final payment was made on this bond and the 
obligation has expired, therefore it is in the best interest of the city to close these funds and 
return any remaining balance to the water and sewer utilities; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35A.33.090, a public emergency exists which could not 
have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the filing of the 2014 Budget which requires the 
receipt and expenditure of money not provided for in the annual budget and is not one of the 
emergencies specifically enumerated in RCW 35A.33.080; and 

WHEREAS, the facts constituting an emergency are enumerated as follows: 

1. The adopted 2014 budget was an estimate of revenues and expenditures; and 
2. Because the final payment on the bonds referred to above has been paid, the bond 

funds must be closed and the cash contained in those funds transferred to the 
water facilities and sewer facilities reserve funds; and 

3. Prudent fiscal management requires immediate amendment of the budget; and 
4. The funds need to be transferred to the water and sewer funds by the end of2014; 

and 
5. It is in the best interest of the city of Prosser to amend the budget as provided in 

111



this ordinance for fund numbers 442 and 443; and 

WHEREAS, an emergency exists; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance was first introduced to the City Cotmcil on May 13, 2014; 
and 

WHEREAS, the public was given an opportunity to comment for or against this 
emergency budget amendment; and 

WHEREAS, expenses and revennes will occur in 2014 that could not have been foreseen 
at the time of the preparation of the 2014 budget; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF·· PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. 
hereby closed. 

Section 2. 
hereby closed. 

Fund No. 442 (1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond Redemption Ftmd) is 

Fund No. 443 (1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond Reserve Fund) is 

Section 3. The City wishes to appropriate revenue in the amount $73,500, and it desires 
to appropriate for expenditure in the 1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond Redemption Fund (442) 
at the Fund level. 

Section 4. The City wishes to appropriate revenue in the amount $628,500, and it desires 
to appropriate for expenditure in the 1997 Water/Sewer Refunding Bond Reserve Fund (443) at 
the Fund level. 

Section 5. The City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City of Prosser, 
Washington to amend the 2014 City Budget to appropriate the reserved revenues and to provide 
for the expenditure of those revenues or appropriations at the fund level as set forth in Section 6 
below. 

Section 6. The 2014 Budget Adopted by Ordinance Number 13-2859, as amended by 
Ordinances Numbered 14-2871 and 14-2883 is hereby amended for the following funds in the 
following amounts: 

/Fund No. FUND Revenue _ I Expenditure 

144-2 
1997 Water/Sewer Refunding $73,500 1 $73,500 
Bond Redemntion Fund i 

443 1997 Water/Sewer Refunding $628,500 I $628,500 
I I Bond Reserve Fund 

Section 7. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to transfer the ftmds remaining in 

I 

I 

112



the closed funds 54% to the Water Facilities Reserve Fund and 46% to the Sewer Facilities 
Reserve Fund and make all adjustments to the City's Budget to accomplish the purposes of this 
Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 35A.33 RCW. 

Section 8. An emergency is declared to exist and the recitals set forth above are hereby 
adopted as findings in supp01i of such emergency. 

Section 9. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severahle. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 10. Since this budget amendment is being approved in accordance with RCW 
35A.33.090, its passage reqnircs the affim1ative vote of 5 Council Members. This ordinance 
shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication of an approved snmmary thereof 
consisting of the title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 

------·----~' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to fonn: 

CITY ATTORNEY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: 

113



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the---· day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordimmce No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING THE 1997 WATER/SEWER REFUNDING BOND 
REDEMPTION FUND NUMBER 442 AND THE 1997 WATER/SEWER REFUD1'HNG 
BOND RESERVE FUND NUMBER 443; AND AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 13-2859, ORDINANCE 14-2871, AND ORDINANCE 14-2883; AMENDING 
THE 2014 BUDGET FOR THE 1997 WATER/SEWER REFUNDING BOND REDEMPTION 
FUND (442) AND 1997 WATER/SEWER REFODNING BOND RESERVE FUND (443) FOR 
UNAPPROPRIATED REVENUE RESERVED BY THE CITY DURJNG 2014. THE 
ORDINAi'\!CE ALSO PROVIDES FOR EXPENDITURE OF THOSE APPROPRJ:ATIONS 
AND DECLARES AN EMERGENCY. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 2014 BUDGET 
FOR THE ABOVE FUND AT THE FUND LEVEL AND FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO 
THE 2014 BUDGET ARE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE 
ALSO AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL ADJUSTMENTS TO 
THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS 
ORDINAi'\!CE. THE ORDINAl'JCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE At\11) PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed npon request. 

DATED this __ day of ______ , 2014. 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

114



• • 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 97-1934 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Prosser, Washington, combining the 
separate water and sewer systems of the City; providing for the defeasance of the 
outstanding Water Revenue Bonds, 1973, of the City; providing for the issuance 
of $4,430,000 par value of Water and Sewer Revenue Improvement and 
Refunding Bonds, 1997, of the City to provide part of the funds with which to 
pay the cost of making major repairs and replacements to the City's sewage 
treatment plant and to pay the cost of refunding all of the outstanding Sewer 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 1987, Sewer Revenue Bonds, 1992, Water 
Revenue Bonds, 1992, and Water Revenue Bonds, 1994, of the City, and to pay 
the administrative costs of such refunding and the costs of issuance and sale of 
such bonds; fixing the date, form, maturities, interest rates, terms and covenants 
of the bonds; providing for and authorizing the purchase of certain obligations out 
of the proceeds of the sale of the bonds herein authorized and for the use and 
application of the money derived from those investments; authorizing the 
execution of an agreement with Marine Midland Bank of New York, New York, 
as refunding trustee; providing for the call, payment and redemption of the bonds 
to be refunded; providing for bond insurance; and approving the sale by 
placement contract and providing for the delivery of the bonds to Bank of 
America, NT&SA, doing business as Seafirst Bank, of Seattle, Washington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser, Washington (the "City"), now owns, operates and 

maintains a separate waterworks utility (the "Water System"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 887, the City heretofore issued its $750,000 par 

value Water Revenue Bonds, 1973 (the "1973 Water Bonds"), and, by Section 13 of that 

ordinance, provided for the issuance of additional water revenue bonds of the City on a parity 

with the 1973 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 1574, the City heretofore issued its $655,000 

par value Water Revenue Bonds, 1992 (the "1992 Water Bonds"), on a parity with the 1973 

Bonds, and by that ordinance reserved the right to redeem the 1992 Water Bonds prior to their 

0285878.03 

115



• • 
maturity on September 1, 1997, or any interest payment date thereafter, at a price of par plus 

accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption; and 

WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding $655,000 par value of 1992 Water Bonds 

maturing on September 1 of each of the years 1998 through 2005, inclusive, and bearing interest 

at various rates ranging from 6.50% to 6.85%; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 1722, the City heretofore issued.its $1,010,000 

par value Water Revenue Bonds, 1994 (the "1994 Water Bonds"), on a parity with the 1973 

Water Bonds and the 1992 Water Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding $1,010,000 par value of 1994 Water Bonds 

maturing on July l of each of the years 2006 through 2013, inclusive, and bearing interest at 

various rates ranging from 6.10% to 6. 75 % ; and 

WHEREAS, the 1973 Water Bonds, the 1992 Water Bonds and the 1994 Water Bonds 

(collectively, the "Water Bonds") were issued on a parity of lien upon the gross revenue of the 

Water System and any utility local improvement district assessments pledged to the payment of 

such parity bonds and superior to any other charges whatsoever, subject only to maintenance and 

operation expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the City now owns, operates and maintains a separate sewage disposal 

system (the "Sewer System"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 1364, the City heretofore issued its $1,270,000 

par value Sewer Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 1987 (the "1987 Sewer Bonds"), and by that 

ordinance reserved the right to redeem the 1987 Sewer Bonds prior to their maturity on July 1, 

1997, or any interest payment date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date 

fixed for redemption; and 

02&5878.03 

-2-

116



'• • • 
WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding $780,000 par value of 1987 Sewer Bonds 

maturing on July l of each of !he years 1997 through 2002, inclusive, and bearing interest at 

various rates ranging from 7.40% to 8,203; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No, 1572, the City heretofore issued its $1,140,000 

par value Sewer Revenue Bonds, 1992 (the "1992 Sewer Bonds"), and by !hat ordinance 

reserved the right to redeem the 1992 Sewer Bonds prior to their maturity on September 1, 

2002, or on any interest payment date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the 

date fixed for redemption; and 

WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding $1,140,000 par value of 1992 Sewer Bonds 

maturing on September 1 of each of the years 2003 through 2008, inclusive, and bearing interest 

at various rates ranging from 6.80% to 7,00%; and 

WHEREAS, the 1987 Sewer Bonds and the 1992 Sewer Bonds (collectively, the 

"Refunded Sewer Bonds") were issued on a parity of lien upon the gross revenue of the Sewer 

System and· any utility local improvement district assessments pledged to the payment of such 

parity bonds and prior and superior to any other charges whatsoever, subject only to 

maintenance and operation expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the City heretofore entered into the following outstanding Public Works 

Trust Fund Loans Nos. PW-86-031, PW-5-90-280-031 and PW-5-04-791-ELP-054payable from 

revenue of the Water System and/or Sewer System (the "Junior Lien Loans"), and consent has 

been requested that the Junior Lien Loans be subordinate to the bonds authorized by this 

ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, other than the Water Bonds and the Refunded Sewer Bonds, the City has 

no other outstanding revenue bonds of the Water System or the Sewer System; and 

0285878.03 

-3-

117



• • 
WHEREAS, after due consideration, it appears to the City Council that provision be 

made for the defeasance of the 1973 Water Bonds from money on deposit with the City and that 

the 1992 Water Bonds and the 1994 Water Bonds (collectively, the "Refunded Water Bonds") 

and the Refunded Sewer Bonds may be refunded by the issuance and sale of the bonds 

authorized herein (the "Bonds"), so that the City may combine its Water System and Sewer 

System and modify certain covenants and security with respect to the City's bonds and so that 

a substantial savings will be effected by the difference between the principal and interest cost 

over the life of the Bonds and the principal and interest cost over the life of the Refunded Water 

Bonds and the Refunded Sewer Bonds (collectively, the "Refunded Bonds") but for such 

refunding, which refunding will be effected by: 

and 

(a) The issuance of the Bonds and the payment of the costs of the issuance of 
the Bonds allocated to the refunding and the costs of the refunding; 

(b) The call, payment and redemption on July 1, 1997, of all of the 
outstanding 1987 Sewer Bonds at a price of par plus accrued interest; 

(c) The call, payment and redemption on September l, 1997, of all of the 
outstanding 1992 Water Bonds at a price of par plus accrued interest; 

(d) The payment of the interest on the 1992 Sewer Bonds when due up to and 
including September 1, 2002, and the call, payment and redemption on 
September l, 2002, of all of the 1992 Sewer Bonds at a price of par; and 

(e) The payment of the interest on the 1994 Water Bonds when due up to and 
including July l, 2004, and the call, payment and redemption on July 1, 
2004, of all of the 1994 Water Bonds at a price of par; 

WHEREAS, to effect that refunding in the manner that will be most advantageous to the 

City it is found necessary and advisable that certain Acquired Obligations (hereinafter defined) 

bearing interest and maturing at such time or times as necessary to accomplish the refunding as 

aforesaid be purchased out of the proceeds of the Bonds; and 

0285878.03 

-4-

118



' • • 
WHEREAS, the City is in need of financing major repairs and replacements to the 

sewage treatment plant (the "Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the best interests of the City to issue and 

sell the Bonds to pay the cost of carrying out the Improvements, to pay part of the cost of 

refunding the Refunded Bonds, and to pay the administrative costs of such refunding and the 

costs of issuance and sale of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, AMBAC Indemnity Corporation, a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance 

company ("AMBAC Indemnity" or the "Bond Insurer"), has made a commitment to issue an 

insurance policy (the "Municipal Bond Insurance Policy") insuring the payment when due of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds as provided therein, and the City Council deems that the 

purchase of the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy is in the best interest of the City; and 

WHEREAS, Bank of America, NT&SA, doing business as Seafirst Bank, has offered to 

place the Bonds under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN, 

as follows: 

Section l. Definitions. As used in this ordinance the following words shall have the 

following meanings: 

"Acquired Obligations" means those United States Treasury Certificates ofindebtedness, 

Notes and Bonds--State and Local Government Series and other direct, noncallable obligations 

of the United States of America purchased to accomplish the refunding of the Refunded Bonds 

as authorized by this ordinance. 

"Annual Debt Service" for the applicable issue or series of Parity Bonds for any year 

means all the interest plus all principal (except principal of Term Bonds due in any Term Bond 

0285878,03 

-5-

119



• • 
Maturity Year in which Term Bonds are subject mandatory prior redemption), and plus all 

mandatory redemption requirements for that year, less all bond interest payable from the 

proceeds of any such Parity Bonds in that year. 

"Assessment Bonds" means the original principal amount of any issue of Future Parity 

Bonds equal to the total remaining unpaid principal amount (at the time of passage of the 

ordinance providing for the issuance and sale of those bonds) of UUD Assessments on any final 

assessment roll or rolls of one or more ULIDs formed in connection with the improvements 

being financed by that issue of Future Parity Bonds (or bonds being refunded by those Future 

Parity Bonds). The original principal amount of such issue of bonds in excess of Assessment 

Bonds shall be referred to as "bonds that are not Assessment Bonds." Assessment Bonds shall 

be allocated to each $5, 000 of bonds in proportion to their percentage of the entire issue of 

bonds. When a bond of any issue of bonds containing Assessment Bonds is redeemed or 

purchased, and retired, the same percentage of that bond as the percentage of Assessment Bonds 

is to that total issue of bonds shall be treated as being redeemed or purchased, and retired. 

"Average Annual Debt Service" means the sum of the Annual Debt Service for the 

remaining years to the last scheduled maturity of the applicable series of bonds divided by the 

number of those years, except that for purposes of computing the Reserve Requirement the 

estimated amount of Bonds to be redeemed prior to maturity may be taken into account if 

required under United States Treasury regulations relating to arbitrage. 

"Bond Fund" means that special fund of the City known as the Water and Sewer 

Revenue Bond Fund created by this ordinance for the payment of the principal of and interest 

on the Parity Bonds. 

0285878.03 

-6-

120



• • 
"Bond Insurer" or "AMBAC Indemnity" means AMBAC Indemnity Corporation, a 

Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance company. 

"Bond Register" means the registration books of the Bond Registrar on which is 

recorded the names and addresses of the owners of the Bonds. 

"Bond Registrar" means the Fiscal Agency. 

"Bonds" means the $4,430,000 par value Water and Sewer Revenue Improvement and 

Refunding Bonds, 1997, authorized to be issued by this ordinance. 

"1973 Water Bonds" means the outstanding Water Revenue Bonds, 1973, issued for the 

purposes provided in and pursuant to Ordinance No. 887, the defeasance of which has been 

provided for by this ordinance. 

"1987 Sewer Bonds" means the outstanding Sewer Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 1987, 

issued for the purposes provided in and pursuant to Ordinance No. 1364, the refunding of which 

has been provided for by this ordinance. 

"1992 Sewer Bonds" means the outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds, 1992, issued for the 

purposes provided in and pursuant to Ordinance No. 1572, the refunding of which has been 

provided for by this ordinance. 

"1992 Water Bonds" means the outstanding Water Revenue Bonds, 1992, issued for the 

purposes provided in and pursuant to Ordinance No. 1574, the refunding of which has been 

provided for by this ordinance. 

"1994 Water Bonds" means the outstanding Water Revenue Bonds, 1994, issued for the 

purposes provided in and pursuant to Ordinance No. 1722, the refunding of which has been 

provided for by this ordinance. 

"City" means the City of Prosser, Washington. 

01.85878.03 

-7-

121



• • 
"Code" means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together 

with all applicable rulings and regulations heretofore or hereafter promulgated thereunder. 

"Coverage Requirement" means annual Net Revenue of the Waterworks Utility at least 

equal to 1.25 times actual Annual Debt Service on Parity Bonds that are not Assessment Bonds, 

and annual Net Revenue together with ULlD Assessments at least equal to Annual Debt Service 

on Parity Bonds that are Assessment Bonds. 

"Fiscal Agency" means either of the fiscal agencies of the State of Washington located 

in Seattle, Washington, and New York, New York, as the same may be designated from time 

to time. 

"Future Parity Bonds" means any and all water and sewer revenue bonds of the City 

issued after I.he date of the issuance of the Bonds, the payment of the principal of and interest 

on which constitutes a charge or lien on the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility and ULID 

Assessments equal in rank with the charge and lien upon such revenue and assessments required 

to be paid into the Bond Fund to pay and secure the payment of the principal of and interest on 

I.he Bonds. 

"Government Obligations" means non-callable direct obligations of I.he United States 

of America. 

"Gross Reve1me of the Waterworks Utility" or "Gross Revenue" means all of the 

earnings and revenues received by I.he City from the maintenance and operation of the 

Waterworks Utility and all earnings from the investment of money on deposit in the Bond Fund, 

except ULID Assessments, government grants, City taxes, principal proceeds of bonds and 

earnings or proceeds from any investments in a trust, defeasance or escrow fund created to 

defease or refund Waterworks Utility obligations until commingled with other earnings and 

02&5878.03 

-8-

122



• • 
revenues of the Waterworks Utility, or held in a special account for the purpose of paying a 

rebate to the United States Government under the Code. 

"Maintenance and Operation Expense" means all reasonable expenses incurred by the 

City in causing the Waterworks Utility of the City to be operated and maintained in good repair, 

working order and condition, but shall not include any depreciation or taxes levied or imposed 

by the City or payments to the City in lieu of taxes, but shall include payments made to any 

other municipal corporation for water and/or sewer service in the event the City enters into a 

contract for such services. 

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" means at the time of calculation, the maximum 

amount of Annual Debt Service that will mature or come due in the current calendar year or any 

future year on any outstanding Parity Bonds. 

"Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" means the municipal bond insurance policy issued 

by the Bond Insurer insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Bonds 

as provided therein. 

"Net Revenue of the Waterworks Utility" or "Net Revenue" means the Gross Revenue 

less Maintenance and Operation Expense. 

"Parity Bonds" means the Bonds and any Future Parity Bonds. 

"Permitted Investment" means Government Obligations, except that as long as the 

Municipal Bond Insurance Policy is in effect, Permitted Investments shall be restricted to those 

listed in Exhibit B. 

"Principal and Interest Account" means the account of that name created in the Bond 

Fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on Parity Bonds. 

0285878.0l 

-9-

123



• 
"Refunded Bonds" means, collectively, the 1987 Sewer Bonds, the 1992 Sewer Bonds, 

the 1992 Water Bonds and the 1994 Water Bonds. 

"Refunding Plan" means: 

(a) the placement of sufficient proceeds of the Bonds which, together 
with other money of the City, if necessary, will acquire the Acquired Obligations 
to be deposited, with cash, if necessary, with the Refunding Trustee; 

(b) The call, payment and redemption on July l, 1997, of all of the 
1987 Sewer Bonds at a price of par, plus accrued interest; 

(c) The call, payment and redemption on September 1, 1997, of all of 
the 1992 Water Bonds at a price of par, plus accrued interest; 

(d) The payment of the interest on the 1992 Sewer Bonds when due up 
to and including September 1, 2002, and the call, payment and redemption on 
September 1, 2002, of all of the 1992 Sewer Bonds at a price of par; 

(e) The payment of the interest on the 1994 Water Bonds when due up 
to and including July l, 2004, and the call, payment and redemption on July l, 
2004, of all of the 1994 Water Bonds at a price of par; and 

(f) The payment of the costs of issuing the Bonds and the costs of 
carrying out the foregoing elements of the Refunding Plan. 

"Refunding Trust Agreement" means a Refunding Trust Agreement between the City 

and the Refunding Trustee substantially in the form of that which is on file with the City 

Clerk/Finance Director and by this reference incorporated herein. 

"Refunding Trustee" means Marine Midland Bank of New York, New York, serving 

as trustee or escrow agent or any successor trustee or escrow agent. 

"Reserve Account" means the account of that name created in the Bond Fund for the 

purpose of securing the payment of the principal of and interest on Parity Bonds. 

"Reserve Insurance" means, in lieu of cash and investments, insurance obtained by the 

City equal to part or all of the Reserve Requirement for any Parity Bonds then outstanding for 

which such insurance is obtained. 

0285878.03 

-10-

124



• •• 
"Reserve Requirement" means, for all bonds payable from the Bond Fund, the lesser 

of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service on those bonds, (ii) 125% of Average Annual Debt 

Service on those bonds, or (iii) 10% of the proceeds of those bonds. Notwithstanding the above, 

the deposit to be made in the Reserve Account shall be decreased for any issue of bonds payable 

from the Bond Fund when and to the extent that the City provides for Reserve Insurance to 

secure the payment of the principal of and interest on that issue of bonds. The amount payable 

under any Reserve Insurance shall be credited against the amount otherwise required to be made 

into the Reserve Account to meet the Reserve Requirement for that issue of bonds. 

"Term Bond Maturity Year" means any last maturity year in which the bonds of any 

one issue or series now or hereafter scheduled to mature (regardless of any reservation of prior 

redemption rights) is more than two times the average annual principal maturity of the bonds of 

such issue or series for the five years immediately preceding such year. 

"Term Bonds" means those outstanding bonds of any single issue or series scheduled to 

mature in any Term Bond Maturity Year. 

"ULID" means Utility Local Improvement District. 

"ULID Assessments" means all assessments levied and collected in any ULID of the City 

created for the acquisition or construction of additions to and extensions and betterments of the 

Waterworks Utility, if those assessments are pledged to be paid into the Bond Fund (less any 

prepaid assessments permitted by law to be paid into a construction fund or account). UUD 

Assessments shall include installments thereof and any interest or penalties which may be due 

thereon. 

"Waterworks Utility" means the waterworks utility of the City, including the sewerage 

system as a part thereof, and all additions thereto and betterments and extensions thereof at any 

0285878.03 

-11-

125



• 
time made or constructed, and any storm drainage or any other utility system which hereafter 

may be combined therewith. 

Section 2. Combination of Water and Sewer Systems. The separate waterworks utility 

and sewage disposal system of the City are combined into the Waterworks Utility of the City. 

Section 3. Defeasance of 1973 Water Bonds. To accomplish the defeasance of the claim 

or lien of the 1973 Water Bonds on the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility, there shall 

be deposited prior to the delivery of the Bonds, irrevocably in trust with the City Clerk/Finance 

Director of the City, an amount sufficient to pay and redeem all of the outstanding 1973 Water 

Bonds on September 1, 1997, plus accrued interest thereon. Such money shall irrevocably be 

deposited in the Principal and Interest Account of the Water Revenue Bond Fund, 1973, from 

money on deposit in the reserve account of that fund allocable to the 1973 Water Bonds and, if 

necessary, from other money of the City legally available therefor. Any investment earnings 

thereon shall be retained in the Principal and Interest Account and used for the purposes of that 

account. 

Section 4. Authorization and Description of Bonds. For the purpose providing the 

money required to make major repairs and replacements to the sewage treatment plant and to 

carry out of the Refunding Plan, the City shall issue the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount 

of $4,430,000. The Bonds shall be designated Water and Sewer Revenue Improvement and 

Refunding Bonds, 1997; shall be dated June l, 1997; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple thereof within a single maturity; shall be numbered separately in the 

manner and with any additional designation as the Bond Registrar deems necessary for purposes 

of identification; shall bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 

months) payable semiannually on each March 1 and September l, commencing September 1, 

0285878.03 

-12-

126



• • 
1997, to the maturity or earlier redemption of the Bonds; and shall mature on September 1 in 

years and amounts and bear interest at the rates per annum as follows: 

Maturity Interest 
Years Amounts Rates 

1997 $165,000 3.90% 
1998 210,000 4.25 
1999 215,000 4.50 
2000 230,000 4.60 
2001 240,000 4.75 
2002 305,000 4.85 
2003 280,000 4.95 
2004 290,000 5.00 
2005 295,000 5.05 
2006 315,000 5.10 
2007 335,000 5.15 
2008 350,000 5.15 
2009 225,000 5.25 
2010 235,000 5.30 
2011 240,000 5.35 
2012 245,000 5.40 
2013 255,000 5.45 

Portions of the above maturity amounts are allocated to paying the respective costs of the 

Improvements and of carrying out the Refunding Plan, including a ratable share of proceeds used 

to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds, in accordance with the schedule attached hereto as 

Exhibit A and by this reference made a part hereof. 

Section 5. Registration and Transfer of Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued only in 

registered form as to both principal and interest and shall be recorded on the Bond Register. 

The Bond Register shall contain the name and mailing address of the owner of each Bond and 

the principal amount and number of each of the Bonds held by each owner. 

Bonds surrendered to the Bond Registrar may be exchanged for Bonds in any authorized 

denomination of an equal aggregate principal amount and .of the same interest rate and maturity. 

Bonds may be transferred only if endorsed in the manner provided thereon and surrendered to 

02&5878.03 

-13-

127



• • 
the Bond Registrar. Any exchange or transfer shall be without cost to the owner or transferee. 

The Bond Registrar shall not be obligated to exchange or transfer any Bond during the 15 days 

preceding any principal payment or redemption date. 

Section 6. Payment of Bonds. Both principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America. Interest on the Bonds shall be paid 

by checks or drafts of the Bond Registrar mailed on the interest payment date to the registered 

owners at the addresses appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of the month preceding 

the interest payment date. Principal of the Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and 

surrender of the Bonds by the registered owners at either of the principal offices of the Bond 

Registrar at the option of the owners. The Bonds shall be payable solely out of the Bond Fund 

and shall not be general obligations of the City. 

Section 7. Optional Redemption and Open Market Purchase of Bonds. Bonds maturing 

in the years 1997 through 2007, inclusive, shall be issued without the right or option of the City 

to redeem those Bonds prior to their stated maturity dates. The City reserves the right and 

option to redeem Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2008, prior to their stated maturity 

dates on or after September 1, 2007, as a whole at any time, or in part on any interest payment 

date within one or more maturities selected by the City (and by lot within a maturity in such 

manner as the Bond Registrar shall determine), at par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 

redemption. 

Portions of the principal amount of any Bond, in installments of $5,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof, may be redeemed. If less than all of the principal amount of any Bond is 

redeemed, upon surrender of that Bond at either of the principal offices of the Bond Registrar, 

there shall be issued to the registered owner, without charge therefor, a new Bond (or Bonds, 

0285878.03 

-14-

128



• • 
at the option of the registered owner) of the same maturity and interest rate in any of the 

denominations authorized by l:his ordinance in the aggregate principal amount remaining 

unredeemed. 

The City further reserves the right and option to purchase any or all of the Bonds in the 

open market at any time at any price acceptable to the City plus accrued interest to the date of 

purchase. 

All Bonds purchased or redeemed under this section shall be cancelled. 

Section 8. Notice of Redemption. The City shall cause notice of any intended 

redemption of Bonds to be given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed 

for redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered owner of any Bond to be 

redeemed at the address appearing on the Bond Register at the time the Bond Registrar prepares 

the notice, and the requirements of this sentence shall be deemed to have been fulfilled when 

notice has been mailed as so provided, whether or not it is actually received by the owner of any 

Bond. Interest on Bonds called for redemption shall cease to accrue on the date fixed for 

redemption unless the Bond or Bonds called are not redeemed when presented pursuant to the 

call. In addition, the redemption notice shall be mailed within the same period, postage prepaid, 

to Moody's Investors Service, Inc., and Standard & Poor's at their offices in New York, New 

York, or their successors, to Seafirst Bank at its principal office in Seattle, Washington, or its 

successor, to the Bond Insurer at its principal office in New York, New York, and to such other 

persons and with such additional information as the City Clerk/Finance Director shall determine, 

but these additional mailings shall not be a condition precedent to the redemption of Bonds. 

Section 9. Failure to Redeem Bonds. If any Bond is not redeemed when properly 

presented at its maturity or call date, the City shall be obligated to pay interest on that Bond at 

0285878.03 

-15-

129



• • 
the same rate provided in the Bond from and after its maturity or call date until that Bond, both 

principal and interest, is paid in full or until sufficient money for its payment in full is on 

deposit in the Bond Fund and the Bond has been called for payment by giving notice of that call 

to the registered owner of each of those unpaid Bonds. 

Section 10. Form and Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be printed or lithographed 

on good bond paper in a form consistent with the provisions of this ordinance and state law, 

shall be signed by the Mayor and City Clerk/Finance Director, either or both of whose 

signatures may be manual or in facsimile, and the seal of the City or a facsimile reproduction 

thereof shall be impressed or printed thereon. 

Only Bonds bearing a Certificate of Authentication in the following form, manually 

signed by the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the 

benefits of this ordinance: 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one of the fully registered City of Prosser, Washington, 
Water and Sewer Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds, 1997, described 
in the Bond Ordinance. 

WASHINGTON STATE FISCAL AGENCY 
Bond Registrar 

Authorized Signer 

The authorized signing of a Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the 

Bonds so authenticated have been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and are entitled to 

the benefits of this ordinance. 

If any officer whose facsimile signature appears on the Bonds ceases to be an officer of . 

the City authorized to sign bonds before the Bonds bearing his or her facsimile signature are 

0285878.03 

-16-

130



• • 
authenticated or delivered by the Bond Registrar or issued by the City, those Bonds nevertheless 

may be authenticated, issued and delivered and, when authenticated, issued and delivered, shall 

be as binding on the City as though that person had continued to be an officer of the City 

authorized to sign bonds. Any Bond also may be signed on behalf of the City by any person 

who, on the actual date of signing of the Bond, is an officer of the City authorized to sign 

bonds, although he or she did not hold the required office on the date of issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 11. Bond Registrar. The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, at its 

principal corporate trust office, sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds, 

which shall be open to inspection by the City at all times. The Bond Registrar is authorized, 

on behalf of the City, to authenticate and deliver Bonds transferred or exchanged in accordance 

with the provisions of the Bonds and this ordinance, to serve as the City's paying agent for the 

Bonds and to carry out all of the Bond Registrar's powers and duties under this ordinance and 

City Ordinance No. 1342 establishing a system of registration for the City's bonds and 

obligations. 

The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for its representations contained in the Bond 

Registrar's Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds. The Bond Registrar may become the 

owner of Bonds with the same rights it would have if it were not the Bond Registrar and, to the 

extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit any of its officers or directors to 

act as members of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any committee formed to protect 

the rights of Bond owners. 

Section 12. Application of Proceeds of the Bonds. Accrued interest on the Bonds, if 

any, received from the sale and delivery of the Bonds shall be deposited in the Principal and 

Interest Account of the Bond Fund. Principal proceeds shall be deposited as follows: (a) an 

0285878.03 

-17-

131



• • • 
amount sufficient to carry out the Refunding Plan shall be deposited with the Refunded Trustee 

in accordance with Section l3 and (b) the balance of the principal proceeds of the Bonds shall 

be deposited in the Sewer Fund of the City previously created in the office of the City 

Clerk/Finance Director, and used to pay the costs of carrying out the Improvements. 

Section 13. Refunding of the Refunded Bonds. 

(a) Appointment of Refunding Trustee. Marine Midland Bank of New York, New 

York, is appointed Refunding Trustee. 

(b) Use of Bond Proceeds: Acquisition of Acquired Obligations. The remaining 

principal proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, after the deposits required by Section 12, shall be 

deposited immediately upon the receipt thereof with the Refunding Trustee and used to discharge 

tl).e obligations of the City relating to the Refunded Bonds under Ordinances Nos. 1364, 1572, 

1574 and 1722 (the "Refunded Bond Ordinances") by providing for the payment of the amounts 

required to be paid by the Refunding Plan. To the extent practicable, such obligations shall be 

discharged fully by the Refunding Trustee's simultaneous purchase of the Acquired Obligations, 

bearing such interest and maturing as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times 

so as to provide, together with a beginning cash balance, if necessary, for the payment of the 

amount required to be paid by the Refunding Plan. The Acquired Obligations are listed and 

more particularly described in Schedule A attached to the Refunding Trust Agreement between 

the City and the Refunding Trustee, but are subject to substitution as set forth below. Any Bond 

proceeds or other money deposited with the Refunding Trustee not needed to purchase the 

Acquired Obligations and provide a beginning cash balance, if any, and to pay the costs of 

issuance of the Bonds shall be returned to the City at the time of delivery of the Bonds to the 

0285878.03 

-18-

132



• • 
initial purchaser thereof and deposited in the Bond Fund to pay interest on the Bonds on the first 

interest payment date. 

(c) Substitution of Acquired Obligations. Prior to the purchase of any Acquired 

Obligations, the City reserves the right to substitute other direct, nonca!!able Government 

Obligations for any of the Acquired Obligations and to use any savings created thereby for any 

lawful City purpose if, (a) in the opinion of Foster Pepper & Shefelman PLLC, the City's bond 

counsel, the interest on the Bonds and the Refunded Bonds will remain excluded from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes under Sections 103, 148 and 149(d) of the Code, and 

(b) such substitution shall not impair the timely payment of the amounts required to be paid by 

the Refunding Plan, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public 

accounting firm. 

After the purchase of the Acquired Obligations by the Refunding Trustee, the City 

reserves the right to substitute therefor cash or Government Obligations subject to the conditions 

that such money or securities held by the Refunding Trustee shall be sufficient to carry out the 

Refunding Plan, that such substitution will not cause the Bonds and the Refunded Bonds to be 

arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code and regulations thereunder in 

effect on the date of such substitution and applicable to obligations issued on the issue date of 

the Bonds, and that the City obtain, at its expense: (1) a verification by a nationally recognized 

independent certified public accounting firm acceptable to the Refunding Trustee confirming that 

the payments of principal of and interest on the substitute securities, if paid when due, and any 

other money held by the Refunding Trustee will be sufficient to carry out the Refunding Plan; 

and (2) an opinion from Foster Pepper & Shefelman PLLC, bond counsel to the City, its 

successor, or other nationally recognized bond counsel to the City, to the effect that the 

0285878.03 

-19-

133



• • 
disposition and substitution or purchase of such securities, under the statutes, rules and 

regulations then in force and applicable to the Bonds, will not cause the interest on the Bonds 

or the Refunded Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes and that 

such disposition and substitution or purchase is in compliance with the statutes and regulations 

applicable to the Bonds. Any surplus money resulting from the sale, transfer, other disposition 

or redemption of the Acquired Obligations and the substitutions therefor shall be released from 

the trust estate and transferred to the City to be used for any lawful City purpose. 

( d) Administration of Refunding Plan. The Refunding Trustee is authorized and 

directed to purchase the Acquired Obligations (or substitute obligations) and to make the 

payments required to be made by the Refunding Plan from the Acquired Obligations (or 

substitute obligations) and money deposited with the Refunding Trustee pursuant to this 

ordinance. All Acquired Obligations (or substitute obligations) and the money deposited with 

the Refunding Trustee and any income therefrom shall be held irrevocably, invested and applied 

in accordance with the provisions of the Refunded Bond Ordinances, this ordinance, chapter 

39.53 RCW and other applicable statutes of the State of Washington and the Refunding Trust 

Agreement. All necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Refunding Trustee 

for the Bonds and all other costs incidental to the setting up of the escrow to accomplish the 

refunding of the Refunded Bonds and costs related to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, 

including bond printing, verification fees, bond counsel's fees and other related expenses, shall 

be paid out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

(e) Authorization for Refunding Trust Agreement. To carry out the Refunding Plan 

provided for by this ordinance, the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to 

the Refunding Trustee a Refunding Trust Agreement substantially in the form on file with the 

0285878.03 

-20-

134



• • 
City Clerk/Finance Director and by this reference made a part hereof setting forth the duties, 

obligations and responsibilities of the Refunding Trustee in connection with the payment, 

redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds as provided herein and stating that the 

provisions for payment of the fees, compensation and expenses of such Refunding Trustee set 

forth therein are satisfactory to it. Prior to executing the Refunding Trust Agreement, the 

Mayor is authorized to make such changes therein which do not change the substance and 

purpose thereof or which assure that the escrow provided therein and the Bonds are in 

compliance with the requirements of federal law governing the exclusion of interest on the Bonds 

from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Section 14. Call for Redemption of the Outstanding Bonds. The City calls for 

redemption on the following dates all of the then outstanding bonds of each issue at par, plus 

accrued interest to the date of redemption: 

Bond Issue 

1987 Sewer Bonds 
1992 Water Bonds 
1992 Sewer Bonds 
1994 Water Bonds 

Call Date 

July 1, 1997 
September l, 1997 
September l, 2002 
July l, 2004 

Such calls for redemption shall be irrevocable after the delivery of the Bonds to the initial 

purchaser thereof. The dates on which the Refunded Bonds are herein called for redemption are 

the earliest dates, respectively, on which those bonds may be called. 

The proper City officials are authorized and directed to give or cause to be given such 

notices as required, at the times and in the manner required pursuant to the respective bond 

ordinance, in order to effect the redemption prior to their maturity of those refunded Bonds. 

Section 15. Citv Findings with Respect to Refunding. The City Council finds and 

determines that the issuance and sale of the Bonds at this time will effect a savings to the City 

0285878.03 

-21-

135



• • 
and is in the best interest of the City and its ratepayers and in the public interest. In making 

such finding and determination, the City Council has given consideration to the fixed maturities 

of the Bonds and the Refunded Bonds, the costs of issuance of the Bonds and the known earned 

income from the investment of the proceeds of the issuance and sale of the Bonds and other 

money of the City used in the Refunding Plan pending payment and redemption of the Refunded 

Bonds. 

The City Council further finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the City 

to combine its water and sewer systems and to establish modem revenue bond covenants and 

terms and conditions that cannot be used under the existing bond ordinances. 

The City Council further finds and determines that the money to be deposited with the 

City Clerk/Finance Director for the 1973 Water Bonds in accordance with Section 3 of this 

ordinance will discharge and satisfy the obligations of the City under Ordinance No. 887 with 

respect to those bonds, and the pledges, charges, trusts, covenants and agreements of the City 

therein made or provided for as to those bonds, and that the 1973 Water Bonds shall no longer 

be deemed to be outstanding under Ordinance No. 887 immediately upon the deposit of such 

money with the City Clerk/Finance Director. 

The City Council further finds and determines that the money to be deposited with the 

Refunding Trustee for the Refunded Bonds in accordance with Section 13 of this ordinance will 

discharge and satisfy the obligations of the City under the Refunded Bond Ordinances with 

respect to the Refunded Bonds, and the pledges, charges, trusts, covenants and agreements of 

the City therein made or provided for as to the Refunded Bonds, and that the Refunded Bonds 

shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding under their respective bond ordinance immediately 

upon the deposit of such money with the Refunding Trustee. 

0285878.03 

-22-

136



• • • 
Section 16. Bond Fund: Payments into Bond Fund. There is created in the office of the 

City Clerk/Finance Director a special fund known as the Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Fund 

(the "Bond Fund"), which fund shall be divided into two accounts: the Principal and Interest 

Account and the Reserve Account. So long as any Parity Bonds are outstanding against the 

Bond Fund, the City shall set aside and pay into the Bond Fund all ULID Assessments upon 

their collection and, out of the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility, certain fixed amounts 

without regard to any fixed proportion, namely: 

(a) Into the Principal and Interest Account, upon the delivery of the 
Bonds, the accrued interest received, and on or before the 20th day of each month 
commencing with the month of June, 1997, 113 of the amount of principal and 
interest to become due and payable on tbe Bonds on September 1, 1997, and 
continuing thereafter I/6th of the amount of interest and 1112 of the amount of 
principal to become due and payable on the Bonds outstanding on the next interest 
or principal and interest payment date; and 

(b) Into the Reserve Account, after transferring $393,504.61 to the 
Reserve Account from the debt service reserve accounts for the Refunded Bonds, 
the additional money and investments necessary to bring the total amount on 
deposit in the Reserve Account up to the Reserve Requirement for the Bonds 
within two years from the issue date of the Bonds. 

The City further agrees that when the total Reserve Requirement has been paid into the 

Reserve Account, it will at all times, except for withdrawals therefrom as authorized herein, 

maintain such amount therein until there is a sufficient amount in the Principal and Interest 

Account and Reserve Account to pay the principal of and interest to maturity on all the 

outstanding Parity Bonds. When the total amount in the Bond Fund shall equal the total amount 

of principal and interest requirements of all outstanding Parity Bonds to the last maturity thereof, 

no further payments need be made into the Bond Fund, at which time the money in the Reserve 

Account may be used to pay such principal and interest. 

0285878.03 

-23-

137



• • • 
The Reserve Account shall be used for the sole purpose of making up any deficiency 

existing in the Principal and Interest Account to meet maturing installments of either principal 

or interest, as the case may be, of any or all outstanding Parity Bonds. Any deficiency created 

in the Reserve Account by reason of any such withdrawal therefrom shall be made up from the 

Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility and ULID Assessments first available after making 

necessary provisions for the required payments into the Principal and Interest Account. Money 

in the Reserve Account also may be used to pay the last maturing outstanding Parity Bonds. 

Furthermore, if the Reserve Account is fully funded, any money in excess of the Reserve 

Requirement may be withdrawn and expended for the purpose of retiring bonds payable from 

the Bond Fund or for any other lawful Waterworks Utility purpose. 

All money in the Reserve Account may be kept in cash or on deposit in the official bank 

depository of the City or may be invested in direct obligations of the United States Government 

maturing not later than prior to the last maturity date of any outstanding Parity Bonds and/or 

may be deposited in shares of savings and loan institutions to the extent that such shares are· 

guaranteed by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. Interest earned on any such 

deposits or investments shall be deposited in and become a part of the Principal and Interest 

Account in the Bond Fund. 

The amounts in the Reserve Account may be decreased for any issue of Parity Bonds 

when and to the extent the City has provided for Reserve Insurance. 

Notwithstanding the provisions for the deposit of earnings, any earnings which are subject 

to a federal tax or rebate requirement may be withdrawn from the Bond Fund for deposit into 

a separate fund or account for that purpose. 

0285878.03 

-24-

138



• • • 
If the City fails to set aside and pay into the Bond Fund the amounts set forth above, the 

owner of any of the outstanding bonds payable out of the Bond Fund may bring action against 

the City and compel such setting aside and payment. 

Section 17. Due Regard Finding. The City Council finds and determines that the Gross 

Revenue to be derived from the operation and maintenance of the Waterworks Utility of the City 

at the rates to be charged for services from the Waterworks Utility will be more than sufficient 

to meet all Maintenance and Operation Expense (and cost of maintenance and operation under 

RCW 35.92.100) and to permit the setting aside into the Bond Fund out of the Gross Revenue 

of the Waterworks Utility of amounts sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds 

as the same become due. 

The City Council finds and determines it has exercised due regard for Maintenance and 

Operation Expense (and cost of maintenance and operation under RCW 35.92.100) and that it 

has not obligated the City to set aside and pay into the Bond Fund a greater amount of the Gross 

Revenue of the Waterworks Utility than in its judgment will be available over and above such 

Maintenance and Operation Expense (and cost of maintenance and operation under 

RCW 35.92.100). 

Section 18. Pledge of Revenue and Lien Position. The Gross Revenue of the 

Waterworks Utility and ULID Assessments are pledged to the payment of the Parity Bonds, and 

the Parity Bonds shall constitute a lien and charge upon such Gross Revenue and ULID 

Assessments prior and superior to any other charges whatsoever, subject only to Maintenance 

and Operation Expense. The right of the City to issue bonds on a parity of lien with the 1973 

Water Bonds, the 1987 Sewer Bonds, the 1992 Sewer Bonds, the 1992 Water Bonds or the 1994 

0285878.03 

-25-

139



• • • 
Water Bonds in accordance with the provisions of their respective bond ordinance is permanently 

revoked. 

Section 19. Covenants. The City covenants and agrees with the owner of each Parity 

Bond at any time outstanding, as follows: 

0285878.03 

(a) All UUD Assessments shall be paid into the Bond Fund and may 
only be used to pay the principal of and interest on the outstanding Parity Bonds. 
However, nothing in this ordinance or this section shall be construed to prohibit 
the City from issuing water and sewer revenue bonds junior in lien to the Parity 
Bonds and pledging as security for their payment assessments levied in any utility 
local improvement district which may have been specifically created to pay part 
of the cost of improvements to the Waterworks Utility for which those junior lien . 
bonds are specifically issued. 

(b) It will at all times maintain and keep the Waterworks Utility in 
good repair, working order and condition, and also will at all times operate that 
Waterworks Utility and the business in connection therewith in an efficient 
manner and at a reasonable cost. 

(c) It will not sell or dispose of all of the property of the Waterworks 
Utility unless provision is made for payment into the Bond Fund of a sum 
sufficient to pay and retire the Parity Bonds then outstanding and it will not sell 
or dispose of any part of the useful operating properties of the Waterworks Utility 
unless provision is made for proportional payment into the Bond Fund of the 
greatest of the following: 

(i) An amount which will be at least in the same 
proportion to the amount of the principal and interest due and 
payable to the first par call date of all then outstanding bonds that 
the revenue from the portion of the Waterworks Utility sold or 
disposed of which is available for debt service on such bonds for 
the twelve months preceding such sale or disposition bears to the 
revenue available for debt service from the Waterworks Utility of 
the City for the same period, or 

(ii) An amount which will be at least in the same 
proportion to the amount of the principal and interest due and 
payable to the first par call date of all then outstanding bonds that 
the number of customers connected with that portion of the 
Waterworks Utility sold or disposed of bears to the total number 
of customers connected to the Waterworks Utility immediately 
prior to such sale or disposal, or 

-26-

140



• 

0285878.03 

• • 
(iii) An amount which will be at least in the same 

proportion to the amount of the principal and interest due and 
payable to the first par call date of all then outstanding bonds that 
the depreciated cost value of the facilities of the Waterworks 
Utility in the area sold or disposed of bears to the depreciated cost 
value of all of the facilities of the Waterworks Utility immediately 
prior to such sale or disposal. 

All such sums of money so paid into the Bond Fund shall be used to retire 
outstanding Bonds at the earliest possible date on which any of such Bonds may 
be redeemed at par. 

( d) It will establish, maintain and collect such rates and charges for 
services and facilities furnished which, together with the collection of ULID 
Assessments, so long as any of the Parity Bonds are outstanding, will make 
available for the payment of the principal of and interest on such bonds as the 
same shall become due, Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility in an amount 
which will equal the Coverage Requirement. 

(e) While any of the Bonds remain outstanding, it will keep proper and 
separate accounts and records in which complete and separate entries shall be 
made of all transactions relating to the Waterworks Utility, and it will furnish the 
origin.al purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds or any subsequent owner or owners 
thereof, at the written request of such owner or owners, complete operating and 
income statements of the Waterworks Utility in reasonable detail covering any 
fiscal year not more than 90 days after the close of such fiscal year and it will 
grant any owner or owners of at least 25 % of the outstanding Bonds the right at 
all reasonable times to inspect the entire Waterworks Utility and all records, 
accounts and data of the City relating thereto. 

(f) It will carry the type of insurance in the amounts normally carried 
by similar utilities engaged in the operation of water and sewer systems, and the 
cost of such insurance shall be considered part of Maintenance and Operation 
Expense, or in lieu thereof, may self-insure or participate in a joint 
intergovernmental insurance assuring the same coverage as is carried by such 
similar utilities. If, as, and when the United States of America or some agency 
thereof shall provide for war risk insurance at reasonable cost, the City further 
agrees to take out and maintain such insurance on all or such portion of the 
Waterworks Utility on which such war risk insurance may be written in an 
amount or amounts to cover adequately the value thereof. 

(g) It will not furnish water or sewer service to any customer 
whatsoever free of charge (except to aid the poor or inform, to provide resource 
conservation or to provide for the proper handling of hazardous materials) and it 
shall take such legal action as may be feasible to enforce collection of all 
collectible delinquent accounts and proceed with the foreclosure of the delinquent 

-27-

141



• • • 
ULID Assessments or delinquent installments thereof in the shortest time period 
provided by law. 

Section 20. Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Bonds. The City covenants 

that it will take ail actions necessary to prevent interest on the Bonds from being included in 

gross income for federal income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor make or 

permit any use of proceeds of the Bonds or other funds of the City treated as proceeds of the 

Bonds at any time during the term of the Bonds which will cause interest on the Bonds to be 

included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City certifies that it has not been 

notified of any listing or proposed listing by the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that it is 

a bond issuer whose arbitrage certifications may not be relied upon. 

Section 21. Flow of Funds. All ULlD Assessments shall be paid into the Bond Fund 

as provided by Section 16. The Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility shall be used for the 

following purposes only and shall be applied in the following order of priority: 

0285878.03 

(a) To pay the Maintenance and Operation Expense; 

(b) To pay the interest on the outstanding Parity Bonds; 

(c) To pay the principal of the outstanding Parity Bonds; 

(d) To make all payments required to be made into any sinking fund 
account created to provide for the payment of the principal of Term Bonds; 

(e) To make all payments required to be made into the Reserve 
Account; 

(f) To make all payments required to be made into any revenue bond 
redemption fund or warrant redemption fund and debt service account or reserve 
account created to pay or secure the payment of the principal of and interest on 
any revenue bonds, or revenue warrants or other revenue obligations of the City 
having a lien upon the revenue of the Waterworks Utility junior and inferior to 
the lien thereon for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Parity 
Bonds; and 

-28-

142



• • 
(g) To retire by redemption or purchase in the open market any 

outstanding revenue bonds or other revenue obligations of the Waterworks Utility, 
to make necessary additional betterments, improvements and repairs to or 
extensions and replacements of the Waterworks Utility, or for any other lawful 
City purposes. 

The City may transfer any money from any funds or accounts of the Waterworks Utility 

legally available therefor, except bond redemption funds, refunding escrow funds or defeasance 

funds, to meet the required payments to be made into the Bond Fund. 

Section 22. Provisions for Future Parity Bonds. The City further covenants with the 

owner of each of the Bonds for as long as any of the same remain outstanding that it will not 

create any special fund or funds for the payment of the principal of and interest on any other 

water and sewer revenue bonds which will rank on a parity with or have any priority over the 

payments to be made out of the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility of the City into the 

Bond Fund, except that it reserves the right for, 

(a) The purpose of acquiring, constructing and installing additions and 
improvements to and betterments of, acquiring necessary equipment for or 
making necessary replacements of equipment or capital improvements to the 
Waterworks Utility of the City, or 

(b) The purpose of exchanging or purchasing and retiring prior to or 
at their maturity any outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds of the City, 

to issue Future Parity Bonds and to make payments into the Bond Fund for the payment of such 

Future Parity Bonds from the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility, together with ULID 

Assessments, sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such Future Parity Bonds and to 

maintain a reserve therefor if the following conditions and requirements are met and complied 

with at the time of the issuance of such Future Parity Bonds: 

0285878.03 

(a) That all payments required by this ordinance pertaining to 
outstanding Parity Bonds shall have been made into the Bond Fund for the 
payment of those outstanding Parity Bonds and no deficiency exists therein; 

-29-

143



• • • 
(b) That the ordinance providing for the issuance of such Future Parity 

Bonds shall provide that all assessments and interest thereon which may be levied 
in any utility local improvement districts hereafter created for the purpose of 
paying in whole or in part the principal of and interest on such Future Parity 
Bonds shall be paid directly into the Bond Fund; 

(c) That the revenues of the Waterworks Utility of the City for any 12 
consecutive month period out of the immediately preceding 24 consecutive month 
period, plus the additional revenues reasonably anticipated to be received from 
the proposed improvement in connection with which such Future Parity Bonds are 
to be issued, plus the additional revenues reasonably anticipated to be received 
from normal growth in the number of users of the waterworks utility of the City, 
plus the additional revenues reasonably anticipated to be received as a result of 
an increase in charges for water and/or sewer service furnished put into effect 
prior to the issuance of such Future Parity Bonds, together with collections of 
assessments, both principal and interest and penalties, collected on the assessment 
rolls of any ULIDs hereafter created in connection with the issuance of such 
Future Parity Bonds, shall be and be deemed sufficient, after the payment of 
normal operation and maintenance costs and taxes, to equal at least the Coverage 
Requirement of the Parity Bonds then outstanding, any additional Future Parity 
Bonds then outstanding and of the additional Future Parity Bonds proposed to be 
so issued, excluding the principal requirements but including the interest 
requirements of any Term Bond Maturity Year after deducting the normal costs 
of maintenance, operation and taxes from the revenues of the Waterworks Utility 
of the City. Such determination of the sufficiency of the revenues shall be made 
and certified to by an independent professional registered engineer experienced 
in municipal utilities and licensed to practice in the State of Washington. This 
certificate shall not be required in the event that the additional Future Parity 
Bonds proposed to be so issued are issued for the purpose of refunding 
outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds and the Average Annual Debt Service 
requirements of such proposed additional Future Parity Bonds are not increased 
over the requirement for the bonds being so refunded; and 

( d) That the ordinance authorizing the issuance of such additional 

0285878.03 

Future Parity Bonds shall provide that (1) an amount equal to the Reserve 
Requirement of those Future Parity Bonds proposed to be issued or (2) Reserve 
Insurance or an amount plus Reserve Insurance equal to the Reserve Requirement 
for those Future Parity Bonds, shall be accumulated as a reserve in the Bond 
Fund, such amount to be accumulated out of the collection of ULID Assessments 
levied and collected for the payment of the principal of and interest on such 
Future Parity Bonds and/or revenues of the Waterworks Utility of the City by 
monthly deposits commencing not later than one month after the date of the 
issuance of the bonds and to be accumulated within five years after the date of 
issuance. In the case of refunding bonds, the ordinance authorizing the issuance 
of such refunding bonds shall provide that the moneys in the reserve account for 
the bonds to be refunded shall be transferred to the reserve account or separate 

-30-

144



• • • 
reserve account for the refunding bonds, or that the moneys in the reserve 
account for the bonds to be refunded shall be used to redeem such bonds, in 
which event an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement for the refunding bonds 
proposed to be issued shall be accumulated as a reserve in the same manner and 
within the same time as set forth herein for additional revenue bonds. 

Nothing contained in the provisions for Future Parity Bonds shall prevent the City from 

issuing water and sewer revenue bonds which are a charge upon the Gross Revenue of the 

Waterworks Utility of the City junior or inferior to the payments required to be made therefrom 

into the Bond Fund for the payment of Parity Bonds. 

Section 23. Refunding or Defeasance of the Bonds. The City may issue refunding bonds 

pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington or use money available from any other lawful 

source to pay when due the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or any portion thereof 

included in a refunding or defeasance plan, and to redeem and retire, refund or defease all such 

then-outstanding Bonds (hereinafter collectively called the "defeased Bonds") and to pay the costs 

of the refunding or defeasance. If money and/or Government Obligations or other Permitted 

Investments maturing at a time or times and bearing interest in amounts (together with money, 

if necessary) sufficient to redeem and retire, refund or defease the defeased Bonds in accordance 

with their terms are set aside in a special trust fund or escrow account irrevocably pledged to 

that redemption, retirement or defeasance of defeased Bonds (hereinafter called the "trust 

account"), then all right and interest of the owners of the defeased Bonds in the covenants of this 

ordinance and in the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility, UUD Assessments, funds and 

accounts obligated to the payment of the defeased Bonds, other than the right to receive the 

funds to set aside and pledged, thereafter shall cease and become void. The owners of defeased 

Bonds shall have the right to receive payment of the principal of and interest on the defeased 

Bonds from the trust account. The City shall include in the refunding or defeasance plan such 

0285878.03 

-31-

145



.. • • 
provisions as the City deems necessary for the random selection of any defeased Bonds that 

constitute less than all of a particular maturity of the Bonds, for notice of the defeasance to be 

given to the owners of the defeased Bonds and to such other persons as the City shall determine, 

and for any required replacement of Bond certificates for defeased Bonds. The defeased Bonds 

shall be deemed no longer outstanding, and the City may apply any money in any other fund or 

account established for the payment or redemption of the defeased Bonds to any lawful purposes 

as it shall determine. 

If the refunding plan provides that the defeased Bonds or the refunding bonds to be issued 

be secured by money and/or Government Obligations or other Permitted Investments pending 

the prior redemption of the defeased Bonds and if such refunding plan also provides that certain 

money and/or Government Obligations or other Permitted Investments are pledged irrevocably 

for the prior redemption of the defeased Bonds included in that refunding plan, then only the 

debt service on the Bonds which are not defeased Bonds and the refunding bonds, the payment 

of which is not so secured by the refunding plan, shall be included in the computation of the 

Coverage Requirement for the issuance of Future Parity Bonds and the annual computation of 

coverage for determining compliance with the rate covenants. 

Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, if the principal of and/or interest 

due on the Bonds is paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy, 

the Bonds shall be treated as remaining outstanding for all purposes, not defeased or otherwise 

satisfied and shall not be considered paid by the City, and the covenants, agreements and other 

obligations of the City to the registered owners of the Bonds shall continue to exist and shall run 

to the benefit of the Bond Insurer, and the Bond Insurer shall be subrogated to the rights of those 

registered owners. 

0285878.03 

-32-

146



• • • 
Section 24. Small Governmental Issuer Arbitrage Rebate Exemption and Designation of 

Bonds as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations." The City finds and declares that (a) it is a duly 

organized and existing governmental unit of the State of Washington and has general taxing 

power; (b) no Bond which is part of this issue of Bonds is a "private activity bond" within the 

meaning of Section 141 of the Code; (c) at least 95% of the net proceeds of the Bonds will be 

used for local governmental activities of the City (or of a governmental unit the jurisdiction of 

which is entirely within the jurisdiction of the City); (d) the aggregate face amount of all 

tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and other obligations not required to 

be included in such calculations) issued by the City and all entities subordinate to the City 

(including any entity which the City controls, which derives its authority to issue tax-exempt 

obligations from the City or which issues tax-exempt obligations on behalf of the City) during 

the current calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000; and (e) the amount 

of tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, designated by the City as "qualified tax-exempt 

obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code during the calendar year in which 

the Bonds are issued does not exceed $10,000,000. The City therefore certifies that the Bonds 

are eligible for the arbitrage rebate exemption under Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code and 

designates the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) 

of the Code. 

Section 25. Bonds Negotiable. The Bonds shall be negotiable instruments to the extent 

provided by RCW 62A.8-102 and 62A.8-105. 

Section 26. Preliminary Official Statement Deemed Final. The City Council has been 

provided with copies of a preliminary official statement dated May 20, 1997 (the "Preliminary 

Official Statement"), prepared in connection with the sale of the Bonds. For the sole purpose 

0285&78.03 

-33-

147



• • 
of the Bond purchaser's compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 

15c2-12(b)(l), the City "deems final" that Preliminary Official Statement as of its date, except 

for the omission of information as to offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, 

aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, maturity dates, options of 

redemption, delivery dates, ratings and other terms of the Bonds dependent on such matters. 

Section 27. Approval of Placement Contract. Bank of America NT &SA, doing business 

as Seafirst Bank, has presented a placement contract (the "Bond Placement Contract") to the City 

offering to place the Bonds under the terms and conditions provided in the Bond Placement 

Contract, which written Bond Placement Contract is on file with the City Clerk/Finance Director 

and is incorporated herein by this reference. The City Council finds that entering into the Bond 

Placement Contract is in the City's best interest and therefore accepts the offer contained therein 

and authorizes its execution by City officials. 

The Bonds will be printed at City expense and will be delivered to the purchaser in 

accordance with the Bond Placement Contract, with the approving legal opinion of Foster 

Pepper & Shefelman PLLC, municipal bond counsel of Seattle, Washington, regarding the 

Bonds printed on each Bond. Bond counsel shall not be required to review and shall express 

no opinion concerning the completeness or accuracy of any official statement, offering circular 

or other sales or disclosure material issued or used in connection with the Bonds, and bond 

counsel's opinion shall so state. 

The proper City officials are authorized and directed to do everything necessary for the 

prompt delivery of the Bonds to the purchasers and for the proper application and use of the 

proceeds of the sale thereof. 

0285878.03 

-34-

148



• • 
Section 28. Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. To meet the conditions of 

paragraph (d)(2) of United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2-12 

(the "Rule") as required to qualify for the limited exemption from paragraph (b)(5) of lhe Rule, 

as applicable to a participating underwriter for the Bonds, the City makes the following 

undertaking (the "Undertaking") for the benefit of holders of the Bonds: 

0285878.0l 

(a) Undertaking to Provide Annual Financial Information and Notice 
of Material Events. The City undertakes to provide or cause to be provided, 
either directly or through a designated agent: 

(i) To any person upon request, or annually to a state 
information depository, if any, established in the state of Washington (the 
"SID"), annual financial information and operating data of the type 
included in the final official statement for the Bonds and described in 
Section 28(b) ("annual financial information") that is customarily prepared 
by the City and is otherwise publicly available; and 

(ii) To each nationally recognized municipal securities 
information repository designated by the SEC in accordance with the Rule 
("NRMSIR") or the Municipal Securities Rulernaking Board ("MSRB"), 
and to the SID, timely notice of the occurrence of any of the following 
events with respect to the Bonds, if material: (1) principal and interest 
payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults; (3) unscheduled 
draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) 
unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
(5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
(6) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 
Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds; (8) Bond calls 
(oilier than scheduled mandatory redemptions of Term Bonds); (9) 
defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing 
repayment of the Bonds; and (11) rating changes. 

(b) Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided. 
The annual financial information that the City undertakes to provide: 

(i) Shall consist of (1) a statement of authorized, issued and 
outstanding bonded debt secured by the Gross Revenue of the Waterworks 
Utility; (2) debt service coverage ratios; and (3) number of customers and 
current rates; and 

-35-

149



0285878.03 

• • 
(ii) Shall be available from the City Clerk/Finance Director of the 

City, whose current address and telephone number are identified in the 
final official statement for the Bonds. 

(c) Amendment of Undertaking. The Undertaking is subject to 
amendment after the primary offering of the Bonds without the consent of any 
holder of any Bond, or of any broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, 
participating underwriter, rating agency, NRMSIR, the SID or the MSRB, under 
the circumstances and in the manner permitted by the Rule. 

The City will give notice to each NRMSIR or the MSRB, and the SID, of 
the substance (or provide a copy) of any amendment to the Undertaking and a 
brief statement of the reasons for the amendment. If the amendment changes the 
type of annual financial information to be provided, the annual financial 
information containing the amended financial information will include a narrative 
explanation of the effect of that change on the type of information to be provided. 

(d) Beneficiaries. The Undertaking evidenced by this Section 28 shall 
inure to the benefit of the City and any holder of Bonds, and shall not inure to 
the benefit of or create any rights in any other person. 

(e) Termination of Undertaking. The City's obligations under this 
Undertaking shall terminate upon the legal defeasance of all of the Bonds. In 
addition, the City's obligations under this Undertaking shall terminate if those 
provisions of the Rule which require the City to comply with this Undertaking 
become legally inapplicable in respect of the Bonds for any reason, as confirmed 
by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or other counsel familiar 
with federal securities laws delivered to the City, and the City provides timely 
notice of such termination to each NRMSIR or the MSRB and the SID. 

(f) Remedy for Failure to Comply with Undertaking. As soon as 
practicable after the City learns of any failure to comply with the Undertaking, 
the City will proceed with due diligence to cause such noncompliance to be 
corrected. No failure by the City or other obligated person to comply with the 
Undertaking shall constitute a default in respect of the Bonds. The sole remedy 
of any holder of a Bond shall be to take such actions as that holder deems 
necessary, including seeking an order of specific performance from an appropriate 
court, to compel the City or other obligated person to comply with the 
Undertaking. 

(g) Designation of Official Responsible to Administer Undertaking. 
The City Clerk/Finance Director of the City (or such other officer of the City 
who may in the future perform the duties of the City Clerk/Finance Director) or 
his or her designee is authorized and directed in his or her discretion to take such 
further actions as may be necessary, appropriate or convenient to carry out the 

-36-

150



• • 
Undertaking of the City in respect of the Bonds set forth in this Section 28 and 
in accordance with the Rule, including, without limitation, the following actions: 

(i) Preparing, filing and/or making available the annual financial 
information undertaken to be provided; 

(ii) Determining whether any event specified in Section 28(a) has 
occurred, assessing its materiality with respect to the Bonds, and, if 
material, preparing and disseminating notice of its occurrence; 

(iii) Determining whether any person other than the City is an 
"obligated person" within the meaning of the Rule with respect to the 
Bonds, and obtaining from such person an undertaking to provide any 
annual financial information and notice of material events for that person 
in accordance with the Rule; 

(iv) Determining and monitoring the aggregate amount of 
outstanding municipal securities of the City and of any other obligated 
person for purposes of the qualification of the City and any other 
obligated person for the limited exemption from paragraph (b)(5) of the 
Rule; 

(v) Selecting, engaging and compensating designated agents and 
consultants, including but not limited to financial advisors and legal 
counsel, to assist and advise the City in carrying out the Undertaking; and 

(vi) Effecting any necessary amendment of the Undertaking. 

Section 29. Bond Insurance .. The City is authorized to purchase from the Bond Insurer 

the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy insuring the prompt payment of the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds and agrees to the conditions for obtaining that policy, including the 

payment of the premium therefor. Any notice required to be given to the Bond Insurer shall be 

sent by certified or registered mail to AMBAC Indemnity Corporation, One State Street Plaza, 

New York, New York 10004. 

While the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy is in effect, the City or the Bond Registrar 

shall furnish to the Bond Insurer (to the attention of the Surveillance Department, unless 

otherwise indicated): 

0285878.03 

-37-

151



.. • • 
(a) As soon as practicable after the filing thereof, copies of any 

financial statements, audits and annual reports of the City; 

(b) copies of any notices given to the registered owners of the Bonds, 
including, without !imitation, notices of any redemption of or defeasance of 
Bonds, and any certificate rendered pursuant to this ordinance relating to the 
security for the Bonds; and 

(c) such additional information the Bond Insurer may reasonably 
request. 

The Bond Registrar shall notify the Bond Insurer of any failure of the City to provide 

relevant notices and certificates. 

The City will permit the Bond Insurer to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the 

City or any information the Bond Insurer may reasonably request regarding the security for the 

Bonds with appropriate officers of the City. The Bond Registrar and the City will permit the 

Bond Insurer to have access to and make copies of all books and records relating to the Bonds 

at any reasonable time. 

The Bond Insurer shall have the right to direct an accounting at the City's expense, and 

the City's failure to comply with such direction within 30 days after receipt of written notice of 

the direction from the Bond Insurer shall be deemed a default hereunder unless compliance 

cannot occur within such period. In that event and only if an extension would not materially 

adversely affect the interest of any registered owner of the Bonds, that 30-day period will be 

extended so long as compliance is begun within that period and diligently pursued. 

Section 30. Payment Procedures Under Bond Insurance. The Bond Insurer requires that 

the following sections be included in this ordinance: 

0285878.03 

"As long as the bond insurance shall be in full force and effect, the Issuer, 
the Trustee and any Paying Agent agree to comply with the following provisions: 

"(a) At least one (1) day prior to all Interest Payment Dates the Trustee 
or Paying Agent [the Bond Registrar], if any, will determine whether there will 

-38-

152



-. 

0285818.03 

• • 
be sufficient funds in the Funds and Accounts to pay the principal of or interest 
on the Bonds on such Interest Payment Date. If the Trustee or Paying Agent, if 
any, determines that there will be insufficient funds in such Funds or Accounts, 
the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall so notify AMBAC Indemnity. Such 
notice shall specify the amount of the anticipated deficiency, the Bonds to which 
such deficiency is applicable and whether such Bonds will be deficient as to 
principal or interest, or both. If the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, has not so 
notified AMBAC Indemnity at least one (1) day prior to an Interest Payment 
Date, AMBAC Indemnity will make payments of principal or interest due on the 
Bonds on or before the first (1st) day next following the date on which AMBAC 
Indemnity shall have received notice of nonpayment from the Trustee or Paying 
Agent, if any. 

"(b} the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall, after giving notice to 
AMBAC Indemnity as provided in (a) above, make available to AMBAC 
Indemnity and, at AMBAC Indemnity's direction, to the United States Trust 
Company of New York, as insurance trustee for AMBAC Indemnity or any 
successor insurance trustee (the "Insurance Trustee"), the registration books of 
the Issuer maintained by the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, and all records 
relating to the Funds and Accounts maintained under this ordinance. 

"(c) the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall provide AMBAC 
Indemnity and the Insurance Trustee with a list of registered owners of Bonds 
entitled to receive principal or interest payments from AMBAC Indemnity under 
the terms of the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy, and shall make arrangements 
with the Insurance Trustee (i) to mail checks or drafts to the registered owners 
of· Bonds entitled to receive full or partial interest payments from AMBAC 
Indemnity and (ii) to pay principal upon Bonds surrendered to the Insurance 
Trustee by the registered owners of Bonds entitled to receive full or partial 
principal payments from AMBAC Indemnity. 

"(d) the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall, at the time it provides 
notice to AMBAC Indemnity pursuant to (a) above, notify registered owners of 
Bonds entitled to receive the payment of principal or interest thereon from 
AMBAC Indemnity (i) as to the fact of such entitlement, (ii) that AMBAC 
Indemnity will remit to them all or a part of the interest payments next coming 
due upon proof of Bondholder entitlement to interest payments and delivery to the 
Insurance Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee, of an appropriate 
assignment of the registered owner's right to payment, (iii) that should they be 
entitled to receive full payment of principal from AMBAC Indemnity, they must 
surrender their Bonds (along with an appropriate instrument of assignment in 
form satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee to permit ownership of such Bonds to 
be registered in the name of AMBAC Indemnity) for payment to the Insurance 
Trustee, and not the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, and (iv) that should they 
be entitled to receive partial payment of principal from AMBAC Indemnity, they 
must first surrender their Bonds for payment thereon first to the Trustee or 

-39-

153



• • 
Paying Agent, if any, who shall note on such Bonds the portion of the principal 
paid by the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, and the, along with an appropriate 
instrument of assignment in form satisfactory to the Insurance Trustee, to the 
Insurance Trustee, which will then pay the unpaid portion of principal. 

" ( e) in the event that the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, has notice that 
any payment of principal of or interest on a Bond which has become Due for 
Payment and which is made to a Bondholder by or on behalf of the Issuer has 
been deemed a preferential transfer and theretofore recovered from its registered 
owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy 
in accordance with the final, nonappea!able order of a court having competent 
jurisdiction, the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall, at the time AMBAC 
Indemnity is notified pursuant to (a) above, notify all registered owners that in 
the event that any registered owner's payment is so recovered, such registered 
owner will be entitled to payment from AMBAC Indemnity to the extent of such 
recovery if sufficient funds are not otherwise available, and the Trustee or Paying 
Agent, if any, shall furnish to AMBAC Indemnity its records evidencing the 
payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds which have been made by the 
Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, and subsequently recovered from registered 
owners and the dates on which such payments were made. 

"(f) in addition to those rights granted AMBAC Indemnity under this 
ordinance, AMBAC Indemnity shall, to the extent it makes payment of principal 
of or interest on Bonds, become subrogated to the rights of the recipients of such 
payments in accordance with the terms of the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy, 
and to evidence such subrogation (i) in the case of subrogation as to claims for 
past due interest, the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, shall note AMBAC 
Indemnity's rights as subrogee on the registration books of the Issuer maintained 
by the Trustee or Paying Agent, if any, upon receipt from AMBAC Indemnity 
of proof of the payment of interest thereon to the registered owners of the Bonds, 
and (ii) in the case of subrogation as to claims for past due principal, the Trustee 
or Paying Agent, if any, shall note AMBAC Indemnity's rights as subrogee on 
the registration books of the Issuer maintained by the Trustee or Paying Agent, 
if any, upon surrender of the Bonds by the registered owners thereof together 
with the proof of the payment of principal thereof." 

Section 31. Parties Interested Herein. To the extent that this ordinance confers upon or 

gives or grants to the Bond Insurer any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this 

ordinance, the Bond Insurer is explicitly recognized as being a third-party beneficiary hereunder 

and may enforce any such right, remedy or claim conferred, given or granted hereunder. 

Nothing expressed or implied in this ordinance is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, 

0285878.03 

-40-

154



• • 
or to give or grant to, any person or entity, other than the City, the Bond Insurer and the 

registered owners of the Bonds, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this ordinance 

or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof, and all covenants, stipulations, promises and 

agreements in this ordinance contained by and on behalf of the City shall be for the sole and 

exclusive benefit of the City, the Bond Insurer and the registered owners of the Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, the City shall notify the Bond 

Insurer immediately if at any time there are insufficient funds to make any payments of principal 

and/or interest as required and immediately upon the occurrence of any event of default 

hereunder. 

Any provision of this ordinance expressly recognizing or granting rights in or to the Bond 

Insurer may not be amended in any manner which affects the rights of the Bond Insurer 

hereunder without the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer. Unless otherwise provided in 

this section, the Bond Insurer's consent shall be required, in addition to Bond owner consent, 

when required, for the following purposes: (i) execution and delivery of any supplemental 

ordinance, and (ii) initiation or approval of any other action which requires Bond owner consent. 

Anything in this ordinance to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence and continuance 

of an event of default, the Bond Insurer shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement 

of all rights and remedies granted to the Bond owners for the benefit of the Bond owners under 

this ordinance. 

Any reorganization or liquidation plan with respect to the City must be acceptable to the 

Bond Insurer. In the event of any reorganization or liquidation, the Bond Insurer shall have the 

right to vote on behalf of all bondholders who hold AMBAC Indemnity-insured bonds absent 

0285871:1.03 

-41-

155



•. • • 
a default by the Bond Insurer under the applicable Municipal Bond Insurance Policy insuring 

such bonds. 

Section 32. Temporary Bond. Pending the printing, execution and delivery to the 

purchaser of the definitive Bonds, the City may cause to be executed and delivered to the 

purchaser a single temporary Bond in the total principal amount of the Bonds. The temporary 

Bond shall bear the same date of issuance, interest rates, principal payment dates and terms and 

covenants as the definitive Bonds, shall be issued as a fully registered Bond in the name of the 

purchaser, and otherwise shall be in a form acceptable to the purchaser. Such temporary Bond 

shall be exchanged for definitive Bonds as soon as they are printed, authenticated and available 

for delivery. 

0285878.03 

-42-

156



• • 
Section 33. Effective Date of Ordinance. This ordinance shall take effect from and after 

its passage and five days following the date of its publication in the official newspaper of the 

City. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Prosser, 

Washington, this 29th day of May, 1997, at a special open public meeting notice thereof having 

been given as required by law. 

ATTEST: 

~AOA) r,[ih~fb) 
Cil)le kiFinance Director 

FO APPROVED: 

/9ty Attorney 

VPublished: (o/4/ctJ 
I 

0285878.03 

Mayor 

-43-

157



• • 
EXHIBIT A 

ALLOCATION OF BONDS 

Maturity New Current Advance Total 
Years Money Refunding Refunding Principal 

1997 $120,000 $45,000 $165,000 
1998 185,000 25,000 210,000 
1999 195,000 20,000 215,000 
2000 205,000 25,000 230,000 
2001 215,000 25,000 240,000 
2002 305,000 305,000 
2003 95,000 185,000 280,000 
2004 95,000 195,000 290,000 
2005 95,000 200,000 295,000 
2006 315,000 315,000 
2007 335,000 335,000 
2008 350,000 350,000 
2009 $100,000 125,000 225,000 
2010 100,000 135,000 235,000 
2011 100,000 140,000 240,000 
2012 100,000 145,000 245,000 
2013 100,000 155,000 255,000 

0285878.03 

158



. . • • 
EXHIBIT B 

A. AMBAC lnd<:=ity will allow the full"""'1g cbligatioos to be used as Pemiitlcd Investments for all P!l.l'!X'=, 
including~~ in rd\mding e:scrow -=um. 

(AMBAC lilldmmity d""' !lot give a pn:mium credit for the investment of accrued and/or apiWi:<ed 
intm:st.) 

( l) Cash (wsurcd at all times by the Fede:ral Deposit lm:m= Corporation or otherwise colla!eralized with 
oblig;ali.cms desm'be:! in paragraph (2) below), or 

(2) Direct obligations of (mcludlng obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books al) the 
~of the Tr=ury oftbe Uniu:d Swcs of America. 

B. AMBAC lnd<:=ity will allow the following Obligations to be used as PeniWed Investments for all p~ 
other than~ in~ in rd\mding c:scrov.· ==· 
(!) Obllgatioos of any of the following ii::d=1 ag:ncies "'Uich obligations rep=t the full bith :md credit 

of the United Swcs of America. including: 

- Export-Import Bank 
- Farm Credit Svsrem Financial Assistance Corporation 
- Rural Economic Community Development Administr3rion (formerly the F=n..""' 

Home Administr.irion) 
- G=l Serviee:s Admini.str.u:ion 
- U.S. M:uitim<: Administration 
- Small Business Admin.istrarion 
- G<i=t National Mortgage Associ:irion (GNMA) 
- U.S. Depamnent ofHou.sing & Uiban Developm:nt (PHA 's) 
- Federal Hou.sing Administrarion 
- Federal Financing Bank; 

(2) Direct obligations of any ofthl: foll"""'1g fOO=l agc:ncies \\Uich obligations are not fully gu:=nteed by 
the full &itb and credit of the United States of Ame.ric:i: 

- Senior debt obligations ra.tod uAaa"by Moody's and ~AAA"by S&P issued by 
the Fed:ral National Mortgage Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan 
Mortg;ige Corporation (FHLMC) 

- Obligations of the Rt:solution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) 
- Senior d<:bt obligations of the Fed=.! Home Loan Bank System 
- Senior debt obligations of other Go=t Sponsored Agencies 3Jlpmved by 

AMBAC; 

(3) U.S. dollar d=mim.ted deposit =unts. federal furuls and bankers' a=:ptan= with domestic 
commen::ial banks which have a rating on their short term a:n:ificar.os of deposit on the date of purchasc 
of"A-!"or "A -!+"by S&P and •p -!"by Moody's and maruring no more than 360 days after the date 
of purchase. (Ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating of the bank.); 

(4) Cornm::n:W paperVl.i!ich is ra.tod at the ti= of purchase in the single highest classification, "A-l+"by 
S&l? and '1' -l "by Moody's and which !l1:ll!llreS not more than 270 days after the dale of purch=; 

(5) In~ in a money marla:! fund ra.tod 'l\AA.m" or "AAAm-G" or better by S&P; 

159



• • 
(6) Pre-n:fimtled Mll!lic:ipal Obligariocs ddlnal as follows: A1:ry bonds or otl= obligations of any =e of 

the United Stato. of America or of any ago;icy, ~ er local govem.trn:nta.! unit of any such 
stat<: which are not callable al the option of the obliger prior to marurity or as to which irrevocilile 
iostruc!ims have be= given by the obliger to cill on the d3.te specified in the notice: and 

(A) which are rated. based co an irrevoc:able esr:rr:JW aa:ount or fund (the "escrow'), in lhe highest rating 
ca!cgcly of S&P and Moody's or any su=ors i:hert:to; or 

(B) (i) which are fully ==i as to principal and intm:st and redemption premium, if any, by an escrow 

cmsisring ooly af ca.sh er obligariocs d=:nbcd io pa.ragrnph A(2) above, which =row may be 
applied ooly to 1he paymc:at of such principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on 
such boods or other obligarioas on the marurity date or datos the=f or the speci£ed redemption d.a!I: 
or dai.s pu=m to such imMx:ab!e instructions. as appropri.ale, and (u) which escrow is sufiidcm, 
as verili<d by a mtiooa!ly ~ indq:>=ndent =rified public •=-"'• ro pay principal of 
and imon:st aod redemption premium, if :my, on the bonds or other obligalions d=ibed in this 
parngrapb on the marurity d3.te or d:ncs specified io the im::vocable instructions refum:d to above, as 
appropriate; [Pre-rcl\mded Mll!lic:lpal Obligations meetin:; the requirements ot subsection (B) 
hereof m:iy not be us<:d as Permitted iavestmeots for annual appropriation lease tr.ms.actions 
without tbe prior "'rittm approval of S&P.j 

(7) Gen=! obligations ofStat::s with a rating of at least "A2/A"or higher by both Moody's and S&P. 

(8) ln~ agreem= approved in writing by AMBAC lnd=nity Corp=rion [supporu:d by 
approp""1e opinions of counsel] v.ith notic: to S&P: aod 

(9) Other !Orms of investments (including rwun:hase 3£1Wf1eDts) approved in writing by A._11,!BAC "ith 
notice to S&P. 

C. The value of the above inv=nents shall be detennined as follows: 

'Value~ v.-bieb shall be d::t::rmim>:I as of the c:id of e:lcil mon!h, tn='1S th:l.! lhe v:i.lue of "-"Y i.oveson=:its 
shall be c:alcul:w:d as fullows: 

(!) As to imoestn= the bid and asked pri= ofotich are published en a regular basis in The Wall Stt=t 
Jowml (or, if net there, th:n in Th:: New Yori: Tun:s): lhe av::age of the bid and asked pri= for such 
invi:s:tmclllS so published on or most r=tly prior to such time of d::t::rmination; 

(2) As to investmcll.s the bid aod asked pri= oforuch are cot publish:rl on a regular basis in The Wall 
StrectJoumal or Th.e New Y oil< T =: the average bid price at such time of d:u:rminarian for such 
inves!lnelltS by any two mticoa.lly reco£11i=! government =xrities dealers (selo::to:J by the TnlStee in 
its absoluu: c!iscmion) at the time making a marl<et in such investm:ms or the bid price published by a 
nationally recognized pricing service; 

(3) As to =tificales of deposit and bankers a.cceptan=: the fuce amount thereat: plus accrued interest; and 

(4) As to any iovestmc!l!. net specified above: the value lhereof established by prior agreement between the 
Issuer, the Trustee and AMBAC Indemnity Corporation. 

160



·-----· -~~--------~~--
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
; Agen-da Title: Ado-pi-Ordinance 14 . __ 

Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 001, 
General Fund 

: Department: 

Meeting Date: 
May 27, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

I Administration 
Phone Number: 
(509) 786-8216 

1. Q_irector: ·------~o .. ntact Person: 
1 Paul Warden Paul Warden / 

f---------~ ·-··---------+~--------j 
Cost of Proposal: 
$22,750 

Amount Budgeted: 
$0 

Reviewed by Finance Department: 

t~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1 _ 2014 Budget Request - Part-Time Office Clerk 
2_ Ordinance 14- ___ _ 

Summary Statement: 

The attached ordinance amends the budget for the following reason: 

001 General Fund (001) $22,750: 

Account Number: I 
n/a 

Name and Fund# 
General Fund (001) 

This budget action will allow for the hire of a part-time office clerk to accept payments, 
answer phones, and provide improved customer service for our residents with no lunch 

• closure. The need for a permanent part-time position goes beyond the lunch closure that 
Administrative staff, Council and our public wants to change. There is a real need for 
additional staffing in City Hall, especially an individual that can cover multiple functions. 
Filling this position would also result in much needed administrative support to all 
departments. Having a permanent part-time Cashier/Reception staff to cover the busy 
hours in the middle of the day would allow our two Admin assistants to actually provide i 

_ administrative support for the Building, Planning, City Clerk and City Administrator 
I departments. Funding for this expenditure can be derived from ongoing, unbudgeted 

investment interest returns, possible funding from Public Safety, .. Sales tax when the 
individual is working on Police Records items and the healthy cash balances that the City 
consistently realizes due to conservative (but prudent) revenue forecasting. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

161



\ Recommended City Council_Action/Suggested Motion: 

I Adopt Ordinance 14 - ____ Amending the 2014 Budget for Fund 001, General Fund 

r~:7;;:~j=:;Momoy ~J 
I Date: ) ,...- 'LJ-(4 I Date: ~- Date: )---'LJ-/'f 

Today's Date: I Revision Num er/ ate: 1 File Name and Path: J 
May15,2014 \ I 

162



Requesting Department 

CITY OF PROSSER 
DEPARTMENT BUDGET REQUEST 

YEAR 2.014 

Finance Date 818120'!3 

Level of Need: Urgent 0. Essential 0 Necessary 0 Desirable 0 
Request for Additional Personnel: 
Position Title Office Clerk.,_ ____ _ 
Sa'lary Range & Step-·-_··-"'nlcs;a __ _ 
Full-time 0 
Part-time 0Hours Per Year BOO 

\ NANCE DEPT WILL c'6MPLETE) -,=,==] 
Salaries $10.032 

I 
Personal Benefits 12,695 I ----------. 

t~otal_Personnel Cost $22,727 f 

!Justification: 
i 

Request Other Than Personnel: 
Description 

Fund Name: General Fund -------

Account Name: Finance • Wages and f:l_eneflts 

Account# .°-l?.!:514-23 _(!0 &_~-------

Estimated Cost: $22, 727 

Office Clerk with provide coverage during lunch hours for front desk staff. 

Requester's Name: 

Department Head Approval: 

City Manager Recommendation: 

Approved 

Denied 

Comments 

2014 ~Dept Budget Req~1est 

Regina Mauras 

Date 

8/1612013 7:34AM 

163



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-2859, ORDINANCE 14-
2871, AND ORDINANCE 14-2883; AND AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET 
FOR THE GENERAL FUND (001) IN THE AMOUNT OF $22,750 FOR 
UNANTICIPATED REVENUE AND ALSO PROVIDE FOR 
EXPENDITURE OF THOSE FUNDS. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 
2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE FUND AT THE FUND LEVEL AND 
FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET ARE IN THE 
BEST INTEREST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE ALSO 
AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO 
ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS 
FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

WHEREAS, THE City wishes hire clerk and it is necessary to amend the General Fund 
(001) to accommodate wages and benefit costs. a pmi-time office 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City wishes to appropiiate revenue in the amom1t $22,750, and it desires 
to appropriate for expenditure to the General Fund (001) at the Fund level. 

Section 2. The City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City of Prosser, 
Washington to mnend the 2014 City Budget to appropriate the additional revenues and to provide 
for the expenditure of those revenues or appropiiations at the fund level as set forth in Section 3 
below. 

Section 3. The 2014 Budget Adopted by Ordinance Number 13-2859, Ordinance Number 
14-2871, and Ordinm1ce Number 14-2883 are hereby amended for the following funds in the 
following mnounts: 

[F:t(~-ci#-~F-; =:uu:::_d:::_:::_:::_-_-_-_---~--_ -_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-;l_ccR~-e_v:::_e:::_n:::_u-:::_e:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_~_:::_-:_1-:::E-":::x-::p-:::e-n=--d=-i'-'-t-n=-r'-'e:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_:::_: 
! 001 General Fund _______ $4,596,682 I $4,572,228 

Section 4. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to make all adjustments to the 
City's Budget to accomplish the pu111oses of this Ordinance in accordance with RCW Chapter 
35A.33. 

Section 5. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 

164



be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after passage and publication 
of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title. 

PASSED by tbe City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this day of ---
-------' 2014. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to form· 7 ; 
1 

c:~ 
CITY ATTORNEY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: 
-----~---

165



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

oft he City of Prosser, Washington 

On the ___ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed Ordinance No. 
____ .. A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the title, provides as 

follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-2859, ORDINANCE 14-
2871, AND ORDINANCE 14-2883; AND AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET 
FOR THE GENERAL FUND (001) IN THE AMOUNT OF $22,750 FOR 
UNANTICIPATED REVENUE AND ALSO PROVIDE FOR 
EXPENDITURE OF THOSE FUNDS. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE 
2014 BUDGET FOR THE ABOVE F'UND AT THE FUND LEVEL AND 
FINDS THAT AMENDMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET ARE IN THE 
BEST INTEREST OF THE CITY. THE ORDINANCE ALSO 
AUTHORIZES THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE ALL 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2014 BUDGET NECESSARY TO 
ACCOMPLISH THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE. THE 
ORDINANCE ALSO DECLARES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND SETS 
FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE . AND 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The foll text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of _________ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

166



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
i Agenda Title: Adopt Ordinance No. 14-
-- amending PMC 2.16 changing City 
Hall Office Hours. 

Department: i Director: 
i Administration I Paul Warden 

I Cost of PrQpQ.§.9.): n/ a 

I Amount Budgeted: n/a 
I 

I Reviewed by Financ;e Department: 

I 
Meeting Date: 

. May 27, 2014 
! Regular Meeting 
I 
I Contact Person: 
I Paul Warden 

Phone Number: 
(509) 786-8216 

Account Number: 

' Name and Fund# 

I< M..~ 
f------'--'--'--'--'="'---~~~------·-···-····-·--------------

Attachments to Agenda PacketJ!~!Jl..; 

1. Strike-through version of PMC 2.16 
! 2. Ordinance No. 14-__ 
i 
i _Summary Statement: ·1 

The attached ordinance amends the City Hall office hours to remove the lunch closure . 
, from 11 a.m. to 12 p.m. (noon). The need for an additional permanent part-time position 
I goes way beyond the lunch closure that Admin and Council wants to change. There is a 
.

1

: bonafide need for additional staffing in City Hall, especially an individual that can cover 
multiple functions. Primary training will be in cash receipting to cover lunch hour foot 
traffic and answer phones. From there cross training in all front office functions will 

I ensue. Also many times Building Official, City Planner, City Clerk and Mayor, are in 
I occasional need of admin support but our clerical _staff is always occupied with their own 
, duties so we do without. Also our Administrative Assistant has taken on by default our 
.

1

• non Boys and Girls Club recreation programs (little league, softball etc.) in addition to her 
normal duties and could really use extra help late spring through summer. 

! 

I consistent with or Comparison to: 

I EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

' 

~
. . ..... ·-··········-·-----

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

_ Adopt Ordinance No. 14- ____ amending PMC 2.16 changing City Hall Office Hours. 
' 

167



Sections: 

2.16.01 O Established. 

For statutory prov'isions requ'1ring all dty offices to be kept open during such days and hours as the 

legislative body of the city shall by ordinance prescribe, see RCW ,;~c::c.J.fu'l."""· 

In accordance with RCW 35A.21.070, the city council of the city of Prosser hereby establishes the office hours 

for all city offices, except the police department, to be from eight a.m. to five p.m. Monday through Friday of 

each week, except for legal holidays. City of Prosser offices witt-also be closed from eleven a.!Th-to-twe~ 

(ReeR}fG!'-l~reaks The police department shall be open for business twenty-four hours a day, seven days 

a week. (Ord. 2708 § 1, 2010: Ord. 2608 § 1, 2008: Ord. 2540 § 1, 2006: Ord. 2290 § 1, 2001: Ord. 2206 § 1, 

2001 Ord. 1873 § 1, 1996 Ord. 599 § 1, 1957). 

168



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
2.16.010 AND AMENDING SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 2708, SECTION 
1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2608, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2540, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2290, SECTION 
l OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2206, SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 1873 
AND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 599 TO ESTABLISH NEW OFFICE 
HOURS POR CITY OFFICES. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH 
THE EPFECTIVE DATE OP THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT 
ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND 
PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Prosser Municipal Code Section 2.16.010 and, Section 1 of Ordinance 
2708, Section 1 of Ordinance Number 2608, Section 1 of Ordinance Number 2540, Section 1 of 
Ordinance Number 2290, Section 1 of Ordinance Number 2206, Section 1 of Ordinance 1873 
and Section 1 of Ordinance 599 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.16.010 Established 
In accord:rnce with R.C.W. 35A.21.070, the City Conncil of the City of Prosser hereby 

establishes the office hours for all City Offices, except the Police Department, to be from 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday of each week, except for legal holidays. The Police 
Department shall be open for business twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. 

Section 2. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to 
be severable. If m1y section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to a11y person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitntional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase be held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective July 1, 2014, provided said date is at 
least five days after passage and publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of its 
title. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this -·- day of 
, 2014. 

MAYOR 

169



ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO F M: 

CITY 

170



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the ___ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No.-··-·--· A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
2.16.010 Ac"!D AMENDING SECTION I OF ORDINANCE 2708, SECTION I 
OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2608, SECTION I OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 
2540, SECTION I OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2290, SECTION I OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2206, SECTION I OF ORDINANCE 1873 AND 
SECTION l 01° ORDINANCE 599 TO ESTABLISH NEW OFFICE HOURS 
FOR CITY OFFICES. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORD.INANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS 
PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES 
FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this day of . ---- '2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

171



,~~~~~~~~~~---·-----------~-------~-----~ 

I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

IAgendaTit-le-:~~~~-.A._(;~E~~])~e~!~t~ 
Public Hearing on the revised SMP 

, 1. Review Ordinance 14-__ _ 
' Repealing the Existing Shoreline Master 

Program Contained in Prosser Municipal Code 
Chapter 16.04, adopting a New Shoreline 

,

1

: Master Program and adopting Shoreline 
Designation Maps. 

! 2. Review Ordinance l 4- Amending 

I 
Prosser Municipal Code Sections 16.1O.l02, 
16.10.130, 16.20.010, 16.20.040, 16.20.050, 

! and 16.60.040 of the City's Critical Areas 

I 
Ordinance to make it Consistent with the City's 
Shoreline Master Program 

I 

May 27, 2014 
Regular Meeting 

j Director: Contact Person: 
1 Steve Zetz : Steve Zetz Planning 

I Department: Phone Number: 
(509) 786-8212 

I I Howard Saxton 

------t----~~~----j 

I Cost of Proposal: 
This is pai1 of the grant awarded to us by the Department of Ecology for 
the purpose of updating the Shoreline Master Program. 

Account Number: 

Name and Fund# 

I AA1110 ntB dg-e-te_d_:------~~---~·------~~~~~---~-~-___, I 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: I 

l. Public Hearing Notice 
I 2. Reach Maps 

3. Shoreline Master Program Update 
4. Application 

, 5. SEPA 
6. Department of Commerce Letter 
7. Ordinance 14- Shoreline Master Program 
8. Ordinance 14- Critical Areas 

1~9· ·--~-~-~----_J 
Summary Statement: ' 

The Shoreline Master Program (SMP) Update is a process mandated by RCW 90.50.080. Ai1:er 
nearly two years, the SMP is in final form and a public hearing was held by the Planning 
Commission on February 20, 2014, wh~_re it recommended the SMP for a roval. Council 

172



I previously reviewed the SMP on March I I, 2014, wh;;-n it approved resolution Nu~1ber 14-1446 
I submitting the SMP to the Department of Ecology for review. The SMP has now been placed 
! into ordinance form (the SMP update to the Comprehensive Plan is covered in a separate agenda 
i hill). The next step in the process is for the Council to review the final SMP and pass ordinances 
/ adopting the changes. These ordinances will then be submitted to the Department of Ecology for 

final review. If changes are required by the Department of Ecology, then the Planning 
Commission and the City Council may have to hold additional public hearings. The Council will 
adopt these ordinances after the continued public hearing is closed on June 24, 2014. 

Staff worked with the Department of Ecology and Anchor QEA to pare down the size of the 
SMP. In most cases the Department of Ecology noted that the maJonty of the sections in question 
were required by the State. The final result is 96 pages which is less than the original template 
that was first proposed to the Planning Commission. 

While the SMP functions as a single document there are specific sections that the Council may 
wish to review with closer scrutiny_ 

• Reach location and Jdentificat1on 

• Uses allowed and identified within reaches 16.04.41 (Page 47) 

The reaches break down the shorelines into specific segments, and the allowed and identified nses 
are just that. Those uses that have been identified (existing) and those uses which are allowed 
(pe1mitted) as well as those uses which are preferred (not required but there can be incentives to 
encourage the preferred uses). 

16.04.100 Permitted Use Table 

A. The following table determines which shoreline uses are allowed or proh.1bited in 

each shoreline environment. 

8. Land uses allowed are subject to the preference for water-oriented uses and subject 

to specific criteria for uses and shoreline modification included in these regulations. 

C. Uses allowed in the Aquatic Environment are those allowed in the adjacent upland 

environment and limited to water-dependent use, ecological enhancement, and 

those transportation and utility facilities and Essential Public Facilities for which no 

alternative location is feasible. 

D. Land uses in the underlying zoning that require a conditional use permit in the 

underlying zoning district, require a shoreline conditional use permit. 

E. If a use is prohibited in the underlying zoning district, it is also prohibited in shoreline 

management act jurisdiction. 

F. KEY: X= Prohibited, P= Permitted, CU= Conditional Use Permit, PA=Permitted only 

as an accessory to a permitted use, Z = Permitted subject to underlying zoning. 

173



G. A use is considered unclassified when it is not listed in the in the Shoreline 

Modifications and Uses Regulations and is allowed in underlying zoning. A proposed 

unclassified use may be authorized as a conditional use provided that the applicant 

can demonstrate consistency with the requirements of this Master Program and the 

requirements for conditional uses. 

Resource 

cu cc cu cu x x 

I 
Agriculture, except for dairying, p p x x x x x poultry raising, and livestock 

' Dairying; poultry raising; livestock; I x x x x x x 
1. 

and labor camps x 

~Mining x x x cu x x x 
1 Residential x x x x x x x 
' 

One single famlly dwelling per lot z z z z p cu cu 
Duplex x x x x z x x 
Multifamily x z x x z x x 
Mobile home park x x x x z x x 

i ! Accessory Dwelling Unit x x x x p x x I 
(RCW 43.63A215) 

Bed and breakfast x z i x x cu x x 
Home occupation I x µ+i• x z x x 

+ 
Public and Quasi Public Uses ' ! 

Boat launches cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Public recreational facilities p p p p p p cu 

~ate recreational facilities p 

~ 
p cu p x 

I Campgrounds x cu cu x x x x 

~!courses cu x x x cu x cu 
p p p p p p cu 

1 
Trails hard surface 

Trails soft surface p p p p p p p 

Commercial recreation: Fitness x x p x x x x centers/sport clubs 

Commercial amusement facilities x x x x x x x 
Civic and community buildings cu cu cu cu cu cu x 

174



cu cu x 
Government offices CU CU CU CU cu cu x 

-----+-----+--+---+---+-------+---+--

'~ublic or private schools CU CU CU cu 

Nursery school and day care x x z ' cu { I 
~---c-F:-:-t-~-~-d-a_y_c_a-re_c_e-nt_e_r-(R_C_W---r---i----i----~+---+--~--~ 

35.63.185) . x I x p , x p x 1' x 1' 

I~~--... _M_u_s_·_e_u_m_s----._-_-_-_-_·-_-_-_-_-_-_-++-ji. =====:; =====:=====::====::==-==:=~---+----+ 
1 

.cul cu cu cu,cu cu, x 1 

j ~~~~ing hornes, hornes for the I x x I z x x x j x j 

i= Hospitals and health care facinties 'j x_+-_x_-+ ___ c_u_-+ ___ x __ '+-1 _x_-+-_x_-1\ __ x _ _, 

I Churches 1 CU CU CU CU j CU 1 CC I X 
I --------f----j----·f-----f----f---4---+--·-+ 

1--~t_r~g-· a-t-io_n_1_a·c·i-lit-ie_s_. _d_a_m_s_, _c_a_n_a_is_._t--_cu_. ·~cu · c_u_' -+i_c_u_+-_c_u_+l _c_u_+-__ c_u_· --1 

i Essential pu~lic facilities CU CU CU CU CU CU CU r -----+,.-- --+---+---+---+---··---1 
1 

Commercial/Retail X 
1 

X . X X X X X j 

Marine sale_s_,_s_e-rv-ic_e_,_a_n_d_r_e_n_ta-l·-+-1. -x-· -lf---P--+--P--+--x-+--x--+-x-+--x I 
I -+----+-
L. ___ Marina ·-·------+-x--+_c_u ___ c_u _ _, __ x_+-_a __ . ;~1 __ x_-+-_x _ _, 

I Bakeries, barber and beauty X p p I x 

1

, x ! x 1 x ' 
, shops, etc. . 
·.r Commercial laundry a;,-d-d-ry----+--x-+--x--+,1-c_u __ : x x--+---x--+--x·---1 
I cleaning 

------------ +---i----~··-1---+----t----f-----+--f--

l

lf-__ R_e_ta __ il 1_Js_e_s____ X P j P \ x x_+-_x __ +--~ 
--+-R_e_s_ta_u_r_a_n_ts __________ / X I P -.J''.· __ P_-+-

1 

_c_u_,
1

1

'_ ._xx_-+_x_-+---··x _ __, 
Drinking establishments I X Ii P , P 1, PA X X 

:, ===H=o=te-_1.=a=n=d=m_-_o~t-e=I =--=--==---~=---··-==le-. -x--1.--P·-----+J,i1~~~P~~---+~~~-x_-_-_+~·---_x===:==x=·==+I-. -x---1 

' Banqueting halls I X P P 1 X X 1 X I X 
-----1------i---'i--+---r --+--'I I I ·x-

Resort ___________ _,__x ____ -+'·--P-+, __ P __ r x_-+-_x __ 
1
--+_x_-1·-·--

Recreation vehicle parks X X Z 1 X 

1

! X X 1 X 

T~eaters and amphaheaters i X P P X . X j X I X ····-

Veterinarians and kennels X X X X 1 X I X X 
------+---+---+----+---+----+---+--··--, 

I . Offices servinga permitted use !I l' '1· P P P P P X · 
r--+-1 _··_O_ff_ic_e_s_a_s_a_p_r_1m_a_r_y __ u_s_e ____ +~-.x--+:--x-··-·+'--x--+-x--+-x--+-x-,-+-,-x---1 

Printing and pubnshing X X Z X X ! X X 
r-------------------+---+---+-----"----i----1'---+----I 
i On-site hazardous waste X I [ x I 

L+-, --~-~-~_s_t:_re_i:_:_:_~_:_s_gt_:_r:_~;o_u_s_e_s __ --+l __ P_--+I-~ __ -\ : J-:-u-+-\-:-·-'r--x--:1---:---1 

Lumber and building materials X X P CU X X X 
------t----+----+---+----r·······---+---+--,-+---1 

Automotive, truck, RV sales and X X I x 1

1

1 x 
1

1 
service i X, I X x I 

175



I I Gasoline service stat'1on x x I x x x Lx I x 
i I . -

Industrial 

' Water-dependent industrial z z x p x x x 
---

Water-related industrial z z x p x x x 
···-·-·-- ----"'""'"--

I Water-oriented industrial z I z ! x p x x x 
,---------.-··~-- --

I 
·-

Agriculture products processing p x x p x x x I 

I 
Wineries, including sales I p p p p x x x ' 

Microbreweries I p p p p x x x ______ ..,_ +--
Municipal and utility yards ' x I x x ClJ I x x x I 

_..,_i .... _ 

Solid waste processing or x i x x I x x x I x I, disposal 

Hazardous materials processing I ' 
or disposal x x x x x x x 

·-
Commercial moving and storage I x x x x 

I : i-
x x I 

i 
""""' 

Vessel repair ! x i x x p x i x 
-·-· ' ':_[ ___ 

Equipment supply, repair, service i x x x x I x . x x 
Manufacturing, other than food x x x p I x x x processing I 

i I I 
' I 

---
I Sale of items manufactured on- p I I 

! I site I p x p 
I x I x x 

! 
I. --

Industrial and scientific research 

~' x 

. :-1 
p x x x laboratories --1 ' 

Petroleum, coal, fuel storage I x x x x 
I 

x distribution 

Junk or salvage yards x x x x x x x ___ ___j 

Solid waste processing or x x x x x x x disposal 

Hazardous materials processing x x x x x x x or disposal 

Warehouses, storage, distribution x I x x p x x x 
I Transportation +-1- Roads and railroads serving p p p p p i shoreline uses ! I 

Roads and railroads NOT serving cu cu cu cu cu cu cu shoreline uses __ , 
Park-and-Ride lots x x x x x x x 
Parking areas and facilities 
serving a primary use within the p p p p p p p 
shoreline 

Parking areas and facilrties NOT 
serving a primary use within the x x x x x x x 
shoreline 

176



Parking as a principal use '--x-~_x_~_x _ _c_x_~_x_--'-i-~ 
] I u~--- __ ---,--J 

I
' Public and private utility I ' J : -' I 

I'~ 
distribution serving shoreline p 1'.'

1 

p p [ p p CU I, , 

uses, water, sewer, electrical, , , 
gas, and communication 1 

Pul)lic and private utility j 1' i P I P I I 

f---~h_i~-tr-~~-t~-t-io_n_s_e_r_v_in_g_u_s_e_s_w_i-th-in--+· -P--+
1 _P_-+-J. -±~---1-P CU 

1 

Utility facilities serving uses not CU CU \ CU I cu i cu I cu l_cu j 

within the City . I .. 
Electrical transmission of_g,_re ___ a_te_r_l--cu •. 

1 

cu I cu I cu 1

1

,, cu !' cu ·,, cu 

I 

than 50 Kilovolts 

-· Gas transm'1ss'1on larger than 6 - ' 
cu,cul cul , .• cu c.ul'cu

1
cu 

1 
, inches in diameter .. 

1---o;;-~rother pipeli~~s I cu _cu I cu CU I 
f---':2'- ' -- II 

'--' --~-t~_ili_?_b_u_i_ld-in_g_s_(_p_u_m_r_s~a-tio_n_s_,_-+---+---J----+1-c_u __ -+[_c_.u_ cu cu 
1 
I 

, L _E_le_c_t_ri_ca_l_s_u_b_s_ta_t_io_n_s _____ ~'i ___ ~--~-·---j CU X )( X I 
I -

'[ Consistent with or Comparison to: 

I The SM~ Update is .. consistent with State Law. ----·--

' Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

I, Move to contmue Public Hearing to Jm1e 24, 2014 Prosser City Council Meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

I Review SMP and SMP Ordinances. 

~~;~~:~~by Department-~-R-ev_i_e_w_e_d_b-y-C-it-v-At_t_o_rn_e_y_:_r_A u-~-~-r_o_ Av-~-b· /~--M-a-vo_r_: ___ -i 

"""~::;;;~--i. ··=:2-·- r~vo I 

Date: Ii Date: fj--; ;£; Date:~ ,--LJ -/'1 
1

1 

j.foday's Date: Revision Nmn er/Date: File Name and Path: 
I 

lM:~~~~4. _______ l 

177



City of Prosser 
NOTICE OF 

PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Prosser, Washington, that 
the City Council will hold a Public Hearing on May 27, 2014, or as soon thereafter as possible, in 
the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 601 ih Street, Prosser, Washington, for the purpose of 
receiving public comment on updates to the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map. The City 
Hall Council Chambers is wheelchair accessible. American with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
accommodations are available upon request to the City Clerk at least 2 days in advance by 
calling (509) 786-2332. 

All available information and related documents for the application may be viewed at the City 
Clerk's Office, located at Prosser City Hall, 601 7th Street, Prosser, Washington, between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding official holidays and lunch 
hours between 11:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m., or may be viewed at www.cityofprosser.com. 

The person(s) receiving this notice may request a copy of the final decision in this matter. 

The final decisions may be appealed in accordance with the Land Use Petition Act (RCW 
36.70C). 

Dated: April 22, 2014 

Rachel Shaw,CMC 
City Clerk 
City of Prosser 

Published: Prosser Record Bulletin 
Publish Date: April 30, 2014 

178



179



180



City of Prosser 

Shoreline Master Program January 2014 

This Shoreline Master Plan consists of three elements: 

Amendments to the City of Prosser Comprehensive Plan Section I 

Section II 

Section Ill 

Amendment of City of Prosser Code, Chapter 16.04 Shoreline Management 

Amendment of City of Prosser Code, Chapter 16.10 Critical Areas 

Note: 

Sections I and II are new provisions. 

Section 111 modifies existing code provisions. Changes from the existing code text are indicated 
in redline underlined format for insertions and strikeouts for deletions. 

Table of Contents 

Section I 

Section II 

Amendment of Comprehensive Plan ........................................................................... 3 

Amendment of City of Prosser Code Title 16. 04 Shoreline Management ................... 11 

16.04 Shoreline Management ............................................................................................... 11 

16.04.1 Purpose.............. . . . . .. . .. .. . . .. .. . . . . . .. .. . ... . . . . . . . . .. .. .. .. . ............................................. 11 

16.04.2 Shoreline Master Program Elements ............................................ . . .... 11 

16.04.3 Definitions ........................................... . . ................ ····· 12 

16.04.4 Shoreline Environment Designations ................................. . ···················· .... 19 

16.04.5 Shoreline Agribusiness ....................................................... . ·················· ...... 20 

16.04.6 Shoreline Agri-Tourism ................................................................ . ·············· 20 

16.04.7 Shoreline Commercial Environment ............................................................ . . ... 21 

16.04.8 Shoreline Industrial Environment ................................................................ . . ... 21 

16.04.9 Shoreline Residential Environment .................... . . ..... 22 

16.04.10 Recreation Environment. ................................. . . ............... 23 

16.04.11 

16.04.12 

16.04.20 

16.04.21 

Urban Conservancy Environment ..................................................................... 23 

Aquatic Environment ......................................................................................... 24 

General Standards ......................................................................................... 24 

Shorelines of Statewide Significance .............. . ................ 24 

16.04.22 No Net Loss of Ecological Functions .............. . . ..... 25 

16.04.23 Critical Areas within Shoreline Jurisdiction ......................................................... 26 

16.04.24 Shoreline Vegetation Conservation .................................................................... 27 

16.04.25 

16.04.26 

City of Prosser 

Public Access .............................................. . 

Signs ....................................................................................................... . 

28 

32 

Shoreline Master Program 

181



16.04.27 

16.04.28 

16.04.29 

Archaeological and Historic Resources ............................................................. 32 

Water Quality, storm water, and nonpoint pollution ......................................... 33 

Boat and Vessel Facilities ...................................................................... . 34 

16.04.30 Shoreline Modification Regulations ................................................................. 39 

16.04.31 Shoreline Stabilization .. .. . .. . .. .. .. .. .. . ............. .. ................................ 39 

16.04.32 

16.04.33 

16.04.34 

16.04.35 

16.04.36 

16.04.40 

16.04.41 

16.04.42 

16.04.43 

16.04.50 

16.04.51 

16.04.52 

16.04.53 

16.04.54 

16.04.55 

16.04.56 

16.04.57 

16.04.58 

16.04.59 

16.04.60 

16.04.61 

16.04.62 

16.04.63 

16.04.64 

16.04.65 

16.04.66 

16.04.67 

16.04.68 

16.04.69 

City of Prosser 

Breakwaters, Jetties, and Groins .. ................ 42 

Flood Hazard Management .. . .. ...... . .. ................................................. 43 

Clearing and Grading, Fill .................................................... .. ...................... 44 

Dredging and Dredge Material Disposal. ........................................................... 44 

In-Stream Structures ......................................................................................... 46 

Development Standards and Use Regulations ............. .. ............................. 47 

Permitted Use Table .................................................... . ............................ 47 

Shoreline Bulk Standards ...................................... . .... 52 

Shoreline Reach Performance Standards .................... . . ........................ 54 

Shoreline Use Performance Standards ..................... . . ......................... 58 

Agriculture ......................................................................................... .. . ... 58 

Aquaculture .................................................................................................... 58 

Marinas ................................................................................ . .................... 59 

Commercial Development.. ..................................................................... . . 61 

Industrial ................................. . .................... .................. . .. 63 

Recreation ..................................... . ..................... . ............................ 65 

Residential Development ............................................. . ............................ 66 

Transportation Facilities ............................ .. .................... 67 

Utilities .......................................................................................................... 70 

Shoreline Administration ................................................................................... 72 

Procedure ................ .. .................................................................................. 72 

Coordination with Other Agencies ....... .................... . ........................... 72 

Development Compliance............................... . ........... .... . .. ...... ... .. .. .. .. ..... . 73 

Shoreline Overlay . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .... . .. . .. .... . .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . ............... . 7 4 

Non-Conformities .............................................................................................. 7 4 

Exemption from Substantial Development Permit ......................... .. ····· 75 

Exemption Procedures . .. . .. . .. . .. .... . .. .. ... .. .. .. .... .. .. .. .... . .. .. .. .. . .. ...................... .. 79 

80 Land Division: .. . .. .. ... .. .. .. ... ... .. ........ ... .... . . .. ........... ... ..... .. .. ... .. ............... .. 

Approval Criteria ............ . ............... ···································· ···················· . 81 

2 Shoreline Master Program 

182



16.04.70 Written Findings Required .................................................. . 

16.04.71 

16.04.72 

16.04.73 

16.04.74 

16.04.75 

Construction Permit Compliance .................................................... . 

. ..... 81 

.. 81 

....... 82 

...... 82 

83 

. 83 

. ... 84 

Restoration Project Relocation of OHWM ................... .. 

Shoreline Permit Application Procedures ... 

Surety Devices .............................................. .. 

Conditional Use 

16.04. 76 Variances: ......... 

16.04. 77 Time Requirements for Shoreline Permits ....................................................... 85 

16.04. 78 Rulings to State . . . . .. .. . . . . .... .. .. ... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... . ....................... . .... 86 

16.04.79 Appeals.......................... . ............................................................................ 87 

16.04.80 Enforcement . .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. . .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . ................ 87 

16.04.81 

16.04.82 

Rescission of Permits ...................... .. ................................................... 87 

Violations and Penalties .. . . ........................................ 88 

16.04.83 Shoreline Moratorium ........................................ . .. . ....................... 88 

16.04.84 Administration Rules Promulgation .................................................................... 89 

16.04.85 Amendments Authorized............ . .................................................................... 89 

16.04.86 Amendments Adopted by City Council ............................................................... 89 

16.04.87 Initiation of Amendments.. ... ... ..... .. .. .. .. . .............................. . ................ 89 

16.04.88 Burden of proof.. ............................................................................................ 89 

16.04.89 Transmittal to the Department of Ecology .. .. . ......................................... 89 

Section Ill Amendment of City of Prosser Code Chapter 16.10 ................................................. 91 

16.10.120 Exception-Reasonable use.............................. .......................... . ..... 91 

16.10.130 General review process ........................................................................................ 91 

16.20.010 Designation, rating and mapping wetlands.................................... .. ... 91 

16.20.040 Performance standards-General requirements ................................................... 93 

16.20.050 Performance standards-Mitigation requirements .................................................... 95 

16.60.040 Performance standards-Specific habitats ............................................................... 96 

Section I Amendment of Comprehensive Plan 
The City of Prosser Comprehensive Plan is hereby amended to revise the Shoreline Management 

section to replace the text with the following. 

Shoreline Management 

The City of Prosser (City) recognizes the intent of the voters and the legislature of the State of 

Washington in adopting the "Shoreline Management Act of 1971" (SMA) and adopts by reference 

City of Prosser 3 Shoreline Master Program 

183



the finding that the shorelines of the state are among the most valuable and fragile of its natural 

resources and that there is great concern throughout the state relating to their utilization, protection, 

restoration, and preservation. In addition, it finds that ever increasing pressures of additional uses 

are being placed on the shorelines necessitating increased coordination in the management and 

development of the shorelines of the state. 

The SMA's paramount objectives are to protect and restore the valuable natural resources that 

shorelines represent and to plan for and foster all "reasonable and appropriate uses" that are 

dependent upon a waterfront location or that offer opportunities for the public to enjoy the state's 

shorelines. With this clear mandate, the provisions of the SMA established a planning and 

regulatory program which is initiated at the local level under state guidance. 

This cooperative effort balances local and state-wide interests in the management and development 

of shoreline areas. Local governments are required to plan for shoreline development by developing 

local shoreline master programs (SMPs). They are also required to regulate such development 

through a shoreline permit system for substantial development projects. 

Local government actions are monitored by the State of Washington Department of Ecology 

(Ecology), which approves new or amended SMPs, reviews substantial development permits, and 

approves conditional use permits and variances. The master program is essentially a shoreline 

comprehensive plan and regulations with a distinct orientation toward shoreline areas and 

customized to local circumstances. Collectively, the local master programs comprise the State 

Shoreline Master Program. 

The City developed and adopted its first shoreline master program with the help of a citizen 

advisory group in 1973. The Master Program was subsequently amended several times during the 

intervening years. For the current comprehensive update, the City has conducted a comprehensive 

inventory of the natural characteristics, present land uses, and patterns of ownership along the 

City's shoreline that provides a substantial information base for understanding ecological functions 

and other considerations for the update of this Master Program. The City, with the involvement of its 

local citizens, agencies, and interested parties, has developed this Shoreline Master Program to 

serve as both a planning guide and resource for specific regulations pertaining to development and 

use of the shorelines in City of Prosser. Included is a description of the goals, objectives, policies, 

environments designations, use regulations, and provisions for administration including variances 

and conditional uses. 

City of Prosser 4 Shoreline Master Program 

184



Prosser shorelines consist of the Yakima River shoreline. This includes floodways, land within 200 

feet of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) of the waterways; floodplains up to 200 feet from the 

f\oodway edge; and associated wetlands. The City has chosen to include the minimum shoreline 

jurisdiction required according to the State law (RCW 90.58.030). 

Shoreline Goals and Policies 
Goal: Shoreline Use Element 

SH1 Ensure appropriate conservation and development of the City of Prosser's shorelines 

by allowing those uses which are water-dependent, as well as other development 

which provides an opportunity for a substantial number of people to enjoy the 

shorelines. This should be done in a manner which will achieve an orderly balance of 

shoreline uses that improves the quality of the environment. 

Policies 

SH1 .1 Ensure that all uses and developments do not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological 

functions. 

SH-1.2 Accommodate water-dependent and associated water-related uses that are the highest 

priority for shorelines unless protection of the existing natural resource values of such 

areas precludes such uses. 

SH-1.3 Accommodate water-related and water-enjoyment uses that are compatible with ecological 

protection and restoration objectives are the second highest priority. 

SH1 .4 Limit non-water-oriented uses to those locations where access to the water is not practical 

or where the non-water-oriented use contributes to the objectives of the SMA in providing 

ecological restoration and public access. 

SH-1.5 Reserve the shoreline areas for uses which allow optimal uses for future generations by 

recognition and of potential long-term benefits to the public, and discouragement of 

short-term gain or convenience. 

SH-1.6 Provide site development performance standards and other appropriate criteria to 

developers indicating acceptable standards to be achieved. 

SH-1.6 Allow multiple uses of shoreline areas where integration of compatible uses or activities is 

feasible. 

City of Prosser 5 Shoreline Master Program 

185



SH-1.9 Allow uses, on a specified interim basis, which are not shoreline related, if not permanent 

and if not requiring permanent modifications of natural shorelines. 

SH- 1.10 Respect private property owner's rights when drafting development regulations for use of 

the shorelines. 

Goal: Shoreline Economic Development Element 

SH-2 Give priority to those industrial, commercial, and recreational developments that are 
particularly dependent on their location on the City of Prosser's shoreline. Encourage 
development that will provide the public with an opportunity to enjoy the shorelines. 
No net loss of ecological function is envisioned in the implementation of this goal. 

Policies 

SH-2. 1. Minimize the adverse effects of new commercial, industrial, and recreational development 

upon the physical environment and natural processes, through careful siting and design. 

SH-2.2 Locate commercial and industrial development as infill in areas already developed as a 

first priority, so long as such areas have not reached their functional capacity. 

SH 2.3. Locate new commercial, industrial, and recreational activities in areas with existing public 

services as a second priority. 

SH 2.4 Provide for effective flood protection for the City of Prosser. 

Goal: Circulation Element 

SH-3 Develop safe, convenient, and diversified shoreline circulation systems to assure 
efficient movement of goods and people with minimum disruptions to the shoreline 
environment and minimum conflict between the different users. 

Policies 

SH-3. 1 Locate and design major circulation systems well away from the shoreline, except for 

necessary crossings, so that natural shorelines remain substantially unmodified. 

SH-3.2 Encourage existing corridors for transportation facilities along shorelines to better 

accommodate public access to the shoreline and provide safe overcrossings to shoreline 

public access facilities. 

SH 3.3 Encourage joint uses of any necessary roads. 

SH 3.4 Encourage alternate modes of transportation such as pedestrian and bicycle to the 

shoreline. 

City of Prosser 6 Shoreline Master Program 

186



Goal: Restoration and Conservation Element 

SH-4 Assure protection, preservation, and restoration of City of Prosser's, fragile and 
scenic nonrenewable resources, while encouraging the best management practices 
to assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

Policies 

SH-4.1 Existing natural resources should be conserved through regulatory and non-regulatory 

means that may include: 

• Implementation of the Comprehensive Plan, local development regulations, and state, 

tribal, and federal programs; 

• Regulation of development within the shoreline jurisdiction; 

• Ecologically sound design; 

• Restoration programs; and 

• Education programs. 

SH-4.2 Provide for the use of shoreline and floodplain-related resources without harming other 

natural systems or the overall quality of the natural environment. 

SH-4.3 Effectively manage natural features and resources as well as scenic vistas, parkways, and 

habitats of rare or endangered species. 

SH-4-4 Preserve the scenic and aesthetic qualities of shorelines, floodplains, and vistas. 

SH-4-5 Provide for restoration of degraded ecological functions through appropriate regulations 

including emphasis on non-water-dependent uses and as part of publicly-funded facilities. 

Goal: Public Access Element 

SH-5 Ensure safe, convenient, and diversified access for the public to the publicly-owned 
shorelines of the City of Prosser and assure that the intrusions created by public 
access will recognize the rights of private property owners, and will not adversely 
affect fragile natural areas. 

Policies 

SH-5.1 Public access should be provided consistent with the existing character of the shoreline 

and with consideration of opportunities and constraints for physical and visual access, as 

well as consideration of ecological functions and public safety. 

City of Prosser 7 Shoreline Master Program 

187



SH-5.2 Public access to and along the water's edge should be available throughout 

publicly-owned shoreline areas, although direct physical access to the water's edge may 

be restricted to protect shoreline ecological values. 

SH-5.3 Future developments and redevelopments shall not adversely affect existing public 

access, and should provide new opportunities for the public to reach, touch, and enjoy the 

water's edge. 

SH-5.4 Locate, design, develop and maintain public access in a manner that enhances the natural 

environment. 

SH-5.5 Purchase, or otherwise make available to the public, shoreline properties if their value for 

public use merits such action. 

SH-5.6. Existing highway and railroad corridors along shorelines should better accommodate 

public access to the shoreline and provide safe overcrossings to shoreline public access 

facilities. 

SH-5.7 Coordinate shoreline public access with local, state, and federal agencies. 

SH-5.8 Respect and protect the enjoyment of private rights in shoreline property when considering 

public access development. 

Goal: Recreational Element 

SH-6 Provide additional opportunities for diverse forms of public recreation and 
improvement of present facilities. 

Policies 

SH-6.1 Identify, obtain, preserve, and protect areas with high values for recreation. 

SH-6.2 Consider allowing recreational uses as part of private development where compatible with 

other uses and activities. 

SH-6.3 Provide a balanced choice of recreational opportunities, including those requirements of 

the elderly and the physically challenged. 

SH-6.4 Cultivate innovative and cooperative techniques among public agencies and private 

persons or groups which increase and diversify recreation opportunities. 

City of Prosser 8 Shoreline Master Program 

188



SH-6.5 Allow compatible recreational uses including bicycle and foot paths in transportation and 

utility corridors where feasible. 

SH-6-6 Locate, design, and operate recreation facilities in a manner consistent with the purpose of 

the environment designation in which they are located so that no net loss of shoreline 

ecological functions or ecosystem-wide processes result. 

SH-6. 7 Coordinate with local, state, and federal agencies so that shoreline recreational 

developments are consistent with the City and Regional Parks Recreation, Open Space 

and Trails Plan. 

Goal: Historical/Cultural Element 

SH-7 Protect, preserve, and encourage restoration of those sites and areas on the 
shoreline which have significant historical, cultural, educational, or scientific value. 

Policies 

SH-7.1 Identify historic, cultural, and archaeological resources within the shoreline in cooperation 

with federal, state, local, and tribal agencies. 

SH-7.2 Plan for preservation of significant historic, scientific, and educational areas of the 

shoreline while providing for public use and enjoyment of such areas. 

SH-7.3 Preserve for the public benefit, with opportunity for appropriate public utilization, significant 

historic, scientific, and educational areas of the shoreline. 

SH-7.4 Ensure that the review and construction of development permits includes professional 

assessment of historic, cultural, and archaeological resources and that such resources are 

preserved or conserved in compliance with applicable laws. 

Goal: Flood Hazard Element 

SH-8 To minimize flood hazards to human life and to property while enhancing the 
ecological processes of the shoreline. 

Policies 

SH-8.1 Manage flood protection through implementation of the City's Comprehensive Plan, 

stormwater regulations, and the regional flood hazard control plans for the Yakima River. 

SH-8-2 Protect existing development and restore floodplain and channel migration functions to the 

extent feasible. 

City of Prosser 9 Shoreline Master Program 

189



SH-8.3 Integrate bioengineering and/or soft engineering approaches where feasible into local and 

regional flood control measures, infrastructure, and related capital improvement projects. 

SH-8.4 Prohibit development within the floodplains associated with the City's shorelines that 

would individually or cumulatively result in an increase to the risk of flood damage while 

preserving the rights of individual property owners. 

SH-8.5 Support measures to increase the natural functions of floodplains including flood storage, 

off-channel habitat, associated wetlands, and buffers of native vegetation. 

City of Prosser 10 Shoreline Master Program 
190



Section II Amendment of City of Prosser Code Title 16.04 Shoreline 
Management 

The City of Prosser Code Chapter 16.04 Shoreline Management is hereby amended to adopt the 

following and replace the existing chapter in its entirety. 

16.04 Shoreline Management 

16.04.1 Purpose 

A. The City adopts the goals and principles of the Shoreline Management Act (SMA) as provided in 

RCW 90.58.020. 

B. The shoreline is one of the most valuable and fragile of the City's natural resources. 

C. There is a clear and urgent demand for a planned, rational, and concerted effort, jointly 

performed by federal, state, and local governments, to prevent the inherent harm in an 

uncoordinated and piecemeal development within the City's shoreline jurisdiction. 

D. The City's shoreline policies are intended to protect against adverse effects to the public health, 

to the land and its vegetation and wildlife, and to the waters of the state and their aquatic life, 

while generally protecting public rights of navigation and corollary rights incidental thereto. 

E. These policies are intended to preserve the public's opportunity to enjoy the physical and 

aesthetic qualities of natural shorelines to the greatest extent feasible consistent with the overall 

best interest of the state, the City, and the people generally. To this end, uses shall be preferred 

which are consistent with control of pollution, prevention of damage to the natural environment, 

or are unique to or dependent upon use of the state's shoreline. 

16.04.2 Shoreline Master Program Elements 

The Shoreline Master Program consists of the following elements: 

A. Comprehensive Plan Policies Shoreline Element. 

B. Regulations in City of Prosser Code (PMC) Chapter 18.08 Shoreline Management Regulations. 

C. Critical Area Regulations in PMC Chapters 16.10 through 16.60 as herein amended. 

D. The Shoreline Restoration Element of the Shoreline Master Plan on file in the office of the City 

Clerk and made available for examination by the general public, shall not be considered to 

contain regulations but shall be utilized as a guideline for capital improvements planning by the 

City and other jurisdictions undertaking ecological restoration activities within Shoreline 

Management Act jurisdiction. 

City of Prosser 11 Shoreline Master Program 

191



E. The Shoreline Environment Overlay Map on file in the office of the City Clerk and made 

available for examination by the general public. 

16.04.3 Definitions 

A. "A" Definitions: 

1) "Administrator" means the city administrator or the administrator's designee who has been 

charged with the responsibility of administering this title. 

2) "Agriculture" or "Agricultural activities" means agricultural uses and practices including, but 

not limited to: Producing, breeding, or increasing agricultural products; rotating and 

changing agricultural crops; allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie fallow (plowed 

and tilled, but left unseeded); allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie dormant as a 

result of adverse agricultural market conditions; allowing land used for agricultural activities 

to lie dormant because the land is enrolled in a local, state, or federal conservation program, 

or the land is subject to a conservation easement; conducting agricultural operations; 

maintaining, repairing, and replacing agricultural equipment; maintaining, repairing, and 

replacing agricultural facilities, provided that the replacement facility is no closer to the 

shoreline than the original facility; and maintaining agricultural lands under production or 

cultivation. 

3) Agricultural equipment and agricultural facilities includes, but is not limited to: 

a. The following used in agricultural operations: Equipment; machinery; constructed 

shelters, buildings, and ponds; fences; upland finfish rearing facilities; water diversion, 

withdrawal, conveyance, and use equipment and facilities including but not limited to 

pumps, pipes, tapes, canals, ditches, and drains; 

b. Corridors and facilities for transporting personnel, livestock, and equipment to, from, and 

within agricultural lands; 

c. Farm residences and associated equipment, lands, and facilities; and 

d. Roadside stands and on-farm markets for marketing fruit or vegetables. 

1) "Aquaculture" means the culture or farming of food fish, shellfish, or other aquatic plants and 

animals. 

2) "Average grade level" means the average of the natural or existing topography of the portion 

of the lot, parcel, or tract of real property which will be directly under the proposed building 

or structure: In the case of structures to be built over water, average grade level shall be the 

elevation of the ordinary high water mark. Calculation of the average grade level shall be 

made by averaging the ground elevations at the midpoint of all exterior walls of the 

proposed building or structure; 

City of Prosser 12 Shoreline Master Program 

192



B. "B" Definitions: 

3) "Bioengineering" means the use of biological elements, such as the planting of vegetation, 

often in conjunction with engineered systems, to provide a structural shoreline stabilization 

measure with minimal negative impact to the shoreline ecology. 

4) "Boating facility" for the purposes of the Shoreline Master Program means any public or 

private facility for mooring, storing, or transfer of materials from vessels on the water, such 

as docks and piers, including on-land related facilities such as approaches and ramps and 

includes any private and publicly accessible launch sites or facilities. A boating facility does 

not include on-land accessory facilities such as parking or storage. 

5) "Buffer" means an area adjacent to a critical area that, functions to avoid loss or diminution 

of the ecologic functions and values of the critical area. Specifically, a buffer may: 

a. Preserve the ecologic functions and values of a system, including but not limited to 

providing microclimate conditions, shading, input of organic material and sediments, 

room for variation and changes in natural wetland, river, or stream characteristics, 

providing for habitat for lifecycle stages of species normally associated with the 

resource; and 

b. Physically isolate a critical area such as a wetland, river, or stream from potential 

disturbance and harmful intrusion from surrounding uses using distance, height, visual 

and/or sound barriers, and generally including dense native vegetation, but also may 

include man-made features such as fences and other barriers; 

c. Act to minimize risk to the public from loss of life, well-being, or property damage 

resulting from natural disasters such as from landslide or flooding. 

6) "Building height in Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction" only means the vertical distance 

between average grade and the highest part of the coping of a flat roof, or the deck line of a 

mansard roof, or the average height of the highest gable of a pitched or hipped roof. The 

height of a stepped or terraced building is the maximum height of any segment of the 

building. 

7) "Bulkhead" means a structure of timber, concrete, steel, rock or similar substance located 

parallel to the shore, which has as its primary purpose to contain and prevent the loss of soil 

by erosion, wave, or current action. 

C. "C" Definitions: 

1) "Channel migration zone" means the area along a river within which the channel(s) can be 

reasonably predicted to migrate over time as a result of natural and normally occurring 

hydrological and related processes when considered with the characteristics of the river and 

its surroundings. For the purpose of this code the CMZ excludes areas separated from the 

active river channel by legally existing artificial structures that are likely to restrain channel 

City of Prosser 13 Shoreline Master Program 

193



migration, including but not limited to flood control facilities, transportation facilities, and 

structures built above or constructed to remain intact through the one hundred-year flood. 

2) "Cumulative impacts" are the results of incremental actions when added to past, present, 

and reasonably foreseeable future actions. Cumulative impacts can be deemed substantial 

and subject to mitigation conditions even though they may be comprised of individual 

actions having relatively minor impacts. 

D. "D" Definitions: 

3) "Dredging" is the removal of earth, sand, gravel, silt, or debris from below the OHWM of any 

river, stream, pond, late or other water body and beneath the area of seasonal saturation of 

any wetland. 

E. "E" Definitions: 

1) "Ecological function" means the work performed or role played by the physical, chemical, 

and biological processes that contribute to the maintenance of the aquatic and terrestrial 

environments that constitute an element of a natural ecosystem. 

F. "F" Definitions: 

1) "Fair market value" means the open market bid price for conducting construction the work, 

using the equipment and facilities, and purchase of the goods, services and materials 

necessary to accomplish the development. This would normally equate to the cost of hiring 

a contractor to undertake the development from start to finish, including the cost of labor, 

materials, equipment and facility usage, transportation and contractor overhead and profit. 

The fair market value of the development shall include the fair market value of any donated, 

contributed, or found labor, equipment, or materials. 

2) "Feasible" means that an action, such as a development project, mitigation, or restoration 

requirement, meets all of the following conditions: 

a. The action can be accomplished with technologies and methods that have been used in 

the past in similar circumstances, or studies or tests have demonstrated in similar 

circumstances that such approaches are currently available and likely to achieve the 

intended results; 

b. The action provides a reasonable likelihood of achieving its intended purpose; and 

c. The action does not physically preclude achieving the project's primary intended legal 

use. 

d. In cases where these guidelines require certain actions unless they are infeasible, the 

burden of proving infeasibility is on the applicant. In determining an action's infeasibility, 

City of Prosser 14 Shoreline Master Program 

194



the City may weigh the action's relative public costs and public benefits, considered in 

short- and long-term time frames. 

3) "Fill" means earth or any other substance or material placed in or on the ground, including 

earth retaining structures. 

4) "Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas 

that either: 

a. Has been established in Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) or floodway maps; or 

b. Consists of those portions of a river valley lying waterward from the outer limits of a 

watercourse upon which flood waters are carried during periods of flooding that occur 

with reasonable regularity, although not necessarily annually, said floodway being 

identified, under normal conditions, by changes in surface soil conditions or changes in 

types or quality of vegetative ground cover condition, topography, or other indicators of 

flooding that occurs with reasonable regularity, although not necessarily annually. 

c. Regardless of the method used to identify the floodway, the floodway shall not include 

those lands that can reasonably be expected to be protected from flood waters by flood 

risk reduction devices maintained by or maintained under license from the federal 

government, the state, or a political subdivision of the state. 

G. "G" Definitions: 

1) "Geotechnical report or geotechnical analysis" means a scientific study or evaluation 

conducted by a qualified expert that includes a description of the ground and surface 

hydrology and geology; estimates of susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other 

geological events; and the extent of risk to the health and safety of persons and property. 

Such a report shall include conclusions and recommendations regarding the effect of the 

proposed development on geologic conditions, the adequacy of the site to be developed, the 

impacts of the proposed development, alternative approaches to the proposed development, 

and measures to mitigate potential site-specific and cumulative geological and hydrological 

impacts of the proposed development, including the potential adverse impacts to adjacent 

and down-current properties. Geotechnical reports shall conform to accepted technical 

standards and must be prepared by qualified professional engineers or geologists who have 

professional expertise about the regional and local geology and processes. 

H. "H" Definitions: 

1) High Water Mark - see "Ordinary High Water Mark" 

City of Prosser 15 Shoreline Master Program 

195



I. "I" Definitions: 

1) "In-stream structures" function for the impoundment, diversion, or use of water for 

hydroelectric generation and transmission (including both public and private facilities), flood 

control, irrigation, water supply (both domestic and industrial), recreation, or fisheries 

enhancement 

J. "L" Definitions: 

1) "Local utility" means public or private utilities normally servicing a neighborhood or defined 

subarea in the City, e.g., telephone exchanges; sanitary sewer; stormwater facilities; 

distribution lines, electrical distribution less than fifty five (55) kV, telephone, cable TV, etc. 

K. "M" Definitions: 

1) "Marina" means any commercial or club-owned facility consisting of docks or piers serving 

five or more vessels or a shared moorage serving a subdivision serving ten or more vessels. 

2) "Mining" means the removal of sand, gravel, soil, minerals, and other earth materials for 

commercial and other uses. 

3) "Mixed use" within an area subject to the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act 

means a combination of compatible uses within one development, in which water-oriented 

and non-water-oriented uses are included. 

4) "Multiple use" means a combination of compatible uses within one development, and may 

include commercial, multi-family, and recreation uses among others. 

L. "N" Definitions: 

1) ) ) "Nonconforming use or development" means a shoreline use or development which was 

lawfully constructed or established prior to the effective date of the act or the applicable 

master program, or amendments thereto, or upon annexation, but which does not conform 

to present regulations or standards of the program. 

2) "No net loss of ecological functions" is the maintenance of existing ecological processes and 

functions at the level that existed at the time of approval of relevant policies and regulations. 

a. No net loss of ecological functions on the level of the City means that the ecological 

processes and functions are maintained within a watershed or other functional 

catchment area. Regulations may result in localized cumulative impacts or loss of some 

localized ecological processes and functions, as long as the ecological processes and 

functions of the system are maintained. Maintenance of system ecological processes 

and functions may require compensating measures that offset localized degradation. 

City of Prosser 16 Shoreline Master Program 

196



b. On a project basis, no net loss means that permitted use or alteration of a site will not 

result in on-site or off-site deterioration of the existing condition of ecological functions 

that existed prior to initiation of use or alterations as a direct or indirect result of the 

project. 

c. No net loss is achieved both through avoidance and minimization of adverse impacts as 

well as compensation for impacts that cannot be avoided. Compensation may include 

on-site or off-site restoration of ecological functions to compensate for localized 

degradation. 

3) "Non-Water-Dependent Use" means those uses which are not water-dependent. 

4) "Non-Water-Oriented Use" means those uses which are not water-dependent, water-related, 

or water-enjoyment. 

M. "O" Definitions: 

1) "Open space" means an area that is intended to provide light and air, view, use or passage 

of persons or animals which is almost entirely unobstructed by buildings, paved areas, or 

other man-made structures and is designed or preserved for environmental, habitat, scenic 

or recreational purposes. 

2) "Ordinary high water mark" (or OHWM) means the mark on all lakes and streams that will be 

found by examining the beds and banks and ascertaining where the presence and action of 

waters are so common and usual, and so long continued in all ordinary years, as to mark 

upon the soil a character distinct from that of the abutting upland and vegetation, as that 

condition existed on June 1, 1971, for all lands under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline 

Management Act, or for other .lands on the effective date of the relevant provisions of this 

code, or as it may naturally change thereafter, or as it may change thereafter in accordance 

with permits issued by the City or other authorized jurisdictions. In any area where the 

ordinary high water mark cannot be found, it shall be defined in accordance with WAC 

173-22-030, generally the line of the mean higher high tide in areas adjoining salt water, and 

the line of mean high water in areas adjoining freshwater. 

N. "P" Definitions: 

1) "Pier" means docks and similar structures consisting of a fixed or floating platform extending 

from the shore over the water. This definition does not include overwater trails. 

2) "Public access" means physical and/or visual approach to and along the shoreline available 

to the general public. 

0. "R" Definitions: 

City of Prosser 17 Shoreline Master Program 
197



1) "Recreation areas or facilities" means any privately or publicly owned passive or active 

facility that provides for activities undertaken for pleasure or relaxation and for the 

refreshment of the mind and body that takes place in the outdoors or in a facility dedicated 

to the use including walking, fishing, photography, viewing, and bird-watching and may 

include parks, playgrounds, sports fields, paths and trails, beaches, or other recreation 

areas or facilities. 

P. "S" Definitions: 

1) "Shorelands or shoreland areas" means those lands under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline 

Management Act extending landward for two hundred (200) feet in all directions as 

measured on a horizontal plane from the ordinary high water mark; floodways and 

contiguous floodplain areas landward two hundred (200) feet from such floodways; and all 

wetlands and river deltas associated with the streams, lakes, and tidal waters that are 

subject to the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act RCW 90.58.030; the same to be 

designated as to location by the Department of Ecology. 

2) "Shoreline areas" mean all "shorelines of the state" and "shorelands." 

3) "Shoreline Stabilization" means structural and nonstructural methods to address erosion 

impacts to property and dwellings, businesses, or structures caused by natural processes, 

such as currents, floods, tides, wind, or wave action. 

4) "Should" means, in areas that are subject to the provisions of the Shoreline Management 

Act RCW 90.58.030; that a particular action is required unless there is a demonstrated, 

compelling reason, based on policy of the Shoreline Management Act and this chapter, 

against taking the action. The Administrator, in consultation with Ecology, shall make the 

determination about whether or not an applicant has demonstrated that there is a compelling 

reason against taking an action. 

Q. "W" Definitions: 

1) "Water-dependent use" means a use or portion of a use which cannot exist in a location that 

is not adjacent to the water and which is dependent on the water by reason of the intrinsic 

nature of its operations. 

2) "Water-enjoyment use" means a recreational use or other use that facilitates public access 

to the shoreline as a primary characteristic of the use; or a use that provides for enjoyment 

or recreational use of the shoreline for a substantial number of people as a general 

characteristic of the use and which through location, design, and operation ensures the 

public's ability to enjoy the visual and physical qualities of the shoreline. In order to qualify 

as a water-enjoyment use, the use must be open to the general public and the 

City of Prosser 18 Shoreline Master Program 
198



shoreline-oriented space within the project must be devoted to the specific aspects of the 

use that fosters shoreline enjoyment. 

3) "Water-oriented use" means a use that is water-dependent, water-related, or 

water-enjoyment, or a combination of such uses. 

4) "Water-related use" means a use or portion of a use which is not intrinsically dependent on a 

waterfront location, but whose economic viability is dependent upon a waterfront location 

because: 

a. The use has a functional requirement for a waterfront location such as the arrival or 

shipment of materials by water or the need for large quantities of water; or 

b. The use provides a necessary service supportive of the water-dependent uses and the 

proximity of the use to its customers makes its services less expensive and/or more 

convenient. 

5) "Wetlands" or "wetland areas means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface 

or groundwater at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal 

circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in saturated soil 

conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs and similar areas. Wetlands 

do not include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites, including, 

but not limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention 

facilities, wastewater treatment facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities, or those 

wetlands created after July 1, 1990, that were unintentionally created as a result of the 

construction of a road, street, or highway. Wetlands may include those artificial wetlands 

intentionally created from nonwetland areas to mitigate the conversion of wetlands. For 

identifying and delineating a regulated wetland, the methodology specified by the 

Department of Ecology shall be utilized. 

6) "Wetlands, Associated jurisdictional wetlands are those wetlands that are in proximity to and 
either influence or are influenced by shoreline areas" subject to the Shoreline Management 
Act. 

7) "Wetland identification and delineation" Identification of wetlands and delineation of their 
boundaries pursuant to this chapter shall be done in accordance with WAC 173-22-035 and 
the approved federal wetland delineation manual and applicable regional supplements. 

16.04.4 Shoreline Environment Designations 

Shoreline areas are classified into specific environment designations based on the existing use 

pattern, the biological and physical character of the shoreline, and the goals and aspirations of the 

City of Prosser 19 Shoreline Master Program 

199



community as expressed through the City of Prosser Comprehensive plan. Lands not designated 

are assigned an Urban Conservancy environment designation. 

16.04.5 Shoreline Agribusiness 

A Purpose. The purpose of this district is to designate land within shoreline jurisdiction best suited 

for commercial or industrial agricultural businesses, including agriculture and agricultural 

products processing and to preserve land best suited for eventual urban development. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Agribusiness Environment is designated in those areas 

within the City limits and Urban Growth Area designated in the Comprehensive Plan as 

Agribusiness. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and 

water-enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with 

or limit opportunities for water oriented uses or on sites where there is no direct access to 

the shoreline, and where public access and ecological restoration are provided. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual or physical public access to shorelines will be required as a condition of development 

where appropriate. 

4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

16.04.6 Shoreline Agri-Tourism 

A Purpose. The purpose of this district is to designate land within shoreline jurisdiction best suited 

for commercial and other uses that attracts and serves visitors to the agricultural amenities of 

the region, including but not limited to the agriculture, wineries, microbreweries, limited 

agriculture-related manufacture, processing and sale; resorts, hotels, and other lodging 

facilities; and restaurants. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Agri-Tourism Environment is designated in those areas 

within the city limits and Urban Grow1h Area designated as Agri-Tourism. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and 

water-enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with 

City of Prosser 20 Shoreline Master Program 
200



or limit opportunities for water oriented uses or on sites where there is no direct access to 

the shoreline and where public access and ecological restoration are provided. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual and/or physical public access will be required as a condition of development. 

4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

16.04.7 Shoreline Commercial Environment 

A. Purpose. The Shoreline Commercial designation is intended to accommodate various 

commercial operations located in the shoreline jurisdiction. The designation is suitable for 

existing and future high intensity water-oriented uses and water-oriented commercial uses. A 

more limited range of commercial uses is appropriate in the shoreline, as compared to the wide 

range of uses allowed elsewhere in the City. Commercial development that enhances visual and 

physical public access to the shoreline is encouraged. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Commercial Environment is designated in those areas within the city 

limits and Urban Growth Area designated in the Comprehensive Plan for commercial 

development. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and 

water-enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with 

or limit opportunities for water-oriented uses or on sites and in conjunction with providing 

public access and ecological restoration. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual and/or physical public access will be required as a condition of development. 

4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

16.04.8 Shoreline Industrial Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Shoreline Industrial Environment is to provide for industrial 

activities where infrastructure such as transportation, utilities, and other services exist or are 

City of Prosser 21 Shoreline Master Program 
201



planned to support such uses, and where sites are not adjacent to commercially-navigable 

waters. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Industrial Environment is designated for areas within the city limits or 

Urban Growth Area designated for industrial development in the Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent and water-related uses in that order of preference. Non

water-oriented uses are appropriate because of the limited range of potential 

water-dependent uses; however, a limited range of uses should be allowed within shoreline 

jurisdiction. 

2) To be approved, non-water-oriented uses on sites adjacent to the water must provide public 

benefit in the form of ecological enhancement and public access. 

3) No net loss of shoreline ecological functions shall result from development of a site. Where 

applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup and restoration of the 

shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

4) Physical public access should be required as provided for in appropriate policies and 

regulations of this program. 

5) Aesthetic objectives of this program should be implemented by means such as sign control 

regulations, appropriate development siting, height limits, screening, and and maintenance 

of natural vegetative buffers 

16.04.9 Shoreline Residential Environment 

A Purpose. The purpose of the Shoreline Residential Environment is to maintain areas which are 

currently primarily residential or intended for residential use. This designation will maintain the 

intended character of different residential areas designated by the comprehensive plan and 

provide a variety of residential opportunities The density and character of development will 

require consistency in terms of open space, bulk, scale, and intensity of use with the provisions 

of the Comprehensive Plan and current zoning. This designation also provides appropriate 

public access and recreational uses. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Residential Environment is appropriate for those areas of 

the City's shorelines with a residential designation in the Comprehensive Plan and are 

characterized predominantly by residential development. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Standards for density or minimum frontage width, setbacks, lot coverage limitations, buffers, 

shoreline stabilization, vegetation conservation, critical area protection, and water quality 

shall be set to maintain no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

City of Prosser 22 Shoreline Master Program 
202



2) New residential developments shall provide public access where appropriate. 

16.04.10 Recreation Environment 

A. Purpose. The Recreation Environment is intended to provide areas for recreational and public 

access opportunities along Presser's shorelines. It is an appropriate designation for areas 

occupied by recreational purposes such as parks and marinas. An additional purpose is to 

maintain and restore ecological functions to the area and preserve open space within the City. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Recreation Environment is designated in those areas where public 

and private lands are devoted or designated for recreation use including parks and open space 

and water-dependent uses such as marinas which provide recreational moo rage. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Recreation development must balance the goal of enhancing recreational use of the 

shoreline and the goal of ecological stewardship ensuring no net loss of ecological function. 

2) Expanded recreational opportunities on the shoreline shall emphasize water-dependent and 

water-related uses including, but not limited to, boating, swimming, walking, hiking, and 

recreational sports. 

3) Recreational opportunities shall be accessible by all. 

4) Park management shall encourage ecological stewardship including, but not limited to, such 

measures as setting activity areas away from the water's edge and planting and maintaining 

native vegetation buffers along the water. 

16.04.11 Urban Conservancy Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Urban Conservancy Environment is to protect and restore 

ecological functions of open space, flood plain and other sensitive lands where they exist in the 

city while allowing a limited range of compatible uses. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Urban Conservancy Environment is designated in those areas of 

Prosser with a high level of ecologic functions with open space, flood plains or other sensitive 

areas that should not be more intensively developed; 

C. Management policies. 

1) Uses that preserve the natural character of the area or promote preservation of open space, 

flood plain or sensitive lands either directly or over the long term should be the primary 

allowed uses. 

2) Uses that result in restoration of ecological functions should be allowed if the use is 

otherwise compatible with the purpose of the environment and the setting. 

City of Prosser 23 Shoreline Master Program 
203



3) standards for shoreline stabilization measures, vegetation conservation, water quality, and 

shoreline modifications should ensure that new development does not result in a net loss of 

shoreline ecological functions or further degrade other shoreline values. 

4) Public access and public recreation objectives should be carefully controlled to avoid 

ecological impacts .. 

5) Water-oriented uses should be given priority over nonwater-oriented uses. 

16.04.12 Aquatic Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Aquatic Environment is to protect, restore, and manage the 

unique characteristics and resources of the areas waterward of the ordinary high water mark 

(OHWM). 

8. Designation Criteria. The Aquatic Environment is defined as the area waterward of the 

ordinary high water mark of all streams, rivers, and other water bodies constituting shorelines of 

the state, together with their underlying lands and their water column; but does not include 

associated wetlands and other shorelands shoreward of the ordinary high water mark. This 

designation is not found on the Shoreline Environment Map, but shall be assigned based on the 

description above. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Water-dependent uses and a limited range of water-oriented uses are allowed in the Aquatic 

Environment, subject to provision of shoreline ecological enhancement and public access. 

2) New over-water structures are allowed only to serve water-dependent uses, public access, 

or ecological restoration and should be limited to the minimum necessary to support the 

structure's intended use. 

3) Transportation and utility facilities and Essential Public Facilities may be allowed for which 

no alternative location is feasible. 

4) Ecological enhancement is an allowed and preferred use. 

16.04.20 General Standards 

This section shall apply to all development activities within the shoreline. 

16.04.21 Shorelines of Statewide Significance 

A. Applicability. The Shoreline Management Act of 1971 designated certain shoreline areas as 

shorelines of statewide significance. Within the City of Presser's jurisdiction, the Yakima River is 

a shoreline of statewide significance. Shorelines thus designated are important to the entire 

state. Because these shorelines are major resources from which all people in the state derive 

City of Prosser 24 Shoreline Master Program 
204



benefit, the City gives preference to uses which favor long-range goals and support the overall 

public interest. 

8. Decision Criteria. Every project located on a Shoreline of Statewide Significance, shall address 

the following in all permit reviews, in addition to other criteria provided by this program: 

Recognize and protect the statewide interest, including recognizing the following statewide 

interests specific to the Yakima River: 

1) Preserve the natural character of the shoreline and protect the resources and ecology of the 

shoreline: 

a. Protect and preserve existing diversity of vegetation and habitat values, wetlands, and 

riparian corridors associated with shoreline areas. 

b. Preserve and restore ecological functions, particularly those associated with endangered 

species, commercial and recreational fisheries, and tribal fishing rights. 

2) Result in long-term over short-term benefit: 

a. Promote water-oriented uses, particularly water-enjoyment uses. 

b. Evaluate the short-term economic gain or convenience of developments relative to 

potential long-term impairments to the natural shoreline and preserve resources and 

values for future generations. 

3) Increase public access to publicly-owned areas of the shorelines and increase recreational 

opportunities for the public in the shoreline: 

a. Promote recreational use and public access, including boat launches. 

b. Retain and enhance public access to the shoreline, including passive enjoyment, 

recreation, fishing, and other enjoyment of the shoreline and public waters consistent 

with the enjoyment of property rights of adjacent lands. 

c. Give priority to developing a system of continuous and parallel paths and trails along the 

shoreline and connecting to uplands to enhance access to the community as a whole. 

d. Reserve areas for water-enjoyment uses, restaurants with outside seating, and lodging 

and related uses that enhance the community's economic base while providing 

opportunities for the public to access and enjoy the shoreline. 

16.04.22 No Net Loss of Ecological Functions 

A. Shoreline land uses and activities that may have adverse impacts on the environment should be 

minimized during all phases of development (e.g., design, construction, management, and use) 

City of Prosser 25 Shoreline Master Program 
205



to ensure no net loss of ecological functions and processes. Permitted uses are designed and 

conducted to minimize, in so far as practical, any resultant damage to the ecology and 

environment (RCW 90.58.020). Shoreline ecological functions that shall be protected include, 

but are not limited to, fish and wildlife habitat, food chain support, and water temperature 

maintenance. Shoreline processes that shall be protected include, but are not limited to, water 

flow; erosion and accretion; infiltration; ground water recharge and discharge; sediment delivery, 

transport, and storage; large woody debris recruitment; organic matter input; nutrient and 

pathogen removal; and stream channel formation/maintenance. 

B. An application for any permit or approval shall demonstrate all reasonable efforts have been 

taken to provide sufficient mitigation such that the activity does not result in net loss of 

ecological functions. Mitigation shall occur in the following prioritized order: 

1) Avoiding the adverse impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts of an action, or 

moving the action. 

2) Minimizing adverse impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its 

implementation by using appropriate technology and engineering, or by taking affirmative 

steps to avoid or reduce adverse impacts. 

3) Rectifying the adverse impact by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected 

environment. 

4) Reducing or eliminating the adverse impact over time by preservation and maintenance 

operations during the life of the action. 

5) Compensating for the adverse impact by replacing, enhancing, or providing similar 

substitute resources or environments. Preference shall be given to measures that replace 

the impacted functions on-site or in the immediate vicinity of the impact. However, 

alternative compensatory mitigation within the watershed that addresses limiting factors or 

identified critical needs for shoreline resource conservation based on watershed or 

comprehensive resource management plans may be authorized. 

6) Monitoring the adverse impact and taking appropriate corrective measures. 

C. Applicants for permits have the burden of proving that the proposed development is consistent 

with the criteria set forth in the Shoreline Master Program and the SMA, including demonstrating 

all reasonable efforts have been taken to provide sufficient mitigation such that the activity does 

not result in net loss of ecological functions. 

16.04.23 Critical Areas within Shoreline Jurisdiction 

A. Critical Areas within the shoreline jurisdiction shall be regulated in accordance with the following 

provisions of PMC Chapter 16.10 Critical Areas, as amended by Section Ill of this ordinance: 

City of Prosser 26 Shoreline Master Program 

206



CRITICAL AREAS 

Sections: 

16.10 Critical Areas Protection-General Provisions 

16.20 Wetlands 

16.30 Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas 

16.40 Frequently Flooded Areas 

16.50 Geologically Hazardous Areas 

16.60 Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas 

16.04.24 Shoreline Vegetation Conservation 

A. In addition to the Critical Areas standards of PMC Chapter 16.20, the following shall apply to 

development on the shoreline: 

1) A vegetation management plan shall be required for all Critical Area buffer areas with 

degraded native vegetation within SMA jurisdiction to include: 

a. Maintain adequate cover of native vegetation including trees and understory. If a portion 

of the buffer has been cleared, or if tree cover is substantially less than a native climax 

vegetation community, supplemental plantings shall be required. 

b. Provide a dense screen of trees at the perimeter of the buffer to provide and protect 

ecological functions and reduce proximity impacts such as light and glare from adjacent 

areas. 

c. Provide a plan for control of invasive weeds, and removing existing invasive species for 

new plantings. 

d. Provide a monitoring and maintenance plan. This provision may be waived for single 

family residential lots. 

B. In cases where approved development results in unavoidable adverse impacts to existing 

shoreline vegetation, mitigation shall be required to ensure that there will be no net loss of the 

ecological functions. Mitigation shall take place on-site to the maximum extent feasible. 

Mitigation plans shall be completed before initiation of other permitted activities, unless a 

phased or concurrent schedule assuring completion prior to occupancy has been approved. 

City of Prosser 27 Shoreline Master Program 
207



C. Lawns and other non-native vegetation maintained within shoreline jurisdiction shall minimize 

use of chemical fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, or other similar substances. Such chemical 

treatments should generally not be applied within 10 feet of the OHWM and shall be applied in 

accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Applications in solid time release form shall 

be preferred over liquid or concentrate application. Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be 

implemented in all chemical applications. 

D. Aquatic weed management by prevention is the first priority. Where active removal or 

destruction is necessary, it should be the minimum required to allow water-dependent activities 

to continue, minimize negative impacts to native plant communities, and include appropriate 

handling or disposal of weed materials. 

1) Aquatic weed control shall only occur when native plant communities and associated 

habitats are threatened or where an existing water dependent use is restricted by the 

presence of weeds. Aquatic weed control shall occur in compliance with all other applicable 

laws and standards. 

2) The control of aquatic weeds by derooting, rotovating, or other method which disturbs the 

bottom sediment or benthos, shall be considered development for which a shoreline permit 

is required, unless it will maintain existing water depth for navigation in an area covered by a 

previous permit for such activity, in which case it shall be considered normal maintenance 

and repair and therefore exempt from the requirement to obtain a shoreline permit. 

3) Use of herbicides to control aquatic weeds shall be prohibited except where no reasonable 

alternative exists and weed control is demonstrated to be in the public's interest. A 

conditional use permit, and compliance with applicable federal and state laws shall be 

required. 

16.04.25 Public Access 

A. All developments requiring shoreline substantial development or conditional use permits, and all 

residential subdivision or development of more than four (4) lots or non-single family residential 

development, shall provide public access to the shoreline subject to the conditions in criteria (1) 

and (2) below: 

1) Alternatives to on-site public access may be approved in cases where the applicant 

demonstrates that one or more of the following provisions apply: 

a. Unavoidable health or safety hazards to the public would accompany public access that 

cannot be avoided by application of alternative design features or other solutions. 

b. Inherent security requirements of the use cannot be satisfied through the application of 

alternative design features. 

City of Prosser 28 Shoreline Master Program 
208



c. The cost of providing the access, easement, or an alternative amenity, or mitigating the 

impacts of public access, is unreasonably disproportionate to the total long-term cost of 

the proposed development. 

d. Unacceptable environmental harm will result from the public access that cannot be 

mitigated. 

e. Significant undue and unavoidable conflict between access provisions and the proposed 

use and/or adjacent uses would occur and cannot be mitigated. 

f. Public access is provided by a public entity through implementation of a public access 

plan incorporated into its master plan, developed through a public participation process 

and incorporated into this program. 

2) Based on documentation provided by the applicant, the City shall determine that all 

reasonable alternatives have been exhausted, including, but not limited to: 

a. Limiting the size or placement of public access facilities; 

b. Regulating access by such means as maintaining a gate and/or limiting hours of use; 

c. Designing separation of uses and activities (e.g., fences, terracing, use of one-way 

glazing, hedges, landscaping, etc.); and 

d. Providing for access at a site geographically separated from the proposal including 

contribution to regional trail or public access plans. 

B. The following activities generally are not required to provide public access, except as 

determined on a case-by-case basis as part of development review: 

1) Single family development of four (4) or fewer units 

2) Minor additions or changes to an existing use that does not change the configuration of the 

existing use or add substantial facilities. 

3) Resource uses including agriculture. 

4) Ecological restoration or enhancement activities not associated with a development. 

C. Specific provisions for public access shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to ensure that 

they are of the kind, quality, and scope to provide a substantial public benefit with respect to the 

Shoreline Management Act's objectives and do not create a disproportionate impact on 

landowners. 

D. The amount of public access required shall depend on the proposed use(s) and the following 

criteria: 

City of Prosser 29 Shoreline Master Program 

209



1) Any development or use that creates increased demand for public access to the shoreline 

shall provide public access to mitigate this impact 

2) Any development or use that interferes with an existing public access way shall provide 

public access to mitigate this impact. 

3) Uses and developments that utilize public aquatic lands shall provide public access 

consistent with maintaining the use and public safety. Public access shall be provided on 

over-water structures not devoted to water-dependent use, except when accessory to single 

family use. 

4) New or expanded flood control facilities with public funding, shall provide public access, 

preferably through trails along or on top of the facility. 

5) Public roads or other public facilities parallel to or crossing shorelines may be required to 

provide public access. 

6) Public utilities within the shoreline, other than distribution facilities, shall provide public 

access consistent with maintaining the use and public safety. 

E. Public access shall consist of a physical improvement in the form of a walkway, trail, bikeway, 

corridor, viewpoint, park, deck, observation tower, pier, boat-launching ramp, dock or pier area, 

or other area serving as a means of view and/or physical approach to public waters and may 

include interpretive centers and displays. Public access improvements shall meet the following 

location and design criteria: 

1) Public access shall be provided as close (horizontally and vertically) as feasible to the 

water's edge to provide the general public with opportunity to reach, touch, view, and enjoy 

the water's edge, provided that public access does not adversely affect sensitive ecological 

features or lead to an unmitigated reduction in ecological functions. 

2) If open space is provided along the shoreline in the form of Critical Area buffers, and public 

access can be provided in a manner that will not result in a loss of ecological function, a 

public pedestrian access walkway along and parallel to the waterfront of the property is the 

preferred design. The walkway shall be set back from sensitive features and may provide 

only limited and controlled access to the water's edge. Fencing may be provided to control 

damage to plants and other sensitive features and shall provide for wildlife movement. Soft 

surface trails and limited width should be specified where appropriate to reduce impacts to 

ecologically sensitive resources. 

3) Public access shall be connected directly to the nearest public street; shall include 

provisions for handicapped and physically impaired persons where feasible, and where 

additional impact on ecological functions will not occur. 

City of Prosser 30 Shoreline Master Program 

210



4) Design shall minimize intrusions of privacy for both site users and public access users by 

avoiding locations adjacent to windows and/or outdoor private open spaces or by screening 

or other separation techniques. 

5) Design shall provide for the safety of users, including the control of offensive conduct 

through Crime Prevention through Environmental Design or CPTED principles including 

public visibility, or provision of specific oversight. The Administrator may authorize public 

access to be temporarily closed to develop a program to address offensive conduct. If 

offensive conduct cannot be reasonably controlled, alternative facilities may be approved as 

a permit revision. 

6) Public amenities appropriate to the use of the public access space shall be provided. These 

amenities can include, but are not limited to, benches, picnic tables, public docks, and 

sufficient public parking. 

7) Public restrooms and facilities for animal waste may be required as part of public access 

amenities for developments by public entities or commercial developments that attract a 

substantial number of persons. 

F. Public access shall be maintained over the life of the use or development. Future actions by the 

applicant successors in interest or other parties shall not diminish the usefulness or value of the 

public access provided. 

1) Required public access sites shall be fully developed and available for public use at the time 

of occupancy of the use or activity or in accordance with provisions for guaranteeing 

installation through a performance assurance. 

2) Public access provisions shall be recorded as an easement or a dedication to the public on 

the face of a plat or short plat. Said recording with the County Auditor's Office shall occur at 

the time of building permit approval or plat recordation, whichever comes first. 

3) Maintenance of the public access shall be the responsibility of the owner unless specifically 

accepted by a public or non-profit agency. 

4) The minimum width of public access easements shall be 15 feet, unless the Administrator 

determines that undue hardship would result. In such cases, easement width may be 

reduced only to the minimum extent necessary to relieve the hardship. Width of the trail 

improved surface shall be 10 ft unless local conditions or ecological sensitivity warrants 

wider or narrower width. Pervious material is encouraged for all trails. 

5) Public access shall be available to the public during daytime hours or business hours unless 

specific exceptions are granted through the substantial development permit process where 

safety hazards or security issues to users or adjacent uses are substantiated. 

City of Prosser 31 Shoreline Master Program 

211



6) Public access signs bearing the standard state-approved logo or other approved design 

shall be installed and maintained by the applicant and owner. The sign(s) must indicate the 

public's right of access and hours of access, and shall be installed in conspicuous locations 

at public access sites. Signs may display restrictions of public access as approved by a 

specific condition of permit approval. 

G. Public access afforded by shoreline street ends, public utilities, and rights-of-way shall be 

preserved, maintained, and enhanced pursuant to RCW 35. 79.035. 

H. Public access for new and substantially altered development shall incorporate the location and 

design criteria provided for specific reaches in Section 18.08.340 of this program. 

16.04.26 Signs 

A. All signs shall be located and designed to be compatible with the aesthetic quality of the existing 

shoreline and adjacent land and water uses. Signs shall minimize interference with vistas, 

viewpoints, and visual access to the shoreline. 

B. Except where no feasible location outside of SMA jurisdiction is available, signs placed in SMA 

jurisdiction should be limited to public information signs directly relating to a shoreline use or 

activity, water navigational signs, and legally-required highway and railroad signs necessary for 

operation, safety, and direction. 

C. Over-water signs or signs on floats or pilings are prohibited except for warning and hazard signs 

installed by a public entity. 

D. Lighted signs shall be hooded, shaded, or aimed so that lighting will not result in glare when 

viewed from public access facilities or watercourses. 

E. Conceptual sign plans shall be submitted for review and approval at the time of shoreline permit 

application and shall be utilized in future review of sign permits for the property. 

16.04.27 Archaeological and Historic Resources 

A. Owners of property containing identified or probable historical, cultural, or archaeological sites 

are encouraged to coordinate well in advance of application for development to assure that 

appropriate agencies such as the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation, affected tribes, and historic preservation groups have ample time to assess the 

site and identify the potential for cultural resources. 

City of Prosser 32 Shoreline Master Program 

212



B. Prior to approval of development in an area of known or probable cultural resources, the City 

shall require a site assessment by a qualified professional archaeologist or historic preservation 

professional and ensure review by qualified parties. Conditions of approval may require 

preservation or conservation of cultural resources as provided by applicable federal, state and 

local statutes. All permits issued for development in areas known to be archaeologically 

significant shall provide for monitoring of any development activity for previously unidentified 

cultural resources. 

C. If historical, cultural, or archaeological sites or artifacts are discovered in the process of 

development, work on that portion of the site shall be stopped immediately, the site secured, 

and the find reported as soon as possible to the Administrator. The property owner also shall 

notify the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation and affected 

tribes. The Administrator may provide for a site investigation by a qualified professional and may 

require avoidance or conservation of the resources in coordination with appropriate agencies. 

All shoreline permits shall contain a special provision notifying permittees of this requirement. 

Failure to comply with this requirement shall be considered a violation of the shoreline permit 

and shall subject the permittee to legal action as specified in these provisions and PMC Chapter 

19.07. 

D. All developments proposed for location adjacent to historical sites, which are registered on the 

local, state, or national historic register shall be located and designed so as to be complimentary 

to the historic site .. 

16.04.28 Water Quality, storm water, and nonpoint pollution 

A. All shoreline development shall comply with the applicable requirements of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, Stormwater Management Performance Standards, and best management 

practices and the Eastern Washington Stormwater Manual to prevent impacts to water quality 

and stormwater quantity that would result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions, or a 

significant impact to aesthetic qualities, or recreational opportunities. 

B. Stormwater management structures including ponds, basins, and vaults shall be located outside 

of SMA jurisdiction where possible and as far from the water's edge as feasible and shall 

minimize disturbance of vegetation buffers. Low impact development (LID) facilities that do not 

substantially change the character of the shoreline, such as vegetation filter strips, grass-lined 

swales, vegetated bioretention, and infiltration facilities, are encouraged for development 

allowed in SMA jurisdiction. 

City of Prosser 33 Shoreline Master Program 
213



C. Use of pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizers in or near the land/water interface shall be restricted 

by employing native vegetation where feasible and by strict control of application. Aerial 

application within SMA jurisdiction is prohibited unless as part of a public agency program for 

control of noxious species, specific pests for quarantine, public health purposes, or for a crisis 

exemption. 

16.04.29 Boat and Vessel Facilities 

A. All boating uses, development, and facilities shall protect the rights of navigation and shall 

demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological functions and may be required to 

provide on-site and off-site mitigation. 

B. Shared moorage serving single family use consisting of docks and p·1ers with more than four 

berths, commercial moorage available to the general public, and moorage related to clubs or 

other groups not associated with a particular residential development are regulated as marinas 

under section 16.04.53. 

C. Joint-use/shared docks and piers with four (4) or fewer berths or any number of mooring buoys 

are regulated under this Section. 

D. Boating facilities shall: 

1) Avoid braided or meandering river channels where the channel is subject to change in 

alignment or on point bars or other accretion beaches; 

2) Avoid areas where shoreline modification is required for approach and other upland 

facilities; 

3) Not be located where adverse impact upland riparian or nearshore habitat for aquatic 

species is not avoided or adequately mitigated ; 

4) Not adversely affect flood channel capacity or create a flood hazard; 

5) Not be located where water depths for vessels are not adequate without dredging; 

6) Not be located in areas where wave action caused by boating use would increase erosion 

rates on shorelines; and 

7) Require a Conditional Use Permit at sites downstream of the Bureau of Reclamation Dam. 

E. Boating facilities, except those accessory to single family residences, shall provide public 

access in accordance with Section 16.04.25 of this program and shall be located and designed 

such that existing public access to public shorelines is not obstructed nor made hazardous. 

City of Prosser 34 Shoreline Master Program 
214



F. All in- and over-water structures shall be constructed of materials that will not adversely affect 

water quality or aquatic plants and animals over the long term. Wood treated with creosote, 

pentachlorophenol or other similarly toxic materials is prohibited. Docks generally shall be 

constructed of untreated materials, such as untreated wood, approved plastic composites, 

concrete, or steel. 

G. Vessels shall be restricted from extended mooring on waters of the state except as allowed by 

state regulations, a lease or other permission is obtained from the state and impacts to 

navigation and public access are mitigated. 

H. Boat Launches: 

1) Boat launches accessory to single family and multi-family residential uses are prohibited. 

2) Private boat launches shall be allowed only for water-dependent uses and marinas and only 

when it is demonstrated that public boat launches will not feasibly serve the use. Rail and 

track systems are preferred over concrete ramps when feasible. 

3) New public boat launches for general public use, or expansion of public boat launches by 

adding launch lanes shall be approved only by Conditional Use and shall demonstrate that: 

a. They are located downstream of accretion shoreforms, or on stable banks where no or 

minimal current deflections will be necessary. 

b. Water depths are adequate to avoid the need for dredging and eliminate or minimize 

potential loss of shoreline ecological functions or other shoreline resources from offshore 

or foreshore channel dredging. 

c. Adjacent residential properties will not be adversely affected by adverse proximity 

impacts such as noise, light, and glare, or scale and aesthetic impacts. Fencing or 

landscape areas may be required to provide a visual screen. 

d. Exterior lighting will prevent glare, and will avoid illuminating nearby residential property 

to unreasonably infringe on the use and enjoyment of such property. Methods of 

controlling spillover light include, but are not limited to, limits on height of supports, limits 

on light levels of fixtures, light shields, and screening. 

e. Exterior lighting will not adversely impact aquatic species. 

f. Adequate provisions are made for restroom, sewage, and solid waste disposal facilities 

in compliance with applicable health regulations. 

g. Access and parking shall not produce traffic hazards, shall not result in excessive noise 

or other impacts, shall minimize traffic impacts on nearby streets, and shall include 

adequate parking for boat trailers. Parking on public streets may be allowed for peak 

City of Prosser 35 Shoreline Master Program 

215



periods if it is demonstrated that such parking will not adversely impact through traffic or 

residential uses. 

\. New moorage to serve a single family residence may be allowed only if: 

1) An applicant demonstrates that existing facilities (boat launches and public and private 

marinas) are not reasonably available to meet demand. 

2) The lot does not have access to shared moorage in an existing subdivision and there is no 

homeowners association or other corporate entity capable of developing shared moorage. 

3) In cases where new dock or pier is approved, the City may require an agreement to share 

with nearby residences with water frontage and provide for expansion to serve such 

additional users. 

J. A dock or pier serving a single family residence shall meet the following standards: 

1) Length: A dock or pier (gangway and pier supported or floating structure combined) shall be 

long enough to obtain an adequate operating depth without disturbing the natural condition 

of the river bottom. Maximum length is thirty feet (30') unless a depth of six feet (6') cannot 

be obtained. In such circumstances the dock may be extended until the water depth reaches 

a point of six feet (6') in depth at ordinary low water, or to a maximum of forty feet (40'), 

whichever is reached first The dimensional standards may be adjusted as required by the 

City in consultation with state and federal agencies if such adjustment will better preserve 

ecological functions. 

2) The maximum area of over water coverage is 160 square feet 

3) To prevent damage to shallow water habitat, an access ramp shall bridge the distance 

between the shore and piers or floats and shall extend at least the distance between 

ordinary high water and extreme low water. 

4) Piers and ramps shall be no more than four (4) feet in width. 

5) Grating, or clear translucent material, shall cover the entire surface area of the pier and 

ramp. The open area of grating shall have a minimum of fifty percent (50%) open. Clear 

translucent material shall have greater than ninety percent (90%) light transmittance as 

rated by the manufacturer. 

6) Floats shall not exceed a width of eight (8) feet. Flotation materials shall be permanently 

encapsulated to prevent breakup into small pieces and dispersal in water (e.g., rectangular 

float tubs). Grating for light penetration shall cover one hundred percent (100%) of the 

surface area of the float The open area of the grating shall be no less than fifty percent 

(50%), as rated by the manufacturer. 

7) Covered moorage is prohibited. 

City of Prosser 36 Shoreline Master Program 
216



8) The bottom of the fascia boards on the pier or bottom of the landward edge of the ramp shall 

be at least two (2) feet above the horizontal plane of the OHWM. 

9) Floats shall be constructed and attached so that they do not ground out on the bottom of the 

river. Float stops, tubs, or similar structures may be used. A minimum of one (1) foot of 

elevation above the substrate is required. 

10) Pile spacing shall be the maximum feasible to minimize shading and avoid a "wall" effect 

that would block or baffle wave patterns, currents, littoral drift, or movement of aquatic life 

forms, or result in structure damage from driftwood impact or entrapment. Minimum pile 

spacing is eighteen (18) feet on the same side of any component of the overwater structure. 

11) Piling diameter shall be sized to use the minimum possible while meeting the structural 

requirements of expected loads. Generally, piling shall not exceed eight (8) inches in 

diameter. 

12) The dock shall be built with materials that do not leach preservatives or other materials. No 

treated wood of any kind shall be used on any overwater structure (float, pier, or ramp). No 

paint, stain, or preservative shall be applied to the overwater structure. 

13) Boat lifts or watercraft lifts (e.g., jet ski lifts) are included in the maximum allowable area of 

160 square feet for over water structures and may be approved if the City and other 

permitting agencies find that the proposed boat lift minimizes structure cover, maximizes 

light penetration, and maximizes depth. 

K. Shared residential docks and piers shall generally meet the standards for single family docks 

above, except that the number of floats and the size of piers and other facilities may be 

increased to serve additional slips to provide one moorage space per residence served. 

L. Docks and piers shall be set back a minimum of ten ( 10) feet from side property lines, except 

that joint-use facilities may be located closer to, or upon, a side property line when agreed to by 

contract or covenant with the owners of the affected properties. This agreement shall be 

recorded with the County Auditor and a copy filed with the shoreline permit application. 

M. Moorage related to subdivision: 

1) New subdivisions shall contain a restriction on the face of the plat prohibiting individual 

docks. A site for community or shared moorage shall be designated on the plat and owned 

in undivided interest by property owners within the subdivision. Shared moorage facilities 

shall be available to lots with water frontage in the subdivision. The over-water area of the 

dock shall be made available to other lots and the public for community access and may be 

required to provide public access depending on the scale of the facility. 

2) Approval of a shared moorage for a subdivision shall be subject to the following criteria: 

City of Prosser 37 Shoreline Master Program 

217



a. There is no reasonably available public or private moorage that can serve the moorage 

needs of the residences or the subdivision. 

b. Shared moorage to serve new development shall be limited to the amount of moorage 

needed to serve lots with water frontage. One moorage space per lot may not be 

presumed. 

c. The size of a dock must consider the use of mooring buoys for some or all moorage 

needs and the use of all or part of the dock to allow tender access to mooring buoys. 

d. Public access shall be provided in all shared docks utilizing public aquatic lands that 

accommodate five (5) or more vessels. 

3) If a community or shared dock is not developed at the time of subdivision, a community 

association shall be established with the authority to levy assessments within the 

subdivision to construct and maintain a community dock in the future. The failure of a 

subdivision to develop a community or shared dock shall not affect the prohibition on 

individual docks. 

N. Multi-family residences, hotels, motels, and other commercial developments proposing to 

provide moorage facilities shall meet the criteria for a marina. Use of the moorage must be open 

to the general public on the same basis as residents or occupants and shall provide public 

access. If approved, no more than one joint-use moorage facility may be provided for a parcel or 

development. 

0. Applications for docks or piers serving single commercial or industrial enterprises shall 

demonstrate that: 

1) The facility serves a water-dependent use; 

2) The facility is the minimum size required to serve the proposed use, provided that provisions 

for expansion or future joint use may be provided; and 

3) The facility minimizes impacts to the extent feasible. Where impacts are unavoidable, the 

facility mitigates impacts to navigation, aquatic habitat, upland habitat, public access to the 

water for recreation, fishing, and similar use, and public access to publicly accessible lands 

below the OHWM. 

P. Commercial or industrial moorage facilities shall demonstrate that: 

1) The dock or pier shall be the minimum length required to serve the use. 

2) Access from the shore to piers or floats shall minimize water cover in order to minimize 

impacts to shallow water habitat, 

3) Piers and ramps shall be elevated to provide the maximum feasible light penetration. 

City of Prosser 38 Shoreline Master Program 

218



4) Grating, or clear translucent material, shall be utilized to the maximum extent feasible to 

provide light penetration. 

5) Floats shall be constructed and attached so that they do not ground out on the bottom of the 

river. 

6) Pile spacing shall be the maximum feasible to minimize shading and avoid a "wall" effect 

that would block or baffle wave patterns, currents, littoral drift, or movement of aquatic life 

forms, or result in structure damage from driftwood impact or entrapment. 

7) Pile diameter shall be minimized while meeting structural requirements. 

8) Covered structures may be permitted only to serve a water-dependent use where it is 

demonstrated that adequate upland sites are not feasible, and it is demonstrated that the 

area covered is the minimum necessary to serve the use. 

16.04.30 Shoreline Modification Regulations 

A. In considering an application for a shoreline modification, the decision maker shall make 

findings that the following general principles are met. Appropriate studies by qualified 

professionals shall be required to document compliance. 

1) Shoreline modifications shall only be allowed where it can be demonstrated that the 

proposed activities are necessary to support or protect an allowed use or structure or are 

necessary to allow a water-dependent use, or are necessary for shoreline mitigation, 

enhancement, or restoration purposes. 

2) Modifications shall only be allowed when impacts are avoided, minimized, and mitigated to 

assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. The adverse effects, as well as the 

number and extent of shoreline modifications, shall be minimized; 

3) The individual and cumulative effects of shoreline modification shall not result in a net loss 

of ecological functions. Preference shall be given to those types of shoreline modifications 

that have a lesser impact on ecological functions. Mitigation of identified impacts resulting 

from shoreline modifications is required. Ecological impacts shall be avoided and mitigated 

in accordance with the mitigation sequence in Section 16.04.022.B of this program and 

WAC 173-26-201 (2)(e) as it now exists, or as it may be hereafter amemded. 

16.04.31 Shoreline Stabilization 

A. New development, including subdivision, shall be located and designed to avoid the need for 

future shoreline stabilization to the maximum extent feasible. New lots shall not be created by 

subdivision that require shoreline stabilization in order for reasonable development to occur. 

New development on steep slopes shall be set back sufficiently to ensure that shoreline 

City of Prosser 39 Shoreline Master Program 

219



stabilization is unlikely to be necessary during the life of the structure. Proposed development 

that would require shoreline stabilization which would cause significant impacts to adjacent or 

down-current properties and shoreline areas shall not be allowed. In all cases, compliance with 

this criterion shall be documented by geotechnical analysis by qualified professionals. 

B. The construction of shoreline protection for the primary purpose of retaining or creating dry land 

that is not specifically authorized as a part of the permit is prohibited. 

C. Shoreline stabilization shall be designed and constructed to avoid stream channel direction 

modification, realignment, and straightening or result in increased channelization of normal 

stream flows. 

D. New or enlarged structural shoreline stabilization measures for an existing primary structure, 

including residences, shall not be allowed unless there is conclusive evidence, documented by 

a geotechnical analysis that the structure is in danger from shoreline erosion caused by natural 

processes rather than from upland conditions such as poorly managed stormwater or vegetation 

removal. Normal sloughing, erosion of steep bluffs, or shoreline erosion itself, without a 

scientific or geotechnical analysis, is not demonstration of need. The geotechnical analysis shall 

evaluate on-site drainage issues and address drainage problems away from the shoreline edge 

before considering structural shoreline stabilization. The erosion control structure shall not result 

in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

E. Alternatives for shoreline stabilization shall be based on the following hierarchy of preference: 

1) No action (allow the shoreline to retreat naturally), increase building setbacks, and relocate 

structures. 

2) Stabilization constructed of natural materials incorporating measures such as soft shore 

protection and bioengineering, including beach nourishment, protective berms, or vegetative 

stabilization. 

3) Soft-shore stabilization, as described above, in combination with rigid works, as described 

below, constructed as a protective measure. 

4) Rigid works constructed of artificial materials such as riprap or concrete. 

F. Shoreline stabilization may be permitted to protect a water-dependent development, or 

single-family residences, when all of the conditions below have been demonstrated to apply and 

are documented by report prepared by a qualified professional: 

1) The erosion is not being caused by upland conditions, such as the loss of vegetation and 

improper management of drainage. 

2) Nonstructural measures, such as placing the development further from the shoreline, 

planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, are not feasible or not 

sufficient. 

City of Prosser 40 Shoreline Master Program 

220



3) The need to protect primary structures from damage due to erosion is demonstrated through 

a geotechnical report. 

4) The stabilization structure shall not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

5) Where a geotechnical analysis confirms a need to prevent potential damage to a primary 

structure, but the need is not as immediate as three years, the analysis may still be used to 

justify more immediate authorization for shoreline stabilization using bioengineering 

approaches. 

G. Shoreline stabilization may be permitted to protect an existing non-water-dependent 

development when all of the conditions below are met as documented by report by a qualified 

professional: 

1) The erosion is not being caused by upland conditions, such as the loss of vegetation and 

drainage. 

2) Nonstructural measures, planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, 

are not feasible or not sufficient. 

3) The need to protect primary structures from damage due to erosion is demonstrated through 

a geotechnical report. 

4) The affected structure cannot be feasibly located or relocated outside of the area affected by 

natural shoreline erosion processes. 

5) The stabilization structure will not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

6) Where a geotechnical analysis confirms a need to prevent potential damage, but the need is 

not as immediate as three years, the analysis may still be used to justify more immediate 

authorization for shoreline stabilization using bioengineering approaches. 

H. Shoreline protection for the restoration of ecological functions or hazardous substance 

remediation projects pursuant to Chapter 70.1050 RCW, shall meet the conditions below and 

be documented by a qualified professional: 

1) Nonstructural measures, planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, 

are not feasible or not sufficient. 

2) The erosion control structure will not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

I. Replacement of an existing shoreline stabilization structure with a similar structure is permitted if 

there is a demonstrated need to protect existing primary uses, structures, or public facilities 

(e.g., roads, bridges, railways, and utility systems) from erosion caused by stream undercutting 

or wave action. The existing shoreline stabilization structure must be removed from the 

shoreline as part of the replacement activity. The following conditions must be met and 

documented by a qualified professional: 

City of Prosser 41 Shoreline Master Program 

221



1) An existing shoreline stabilization structure may be replaced with a similar structure if there 

is a demonstrated need to protect principal uses or structures from erosion caused by 

stream geohydraulic processes. 

2) The replacement structure should be designed, located, sized, and constructed to assure no 

net loss of ecological functions. 

3) Replacement walls or bulkheads shall not encroach waterward of the ordinary high water 

mark or existing structure unless the residence was occupied prior to January 1, 1992, and 

overriding safety or environmental concerns exist. In such cases, the replacement structure 

shall abut the existing shoreline stabilization structure. 

4) Soft shoreline stabilization measures that provide restoration of shoreline ecological 

functions may be permitted waterward of the ordinary high water mark. 

5) For purposes of this subsection, "replacement" means the construction of a new structure to 

perform a shoreline stabilization function of an existing structure which can no longer 

adequately serve its purpose. Additions to or increases in size of existing shoreline 

stabilization measures shall be considered new structures. 

J. A publicly-funded shoreline stabilization project shall include appropriate provisions for public 

access to the shoreline, not create barriers to public access if in existence, and incorporate 

ecological restoration measures if feasible. 

K. Bioengineered projects shall be designed by a qualified professional in accordance with best 

available science and shall incorporate a variety of native plants, unless demonstrated 

infeasible for the particular site. 

L. Gabions (wire mesh filled with concrete or rocks) shall not be used in bulkhead construction 

where alternatives more consistent with this program are feasible, because of their limited 

durability and the potential hazard to shore users and the shoreline environment. 

16.04.32 Breakwaters, Jetties, and Groins 

A. Breakwaters, jetties, rock weirs, and groins shall only be permitted by conditional use for 

navigational purposes, water dependent industry, and marinas where water-dependent uses 

are located waterward of the OHWM or to protect existing public facilities such as bridges. 

B. Breakwaters, jetties, rock weirs, and groins may be approved only if analysis by a qualified 

professional demonstrates that they are needed to protect existing or proposed facilities and if 

natural processes such as erosion and accretion processes, riparian habitat, channel migration, 

and floodplain functions will not be adversely affected or are mitigated by a specific program 

implemented over the lifespan of the effect. 

City of Prosser 42 Shoreline Master Program 

222



C. The design of new breakwaters, groins, and jetties shall incorporate provisions for public access 

and public fishing if such access is feasible and safe. 

16.04.33 Flood Hazard Management 

A. New or substantially altered structural flood hazard reduction measures, such as dikes, levees, 

berms and similar flood control structures, shall be consistent with basin-wide flood control 

strategies in regional flood hazard management plans. 

B. Flood control structures shall be permitted for the following purposes only, as documented 

through a geotechnical or geofluvial analysis: 

1) They are necessary to protect existing development. 

2) Non-structural flood hazard reduction measures are infeasible. 

3) Impacts to ecological processes and functions, priority fish and wildlife species and habitats, 

and the aquatic food chain can be successfully mitigated to assure no net loss of functions. 

4) Measures are consistent with an adopted comprehensive flood hazard management plan 

that evaluates cumulative impacts to the watershed system. 

C. Public access shall be provided in accordance with public access policies and regulations of this 

program. If the project is publicly funded the design must provide appropriate public access to 

the shoreline, improve public access to the shoreline, and provide ecological restoration where 

feasible. 

D. Dike and levee design shall, to the maximum extent feasible be: 

1) Limited in size to the minimum height required to protect adjacent lands from the predicted 

flood stage as identified in the applicable comprehensive flood control management plan or 

as required by FEMA for dike recertification. 

2) Placed landward of Fish and Wildlife Conservation Area and Wetland buffers unless there is 

no other feasible alternative to reduce flood hazard to existing development. 

3) Located and designed so as to protect and restore the natural character of the stream, avoid 

the disruption of channel integrity and provide the maximum opportunity for natural floodway 

functions to take place. Design must consider including levee setbacks to allow for more 

natural function of floodplains, channel migration zones, off channel habitat, and associated 

wetlands directly interrelated and interdependent with the stream. 

4) Incorporate appropriate vegetation management. 

E. All flood protection measures shall demonstrate that downstream flooding will not be increased 

and the integrity of downstream ecological functions will not be adversely affected, including 

disruption of natural drainage flows and stormwater runoff. 

City of Prosser 43 Shoreline Master Program 

223



F. Removal of materials from the river channel for flood management purposes may be allowed 

only as part of an adopted integrated flood control management program that demonstrates that 

other flood hazard reduction strategies would not be effective in the absence of gravel removal. 

16.04.34 Clearing and Grading, Fill 

A. Clearing and grading activities in shoreline areas shall be allowed only in association with a 

permitted shoreline development and shall be limited to the minimum extent necessary to 

accommodate shoreline development. Clearing and grading shall retain natural features and 

functions, including natural topography, to the maximum extent feasible. Excavation waterward 

of the OHWM or within wetlands shall be considered dredging for purposes of this Program. 

B. Fill is restricted in wetlands or Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas in accordance with 

Critical Areas regulations. 

C. Fill may not be placed in floodways. Fill may be placed in other flood hazard areas only where it 

is demonstrated that adverse impacts to hydrogeologic processes will be avoided and the 

provisions of PMC Chapter 15.20 are met. 

D. Fill below, or waterward, of the ordinary high water mark for any use except ecological 

restoration requires a conditional use permit. Fill may be placed below OHWM only when it is 

demonstrated as necessary to: 

1) Accomplish an aquatic habitat restoration plan; 

2) Correct the adverse results of a past shoreline modification that has disrupted natural 

stream geomorphic conditions and adversely affected aquatic or terrestrial habitat; 

3) Provide for cleanup and disposal of contaminated sediments as part of an interagency 

environmental clean-up plan; 

E. Expand or alter transportation facilities of statewide significance currently located on the 

shoreline and then only upon a demonstration that alternatives to fill are not feasible. 

16.04.35 Dredging and Dredge Material Disposal 

A. Dredging shall be permitted only: 

1) For flood control purposes, as part of an adopted regional flood control plan; 

2) In conjunction with a water-dependent use of water bodies or adjacent shorelands where 

channel modification is essential to the water dependent use; 

3) As part of an approved habitat improvement project; 

4) In conjunction with a bridge, navigational structure, or wastewater treatment facility for which 

there is a documented public need and where other sites or methods are not feasible. 

City of Prosser 44 Shoreline Master Program 
224



B. New dredging shall be permitted only where it is demonstrated by a report by a qualified 

professional that it will avoid adverse impacts to water quality, Fish and Wildlife Habitat 

Conservation Areas and other Critical Areas, flood holding capacity, natural drainage and water 

circulation patterns, significant plant communities, and public access to shorelines. When such 

impacts are unavoidable, they shall be minimized and mitigated such that they result in no net 

loss of ecological functions. 

C. During a low water season, removal of a portion of an accretion point bar below OHWM but 

above the water level at the time of operation may be permitted as a Conditional Use for flood 

control purposes as follows: 

1) It is identified as an element of an adopted integrated flood control management program 

that demonstrates that other flood hazard reduction strategies would not be effective in the 

absence of material removal. 

2) Specific studies accompanying the application must demonstrate that no adverse flood, 

erosion, or other environmental impacts would occur either upstream or downstream of 

extraction sites, including the natural processes of gravel transportation for the river system 

as a whole. 

D. Dredge material disposal shall be permitted only at locations where it is demonstrated by 

analysis by a qualified professional that the disposal will not result in significant or ongoing 

adverse impacts to water quality, Critical Areas, flood holding capacity, natural drainage and 

water circulation patterns, prime agricultural land, or public access to shorelines. When such 

impacts are unavoidable, they shall be minimized and mitigated such that they result in no net 

loss of functions. 

E. Disposal of dredge material within Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas (FWHCA), 

wetlands, within a floodplain, or within a river's channel migration zone shall be allowed only 

where alternative disposal sites are not feasible. In the limited instances where it is allowed, 

such disposal shall require a conditional use permit. Applicants shall demonstrate that: 

1) The proposed dredge materials disposal site is subject to an approved use under this 

program that: 

a. Is an element of an approved restoration plan for aquatic or upland fish and wildlife 

habitat. 

b. Will create, expand, rehabilitate, or enhance a beach that provides public recreation 

opportunities and is permitted under this program. 

c. If on private land, the site will ultimately be suitable for a use permitted by this program 

or will be subject to buffer or other open space restrictions. 

2) The smallest possible land area is affected. 

City of Prosser 45 Shoreline Master Program 
225



3) Sites will be adequately screened from view of local residents or passersby on public 

right-of-ways to the maximum extent practicable (e.g. combination of fencing and 

vegetation). 

4) Sites will be revegetated with appropriate native species as soon as possible to retard 

erosion and restore wildlife habitat and other critical areas functions. 

5) Shoreline ecological functions and processes will be preserved, including protection of 

riparian buffers and surface and ground water. 

16.04.36 In-Stream Structures 

A. In-stream structures may be allowed only when the public benefits of such facilities clearly 

outweigh any loss of ecological processes and functions, and only when an analysis of 

alternatives demonstrates that the proposed location and design would result in less adverse 

impact than alternative locations and designs. Docks, piers and marinas are not regulated as 

"in-stream structures" under this section of the SMP. 

B. In-stream structures may be approved only for: 

1) Water-dependent use where the in-stream structure is essential to operation of the use. 

2) A project that has received Governor's certification pursuant to chapter 80.50 RCW. 

3) A project that has received approval and licensing by the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission. 

4) Projects that are part of the Bureau of Reclamation Yakima River Project. 

C. All in-stream structures shall demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological functions 

and detail all mitigation measures, include detailed mitigation plans, timetables for 

implementation and a monitoring program. 

D. In-stream structures and their support facilities shall be located and designed to minimize the 

need for shoreline stabilization structures. When shoreline stabilization structures are 

demonstrated as necessary, they shall be approved in accorc;lance with Section 16.04.030 

Shoreline Stabilization. 

E. In-stream structures and associated facilities shall avoid, and where avoidance is not feasible 

shall mitigate, adverse land use impacts including impacts to public access facilities, publicly 

owned lands or waters used for recreation, and public and private recreation facilities. Impacts 

to be avoided include the visual impact of the structure or facilities, the intrusion of roads or 

utility corridors into undeveloped area used for recreation, noise, and visual impacts from 

reduced water flows. 

City of Prosser 46 Shoreline Master Program 

226



F. In-stream structures shall be designed and constructed to provide public access to and along 

the shoreline, in accordance with the public access policies and regulations contained in this 

Section 16.04.024. Existing public access and recreational opportunities should be retained, 

enhanced, or replaced. 

16.04.40 Development Standards and Use Regulations 

A. Shoreline uses are preferred that are unique to or dependent upon uses of the state's shoreline 

areas and are consistent with the control of pollution and prevention of damage to the natural 

environment, 

B. All shoreline uses shall demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological processes and 

functions through incorporation of features or mitigation, including off-site mitigation to protect 

the land and its vegetation and wildlife. 

C. All shoreline uses shall protect the public's health, safety, and welfare, and the property rights of 

others while implementing the policies of the Shoreline Management Act 

16.04.41 Permitted Use Table 

A The following table determines which shoreline uses are allowed or prohibited in each shoreline 

environment 

B. Land uses allowed are subject to the preference for water-oriented uses and subject to specific 

criteria for uses and shoreline modification included in these regulations. 

C. Uses allowed in the Aquatic Environment are those allowed in the adjacent upland environment 

and limited to water-dependent use, ecological enhancement, and those transportation and 

utility facilities and Essential Public Facilities for which no alternative location is feasible. 

D. Land uses in the underlying zoning that require a conditional use permit in the underlying zoning 

district, require a shoreline conditional use permit 

E. If a use is prohibited in the underlying zoning district, it is also prohibited in shoreline 

management act jurisdiction. 

F. KEY: X= Prohibited, P= Permitted, CU= Conditional Use Permit, PA=Permitted only as an 

accessory to a permitted use, Z = Permitted subject to underlying zoning. 

G. A use is considered unclassified when it is not listed in the in the Shoreline Modifications and 

Uses Regulations and is allowed in underlying zoning. A proposed unclassified use may be 

authorized as a conditional use provided that the applicant can demonstrate consistency with 

the requirements of this Master Program and the requirements for conditional uses. 

City of Prosser 47 Shoreline Master Program 

227



' 
. 

j ii ·.· ' 
. .. 

.(;' ' . 
! 

~§ :' :m c c 
' e . '\ii . C- 0 .. . i-' ? 

~ 
.II) --~:c I j s 1il Ill c Ill 'l:s ,f 

I 1:: ,C, \ g ·.;z ii. ,-1.): ', .... @ 
Use. l:l) ·1:1 I ·.!! ~ 

-i!- 0 
. <C <C o . c . ::i (,.) - . 

Resource 

Aquaculture cu cu cu cu cu x x 
Agriculture, except for dairying, p p x x x x x poultry raising, and livestock 

Dairying; poultry raising; livestock; x x x x x x x and labor camps 

Mining x x x cu x x x 
Residential x x x x x x x 

One single family dwelling per lot z z z z p cu cu 
Duplex x x x x z x x 
Multifamily x z x x z x x 
Mobile home park x x x x z x x 
Accessory Dwelling Unit x x x x p x x (RCW 43.63A.215) 

Bed and breakfast x z x x cu x x 
Home occupation x x x x z x x 

Public and Quasi Public Uses 

Boat launches cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Public recreational facilities p p p p p p cu 
Private recreational facilities p p p p cu p x 
Campgrounds x cu cu x x x x 
Golf courses cu x x x cu x cu 
Trails hard surface p p p p p p cu 
Trails soft surface p p p p p p p 

Commercial recreation: Fitness x x p x x x x centers/sport clubs 

Commercial amusement facilities x x x x x x x 
Civic and community buildings cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Public or private schools cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Government offices cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Nursery school and day care center x x z x cu x x 
Family day care center (RCW x x p x p x x 35.63.185) 

City of Prosser 48 Shoreline Master Program 

228



. 

= ~ ·~ 
4l .m ii a c 

. ,e .· f ··' ii :;:; ? = c i-ll> 
~- ·~· 

'C • = '!: 4l c 4l .Q .. •. i e -:·--~ . 
'C 'C e ' " Use QI QI· 8 ' 

,, 
&! &! e--o 

. <( <( .5 ::nJ 
Museums cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Nursing homes, homes for the aged x x z x x x x 
Hospitals and health care facilities x x cu x x x x 
Churches cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Irrigation facilities, dams, canals, etc. cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Essential public facilities cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 

Commercial/Retail x x x x x x x 
Marine sales, service, and rental x p p x x x x 
Marina x cu cu x cu x x 
Bakeries, barber and beauty shops, I x p p x x x x etc. 

Commercial laundry and dry cleaning x x cu x x x x 
Retail uses x p p x x x x 
Restaurants x p p cu x x x 
Drinking establishments x p p PA x x x 
Hotel and motel x p p x x x x 
Banqueting halls x p p x x x x 
Resort x p p x x x x 
Recreation vehicle parks x x z x x x x 
Theaters and amphitheaters x p p x x x x 
Veterinarians and kennels x x x x x x x 
Offices serving a permitted use p p p p p p x 
Offices as a primary use x x x x x x x 
Printing and publishing x x z x x x x 
On-site hazardous waste treatment x x x x x x x and storage 

Nurseries and greenhouses p cu x cu x x x 
Lumber and building materials x x p cu x x x 
Automotive, truck, RV sales and x x x x x x x service 

Gasoline service station x x x x x x x 
Industrial 

City of Prosser 49 Shoreline Master Program 

229



. 
I .· 

• 
>• = ," i .. iii ·. .•. ·.·. 1·. I ~ 

iU ii c c ·. _;5, ',I- ~- -~e . ,;s ' :! •.. ~--, 0 I ·~ . "' 11> ' ;::; 
= ~ E .· ''cl: ', i ',' .. c;}» . -~_>',' "' '-$! '&" " • 

·~· 
.. -~}h t: 

,1-- -_:l <Jn ,- , :I-

~ 1- :~_,§ use : ti) . .&!. .. . . <( 
;, ___ 

::n.> 
Water-dependent industrial z z x p x x x 
Water-related industrial z z x p x x x 
Water-oriented industrial z z x p x x x 
Agriculture products processing p x x p x x x 
Wineries, including sales p p p p x x x 
Microbreweries p p p p x x x 
Municipal and utility yards x x x cu x x x 
Solid waste processing or disposal x x x x x x x 
Hazardous materials processing or x x x x x x x disposal 

Commercial moving and storage x x x x x x x 
Vessel repair x x x p x x x 
Equipment supply, repair, service x x x x x x x 
Manufacturing, other than food x x x p x x x processing 

Sale of items manufactured on-site p p x p x x x 
Industrial and scientific research x x x p x x x laboratories 

Petroleum, coal, fuel storage x x x x x x x distribution 

Junk or salvage yards x x x x x x x 
Solid waste processing or disposal x x x x x x x 
Hazardous materials processing or x x x x x x x disposal 

Warehouses, storage, distribution x x x p x x x 
Transportation 

Roads and railroads serving shoreline 
uses 

p p p p p p p 

Roads and railroads NOT serving cu cu cu cu cu cu cu shoreline uses 

Park-and-Ride lots x x x x x x x 
Parking areas and facilities serving a p p p p p p p 
primary use within the shoreline 

Parking areas and facilities NOT 
serving a primary use within the x x x x x x x 
shoreline 

City of Prosser 50 Shoreline Master Program 

230



. , 

"' .~ 
.. · .. 

t' ·~ 
•. . 

.~!! 
..... 

.. i !: .. i e . ·I )!i! , 
!! .::i; •· :,4) '1: , ... t 

I ~. ·. :E ...... QI "' J::.·.m . 
·~ '·.·t , 111 ·;g f ::m>.m I ·' ~-· •,' 

~ 
. = ' ·ts,.,'.· "' <> .c = use Cl .'T:J QI ·~ 1-... 0 

. <C <·. .5 , :~ .. '1 • ::u.> 
Parking as a principal use x x x x x x x I 

I 

Utilities 

Public and private utility distribution 
serving shoreline uses, water, sewer, p p p p p p cu 
electrical, gas, and communication 

Public and private utility distribution p p p p p p cu serving uses within the city 

Utility facilities serving uses not within cu cu cu cu cu cu cu the City 

Electrical transmission of greater than cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 50 Kilovolts 

Gas transmission larger than 6 inches cu cu cu cu cu cu cu in diameter 

Oil or other pipelines cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Utility buildings (pump stations, etc.) cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Electrical substations cu cu cu cu x x x 

City of Prosser 51 Shoreline Master Program 

231



16.04.42 Shoreline Bulk Standards 

The following table determines bulk standards in each shoreline environment 

. . . . . . ·• .. ·· ....... . >< . 1••·.3 ........... • ..•.. /J t .............. . . JI; .·· • e ... ..·· .·;; ·1r· 
•· ···.· w•· 

I 1!. :;.. ;· > .,: . I:< ·.c . ·.· <II • 
1: ~ ~.·; 

••••• 
•. =· .·,Q.·;:< >· _m .. ~i··. g C:)<·; ::.; '> 

!? 
i_ .. :.1;:'.:-,:,: .. 

. .. c:; ... ; . . ,i· ··:·. :·;."; : .. ·.< I .C':. <II 
.. ··~;::_ ~. ·.. . ... 

··:.: •• ·.·.'::) •• ·:: :::.· 
!:/ .·! r ·· ·.m·.JI'> ..... __ .·.· ...... --,-·. I<.· .. 
< "' 

.c= 
Use : .. m. 

I i < c I> "·· ,, :· ·• ·· .. ·~·.··· w .. ·O. 
. . . ··. .; c:r::- .· . . :::n.~ 

Fish and Wildlife Conservation Area Buffer from OHWM 
If not established by Table 16.04.043 

Water Dependent Use 1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Water Related Use 100' 150' 150' 150' 50'2 50' 200 

Water Enjoyment Use 100' 150' 150' 150' 50'2 50' 200 

Non-Water-Oriented Use 150' 150' 150' 150' 50'2 50' 200 

Building Setback from Critical Areas 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 25' 
Veaetation Buffer 

Buildina Setback from OHWM if no Critical Areas Veaetation Buffer is required 

Water Dependent Use 1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA5 

Water Related Use 25' 25' 25' 25' 50'2 25' 25' 

Water Eniovment Use 75' 75' 75' 75' 50'2 75' 75' 

Non-Water-Oriented Use 100' 100' 100' 100' 50'2 100' 150 

Maximum Height 35' 35' 35' 35' 35' 35' 25' 

Maximum Impervious Surface outside of Critical Area Buffers3 

Water Dependent Use4 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA5 

Water Related Use 70% 70% 70% 50% 50% 40% NA5 

Water Enjovment Use 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 40% NA5 

Non-Water-Oriented Use 40% 40% 40% 40% 50% 20% NA5 

City of Prosser 52 Shoreline Master Program 

232



Use 
Minimum Lot Size 

Minimum Lot Width 

Minimum Lot Depth 

Front Setback 

Street Setback 

Side Setback 

Rear Setback 

Dens it 

Table Notes: 

:m 
c 

i 
a 
.!!! ... g.• ..., 
·C 
Cl 
ct 

As established b 

As established b 

As established b 

As established b 

As established b 

As established b 

As established b 

As established bv underlvin 

f 
·c .. ·.~ 
]ff! w--o 
=>···"' 

1. No vegetated buffer or building setback is required for those elements of a Water-Dependent Use that requires direct access to 

the water. Other elements of the use are subject to the buffer standards for water-related uses. 

2. Does not apply to area within Critical Areas Vegetation buffer, which is normally 0% impervious, does not include impervious 

area of required public access facilities or private trails. 

3. Building setbacks may be adjusted to the average of existing setbacks of the two lots on either side of the subject lot, provided 

that Critical Areas buffers are complied with. 

4. No impervious surface limit applies to those elements of a Water-Dependent Use that requires direct access to the water. Other 

elements of a water dependent use not requiring direct access to the water are subject to the imperious standards for water

related uses. 

5. Applies to all Shoreline Environmental Designations: Standards for Transportation and utility facilities are determined by specific 

conditions at the time of approval of new facilities or expansion of existing facilities. 

City of Prosser 53 Shoreline Master Program 

233



16.04.43 Shoreline Reach Performance Standards 

The following table determines performance standards for each shoreline reach. 

, ''.', ,,, ,--,:-,,>--<>>-'.;!,,',/',, ,'''., _-,, _'',: ''. , : ,' ' '. ,'' ,',' :',, , , ', , 

, .··...• . > Shor'!li11Etv . .·. · < . < .. • f • ·• ·•· . • 1 

1 c~de. 111ye11tt>ey e11v1rpr~~11t · .. ·.··• · .. · • •• . : •. • ~· x /. , .... ·.· .... · . ·. ... < • . . · 
Reach · Reach ... · De.$ignation . ··· · Ptlblic:Access Gui(lelines .·. · · RiP'lltian Buffers . .·. 
A Reach 1 a Residential Opportunities for public access along the river 30 foot riparian buffer with provision for 

are limited due to existing residences, short of minimum 1 O foot buffer adjacent to existing 
future redevelopment at a density that would structures, largely to control runoff including 
trigger requirements. waterborne fertilizers, pesticides and 
A trail system could follow the road with visual herbicides 
access to the water through gaps in the 
vegetation cover. 

B Reachs 1 a and Parallel Public access trail along the water adjacent to Riparian buffer ends at the edge of the 
1 b From Byron Road to the road. maintained portion of the road 

Water: Recreation Use of the road for vehicular traffic may be 
From Road Inland: phased out as alternative access is provided to 
Industrial future subdivisions and sections of the existing 

roadway are narrowed and used exclusively as 
a trail. 

C Reach 2a part Recreation Public access is one feature to be included in Maintain and enhance buffer as part of a park 
management of the park. Trails generally management plan, except at boat launch ramp 
should retain vegetation buffers with managed 
access points to the water's edge. 

D Reach 2a part Residential Opportunities for public access along the river 50 foot riparian buffer 
are limited due to existing residences, short of 
future redevelopment at a density that would 
trigger requirements. 

E Reach 2b Commercial Public access area is mandatory if future use is 30 foot riparian buffer, or 10 feet from the top 
not water dependent. of a 40% slope higher than 10 feet 

City of Prosser 54 Shoreline Master Program 

234



~ode 
Reach 
F 

G 

H 

J 

K 

L 

ln~~ntpty 
Reach 

Reach 2a part 

Reach 3a part 

Reach 3a part 

Reach 3a part 

Reach 3b 

Reach 3c part 

Reach 4a part 

City of Prosser 

Residential 

Industrial 

Recreation 

Residential 

Industrial 

Agri-Business 

Agri-Business 

55 

Opportunities for public access are limited to 
improvements to existing street ends due to 
the retention of existing single family lots under 
existing zoning. 

Informal public access available along the 
existing alley and provides visual access. This 
may be formalized and enhanced for better 
public viewing experience. 

Public access is one feature to be included in 
management of the park. Visual access 
should be provided at the top of the slope with 
managed access points to the water's edge. 

Opportunities for public access are limited to 
improvements to existing street ends due to 
the retention of existing single family lots under 
existing zoning. 

Public access area is mandatory if future use is 
non-water dependent or if existing use 
expands substantially. Public access should 
consist of a trail paralleling the water at the top 
of the bluff. Access to the water's edge may 
be considered if it will not adversely affect 
ecological functions. 

Public access area is mandatory if future use is 
non-water dependent. Public access should 
consist of a trail paralleling the water at the top 
of the bluff. Access to the water's edge may 
be considered if it will not adversely affect 
ecological functions. 

Rir>arian.Sl.lffe'r~ 
30 foot riparian buffer, or 10 feet from the top 
of a 40% slope higher than 10 feet 

No buffer - water-dependent use 

USBR Dam 

Maintain and enhance buffer as part of a park 
management plan 

30 foot riparian buffer, or 15 feet from the top 
of a 40% slope higher than 10 feet 

30 foot riparian buffer, or 25 feet from the top 
of a 40% slope higher than 10 feet 

Extent of floodplain or 25 feet from top of 
slope, not to exceed shoreline jurisdiction 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~+-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Public access area is mandatory if future use is 
non-water dependent. Public access should 
consist of a trail paralleling the water at the top 
of the bluff. Access to the water's edge may 
be considered if it will not adverselv affect 

Extent of floodplain plus 25 feet from top of 
slope, not to exceed shoreline jurisdiction 

Shoreline Master Program 

235



Code I 
R~4ilch·· 

.. Shl:lf&,lii'l~ ( (I· l~\f(itl~ry ~l\~it()~lll;~flt> ' 

';,/'_:: ' 

',', /' ' 

~~jjlf<t .. ~~~~~~'~u1~~1th~s'' 1 · Rl'fach Desinrratit>n Rili'laril:l'rr Buffers 
ecological functions. 

M I Reach 4a part I Residential I Public access area is mandatory if future use is 60 feet or 15 feet from top of slope 
more than 4 units, or non-water dependent 
Public access should consist of a trail 
paralleling the water at the top of the bluff 
Access to the water's edge may be considered 
if it will not adversely affect ecological 
functions. 

N I Reach 4a Industrial Public access area is mandatory if future use is Extent of floodplain plus 25 feet from top of 
non-water dependent or if existing use slope, not to exceed shoreline jurisdiction 
expands substantially. Public access should 
consist of a trail paralleling the water at the top 
of the bluff Access to the water's edge may 
be considered if it will not adversely affect 
ecological functions. 

0 I Reach 4b I Industrial I Public access would need to be carefully Extent of floodplain plus 25 feet from top of 
controlled to avoid adverse impacts to the slope, not to exceed shoreline jurisdiction 
largest area of relatively intact riparian habitat 
in the city. 

p I Reach 5a part Residential Public access area will be implemented in From the north-south extension of S. Moore 
subdivisions of more than 5 lots, a continuous Road to the east-west extension of W North 
trail system located behind the critical area River Road - 65 foot riparian buffer 
buffer parallel to the shoreline to provide North of the east-west extension of W North 
common use by residents and the public .. River road - 30 foot riparian buffer 

Q Reach 5c Agri-Tourist Public access area will be implemented in 75 foot riparian buffer 
future development consisting of a continuous 
trail system located behind the critical area 
buffer located parallel to the shoreline to 
provide common use by users within the 
development and the public .. 

R I Reach 5d I Residential I This single famHy lot would not be required to I 50 foot riparian buffer 
provide public access. 

s I Reach 6a I Public Land I Public access should be carefully controlled to I 200 foot riparian buffer 
I I I avoid adverse imi:iacts to this relatively intact 

City of Prosser 56 Shoreline Master Program 

236



Cotte 
Re~ch 

T 

ln)fett~cil'y 
· Reach 

Reach 6b 

City of Prosser 

;"·~~~f~l~~~,,,i ...... · 
E~)f.it:~~f'lt~.nf .· 
lleSilinati~o 

Agribusiness 

57 

riparian habitat 

Public access area is mandatory if future use is 
non-water dependent and should consist of a 
trail paralleling the water at the top of the bluff. 
Access to the water's edge may be considered 
if it will not adversely affect ecological 
functions. 

Rioariail Buff~rs 

100 toot riparian buffer to 25 feet above top of 
slope 

Shoreline Master Program 

237



16.04.50 Shoreline Use Performance Standards 

16.04.51 Agriculture 

A. This Program shall not restrict lawfully existing agriculture activities that have not been 

discontinued for more than five (5) years. An agricultural use shall not be considered 

discontinued if it is allowed to lie fallow in which it is plowed and tilled but left unseeded; 

allowed to lie dormant as a result of adverse agricultural market conditions; or allowed to lie 

dormant because the land is enrolled in a local, state, or federal conservation program. 

B. All new agricultural activities and facilities are governed by this Program and shall observe the 

Critical Area standards and buffer requirements of this Program except for replacement of 

agricultural facilities, provided that the replacement facility is no closer to the shoreline than the 

original facility. 

C. Agricultural activities shall follow recognized best management practices that improve or 

maintain water quality and quantity, reduce soil erosion, maintain, or improve soil conditions, 

and provide for wildlife habitat. The applicant is encouraged to coordinate with the County 

Conservation District and the Natural Resources Conservation Service in the development of 

best management practices for their agricultural activity. 

D. Low Intensity Livestock Activities are those involving less than one (1) Animal Management Unit 

(AMU) per acre of managed pasture and are preferred within the shoreline outside of buffers. 

E. New intensive agricultural activities such as animal feeding operations/concentrated animal 

feeding operations (AFO/CAFOs) are prohibited. 

F. Row cropping requiring intensive application of fertilizers, animal waste, herbicides, and 

pesticides shall be located outside of shoreline areas, unless the proposed use is within an 

established agricultural area and no alternative agricultural activity is feasible. New intensive 

agricultural activities shall be implemented in accordance with a farm conservation plan 

including a monitoring program that assures no net loss of ecological functions. 

G. The construction of a barn or similar agricultural structure is exempt from obtaining a substantial 

development permit, but shall comply with the regulations of the program. 

16.04.52 Aquaculture 

A. Aquacultures is a preferred water-dependent use but may be permitted only if impacts to 

ecological resources and existing land uses can be mitigated. 

City of Prosser Shoreline Master Program 

238



B. No aquatic species shall be introduced into City waters without prior written approval of the 

appropriate state or federal regulatory agency for the species proposed for introduction. Such 

approval(s) shall be submitted in writing to the City as part of the shoreline permit application. 

C. Fish net-pens shall not occupy more than one-quarter (1/4) surface acre of water, excluding 

booming and anchoring equipment and shall be located greater than one (1) mile from all other 

aquaculture facilities. 

D. No processing of any aquaculture product, except for the sorting or culling of the cultured 

species and the washing or removal of surface materials or species after harvest, shall occur in 

or over the water. All other processing activities and facilities shall be located on land. 

E. Periodic operational monitoring by a City-approved consultant (unless otherwise provided for) 

may be required, at the applicant's expense, and shall continue until adequate information is 

available to determine the success of the project and/or the magnitude of any probable 

significant adverse environmental impacts. 

F. Aquaculture structures and activities that are not water-dependent (including but not limited to, 

warehouses for storage of products, parking and loading facilities) shall be located landward of 

the OHWM and landward of water dependent portions of the project, and shall minimize 

detrimental impacts to the shoreline. 

16.04.53 Marinas 

A. These provisions apply to all vessel moorage facilities serving 5 or more vessels. 

B. Proposals for new marinas must provide sufficient evidence that existing public boat launches, 

dry storage, and moorage is not adequate to meet regional demand for recreational boating and 

that development of new marinas would result in fewer environmental impacts than expansion 

of existing facilities. 

C. In order to protect shoreline ecological functions, efficiently use shoreline space and minimize 

consumption of water surfaces. Boat facilities in order of preference are as follows: 

1) Upland dry land boat storage with a launch mechanism. 

2) Mooring buoys with a small lighter dock to provide access to the buoy. 

3) In-water mooring docks. These may be approved only where it is demonstrated that more 

preferred options are not feasible, or it can be demonstrated that in-water mooring docks 

City of Prosser 59 Shoreline Master Program 

239



would result in fewer impacts to shoreline ecological functions or enhance public use of the 

shoreline. 

D. Applications for marinas with in-water moorage may be approved as a Conditional Use if it is 

demonstrated that: 

1) Public navigation will not be impeded. 

2) The location will not result in displacement of wetlands or interrupt natural processes, 

erosion, or deposition. 

3) Water depths are adequate without initial or maintenance dredging. 

4) The location will not require shoreline armoring to compensate for fluvial processes. 

5) The location will not reduce existing public use of the water or shoreline including fishing, 

swimming and boating. 

6) Adverse water quality impacts will not result from inadequate flushing of moorage or 

enclosed water areas. 

7) Impacts to riparian buffers and nearshore aquatic habitat will be minimized. Impact 

minimization may require provision of upland buffers with limited corridors for movement 

between upland and in-water facilities. 

8) Setbacks from adjacent non-commercial properties are adequate to attenuate proximity 

impacts such as noise, light, and glare, and may address scale and aesthetic impacts. 

Fencing or landscape areas may be required to provide a visual screen. 

9) Facilities including piers, floats, boat launches, and other elements will be located and 

designed to minimize changes in hydraulic and fluvial processes, minimize potential flood 

hazards, and to not limit channel migration in areas where such processes are not currently 

constrained. 

10) Exterior lighting will avoid illuminating nearby properties used for non-commercial purposes 

and to prevent hazards for public traffic. Methods of controlling spillover light include, but are 

not limited to, limits on height of structure, limits on light levels of fixtures, light shields and 

screening. 

11) Exterior lighting will not adversely impact aquatic species. 

12) Adequate provisions are made for restroom, sewage, and solid waste disposal facilities in 

compliance with applicable health regulations. 

13) Access and parking shall not produce traffic hazards, shall not result in excessive noise or 

other impacts, and shall minimize traffic impacts on nearby streets. 

City of Prosser 60 Shoreline Master Program 

240



14) On-site parking supply shall be adequate to meet peak demands. Location of parking shall 

be in accordance with parking standards in this program. 

E. Covered moorage is prohibited. 

F. Marinas shall provide public access amenities over public aquatic lands equivalent to a 

minimum 10 percent of over-water coverage and shall provide public walkway access to a 

public street and may be required to provide public parking including handicapped access. 

16.04.54 Commercial Development 

A. New commercial uses and developments are subject to the following use preference: 

1) Water-Dependent Uses: Water-dependent commercial uses shall be given preference over 

water-related and water-enjoyment and non-water-oriented commercial uses. Prior to 

approval of water-dependent uses, the City shall review a proposal for design, layout, and 

operation of the use and shall make specific findings that the use qualifies as a 

water-dependent use. Water-dependent commercial uses shall provide public access in a 

manner that will not interfere with the water-dependent aspects of the use. The portion of a 

site not required for water-dependent use may include multiple use, approved non-water

oriented uses, ecological restoration, and public access. 

2) Water-Related Uses: Water-related commercial uses shall not be approved if they displace 

existing viable water-dependent uses. Prior to approval of a water-related commercial use, 

review of the design, layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that the use has a 

functional requirement for a waterfront location, or the use provides a necessary service 

supportive of water-dependent uses, and/or the proximity of the use to its customers makes 

its services less expensive and/or more convenient. Multiple use development within 

100 feet of the OHWM shall reserve the ground level for water-oriented use to the extent 

feasible. 

3) Water-Enjoyment Uses: Water-enjoyment commercial uses shall not be approved if they 

displace existing viable water-dependent or water-related uses or if they occupy space 

designated for water-dependent or water-related use identified in a substantial development 

permit or other approval. Prior to approval of a water-enjoyment use, review of the design, 

layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that the use facilitates public access to the 

shoreline, or the use provides for aesthetic enjoyment of the shoreline for a substantial 

number of people as a primary characteristic of the use. In order to qualify as a 

water-enjoyment use, the use must be open to the general public and the shoreline-oriented 

space within the project must be devoted to the specific aspects of the use that fosters 

shoreline enjoyment. 

City of Prosser 61 Shoreline Master Program 

241



4) Non-Water Oriented Uses: Non-water-oriented commercial uses may be permitted where: 

a. Located on a site physically separated from the shoreline by another private property in 

separate ownership or a public right-of-way such that access for water-oriented use is 

precluded, or 

b. On a site where navigability is severely limited such that water-dependent use is not 

feasible, or 

c. The use will be part of a multiple use project that provides significant public benefit with 

respect to the objectives of the SMA including public access and ecological restoration; 

or 

d. The use will be part of a mixed use project including water-dependent and non-water

oriented uses. 

B. All non-water dependent uses shall provide significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA by: 

1. Restoring ecological functions in aquatic and upland environments that will provide native 

vegetation buffers according to the provisions of the Restoration Element of this Program 

and other relevant plans and policies including the WRIA 37 Salmon Restoration Plans; 

and 

2. Providing public access in a manner consistent with ecological restoration and associated 

buffers. 

C. Commercial development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in Section 

16.04.022.B of this Program. The use shall be located and designed to maintain required 

buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline ecological functions including shoreline geomorphic 

processes, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, and the aquatic food chain in general. Only 

water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on required vegetated buffers and those 

must retain as much of the buffer as possible while accommodating the use. 

D. Over-water structures, or other structures waterward of the OHWM, are allowed only for those 

portions of water-dependent commercial uses that require over-water facilities as an essential 

feature of their function or for public recreation and public access facilities. Design of over-water 

structures or structures beyond the OHWM shall demonstrate that they will not interfere with 

City of Prosser 62 Shoreline Master Program 

242



normal stream geomorphic processes, require additional future shoreline stabilization, or 

interfere with navigation or normal public use of the water. 

E. All new or expanded commercial uses shall take into consideration the scenic and aesthetic 

qualities of the shoreline and compatibility with adjacent uses. They shall make adequate 

provisions such as location of structures, location of parking and other facilities, landscape 

screening, fences, and other measures to protect the privacy and enjoyment of adjacent land 

uses and open space areas. 

F. Accessory development or uses that do not require a shoreline location such as parking, service 

buildings or areas, access roads, utilities, signs, and storage of materials shall be located 

outside of SMA jurisdiction wherever feasible. Siting within SMA jurisdiction should be limited to 

facilities required to serve approved water-oriented uses and/or developments and should be 

located inland away from the land/water interface and landward of water-oriented 

developments. 

G. Signs for all development and uses shall comply with the City of Prosser Sign Code and this 

Program. 

16.04.55 Industrial 

A. New industrial use and development is subject to the following use preference: 

1) Water-Dependent Uses: Water-dependent industrial uses shall be given preference over 

water-related and water-enjoyment industrial uses. Prior to approval of water-dependent 

uses, the City shall review a proposal for design, layout, and operation of the use and shall 

make specific findings that the use qualifies as a water-dependent use. Water-dependent 

industrial uses shall provide public access in a manner that will not interfere with the water

dependent aspects of the use. The portion of a site not required for water-oriented use may 

include multiple use, approved non-water-oriented uses, ecological restoration, and public 

access. 

2) Water-Related Uses: Water-related industrial uses shall not be approved if they displace 

existing viable water-dependent uses. Prior to approval of a water-related industrial use, 

review of the design, layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that the use has a 

functional requirement for a waterfront location, or the use provides a necessary service 

supportive of the water-dependent uses, and/or the proximity of the use to its customers 

makes its services less expensive and/or more convenient. Mixed use development within 

100 feet of the OHWM that incorporates water-dependent use may not include 

non-water-oriented uses at the ground level. 

City of Prosser 63 Shoreline Master Program 

243



3) Non-Water-Oriented Uses: Non-water-oriented industrial uses are likely to be most common 

in Prosser and may be permitted where the use is: 

a. Located on a site physically separated from the shoreline by another private property in 

separate ownership or a public right-of-way, or other public facility, or are isolated from 

the water by a substantial difference in topography; or 

b. On a site where navigability is severely limited such that water-dependent use is not 

feasible; or 

c. Part of a mixed use project that provides significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA. 

B. Industrial development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in Section 

16.04.022.B of this Program. Only water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on 

required Critical Area buffers. 

C. All non-water-dependent uses shall provide significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA by: 

1) Restoring ecological functions both in aquatic and upland environments that will provide 

native vegetation buffers according to the Critical Areas regulations, the Restoration Plan of 

this Program and other plans and policies including the WRIA 37 Salmon Restoration Plans; 

and 

2) Providing public access consistent with the criteria and standards of Section 16.04.025. 

D. Accessory development or use that does not require a shoreline location such as parking, 

service buildings or areas, access roads, utilities, signs, and storage of materials shall be 

located outside of SMA jurisdiction wherever feasible. Siting within SMA jurisdiction should be 

limited to facilities required to serve approved water-oriented uses and/or developments and 

should be located inland away from the land/water interface and landward of water-oriented 

developments. 

E. All new or expanded industrial developments shall take into consideration the scenic and 

aesthetic qualities of the shoreline and compatibility with adjacent uses, including public use of 

the water. They shall make adequate provisions such as location of structures, location of 

parking and other facilities, landscape screening, fences, and other measures to protect the 

privacy and enjoyment of adjacent land uses. 

F. Public access to the shoreline shall be provided in accordance with the standards in Section 

16.04.025, provided said access does not compromise the integrity or operation of the use, 

City of Prosser 64 Shoreline Master Program 

244



does not threaten the safety and welfare of the general public, does not interfere with an 

existing adjacent use, and does not compromise existing ecological functions. In cases where 

on-site public access is not provided, alternative off-site facilities may be provided in accordance 

with provisions of this program. 

G. Signs for all development and uses must comply with the Prosser Sign Code and this Program. 

16.04.56 Recreation 

A. Recreation facilities within SMA jurisdiction are preferred that are water-oriented or provide 

public access to the water. 

B. Recreation facilities and activities are permitted when they do not displace water-dependent 

uses and are consistent with existing water-related and water-enjoyment uses. State-owned 

shorelines shall be recognized as particularly adapted to providing wilderness beaches, 

ecological study areas, and other recreational uses for the public in accordance with RCW 

90.58.100(4). 

C. Recreation development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in 

Section 16.04.022.B of this Program. The use shall be located and designed to maintain or 

enhance shoreline ecological functions. The use or development shall be located and designed 

to maintain required buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline ecological functions including 

shoreline geomorphic processes, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, and the aquatic food 

chain in general. Only water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on required 

vegetated buffers. 

D. Development of public recreation facilities shall implement, where applicable, the elements 

within the City Parks and Recreation Plan. 

E. The highest priority for recreational development on the shoreline shall be to provide the 

maximum possible amount of public access to the shoreline as follows: 

1) Water-dependent recreation such as fishing, swimming, boating, and wading. 

2) Water-related recreation as picnicking, hiking, and walking should be located near the 

shoreline. 

3) Non-water-related recreation facilities shall be located inland. Recreational facilities with 

large grass areas, such as playing fields and facilities with extensive impervious surfaces, 

shall be located as far from the water as feasible. 

F. New over-water structures for recreation use shall be allowed only when: 

1) They accommodate water-dependent recreation use or facilities, or 

City of Prosser 65 Shoreline Master Program 

245



2) They allow opportunities for substantial numbers of people to enjoy the shorelines of the 

state, and 

3) They are not located in or adjacent to areas of exceptional ecological sensitivity, especially 

aquatic and wildlife habitat areas, and 

4) No net loss of ecological functions will be achieved. 

G. Private recreation uses and facilities that utilize public aquatic lands shall provide public access 

as provided in Section 16.04.025 or shall provide improved, compensating public access at 

other locations. 

H. Motorized vehicular access including the use of all-terrain and off-road vehicles in the shoreline 

area is prohibited, except for boat launching and maintenance activities and except where 

specific areas for such use are set aside and controlled by a public entity. 

16.04.57 Residential Development 

A. Single-family residential development is a priority use on the shoreline when developed in a 

manner consistent with control of pollution and prevention of damage to the natural 

environment. 

B. Residential development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions in Section 16.04.22 of this program and the preferred sequence for mitigation of 

impacts as provided in Section 16.04.022.B of this program. The use shall be located and 

designed to maintain required buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline ecological functions 

including shoreline geomorphic processes, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, and the 

aquatic food chain in general. 

C. New residential development shall cluster dwelling units to provide as little alteration to the 

natural environment as feasible and shall utilize low impact development (LID) techniques to 

reduce physical and visual impacts on shorelines. 

D. Multi-family residential use is not a priority for location on the shoreline under the Shoreline 

Management Act and is subject to the preference for water-dependent and water-oriented use. 

It therefore must meet requirements for providing public benefit through ecological restoration 

and public access. Multi-family development may not be approved if it displaces existing 

water-dependent uses. Multi-family development uses may be permitted only where it provides 

significant public benefit with respect to the objectives of the SMA by: 

1) Restoration of ecological functions both in aquatic and upland environments that shall 

provide native vegetation buffers according to the standards provided for Critical Areas or in 

accordance with the Restoration Element of this document; and 

2) Provision of public access is required in accordance with PMC 16.04.024. 

City of Prosser 66 Shoreline Master Program 

246



E. Over-water residences are prohibited. 

F. New residential development shall assure that the development will not require shoreline 

stabilization. Prior to approval, geotechnical analysis of the site and shoreline characteristics 

shall demonstrate that shoreline stabilization is unlikely to be necessary, setbacks from steep 

slopes, bluffs, landslide hazard areas, seismic hazard areas, and riparian erosion areas shall be 

sufficient to protect structures during the life of the lots, and impacts to adjacent, downslope, or 

down-current properties is not likely to occur during the life of lots created. 

G. New residential development shall meet all Critical Area provisions of this program. Filling of, or 

into, water bodies or their associated wetlands for the purpose of subdivision or multi-family 

construction shall be avoided. New subdivisions, short plats, and large lots shall preserve the 

required buffer in a protective tract, public or private land trust dedication, or similarly preserved 

through an appropriate permanent protective mechanism. In cases where Critical Areas are 

placed in separate tracts, each lot owner within the subdivision, short plat, or other land division 

shall have an undivided interest in the tract(s) or protective mechanism created. 

H. Residential developments, including subdivisions, and planned unit developments of five (5) or 

more lots/units shall provide "improved public access" for all residents of the development and 

the general public, in compliance with public access standards contained in Section 16.04.025. 

I. All new divisions of land shall record a prohibition on new private individual docks on the face of 

the plat. An area reserved for shared moorage may be designated if it meets all requirements of 

this program. 

16.04.58 Transportation Facilities 

A. Roads and Bridges: 

1) Development of new roads or substantially expanded existing roads shall demonstrate the 

need for a shoreline location and that no feasible upland alternative outside the shoreline is 

available. 

2) Roads shall cross shoreline areas by the shortest, most direct route feasible to minimize 

impacts, unless such route would cause significant adverse impacts based on specific local 

features. 

3) The project configuration, design, and related features will minimize alteration of Critical 

Area buffers, will fit the existing topography as much as feasible, and will minimize 

alterations to the natural or existing topography. 

4) New transportation facilities shall be located and designed to avoid the need for shoreline 

stabilization where feasible. Where demonstrated to be necessary to protect an existing 

facility that is in imminent danger of loss or substantial damage, new or expanded structural 

City of Prosser 67 Shoreline Master Program 

247



shore stabilization shall provide mitigation of impacts resulting in no net loss of shoreline 

ecological functions. In cases where substantial shore stabilization is required, relocation of 

facilities further from the shoreline may be required. 

5) New or expanded roads will provide public access in accordance with Section 16.04.025 

and where they afford scenic vistas, pedestrian viewpoints will be provided. 

6) Wetlands shall be avoided whenever feasible. If avoidance is not feasible, bridges shall be 

utilized when crossing wetlands to avoid obstructing movement of surface and groundwater 

unless it can be demonstrated that fill and compensatory mitigation will produce equal or 

greater ecological functions. 

7) Road crossings of streams shall utilize bridges rather than culverts to the maximum extent 

feasible. 

8) Private access roads or driveways providing ingress and egress for individual single-family 

residences or lots shall be limited to the minimum allowed by the Fire Code. 

9) Bridges shall be designed and built of sufficient lateral and vertical clearance to allow the 

unimpeded passage of flood flows and debris. In wide streamways, bridges shall employ the 

maximum length of clear spans feasible with pier supports that produce the minimum 

deflection feasible. Bridge approaches in floodways of any stream shall be constructed on 

open piling or other measures to allow free water movement. 

10) Landscape planting may be provided along all shoreline roads, parking, and turnout facilities 

when appropriate, and where provision of irrigation is not necessary to support landscaping 

to: 

a. Provide buffers between pedestrian and auto users; 

b. Enhance the shoreline driving experience; and 

c. Enhance and complement potential views of shoreline areas. 

11) The City shall not vacate any public right-of-way in a shoreline location until adopting a 

Comprehensive Public Access plan for the area showing that the subject right-of-way 

cannot be used as a contributing element in that plan. The City shall vacate a public right

of-way abutting a body of water only in compliance with RCW 35.79.035, which allows 

vacations of streets abutting bodies of water only when: 

a. The vacation will enable acquisition of the property for public purposes; 

b. The street or alley is not suitable for certain purposes (e.g., port, park, education); or 

c. The vacation will enable implementation of a public access plan. 

City of Prosser 68 Shoreline Master Program 

248



12) In order to improve public access to the shoreline the City may acquire and/or retain 

abandoned or unused road or railroad rights-of-way for public access to and/or along the 

water. 

B. Non-Motorized Facilities: 

1) Non-motorized facilities shall comply with provision for public access facilities in Section 

16.04 025 

2) Trails shall be developed consistent with adopted city and regional system plans. 

3) Non-motorized facilities shall avoid sensitive features of the shoreline to the extent feasible, 

including wetlands and fish and wildlife habitat. Facilities shall be placed outside of, or in the 

outer portions of buffers. Elevated walkways shall be utilized where feasible to cross 

wetlands and streams. 

C. Railroads: 

1) Railroad improvements requiring right-of-way expansion within the shoreline shall 

demonstrate that there is no feasible alternative outside of shoreline jurisdiction. 

2) Expansion of existing railroad facilities within existing rights-of-way (additional track or other 

features) must demonstrate the need for a shoreline location and that no feasible upland 

alternative outside shoreline jurisdiction is feasible. New tracks shall be placed upland of 

existing tracks if feasible and may require relocation of existing tracks. 

3) The project shall be designed to minimize alteration of Critical Area buffers, to fit the existing 

topography as much as feasible, and minimize alterations to the natural or existing 

topography. 

4) Wetlands shall be avoided whenever feasible. Bridges shall be utilized when crossing 

wetlands to avoid obstructing movement of surface and groundwater unless it can be 

demonstrated that fill and compensatory mitigation will produce equal or greater ecological 

functions. 

5) Criteria for road crossings of streams and shoreline stabilization shall apply to railroads. 

D. Parking: 

1) Parking facilities in shorelines are not a preferred use and shall be allowed only as 

necessary to support an authorized use. Parking facilities shall be located outside shoreline 

jurisdiction where possible. Parking in shoreline jurisdiction shall directly serve a permitted 

shoreline use and shall be located outside of Critical Area buffers and as far from the 

water/land interface as possible. 

City Prosser 69 Shoreline Master Program 

249



2) Parking facilities serving individual buildings on the shoreline shall be located landward from 

the principal building being served. The only exceptions to this would be when the parking 

facility is within or beneath the structure and adequately screened, or in cases when an 

alternate location would have less environmental impact on the shoreline and in all cases is 

prohibited over the water. 

3) Parking facilities shall be designed and landscaped to minimize adverse impacts upon 
adjacent shoreline and abutting properties. Landscaping shall comply with PMC Title 18, 
Zoning, Section 16.04.24 Shoreline Vegetation Conservation and in addition, landscaping 
between parking areas and public access shall provide effective screening within three (3) 
years of project completion. 

16.04.59 Utilities 

A. New or substantially expanded utilities serving uses within the City may be located within 

shoreline jurisdiction only if: 

1. The facility is needed within the shoreline jurisdiction to support permitted shoreline 

activities; and 

2. No feasible upland alternative exists based on analysis of system options that assess the 

potential for alternative routes outside shoreline jurisdiction or is set back further from the 

land/water interface. 

B. Regional facilities that serve uses outside the City and all electric transmission facilities with a 

capacity greater than 50 kW shall demonstrate, based on an analysis of alternative routes and 

technology, that: 

1. No upland alternative is feasible, 

2. Utilization of existing corridors is not feasible, including expansion or replacement of existing 

facilities, if new corridors are proposed, 

3. A location within designated industrial environments or existing transportation corridors is 

not feasible, 

4. The proposal has the least feasible adverse impact on the natural environment, and 

5. The location and design of the facility has the least feasible change in the existing character 

of the shoreline views enjoyed by residences or from public access facilities, and will not 

obstruct scenic views. 

C. Linear facilities consisting of pipelines, sewers, cables and other facilities roughly parallel to the 

shoreline shall be discouraged except where no other feasible alternative exists. At the time of 

replacement of such facilities that are close to their lifespan, or when such facilities are 

expanded, relocation outside of the shoreline may be required as if they were new facilities. 

City of Prosser 70 Shoreline Master Program 

250



When permitted, design shall assure that maintenance of the facilities does not result in a net 

loss of shoreline ecological functions or significant impacts to other shoreline resources and 

values. 

D. Utilities shall be located and designed to avoid significant natural, historic, archaeological, or 

cultural sites to the maximum extent feasible, and mitigate unavoidable impacts. 

E. Utilities, where permitted, shall meet the following design criteria: 

1) Facilities should occupy as little of the shoreline as feasible. Utility installation parallel to the 

shoreline should be avoided to the maximum extent feasible. Utilities shall cross the 

shoreline area by the shortest, most direct route, unless such route would cause substantial 

significant environmental damage. 

2) Utilities shall be located and designed to minimize alterations to the natural environment and 

fit the existing topography as much as possible. 

3) Facilities shall be located and designed to minimize introducing elements that change the 

existing character of the shoreline views enjoyed by residences or from public access 

facilities, or obstruct scenic views. 

4) Utility crossings of water bodies shall be attached to bridges or located in other existing 

facilities, if feasible. If new installations are required to cross water bodies or wetlands they 

should avoid disturbing banks and streambeds and shall be designed to avoid the need for 

shoreline stabilization. Crossings shall be tunneled or bored where feasible. Installations 

shall be deep enough to avoid failures or need for protection due to exposure due to stream 

bed mobilization, aggregation, or lateral migration. Underwater utilities shall be placed in a 

sleeve if feasible to avoid the need for excavation in the event of the need for maintenance 

or replacement. 

F. New electrical distribution lines within the shoreline shall be placed underground. Distribution 

lines that cross water or other critical areas may be allowed to be placed above ground if: 

1) Underground installation would substantially disrupt ecological functions and processes of 

water bodies and wetlands, and horizontal drilling or similar technology that does not disturb 

the surface is not feasible; 

2) Visual impacts are minimized to the extent feasible; and 

3) If overhead facilities require that native trees and other vegetation in a Critical Areas buffer 

cannot be maintained in a natural condition, compensatory mitigation is provided on- or 

off-site. 

City of Prosser 71 Shoreline Master Program 

251



G. Stormwater, wastewater, or water supply pump stations, and stormwater discharge facilities 

such as dispersion trenches, level spreaders, and outfalls may be located in the shoreline 

jurisdiction if: 

1) Due to topographic or other physical constraints there are no feasible locations for these 

facilities outside the shoreline; 

2) The facility minimizes and compensates for impacts to Critical Area buffers; and 

3) Any discharge facility is designed and maintained to prevent erosion or other adverse 

impacts. 

H. Construction shall be designed to protect the shoreline against erosion, uncontrolled or polluting 

drainage, and other factors detrimental to the environment, both during and after construction. 

I. Roadways or other facilities to access utility installations within Critical Area buffers shall be no 

wider than needed to construct, maintain, or repair the utility. 

J. Facilities involving buildings, such as pump stations, electrical substation, or other facilities, 

shall be permitted as a conditional use and shall be in scale with surrounding development, and 

architecturally compatible and landscaped to assure compatibility with natural features, public 

access facilities, and adjacent uses. 

K. Public Access: Utility development shall provide for compatible, multiple use of sites and 

rights-of-way through coordination with local government agencies. Such uses include shoreline 

access points, trail systems, and other forms of recreation and transportation, providing such 

uses will not unduly interfere with utility operations, endanger public health and safety, or create 

a significant and disproportionate liability for the owner. 

16.04.60 Shoreline Administration 

16.04.61 Procedure 

A. All shoreline permits shall be processed in accordance with PMC Title 19 Administration of 

Development Regulations. 

16.04.62 Coordination with Other Agencies 

A. The City will coordinate on issues relating to ecological conditions, functions, and processes 

and on wetland and ordinary high water delineations with the Department of Ecology, the 

Department of Natural Resources, and the Department of Fish and Wildlife as well as other 

City of Prosser 72 Shoreline Master Program 

252



agencies with permit authority over a project to the extent that agencies are timely in their 

response and coordination does not unduly extend review times. 

B. Interpretation of the provisions of this program shall be in accordance with PMC 19.01.090 

provided that the Administrator shall consult with the Department of Ecology when there is a 

lack of clear guidance in this Master Program or WAC 173-26, the Shoreline Guidelines to 

insure that any formal written interpretations are consistent with the purpose and intent of 

chapter 90.58 RCW and the applicable guidelines. The provisions of RCW 34.05.328, and the 

policy goals set forth in WAC 173-26-176 and 173-26-181 should be used to assist in 

interpretation of any ambiguous provisions and reconciliation of any conflicting provisions. 

C. All references to statutes or to provisions of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) shall 

be as those provisions are as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

16.04.63 Development Compliance 

A All uses and developments within the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act shall be 

planned and carried out in a manner that is consistent with the Shoreline Master Program and 

the policies of the SMA as required by RCW 90.58.140(1), regardless of whether a shoreline 

permit, statement of exemption, shoreline variance, or shoreline conditional use permit is 

required. The City shall assure compliance with the provisions of the Shoreline Master Program 

for all permits and approvals processed by the City. 

B. Regulation of private property to implement any Program goals, such as public access and 

protection of ecological functions, must be consistent with all relevant constitutional and other 

legal limitations. These include, but are not limited to, property rights guaranteed by the United 

States Constitution and the Washington State Constitution, applicable federal and state case 

law, and state statutes, such as RCW 34.05.328 and 43.21C.060. An applicant requesting 

specific accommodation of constitutional or other legal limits in the application of standards and 

criteria of this Program must do so in application materials. The decision maker shall address 

such requests in specific findings. 

C. The policies and provisions of this program and RCW 90.58 including the permit system, shall 

apply to all nonfederal developments and uses undertaken on federal lands and on lands 

subject to nonfederal ownership, lease or easement, even though such lands may fall within the 

external boundaries of a federal ownership. 

City of Prosser 73 Shoreline Master Program 

253



D. Compliance with the provisions of this chapter does not constitute compliance with other 

federal, state, and local regulations and permit requirements that may be required (for example, 

Hydraulic Permit Act [HPA] permits, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permits, 

Washington State Department of Ecology Water Quality Certification [Section 401] National 

Pollution Discharge Elimination System permits). The applicant is responsible for complying with 

these requirements, apart from the process established in this chapter. 

16.04.64 Shoreline Overlay 

A. Shoreline regulations shall apply as an overlay and in addition to development regulations, 

including, but not limited to, zoning, environmental regulations, development standards, 

subdivision regulations, and other regulations established by the City. 

B. Allowed uses shall be governed by both the zoning regulations in PMC Title 18 and this 

program. The most restrictive provisions of applicable zoning district and Shoreline 

Environmental designation shall apply. 

C. Allowed uses shall be limited by the general polices and specific regulations regarding use 

preferences for water-dependent and water-oriented uses. Allowed uses may be specified and 

limited in specific shoreline permits. In the case of non-conforming development, the use 

provisions of this code shall be applied to any change of use, including occupancy permits. 

D. In the event of any conflict between shoreline policies and regulations and any other regulations 

of the City, shoreline policies and regulations shall prevail unless other regulations provide 

greater protection of the shoreline natural environment and aquatic habitat. 

E. All regulations applied within the shoreline shall be liberally construed to give full effect to the 

objectives and purposes for which they have been enacted. Shoreline Master Program policies, 

found in the City's Comprehensive Plan, establish intent for the shoreline regulations in addition 

to RCW 90.58 and Chapter 173 of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC), WAC 173-26 

and WAC 173-27 all as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

16.04.65 Non-Conformities 

A. The provisions of PMC Subsections 18.66.010 through 18.66.030 referencing nonconforming 

lots, structures, and uses are adopted by reference as part of this program, subject to the 

definition in PMC 16.04.2.L and additional provisions below. 

City of Prosser 74 Shoreline Master Program 

254



B. Any expansion of a nonconforming use, building, or structure within Shoreline Management Act 

jurisdiction shall meet the following additional criteria: 

1) The expansion or enlargement will not increase its degree of nonconformity in relation to the 

provisions of the Shoreline Master Program; and 

2) The expansion or enlargement will not result in enlargement of the building footprint or 

impervious area in a Critical Area buffer or extends further toward the water unless 

necessary to meet minimum standards of life-safety codes; and 

3) The expansion or enlargement will not result in a net loss of ecological functions; 

16.04.66 Exemption from Substantial Development Permit 

A A substantial development permit shall be required for all proposed use and development of 

shorelines unless the proposal is specifically exempt pursuant to RCW 90.58.140(1 ). 

B. The following shall not be considered substantial developments for the purpose of this Master 

Program and are exempt from obtaining a Shoreline Substantial Development Permit (SSDP), 

provided that any additional exemptions established by legislative amendment of the statute 

shall constitute exemptions without amendment to this code. An exemption from an SSDP is not 

an exemption from compliance with the SMA or the Shoreline Master Program, or from any 

other regulatory requirements. A use or development exempt from a Shoreline Substantial 

Development Permit may require a Conditional Use Permit or a variance: 

1) Governor's Certification: Any project with a certification from the Governor pursuant to 

Chapter 80.50 RCW Energy Facilities - Site Locations. 

2) Projects Valued at $5,000 or less: Any development of which the total cost or fair market 

value does not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), if such development does not 

materially interfere with the normal public use of the water or shorelines of the state. The 

$5,000 level is subject to adjustment for inflation by the office of financial management every 

five years. As of July 26, 2012, the adjusted cost is six thousand four hundred sixteen 

dollars ($6,416). 

3) Maintenance and Repair: Normal maintenance or repair of existing structures or 

developments, including damage by accident, fire, or elements. 

a. "Normal maintenance" includes those usual acts to prevent a decline, lapse, or cessation 

from a lawfully established condition. 

b. "Normal repair" means to restore a development to a state comparable to its original 

condition, including, but not limited to, its size, shape, configuration, location, and 

external appearance, within a reasonable period after decay or partial destruction, 

City of Prosser 75 Shoreline Master Program 

255



except where repair causes substantial adverse effects to the shoreline resource or 

environment. 

c. Replacement of a structure or development may be authorized as repair where such 

replacement is the common method of repair for the type of structure or development 

and the replacement structure or development is comparable to the original structure or 

development including, but not limited to, its size, shape, configuration, location, and 

external appearance and the replacement does not cause substantial adverse effects to 

shoreline resources or environment. 

4) Emergency Construction: Emergency construction necessary to protect property from 

damage by the elements. 

a. An "emergency" is an unanticipated and imminent threat to public health, safety, or the 

environment which requires immediate action within a time too short to allow for full 

compliance with the Shoreline Master Program. 

b. Emergency construction does not include development of new permanent protective 

structures where none previously existed. Where new protective structures are deemed 

to be the appropriate means to address the emergency situation, upon abatement of the 

emergency situation, the new structure shall be removed or any permit which would 

have been required, absent an emergency, pursuant to chapter 90.58 RCW, 173 -27 

WAC or this Shoreline Program shall be obtained. 

c. All emergency construction shall be consistent with the policies of chapter 90.58 RCW 

and the Shoreline Master Program. 

d. In general, flooding or other seasonal events that can be anticipated and may occur, but 

that are not imminent, are not an emergency. 

5) Agricultural Construction or Practices: Construction and practices normal or necessary for 

farming, irrigation, and ranching activities, including agricultural service roads and utilities on 

shorelands, and the construction and maintenance of irrigation structures, including but not 

limited to head gates, pumping facilities, and irrigation channels. A feedlot of any size, all 

processing plants, other activities of a commercial nature, alteration of the contour of the 

shorelands by leveling or filling, other than that which results from normal cultivation, shall 

not be considered normal or necessary farming or ranching activities. A feedlot shall be an 

enclosure or facility used or capable of being used for feeding livestock hay, grain, silage, or 

other livestock feed, but shall not include land for growing crops or vegetation for livestock 

feeding and/or grazing, nor shall it include normal livestock wintering operations. 

6) Construction of Single-Family Residence and Accessory Buildings: Construction on 

shorelands by an owner, lessee, or contract purchaser of a single family residence for his 

own use or for the use of his family, which residence does not exceed a height of 35 feet 

above average grade level as defined in WAC 173-27-030, and which meets all 

City of Prosser 76 Shoreline Master Program 

256



requirements of the State agency or local government having jurisdiction thereof, other than 

requirements imposed pursuant to this Section. 

a. "Single family" residence means a detached dwelling designed for and occupied by one 

(1) family including those structures and developments within a contiguous ownership 

which are a normal appurtenance. An "appurtenance" is necessarily connected to the 

use and enjoyment of a single family residence and is located landward of the OHWM 

and the perimeter of a wetland. 

b. Construction authorized under this exemption shall be located landward of the OHWM. 

7) Construction of Non-Commercial Docks: Construction of a dock, including a community dock 

designed for pleasure craft only, for the private noncommercial use of the owner, lessee, or 

contract purchaser of single and multi-family residences. This exception applies if: 

a. The fair market value of the dock does not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00); 

however, if subsequent construction having a fair market value exceeding two thousand 

five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) occurs within five (5) years of completion of the prior 

construction, the subsequent construction shall require a substantial development 

permit; and 

b. A dock is a landing and moorage facility for watercraft and does not include recreational 

decks, storage facilities, or other appurtenances. 

c. The dock meets all requirements of this code. 

8) Construction Authorized by the Coast Guard: Construction or modification, by or under the 

authority of the Coast Guard or a designated port management authority, of navigational 

aids such as channel markers and anchor buoys. 

9) Operation. Maintenance, or Construction Related to Irrigation: Operation, maintenance, or 

construction of canals, waterways, drains, reservoirs, or other facilities that now exist or are 

hereafter created or developed as part of an irrigation system for the primary purpose of 

making use of system waters, including return flow and artificially stored groundwater for the 

irrigation of lands. 

10) Marking of Property Lines on State-Owned Lands: The marking of property lines or corners 

on State-owned lands when such marking does not interfere with the normal public use of 

the surface of the water. 

11) Operation and Maintenance of Agricultural Drainage or Dikes: Operation and maintenance 

of any system of dikes, ditches, drains, or other facilities existing on September 8, 1975, 

which were created, developed, or utilized primarily as a part of an agricultural drainage or 

diking system. 

City of Prosser 77 Shoreline Master Program 

257



12) Activities Necessary for Permit Application: Site exploration and investigation activities that 

are prerequisites to preparation of an application for development authorization under the 

Shoreline Master Program, if: 

a. The activity does not interfere with the normal public use of the surface waters; 

b. The activity will have no significant adverse impact on the environment including, but not 

limited to, fish, wildlife, fish or wildlife habitat, water quality, and aesthetic values; 

c. The activity does not involve the installation of a structure, and upon completion of the 

activity the vegetation and land configuration of the site are restored to conditions 

existing before the activity; 

d. A private entity seeking development authorization under the Shoreline Master Program 

first posts a performance bond or provides other evidence of financial responsibility to 

the Administrator to ensure that the site is restored to pre-existing conditions; and 

e. The activity is not subject to the permit requirements of RCW 90.58.550. 

13) Removal or Control of noxious Weeds: The process of removing or controlling an aquatic 

noxious weed, as defined in RCW 17.26.020, through the use of an herbicide or other 

treatment methods applicable to weed control that are recommended by a final 

environmental impact statement published by the Department of Agriculture or the 

Department of Ecology jointly with other State agencies under chapter 43.21 C RCW. 

14) Watershed Restoration Projects: Watershed restoration projects as defined below: 

a. "Watershed restoration project" means a public or private project authorized by the 

sponsor of a watershed restoration plan that implements the plan or a part of the plan 

and consists of one or more of the following activities: 

(i) A project that involves less than ten (10) miles of stream reach, in which less than 

twenty five (25) cubic yards of sand, gravel, or soil is removed, imported, disturbed, 

or discharged, and in which no existing vegetation is removed except as minimally 

necessary to facilitate additional plantings. 

(ii) A project for the restoration of an eroded or unstable stream bank that employs the 

principles of bioengineering, including limited use of rock as a stabilization only at the 

toe of the bank, and with primary emphasis on using native vegetation to control the 

erosive forces of flowing water. 

(iii) A project primarily designed to improve fish and wildlife habitat, remove or reduce 

impediments to migration of fish, or enhance the fishery resource available for use by 

all of the citizens of the State, provided that any structure other than a bridge or 

culvert or in-stream habitat enhancement structure associated with the project is less 

than two hundred (200) square feet in floor area and is located above the OHWM of 

the stream. 

City of Prosser 78 Shoreline Master Program 

258



b. "Watershed restoration plan" means a plan developed or sponsored by a state 

department, a federally recognized Indian tribe, a City, or a conservation district, for 

which agency and public review has been conducted pursuant to chapter 43.21 C RCW, 

the State Environmental Policy Act. The watershed restoration plan generally contains a 

general program and implementation measures or actions for the preservation, 

restoration, re-creation, or enhancement of the natural resources, character, and 

ecology of a stream, stream segment, drainage area, or watershed. 

15) Projects to Improve Fish and Wildlife Passage or Habitat: A public or private project, the 

primary purpose of which is to improve fish or wildlife habitat or fish passage, when all of the 

following apply: 

a. The project has been approved in writing by the Department of Fish and Wildlife as 

necessary for the improvement of the habitat or passage and appropriately designed 

and sited to accomplish the intended purpose. 

b. The project has received hydraulic project approval by the Department of Fish and 

Wildlife pursuant to chapter 77.55 RCW. 

c. The Administrator has determined that the project is consistent with this Master 

Program. 

16) Hazardous Substance Remediation: Hazardous substance remedial actions pursuant to 

WAC 173-27-040(3). 

17) Projects on Lands Not Subject to Shoreline Jurisdiction Prior to Restoration: Actions on land 
that otherwise would not be under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act except 
for a change in the location of OHWM or other criteria due to a shoreline restoration project 
creating a landward shift in the ordinary high water mark that brings the land under the 
jurisdiction of the SMA approved in accordance with PMC 16.04.072 Restoration Project 
Relocation of OHWM. 

18) All of the above exemptions are subject to the following regulations: 

a. Exemptions shall be construed narrowly. Only those developments that meet the precise 

terms of one or more of the listed exemptions may be granted exemptions from the 

substantial development permit process. 

b. The burden of proof that a development or use is exempt is on the applicant/proponent 

of the exempt development action. 

c. If any part of a proposed development is not eligible for exemption, then a substantial 

development permit is required for the entire project. 

16.04.67 Exemption Procedures 

A. A project requiring an additional permit and subject to an exemption to a shoreline substantial 

development permit shall be reviewed under the criteria of the underlying permit with an 

City of Prosser 79 Shoreline Master Program 

259



additional finding recorded by the Administrator addressing the grounds under which the permit 

is exempt. 

B. Any person claiming exemption from the permit requirements of this Master Program as a result 

of the exemptions specified in this Section may make application for an exemption certificate to 

the Administrator in the manner prescribed by the City. 

C. Any project for which Ecology is designated as the coordinating agency for the state with regard 

to permits issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers shall make application for an exemption 

certificate to the Administrator in the manner prescribed by the City. The City shall transmit an 

exemption certificate addressed to the applicant and the department, whenever a development 

is subject to one or more of the following federal permit requirements: 

1) A U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 10 permit under the Rivers and Harbors Act of 

1899; (The provisions of section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act generally apply to any 

project occurring on or over navigable waters. Specific applicability information should be 

obtained from the Corps of Engineers.); or 

2) A Section 404 permit under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972. (The provisions 

of Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act generally apply to any project 

which may involve discharge of dredge or fill material to any water or wetland area. Specific 

applicability information should be obtained from the Corps of Engineers.) 

3) The letter shall indicate the specific exemption provision from WAC 173-27-040 that is being 

applied to the development and provide a summary of the local government's analysis of the 

consistency of the project with the master program and the act. 

D. The City may attach conditions to the approval of exempted developments and/or uses as 

necessary to assure consistency of any project with the Shoreline Management Act and the 

Shoreline Master Program. 

16.04.68 Land Division: 

A. Prior to approval of any land division, such as short subdivisions, preliminary long plats, and 

boundary line adjustments within shoreline jurisdiction, the City shall document compliance with 

bulk and dimensional standards as well as with policies and regulations of the Shoreline Master 

Program and attach appropriate conditions and/or mitigating measures to such approvals to 

ensure the design, development activities, and future use associated with such lands are 

consistent with the Shoreline Master Program. 

City of Prosser 80 Shoreline Master Program 

260



16.04.69 Approval Criteria 

A. In order to approve any development within SMP jurisdiction, the City must find that a proposal 

is consistent with the following criteria as well as the criteria of PMC Chapter 19.04: 

1) All use regulations of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the shoreline designation 

and the type of use or development proposed shall be met, particularly the preference for 

water-oriented uses. If a non-water-oriented use is approved, the decision maker shall enter 

specific findings documenting why water-oriented uses are not feasible. 

2) All bulk and dimensional regulations of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the 

shoreline designation and the type of use or development proposed shall be met, except 

those bulk and dimensional standards that have been modified by approval of a shoreline 

variance. 

3) All policies of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the shoreline area designation 

and the type of use or development activity proposed shall be considered and compliance 

demonstrated, subject to liberal construction to give full effect to the objectives and 

purposes for which they have been enacted. 

16.04.70 Written Findings Required 

A. All permits or statements of exemption issued for development or use within shoreline 

jurisdiction shall include written findings prepared by the decision maker addressing compliance 

with policies and regulations of the Shoreline Master Program. The decision maker may attach 

conditions to the approval of exempt developments and/or uses as necessary to assure 

consistency of the project with the SMA and this Program. 

16.04.71 Construction Permit Compliance 

A. For all development within shoreline jurisdiction, the Building Official shall not issue a 

construction permit for such development until compliance with the Shoreline Master Program 

has been documented. If a shoreline substantial development permit is required, no permit shall 

be issued until all comment and appeal periods have expired. Any permit issued by the Building 

Official for such development shall be subject to the same terms and conditions that apply to the 

shoreline permit. 

City of Prosser 81 Shoreline Master Program 

261



16.04.72 Restoration Project Relocation of OHWM 

The City may grant relief from Shoreline Master Program development standards and use 

regulations in accordance with RCW 90.58.580 Shoreline restoration projects - Relief from 

shoreline master program development standards and use regulations. 

16.04.73 Shoreline Permit Application Procedures 

A. In addition to the public notice requirements of PMC Chapter 19.03, the following notice shall be 

provided for each application for a shoreline management substantial development, conditional 

use, or variance permit. 

1) Within fourteen (14) days after the City has made a determination of completeness on the 

project permit application the city shall issue public notice including: 

a. The date of application, the date of the notice of completion for the application, and the 

date of the notice of application; 

b. A description of the proposed project action and a list of the project permits included in 

the application and, if applicable, a list of any studies requested under RCW 36. 708. 070, 

RCW 36.708.090, and WAC 173-27-180 as now existing or as hereafter may be 

amended; 

c. The identification of other permits not included in the application to the extent known by 

the local government; 

d. The identification of existing environmental documents that evaluate the proposed 

project, and, if not otherwise stated on the document providing the notice of application, 

such as a city land use bulletin, the location where the application and any studies can 

be reviewed; 

e. A statement of the public comment period, which shall be not less than thirty (30) days 

following the date of notice of application, 

f. A statement of the right of any person to comment on the application, receive notice of 

and participate in any hearings, request a copy of the decision once made, and any 

appeal rights. Public comments shall be accepted at any time prior to the closing of the 

record of an open record hearing, if any, or, if no open record hearing is provided, prior 

to the decision on the project permit; 

g. The date, time, place, and type of hearing, if applicable and scheduled at the date of 

notice of the application; 

h. A statement of the preliminary determination, if one has been made at the time of notice, 

of those development regulations that will be used for project mitigation and of 

consistency; and 

i. Any other information determined appropriate by the Administrator. 

City of Prosser 82 Shoreline Master Program 

262



2) Public notice shall include: 

a. Mailing of the notice to the latest recorded real property owners as shown by the records 

of the county assessor within at least three hundred feet (300) of the boundary of the 

property upon which the development is proposed. 

b. Posting of Project Site. 

c. Publication shall be in accordance with PMC 19.03 notwithstanding the classification of 

the project pursuant to Chapter 19.01 If an open record public hearing is required, a 

notice shall be provided at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing. 

16.04.74 Surety Devices 

A. The Administrator may require the applicant to post a surety device in favor of the City to assure 

full compliance with any terms and conditions imposed on any shoreline permit. Said surety 

device shall be in an amount to reasonably assure the City that any deferred improvement will 

be carried out within the time stipulated and in accordance with approved plans. 

16.04. 75 Conditional Use 

A. The objective of a conditional use provision is to provide more control and flexibility for 

implementing the regulations of the Master Program. With provisions to control undesirable 

effects, the scope of allowed uses can be expanded. In authorizing a conditional use, special 

conditions may be attached to the permit by local government or the Department of Ecology to 

prevent undesirable effects of the proposed use and/or to assure consistency of the project with 

the act and the local master program. 

1) Uses which are classified or set forth in the applicable master program as conditional uses 

may be authorized provided that the applicant demonstrates all of the following: 

a. That the proposed use is consistent with the policies, regulations and standards of RCW 

90.58.020 and the master program; 

b. That the proposed use will not interfere with the normal public use of public shorelines; 

c. That the proposed use of the site and design of the project is compatible with other 

authorized uses within the area and with uses planned for the area under the 

comprehensive plan and shoreline master program; 

d. That the proposed use will cause no significant adverse effects to the shoreline 

environment in which it is to be located; and 

e. That the public interest suffers no substantial detrimental effect. 

2) In the granting of all conditional use permits, consideration shall be given to the cumulative 

impact of additional requests for like actions in the area. For example, if conditional use 

City of Prosser 83 Shoreline Master Program 

263



permits were granted for other developments in the area where similar circumstances exist, 

the total of the conditional uses shall also remain consistent with the policies of RCW 

90.58.020 and shall not produce substantial adverse effects to the shoreline environment. 

3) Other uses which are not classified or set forth in the applicable master program may be 

authorized as conditional uses provided the applicant can demonstrate consistency with the 

requirements of this Section and the requirements for conditional uses contained in the 

master program. 

4) Uses which are specifically prohibited by the master program may not be authorized 

pursuant to either subsection (a.) or (b.) of this Section. 

16.04.76 Variances: 

A. A development may be granted which is at variance with the criteria established in the SMP 

where, owing to special conditions pertaining to the specific piece of property, the literal 

interpretation and strict application of the criteria established in the SMP would cause undue 

and unnecessary hardship or practical difficulties. A variance may be required for a use that 

does not require a substantial development permit but which may not be approved because it 

does not comply with the provisions of the SMP. 

B. Decision Criteria: The fact that the applicant might make a greater profit by using his property in 

a manner contrary to the intent of the Master Program is not, by itself, sufficient reason for a 

variance. The Board of Adjustment must find each of the following: 

1) That the strict application of the bulk, dimensional or performance standards set forth in the 

applicable master program precludes, or significantly interferes with, reasonable use of the 

property; 

2) That the hardship described in (1) of this subsection is specifically related to the property, 

and is the result of unique conditions such as irregular lot shape, size, or natural features 

and the application of the master program, and not, for example, from deed restrictions or 

the applicant's own actions; 

3) That the design of the project is compatible with other authorized uses within the area and 

with uses planned for the area under the comprehensive plan and shoreline master program 

and will not cause adverse impacts to the shoreline environment; 

4) That the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege not enjoyed by the other 

properties in the area; 

5) That the variance requested is the minimum necessary to afford relief; and 

6) That the public interest will suffer no substantial detrimental effect. 

City of Prosser 84 Shoreline Master Program 

264



16.04.77 Time Requirements for Shoreline Permits 

A. The time requirements of this Section shall apply to all substantial development permits and to 

any development authorized pursuant to a variance or conditional use permit authorized under 

the Shoreline Master Program. 

B. No construction pursuant to such permit shall begin or be authorized and no building, grading, 

or other construction permits or use permits shall be issued by the City until twenty-one (21) 

days from the date a substantial development permit was filed with the Department of Ecology 

and the Attorney General, or until all review proceedings are completed as were initiated within 

the twenty-one (21) days of the date of filing. Filing shall occur in accordance with RCW 

90.58.140(6) and WAC 173-27-130 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

C. No permits and construction pursuant to a conditional use permit or variance shall begin or be 

authorized until twenty-one (21) days from the date of notification of approval by the Department 

of Ecology, or until all review proceedings are completed as were initiated within the twenty-one 

(21) days of the date of filing. Filing shall occur in accordance with RCW 90.58.140(6) and 

WAC 173-27-130 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

D. Unless a different time period is specified in the shoreline permit as authorized by 

RCW 90.58.143, construction activities, or a use or activity for which a permit has been granted 

pursuant to this Master Program, must be commenced within two (2) years of the effective date 

of a shoreline permit, or the shoreline permit shall terminate and a new permit shall be 

necessary. However, the Administrator may authorize a single extension for a period not to 

exceed one (1) year based on reasonable factors if a request for extension has been filed with 

the City before the expiration date and notice of the proposed extension is given to parties of 

record and the Department of Ecology. Construction activities or commencement of construction 

means that construction applications must be submitted, permits must be issued, and 

foundation inspections must be approved and completed. 

E. A permit authorizing construction shall extend for a term of no more than five (5) years after the 

effective date of a shoreline permit, unless a longer period has been specified pursuant to RCW 

90.58. 143 and Subsection F of this Section. If an applicant files a request for an extension prior 

to expiration of the shoreline permit, the Administrator shall review the permit and upon a 

showing of good cause may authorize a single extension of the shoreline permit for a period of 

up to one year. Otherwise said permit shall terminate. Notice of the proposed permit extension 

shall be given to parties of record and the Department of Ecology. To maintain the validity of a 

City of Prosser 85 Shoreline Master Program 

265



shoreline permit, it is the applicant's responsibility to maintain valid construction permits in 

accordance with adopted Building Codes. 

F. If it is determined that standard time requirements of Subsections D and E should not be 

applied, the Decision Maker, upon a finding of good cause, may establish shorter time limits, 

provided that as a part of action on a conditional use or variance permit the approval of the 

Department of Ecology shall be required. "Good cause" means that the time limits established 

are reasonably related to the time actually necessary to perform the development on the ground 

and complete the project that is being permitted. 

G. For purposes of determining the life of a shoreline permit, the effective date of a substantial 

development permit, shoreline conditional use permit, or shoreline variance permit shall be the 

date of filing as provided in RCW _90.58.140(6) as now existing or as hereafter may be 

amended. The permit time periods do not include the time during which a use or activity was not 

actually pursued due to the pendency of appeals or legal actions, or due to the need to obtain 

any other government permits and approvals for the development that authorize the 

development to proceed. 

H. It is the responsibility of the applicant to inform the Administrator of the pendency of other permit 

applications filed with agencies other than the City, and of any related administrative or legal 

actions on any permit or approval. If no notice of the pendency of other permits or approvals is 

given to the City prior to the expiration date established by the shoreline permit or the provisions 

of this Section, the expiration of a permit shall be based on the effective date of the shoreline 

permit. 

I. If the granting of a shoreline permit by the City is appealed to the Shoreline Hearings Board, 

and the Shoreline Hearings Board has approved the granting of the permit, and an appeal for 

judicial review of the Shoreline Hearings Board decision is filed, construction authorization may 

occur subject to the conditions, time periods, and other provisions of RCW 90.58.140(5)(b). 

16.04.78 Rulings to State 

A. Any ruling on an application for a substantial development permit under authority of this Master 

Program, whether it is an approval or denial, shall, with the transmittal of the ruling to the 

applicant, be filed concurrently with the Department of Ecology and the Attorney General by the 

Administrator. Filing shall occur in accordance with RCW 90.58.140(6) and WAC 173-27-130 as 

now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

City of Prosser 86 Shoreline Master Program 

266



16.04. 79 Appeals 

Any person aggrieved by the granting, denying, or rescinding of a permit on shorelines of the 

state pursuant to RCW 90.58.140 may seek review from the shorelines hearings board by filing 

a petition for review within twenty-one (21) days of the date of receipt of the decision as 

provided for in RCW 90.58.140(6) as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. Appeals as 

provided by PMC 19.01.040 Project permit application framework, may be provided only if 

initiated by the applicant. If such an appeal is initiated by the applicant, the final decision shall 

be the city's appeal decision and shall initiate the 21 day period for petition to the shoreline 

hearings board. 

16.04.80 Enforcement 

All provisions of this Master Program shall be enforced by the Administrator in accordance with 

Chapter 19.07 PMC. 

16.04.81 Rescission of Permits 

A. Any shoreline permit issued under the terms of this Master Program may be rescinded or 

suspended upon a finding that a permittee has not complied with conditfons of the permit. 

B. Such rescission and/or modification of an issued permit shall be initiated by serving written 

notice of noncompliance on the permittee, which shall be sent by registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to the address listed on the application or to such other address as the 

applicant or permittee may have advised the City; or such notice may be served on the 

applicant or permittee in person or his agent in the same manner as service of summons as 

provided by law. 

C. Before any such permit can be rescinded, a public hearing shall be held by the Board of 

Adjustment. Notice of the publ'lc hearing shall be made in accordance with Section 16.04.073 of 

this program. The decision of the Board of Adjustment shall be the final decision of the City on 

all rescinded applications. A written decision shall be transmitted to the Department of Ecology, 

the Attorney General's office, the applicant, and such other departments or boards of the City as 

are affected thereby and the legislative body of the City. 

D. The Department of Ecology may petition the Shoreline Hearings Board for a rescission of the 

permit if Ecology is of the opinion that the noncompliance continues to exist thirty (30) days after 

City of Prosser 87 Shoreline Master Program 

267



the date of the notice, and the local government has taken no action to rescind the permit, as 

provided by RCW 90.58.140(8). 

16.04.82 Violations and Penalties 

A. In addition to the provisions of Chapter 19.07 PMC, every person violating any of the provisions 

of this Master Program or the Shoreline Management Act of 1971 shall be punishable under 

conviction by a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by imprisonment not 

exceeding ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and each day's violation 

shall constitute a separate punishable offense. 

B. The City Attorney may bring such injunctive, declaratory, or other actions as are necessary to 

ensure that no uses are made of the Shorelines of the State within the City's jurisdiction which 

are in conflict with the provisions and programs of this Master Program or the Shoreline 

Management Act of 1971, and to otherwise enforce provisions of this Section and the Shoreline 

Management Act of 1971 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

C. Any person subject to the regulatory program of this Master Program who violates any provision 

of this Master Program or the provisions of a permit issued pursuant thereto shall be liable for all 

damages to public or private property arising from such violation, including the cost of restoring 

the affected area to its condition prior to such violation. The City Attorney shall bring suit for 

damages under this subsection on behalf of the City. Private persons shall have the right to 

bring suit for damages under this subsection on their own behalf and on behalf of all persons 

similarly situated. If liability has been established for the cost of restoring an area affected by 

violation, the Court shall make provision to assure that restoration will be accomplished within a 

reasonable time at the expense of the violator. In addition to such relief, including monetary 

damages, the Court in its discretion may award attorney's fees and costs of the suit to the 

prevailing party. 

16.04.83 Shoreline Moratorium 

A. The City Council may adopt moratoria or other interim official controls as necessary and 

appropriate to implement the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act in accordance with 

RCW 90.58.590. 

City of Prosser 88 Shoreline Master Program 

268



16.04.84 Administration Rules Promulgation 

A The Administrator is authorized to adopt such rules as are necessary and appropriate to 

implement this chapter. The director may prepare and require the use of such forms as are 

necessary to its administration. 

16.04.85 Amendments Authorized 

A The provisions of the Shoreline Master Program Use Regulations or the Shoreline Environment 

Map may be amended as provided for in RCW 90.58.120 and 90.58.200 and Chapter 173-26 

WAC as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

16.04.86 Amendments Adopted by City Council 

A Adoption of an amendment to the official controls shall be adopted by the City Council by 

ordinance after a public hearing and report by the planning commission. 

16.04.87 Initiation of Amendments 

A The Shoreline Use Regulations or Map amendments thereto may be initiated by: 

1) The adoption of a motion by the City Council requesting that the planning commission set a 

matter for hearing and recommendation. 

2) The adoption of a motion by the planning commission. 

3) Application of one or more owners of property affected by the proposal. 

4) A department or agency of the City or governmental entity. 

16.04.88 Burden of proof 

A Proponents for Shoreline Environment Map redesignations (Le., amendments to the Shoreline 

Environment Designation Map) shall bear the burden of proof for demonstrating consistency 

with the shoreline environment criteria of the master program, Chapter 173-26 WAC as now 

existing or as hereafter may be amended, and the goals and policies of the City of Prosser 

Comprehensive Plan. 

16.04.89 Transmittal to the Department of Ecology 

A Subsequent to final action by the Council adopting or amending the Shoreline Master Program 

or official control, said Master Program, official control, or amendment thereto shall be submitted 

City of Prosser 89 Shoreline Master Program 

269



to the Department of Ecology for approval. No such Master Program, official control, or 

amendment thereto shall become effective until approval by the Department of Ecology is 

obtained pursuant to RCW 90.58.90 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

City of Prosser 90 Shoreline Master Program 

270



Section Ill Amendment of City of Prosser Code Chapter 16.10 
1. Chapter 16.10 CRITICAL AREAS PROTECTION-GENERAL PROVISIONS Is amended as 

follows 

16.10.120 . Exceptio!J=Reasonable USE;!, 

A. Except within the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act RCW 90.58 if #-the application 
of this title would deny all reasonable use of the subject property, the property owner may apply 
for an exception pursuant to this Section. 

16.10.130 General review 

B. Critical Areas Present, But No Impact-Waiver. If the planning director determines that there 
are critical areas within or adjacent to the project area, but that the proposed activity is unlikely 
to degrade the functions or values of the critical area, the planning director may waive the 
requirement for a report or other applicable information. A waiver may be granted if there is 
substantial evidence that all of the following requirements will be met: 

1. There will be no alteration of the critical area or buffer; 

2. The development proposal will not impact the critical area in a manner contrary to the 
purpose, intent, and requirements of this title; and 

3. The proposal is consistent with other applicable regulations and standards. 

4. The Administrator may recognize that ecological functions of buffers are interrupted by 
permanent man-made features and may recognize such features as the boundary of the 
buffer. Such features may include public roads, railroads, publicly maintained levees and 
other existing permanent improvements that substantially interrupt or impair ecological 
functions performed by buffers in relation to the adjacent wetland or water body. In such 
cases, the Administrator may recognize that the buffer extends from the edge of the wetland 
or the ordinary hioh water mark of a stream to the edge or the area of vegetation 
management associated with the road, railroad, levee. or similar facility. In the case of 
private facilities, the Administrator may recognize that existing structures and impervious 
surfaces provide the effective limit to buffer functions on existing developed sites and 
recognize such facilities as the boundary of the buffer, provided that upon substantial 
redevelopment of a site or facility, the Administrator may reguire reconfiguration of a site or 
redesign of features to accommodate buffer dimensions as otherwise provided in this 
chapter. The Administrator may require appropriate studies by a Qualified Professional to 
determine whether buffer functions are interrupted or substantially impaired by existing 
facilities. 

p. Within the Jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act RCVV 90.58, regulations to protect 
critical areas are intended to be remedial and curative in nature, and to apply retroactively to 
July 27. 2003. 

2. Chapter 16.20 WETLANDS is amended as follows 

16.20.010 [)esig11ati()n, r<1ti119 a11d 111appi1J!! ll\IE!tl<1nds, ... 

A. Designating Wetlands. Wetlands are those areas, designated in accordance with the 
"Washington State Wetland Identification and Delineation Manual," that are inundated or 

City of Prosser 91 Shoreline Master Program 

271



saturated by surtace or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that 
under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in 
saturated soil conditions. All areas within the city of Prosser meeting the wetland designation 
criteria in the "Identification and Delineation Manual," regardless of any formal identification, 
are hereby designated critical areas and are subject to the provisions of this title. 

8. Wetland Ratings. Wetlands shall be rated according to the Department of Ecology wetland 
rating system found in the Washington State Wetland Rating for Eastern Washington 
(Ecology Publication No. 04-06-015 ~). or as revised by Ecology. This document 
contains definitions and methods for determining ratings. a---Gffi-eg&F}'+GalB§ePf-l
wetlanas-are-tAose thal-ffiBet-tfle-f~.jac 

i. Documented habitat for federal or state listed endangered or threatened fish, animal, 
er-flklffi...speBies; 

iic--F!i§f1-E1t1aM;y-Aal.fve-wetlaRd-Gem mun ilies,iflc-IHGiA§-deeumentod-Gateger-y+er-~j-quaffiy
Ratufal heritage wetland sites and sites whfGf+~ify as a-Gategory I or 11 qualily
natural heritage wetland (defined in tho rating system documeffish 

iii. High-q.uajii''f,-f€§iooally rare wetlan4-c-emmuf1#ies-with-irrefl'laceable ecolB§ical
fuRctieR&,-iRClt!Bffi§-sflMf!1*1fH-ile§C-a004eRs,-weJ.laffils,er--rnatllie forestee-swamps
~nee in the rating system documents); or 

iv~WeJ.l~~-leeakigl'H·fiGaflC-&-

~ CategBfY-j I. Categ<*y 11 wetlands are thece-Aot-Eleffned-Bs-GategefY-l·-wetlaf1€ls-aRd-that
meet-tho following criteria: 

~mentee habitats for state listed sensitive l*lflt, fish or animal species; 

jh-\Aletlaooe-ifiat-G&R{ajn-!"laRt,fisl+er-.animal-speBies-Jjsted as-pr-iefi.ty-epeeiee-ey-tf1e-
Q€flartment of-Fish and Wildlife; 

iii. Wetland types with significant..fHRB!iens that may not be adeqBately replicatee through 
BfeffiieR-sHeB!Bf~ 

Wo-Wetlafids riosseeeiAg~e-baeed-efl...a-BB-0ra-ef-tweffiy4we-Gf-mBf€
peints in tho habitat rating system; or 

\1-c-OOGtJmentod wetlands of locakig-nif~ 

tt-----Categ0f)'-+l+c-GalB§BfY-l.J.l-wet-iaRde-ar-e-#1Gee-t hat do not-saliefy-Gategery-.1,l+-or-l'll'-cf~teria, 
ane with a habitat value rating of twenty 0110 points or less. 

d. Category IV. Category IV wetlands are those that meet the following criteria; 

h4fy~Bally-iBGlatod-wet+aRds-tfiat-are-+eee-t.nan or eE[tlal-+e-ane acre in-eii!e,have
only one •.vetland class, and are dominated (greater than eighty riereent areal cover) 
lily a single nonnative plant species (monetypic vegetation); or 

iic--l=lydfele§-iGatiy--iselated-wetlan€1&-thahlre-less-thOR or o qua 1-te-iWG-aB-r-es i 11 s izo, a M-
14ave-ooly-ooe-wetland--claee-ane-§feate r thaf1-niootv-pereenf..areat-oover-al-fl0RR.alive 
plant srieoies. 

City of Prosser 92 Shoreline Master Program 

272



16. 20.040 P!Jrfe>r111ance stan~ardi;=(;!ln!Jral reguire111ents. 

A. Activities may only be permitted in a wetland or wetland buffer if the applicant can show that 
the proposed activity will not degrade the functions and values of the wetland and other critical 
areas. 

B. Activities and uses shall be prohibited from wetlands and wetland buffers, except as provided 
for in this title. 

C. Wetland Buffers. 

1. Standard Buffer Widths. The standard buffer widths presume the existence of a relatively 
intact native vegetation community in the buffer zone adequate to protect the wetland 
functions and values at the time of the proposed activity. If the vegetation is inadequate 
then the buffer width shall be increased or the buffer should be planted to maintain the 
standard width. Required standard wetland buffers, based on wetland category and land 
use intensity, are as follows: 

WETLAND TYPE 

Category I 

Category I 30-36 habitat points 

Category I 26-29 habitat points 

Category I 21-25 habitat points 

Category I >21 habitat points 

Category II 

Category II 30-36 habitat points 

Category 11 26-29 habitat points 

Category II 21-25 habitat points 

Category II >21 habitat points 

Category Ill 

Category Ill 26-29 habitat points 

Category Ill 21-25 habitat points 

Category Ill >21 habitat points 

Category IV 
a~ 

City Prosser 

Flj§fl-inl&R&ity..JaA4*JBe 

bBw intensity-lanci-use 

Fjjsfi.JH\encity land use 

b<lw-if1leRsity land use 

Flj§A-ifllensifyland-lffie 

kBw-iflten&iiy4aflci-tffiB 

93 

BUFFER 

150 feet 

115 feet 

90 feet 

75 feet 

150 feet 

115 feet 

90 feet 

75 feet 

120 feet 

90 feet 

60 feet 

40 feet 

+w-feeli 
100 leeto 

Shoreline Master Program 

273



High intensity land use 

The following measures shall be incorporated into adjacent development: 

Tl[Qe of Potential Disturbance Reguired Measures to Minimize lmQacts 

Lights Direct lights away_ from wetland. 

Noise Locate activity_ that generates noise away_ from wetland. 

If warranted, enhance existing buffer with native vegetation 
Qlantings adjacent to noise source. 

For activities that generate relatively continuous, QOtentially_ 
disruQtive noise, such as certain heav1£ industry_ or mining, 
establish an additional 10-foot heavill' vegetated buffer stri12 
immediately adjacent to the outer wetland buffer. 

Toxic runoff Route all new, untreated runoff awal' from wetland while 
ensuring wetland is not dewatered. 

Establish covenants limiting use of Qesticide:;; within 150 f('let of_ 
wetland. 

A1212ly integrated 12est management. 

Stormwater runoff Retrofit stormwater detention and treatment for roads and 
existing adjacent development. 

Prevent channelized flow from lawns that directly enters the 
buffer. 

Use Low Intensity_ Develo12ment technigues (12er Eastern 
Washington Low Impact Development Guidance Manual, 
Washington De12artment of Ecology 12ublication #13-10-036, 
June 2013 and as may be hereafter amended, supQlemented, 
or re12laced.)). 

Change in patterns or water Infiltrate or treat, detain. and disperse into buffer new runoff 
flow~ from im12ervious surfaces and new lawns. 

Pets and human disturbance Use 12rivacy fencing or 12lant dense vegetation to delineate 
buffer edge and to discourage disturbance using vegetation 
ap12ro12riate for the ecoregion. 

Place wetland and its buffer in a separate tract or protect with a 
conservation easement. 

Dust Use best management 12ractices to control dust. 

Disru12tion of corridors or Maintain connections to offsite areas that are undisturbed. 
connections 

Restore corridors or connections to offsite habitats by 
re12lanting. 

Subsections 2. and 3. are unaffected. 

City of Prosser 94 Shoreline Master Program 

274



4. Reduction of Wetland Buffer Widths. 

a. The city may allow the standard wetland buffer width to be reduced in accordance with 
the report and the best available science on a case-by-case basis when it is determined 
that a smaller area is adequate to protect the wetland functions and values based on 
site-specific characteristics. 

b. This determination shall be supported by documentation showing that a reduced buffer 
is adequate based on all of the following criteria: 

i. Requiring the standard buffer poses an extraordinary hardship on the landowner; 

ii. The existing buffer area is well vegetated with native species and has less than ten 
percent slopes; and 

iii. No direct or indirect short-term or long-term adverse impacts to wetlands will result 
from the proposed activity. 

c. The city may require long-term monitoring of the buffer and wetland. Subsequent 
corrective actions may be required if adverse impacts to wetlands are discovered during 
the monitoring period. 

d. In no case shall the standard buffer width be reduced by more than fifty percent, or the 
buffer width be less than fifty feet, whichever is greater, unless the applicant 
demonstrates an acceptable reasonable use as described in Section 16.10.120. 

e. Isolated G_ategory 3 and 4 wetlands less than 1,000 square feet may be exempt from 
the buffer provisions contained in this Chapter and the normal mitigation sequencing 
process. They may be displaced if impacts are fully mitigated. Such wetlands: 

i. Are not associated with riparian areas or buffers. 

ii. Are not part of a wetland mosaic. 

iii. Do not contain habitat identified as essential for local populations of priority species 
identified by the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

G. Mitigation Ratios. 

1. Acreage Replacement Ratios. The following ratios shall apply to creation or restoration 
that is in-kind, on-site, the same category, timed prior to or concurrent with alteration, and 
has a high probability of success. These ratios do not apply to remedial actions resulting 
from unauthorized alterations; greater ratios shall apply in those cases. These ratios do 
not apply to the use of credits from a state-certified wetland mitigation bank. When credits 
from a certified bank are used, replacement ratios should be consistent with the 
requirements of the bank's certification. The first number specifies the acreage of 
replacement wetlands and the second specifies the acreage of wetlands altered. 

City of Prosser 95 Shoreline Master Program 

275



GAEH!M one half to one. 

Wet!andillitigatfon Ratios 
.··.· . . .. 

' 
' ' .· . ',' ,-,>- . ·. ·.·. .· '. .. . .···. 

Catego~ arid T~(!e . · ' - ', .-~ ',' '',Aj.'' ',',, 
Riihabilitation - . · ' · .. .. 

. 

,·· ofWetland - ···. .. ·· . 
. ·•. · .. . 

Cat Ei.Q.QL\/J;__ Not considered 6: 1 Case by case 10 1 
Bog, Natural Heritage 12ossible 
Site 

Categ Q!}lj;_ fil 12: 1 24:1 241 

Mature Forested 

Category I: 1-;1 8:1 16 1 20 1 
Based on Functions 

Category II 3:1 6:1 12: 1 201 

Category Ill 2:1 4: 1 8 1 15:1 

Category IV 1.5:1 3:1 6:1 10 1 

Note: Impacts to buffers shall be mitigated at a 1 :1 ratio. Compensatory buffer rn!tigation shall replace those buffer 
functions lost from develop1nent. 

3. Chapter 16.60 FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT CONSERVATION AREAS is amended as 
follows: 

16.60.040 f'~rf()rllJa11c;e s;ta11~<1r~s;=l>P~(;ific h<1~itats, 

C. Riparian Habitat Areas. Unless otherwise allowed in this title, all structures and activities shall 
be located outside of the riparian habitat area. 

1. Establishment of Riparian Habitat Areas. Riparian habitat areas shall be established for 
habitats that include aquatic systems. 

I 
! 

2. Riparian Habitat Area Widths. Recommended riparian habitat area widths are shown in 
the table below. A riparian habitat area shall have the width recommended, unless a 
greater width is required pursuant to subsection (C)(3) of this Section, or a lesser width is 
allowed pursuant to subsection (C)(4) of this Section. Widths shall be measured outward, 
on the horizontal plane, from the ordinary high water mark or from the top of bank if the 
ordinary high water mark cannot be identified. Riparian areas should be sufficiently wide to 
achieve the full range of riparian and aquatic ecosystem functions, which include but are 
not limited to protection of in-stream fish habitat through control of temperature and 
sedimentation in streams; preservation of fish and wildlife habitat; and connection of 
riparian wildlife habitat to other habitats. 

Riparian Habitat Areas 

Stream Type Recommended RHA Widths' 

City of Prosser 96 Shoreline Master Program 

276



Types 1 and 2-Shorelines of statewide significance (Yakima River) 200 feet 

Where SQecific reach-based buffers are adoQted in Title 16.04 Shoreline Management, the reach-based buffers 
may be emQloyed in lieu of the above. 

Type 3 or other perennial or fish-bearing streams 75 feet 

Types 4 and 5 50 feet 

City of Prosser Shoreline Master Program 

277



LAND USE ZONING & PERMIT APPLICATION 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

PARCEL INFORMATION (Include all parcel(s) information. Attach additional sheets, if necessary.) 

Project Address: ( ;-f. c> {- froJ.5.;: ,~ 
(Leave blank if not assigned) 

LIJA-1 

Parcel Number (Property Tax Account Number).~:---------------------

Legal Description.~: ______________________________ _ 

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION 

Address~: __________ City: _________ State: ___ Zip~: _____ _ 

Phone: ______________ Cell Phone.~: ________________ _ 

Email :------------------~(=er=n=ai~l =w=ill~n=o=t =be~u=s=ed~Ji=o~r t=rn~"~"="=itt=a~l o=f~o=ffi=rc=ia=l =fi=nd=i,,,ng='s) 

OWNERS AUTHORIZED AGENT: ___ J'J __ ,4 ___________________ _ 

Address~: __________ City.,_: _________ State: ___ .Zip.,_: _____ _ 

Phone: ________________ Cell Phone . .,_:--------------

Email.,_: __________________ _,_(e=m=a=il~w=i=ll~n=ot~b=e~u=se=d~fi=or~t=ra=ns~m=i=tta=l~o~f=of=fi=c'=·a~l fi=11=1d=in=g=s) 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
0 Site Review 
0 Annexation 
0 Change of Zone 
0 Accessory Dwelling Unit 
0 Overlay Zone 
0 Right-of-Way Use Permit 
X[Other 

PMC-18 

0 Conditional Use (requires Conditional Use form LUA-SJ) 
0 Variance (requires Variance request form IJIJA-S2) 
D Similar Use 
D Encroachment 
D Adult Family Home 
D Continuation and/or Minor Alteration of Non-Conforming Use 

)5il'. SEPA 

City of Prosser 
60 l 7•h Street 

Prosser WA 99350 
(509) 786-2332 Revised 12-29-07 

278



PLEASE ATTACH THE REQUIRED VICINITY MAP 

ESTIMATED PROJECT VALUATION: $ ____ j/,_)-_______ _ 

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

Company Name: _________________ Email~: --------------

Contact Person: ______________ Contact Phone~:--------------

Address: _________________ City: _______ State: ____ Zip~: ___ _ 

Contractor's Registration No.: _______________ Expiration Date~: ______ _ 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information on this application and 
other submitted information is true and correct. In addition, I understand that acceptance of this application and 
fees does not constitute submittal of a valid application until so informed by the City. I have attached, enclosed, 
or submitted the applicable fees for this application. 
~ _ .... --·· !z 
A!2~~ 2;~1::: Owner Signature Date 

lfthe property owner is other than an individual such as a corporation, partnership or agency, 
please provide proof of signatory authorization. 

SITE REVIEW 
Application must include the following. 
!. Critical Areas Worksheet 

2. Proof of Legal Lot 

3. Proof of ownership or authority 

4. 25 year Storm Water Calculations stainped by an engineer 

5. Site Plan Drawing \Vhich sho\vS ... 
D All existing and proposed lot lines. 
D The location of all existing structures to ren1ain and the location 

of all proposed structures. 
D The location of all utilities proposed to be used. 
D The proposed nun1ber and location of \vater n1ctcrs. 
D The location of all solid waste receptacle areas. 
D The inethod of handling stonn water re1nova!. 
D All easements and right-of-\vays. 
D All off-street parking and loading areas. 
D A!J drive\vay locations. 
0 A!! landscaping, outdoor lighting and fencing .. 
D A north arrovv. 
0 Scale of drawing 

CITY USE ONLY 

RECIEVEDBY 

APPROVED BY _______ _ 

RETURNED BY _______ _ 

REASON FOR APPLICATION RETURN 

PMC-18 

Deposits are required at the time an application is 
submitted. You will still get a monthly bill for 
actual costs incurred. Your deposit will not be 
refunded until the project has closed. 

SITE REVIEW 
VARIANCE 
SITE REVIEW 

~ATION 
ZONE CHANGE 
CONDITIONAL USE 

DATE ___ _ 

DATE ---- ---

$500.00 Deposit 
$500. 00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$1000.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 

Revised 12-29-07 
279



City of Prosser 

Shoreline Master Program (SMP) 
ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

WAC 197-11-960 Environmental checklist. 

Purpose of checklist: 

The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), chapter 43.21C RCW, requires all governmental agencies to consider 
the environmental impacts of a proposal before making decisions. An environmental impact statement (EIS) must 
be prepared for all proposals with probable significant adverse impacts on the quality of the environment. The 
purpose of this checklist is to provide information to help you and the agency identify impacts from your proposal 
(and to reduce or avoid impacts from the proposal, if it can be done) and to help the agency decide whether an 
EIS is required. 

Instructions for applicants: 

This environmental checklist asks you to describe some basic information about your proposal. Governmental 
agencies use this checklist to determine whether the environmental impacts of your proposal are significant, 
requiring preparation of an EIS. Answer the questions briefly, with the most precise information known, or give the 
best description you can. 

You must answer each question accurately and carefully, to the best of your knowledge. In most cases, you 
should be able to answer the questions from your own observations or project plans without the need to hire 
experts. If you really do not know the answer, or if a question does not apply to your proposal, write "do not know" 
or "does not apply." Complete answers to the questions now may avoid unnecessary delays later. 

Some questions ask about governmental regulations, such as zoning, shoreline, and landmark designations. 
Answer these questions if you can. If you have problems, the governmental agencies can assist you. 

The checklist questions apply to all parts of your proposal, even if you plan to do them over a period of time or on 
different parcels of land. Attach any additional information that will help describe your proposal or its 
environmental effects. The agency to which you submit this checklist may ask you to explain your answers or 
provide additional information reasonably related to determining if there may be significant adverse impact. 

Use of checklist for non-project proposals: 

Complete this checklist for non-project proposals, even though questions may be answered "does not apply." IN 
ADDITION, complete the SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS (part D). 

For non-project actions, the references in the checklist to the words "project," "applicant," and "property or site" 
should be read as "proposal," "proposer," and "affected geographic area," respectively. 

A. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Proposal Title: City of Prosser Shoreline Master Program (SMP) 

Property Owner: City of Prosser 

Proponent: City of Prosser 

Contact Person: Steve Zetz, Planner 

280



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

Contact Person's Address: 

Contact Person's Phone: 

Proposal location: 

601 7th Street, Prosser, WA 99350 

(509) 786-2332 

Citywide and within Urban Growth Area (UGA) within 200 feet of 
water bodies under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act, 
additional floodplain areas, and within "associated wetlands" 

Brief description of the proposal's scope and nature: 

General description: 

The Shoreline Master Program (SMP) applies across the City and establishes development standards for 
shoreline development. The State Shoreline Management Act (SMA) requires each jurisdiction with 
shorelines of the state and shoreline state wide significance to make and update these rules. 

The City's SMP must comply with the requirements of the Shoreline Management Act, specifically the 
guidelines created in 2003. The general goals of the Shoreline Management Act are: 

• Protect shoreline natural resources, including " ... the land and its vegetation and wildlife, and the 
water of the state and their aquatic life ... " 

• Promote public access: "the public's opportunity to enjoy the physical and aesthetic qualities of 
natural shorelines of the state shall be preserved to the greatest extent feasible consistent with 
the overall best interest of the state and the people generally." 

• Encourage water-dependent uses: "uses shall be preferred which are consistent with control of 
pollution and prevention of damage to the natural environment, or are unique to or dependent 
upon use of the states' shorelines ... " 

The text of the Shoreline Master Program (SMP) accompanies this determination. 

Reference also should be made to the Shoreline Cumulative Effects Analysis which evaluates cumulative 
impacts of reasonably foreseeable future development on shoreline ecological functions and other 
shoreline functions fostered by the policy goals of the act (see attached). 

2. Acreage of site: NIA 

3. Number of dwelling units/buildings to be demolished: N/A 

4. Number of dwelling units/buildings to be constructed: N/A 

5. Square footage of buildings to be demolished: NIA 

6. Square footage of buildings to be constructed: N/A 

7. Quantity of earth movement (in cubic yards): N/A 

2 
281



8. Proposed land use: N/A 

9. Design features: N/A 

10. Other: N/A 

B. Environmental Elements 

1. Earth 

City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

a. General description of the site (circle one): Flat, rolling, hilly, steep slopes, mountainous, other. 

All these features, except mountains, are present in the city and in areas subject to the Shoreline 
Master Program (SMP). 

b. What is the steepest slope on the site (approximate percent slope)? 

Steep slopes up to approximately 30percent are found in the shoreline. Most land subject to the 
Sl\llP with steeper slopes is west of the 1-82 bridge and east of the 1-82 bridge is as the lower 
slope ranges. 

c. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, peat, muck)? If you 
know the classification of agricultural soils, specify them and note any prime farmland. 

Several primary soil types are located within the shoreline jurisdiction: Esquatzel silt loam, 
Esquatzel fine sandy loam, Scooteney stony silt loam, and riverwash. The majority of the soil 
within shoreline jurisdiction consists of Esquatzel silt loam and Esquatzel fine sandy loam which 
are located on the south bank of the Yakima River on the west side of the city (west of 1-82) 
followed by Scooteney stony silt loam which is also located on the south bank, east of the 1-82 
bridge. 

Of the primary soil types located within the shoreline jurisdiction, Esquatzel silt loam and 
Esquatzel fine sandy loam are classified as prime farmlands if irrigated. The majority of the 
remaining soils found within the shoreline jurisdiction are not prime farmland. Source: United 
States Department of Agriculture 2012. Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Web 
Soil Survey, data accessed on 1/20/2014: 
http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/HomePage.htm 

d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils in the immediate vicinity? If so, describe. 

There are some areas of unstable soils in the city. These areas are not changed by the policies 
within the SMP and are addressed by other programs, such as critical area regulations. 

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling or grading proposed. Indicate source 
of fill. 

No specific fill or grading is proposed in the SMP. The Sl\llP contains policies and regulations 
addressing fill within SMA jurisdiction. Impacts of specific projects affected by policies and 
regulations in the SMP will be addressed by project-level SEPA review if required. 

f. Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use? If so, generally describe. 

No specific actions resulting in erosion is proposed in the SllllP. The Sl\llP contains policies and 
regulations addressing fill within SMA jurisdiction and cross references the Critical Areas code 
and other requirements. Impacts of specific projects affected by policies and regulations in the 
SMP will be addressed by project-level SEPA review if required. 

g. About what percent of the site will be covered with impervious surfaces after project construction (for 
example, asphalt or buildings)? 

3 
282



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

The SMP will not result in impervious surfaces. The SMP contains policies and regulations 
addressing impervious surface within SMA jurisdiction and will affect future development 
projects, largely in a beneficial manner. 

h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any: 

No specific actions resulting in erosion is proposed In the SMP. The SMP contains policies and 
regulations addressing erosion within SMA jurisdiction and cross references the Critical Areas 
code and other requirements. Impacts of specific projects affected by policies and regulations in 
the SMP will be addressed by project-level SEPA review if required. 

2. Air 

a. What types of emissions to the air would result from the proposal (i.e., dust, automobile, odors, industrial 
wood smoke) during construction and when the project is completed? If any, generally describe and give 
approximate quantities if known. 

No specific actions resulting in air emissions are proposed in the SMP. 

The SMP is likely lo have little impact on air emissions. 

b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions or odor that may affect your proposal? If so, generally 
describe. 

Nol relevantto a policy action such as the SMP. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, if any: 

None are proposed as part of the SMP. Governed by other regulations. 

3. Water 

a. Surface: 

1) Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity of the site (including year-round and 
seasonal streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, wetlands)? If yes, describe type and provide names. If 
appropriate, state what stream or river it flows into. 

Prosser's waterbodies subject lo the SMP include the Yakima River and associated wetlands. 

The Yakima River is considered a shoreline of the state, it drains a basin area of approximately 
6,150 miles, and flows into the Columbia River. The Yakima River is designated as a shoreline of 
statewide significance. 

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service National Welland Inventory (NWI) documents several wetlands 
within shoreline jurisdiction in Prosser. These wetlands are primarily located within the 
floodway of the Yakima River and are characterized as freshwater emergent and freshwater 
forested/shrub wetlands (source: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 2013. National Wetland Inventory 
data mapper: http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Oata/Mapper.html accessed on 10/25/2013). 

2) Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the described 
waters? If yes, please describe and attach available plans. 

No specific actions resulting in such work is proposed in the SMP. 

The SMP, however, contains policies and regulations addressing work within S!lllAjurisdiction. 

3) Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in or removed from surface water 
or wetlands and indicate the area of the site that would be affected. Indicate the source of fill material. 

4 
283



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

No specific actions resulting in fill and dredge material is proposed in the SMP. The SMP 
contains policies and regulations addressing fill within SMA jurisdiction and cross references 
the Critical Areas code and other requirements. 

Impacts of specific projects affected by policies and regulations in the Sl\llP are likely to be 
reduced by those provisions. 

4) Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals or diversions? Give general description, purpose, 
and approximate quantities if known. 

lllo new withdrawals or diversions are proposed in the SMP. Chandler canal is connected with 
the Yakima River at Prosser diversion dam. It diverts up to 1,500 cfs of water from the Yakima 
River to the Chandler Canal into Kennewick Irrigation District's (KID) main canal for the purpose 
of irrigating land served by KID. 

5) Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain? If so, note location on the site plan. 

Floodway and floodplains are included in the shoreline jurisdiction. Managing flooding is one of 
the goals of!he SMP. The SMP contains policies and regulations addressing this element within 
SMA jurisdiction and cross references the Critical Areas code and other requirements. 

6) Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface waters? If so, describe the 
type of waste and anticipated volume of discharge. 

No specific discharge is proposed in the SMP. The SMP contains policies and regulations 
addressing this element within SllllA jurisdiction, such as water quality. Discharge is primarily 
addressed by other regulations. 

b. Ground: 

1) Will ground water be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to ground water? Give general 
description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 

The potential effects of the proposed SMP are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet 
for Non-project Actions. No specific withdrawal or discharge is proposed in the SMP. Impacts of 
specific projects that may result from policies in !he Sl\llP will be addressed by project-level 
SEPA review. 

2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic tanks or other sources, if 
any (for example: Domestic sewage; industrial; agricultural; etc.). Describe the general size of the 
system, the number of such systems, the number of houses to be served (if applicable), or the 
number of animals or humans the system(s) are expected to serve. 

No specific system discharges are proposed in the S!VIP. The SMP contains policies and 
regulations addressing this element within SMA jurisdiction. Discharge is primarily addressed 
by other regulations and by city utilities. 

Impacts of specific projects !hat may result from policies in the SMP will be addressed by 
project-level SEPA review. 

c. Water runoff (including stormwater): 

1) Describe the source of runoff (including storm water) and method of collection and disposal, if any 
(include quantities, if known). Where will this water fiow? Will this water fiow into other waters? If so, 
describe. 

The potential effects of the plan are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non
project Actions. No specific source runoff is proposed in the SMP. The SMP contains policies 
and regulations addressing this element within SMA jurisdiction which are likely to somewhat 
reduce impacts. 

2) Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters? If so, generally describe. 

5 284



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

The potential effects of the plan are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non
project Actions. The SMP contains policies and regulations addressing this element within SMA 
jurisdiction which are likely to somewhat reduce impacts. 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control surface, ground, and runoff water impacts, if any: 

The SMP contains a range of policies to address runoff as addressed in Subsection C 
Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions The SMP contains policies and regulations 
addressing this element within SMA jurisdiction which are likely to somewhat reduce impacts. 

4. Plants 

a. Check or circle types of vegetation found on the site: 

-~x~ deciduous tree: alder, maple, aspen, other 

-~X-evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other 

-~x-shrubs 
x 

grass 

--"x- pasture 

--"x-crop or grain 

x 
wet soil plants: cattail, buttercup, bullrush, skunk cabbage, other 

--"x-water plants: water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other 

--"x- other types of vegetation 

A wide range of plants are found in the city. 

b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or altered? 

The SMP contains a range of policies and regulations addressing vegetation removal and 
alteration. This addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. 

c. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site. 

No endangered plants are known lo be found in the city. 

d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plants, or other measures to preserve or enhance vegetation on the 
site, if any: 

The SMP contains a range of policies and regulations to address vegetation as part of 
development on a city-wide basis as ii affects water. This addressed in Subsection C 
Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. 

5. Animals 

a. Circle any birds and animals which have been observed on or near the site or are known to be on or near 
the site: 

birds: hawk, heron, eagle, songbirds, other: 
mammals: deer, bear, elk, beaver, other: 
fish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other: 

Most or all of the species listed are found in the city, except bear and other large predators, and 
deer and elk. 

The aquatic areas of the Yakima River throughout Prosser support concentrations of wintering 

migratory waterfowl, primarily as a resting and feeding area for dabbling ducks, primarily 

mallard, Canada Goose, Canvasback, Ring-necked Duck, and Wood Duck. With the narrow 

6 285



riparian corridor, ii is unlikely that nesting takes place. 

City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

Several fish species populate the Yakima River within Prosser. Salmon id fish include steelhead 

(Oncorhynchus mykiss) and spring and fall Chinook salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawytscha). 

Coho salmon ( Oncorhynchus kisutch) were historically present here, and a coho reintroduction 

program is currently underway in the Yakima River Basin. Bull trout (Salvenlinus confluentus) 

were historically present and abundant in upper tributaries of the Yakima River Basin and may 

now occur in !his portion of the river in low numbers. Pacific lamprey (Lampetra tridentate) are 

present but have experienced population decline in recent years. Resident fish include small 

(Micropterus dolomieu) and largemouth bass (Micropterus salmoides), northern pikeminnow 

(Ptychocheilus oregonensis), sculpin (Cottoidea sp.), mountain whitefish (Prosopium 

williamsom), white sturgeon (Acipenser transmontanus), catfish (lctalurus punctatus), sucker 

(Catostaomidae sp.), walleye (Sander vitreus), chiselmouth {Acrocheilus alutaceus), dace 

(Leuciscus /euciscus), common carp ( Cyprinus carpio), and various minnow species. 

b. List any threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site. 

Chinook salmon and steelhead are found in the Yakima River. 

c. Is the site part of a migration route? If so, explain. 

The Lower Yakima Basin is located in the Pacific Flyway and serves as a resting area for 
neotropical migrant birds, migratory wateriowl, and shorebirds. The Yakima River is a migration 
route for anadromous fish. 

d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 

The SMP contains policies that address aquatic habitat as addressed in Subsection C 
Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. 

6. Energy and natural resources 

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stove, solar) will be used to meet the completed 
project's energy needs? Describe whether it will be used for heating, manufacturing, etc. 

The potential effects of the proposed SMP are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet 
for Non-project Actions but are likely to be of limited effect since this element is primarily 
addressed by other programs. 

b. Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy by adjacent properties? If so, generally 
describe. 

The SMP is very unlikely lo have such an impact. 

c. What kinds of energy conservation features are included in the plans of this proposal? List other proposed 
measures to reduce or control energy impacts, if any: 

None. 

7. Environmental health 

a. Are there any environmental health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, risk of fire and 
explosion, spill, or hazardous waste, that could occur as a result of this proposal? If so, describe. 

The potential effects of the proposed SMP on spills and discharge into surface water are 
addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. Impacts of specific 
policies and regulations are likely to be beneficial. 

7 
286



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

1) Describe special emergency services that might be required. 

No direct impacts. 

2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: 

The potential effects of the proposed SMP on spills and discharge into surface water are 
addressed in Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. Impacts of specific 
policies and regulations are likely to be beneficial. 

b. Noise 

1) What types of noise exist in the area which may affect your project (for example: traffic, equipment, 
operation, other)? 

A wide variety of noise sources and noise levels are found in Prosser's urban environment. 

2) What types and levels of noise would be created by or associated with the project on a short-term or a 
long-term basis (for example: traffic, construction, operation, other)? Indicate what hours noise would 
come from the site. 

None. 

3) Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 

The SMP does not contain specific policies and regulations addressing this element but ii is 
addressed to some extent under other provisions including no net loss of ecological functions. 

8. Land and shoreline use 

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 

Within shoreline jurisdiction boundaries, !he City has approximately 200 acres of shoreline along 
both sides of the Yakima River. Existing uses along the shoreline are a mix of single-family 
residential, park open space, commercial, agricultural and industrial facilities. Part of the 
shoreline is currently unimproved. 

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe. 

There are some small scale agricultural uses. 

c. Describe any structures on the site. 

A variety of structures are found within !he shoreline jurisdiction. Structure types mainly include 
residential homes, industrial structures, diversion dam and wastewater treatment facility. 

d. Will any structures be demolished? If so, what? 

None. Impacts of specific projects !hat may result from policies in the SMP will be addressed by 
project-level SEPA review. 

e. What is the current zoning classification of the site? 

Several zoning classifications are found in Prosser. Within the shoreline jurisdiction in the City 
limits, land on the north bank of the Yakima River is zoned as Commercial, Thoroughfare (CT), 
Residential, Medium Density (RM) and Public Facility (PF). The land within shoreline jurisdiction 
on the south bank of the Yakima River includes Residential, low Density (RL), Residential, 
Medium Density (RM), Public Facility (PF), Commercial, Downtown (CD), Industrial, Heavy (IH), 
Industrial, Light (IL) and Agribusiness (A). 

f. What is the current comprehensive plan designation of the site? 

The Prosser Comprehensive Plan identifies land use within the SMA jurisdiction as low/medium 
residential, public lands, commercial, agri-tourist, agri-business and industrial. Outside the city 
limits within the SMA jurisdiction, Ille majority of land use is residential, light industrial, and 
parkland, 

8 
287



g. If applicable, what is the current shoreline master program designation of the site? 

City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

The current shoreline master program designations include the following environments: 
Shoreline Agribusiness, Shoreline Agri-Tourism, Shoreline Commercial, Shoreline Residential, 
Shoreline Industrial, Recreation, Urban Conservancy and Aquatic. 

h. Has any part of the site been classified as an "environmentally sensitive" area? If so, specify. 

A variety of areas within Prosser shoreline jurisdiction are classified as environmentally 
sensitive, particularly critical areas. Prosser has adopted critical area regulations (Title 16) for 
the following: 

• CRITICAL AREAS PROTECTION-GENERAL PROVISIONS -PMC 16.10 

• WETLANDS- PMC 16.20 

• AQUIFER RECHARGE AREAS - PMC 16.30 

• FREQUENTLY FLOODED AREAS - PMC 16.40 

• GEOLOGICALLY HAZARDOUS AREAS - PllllC 16.50 

• FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT CONSERVATION AREAS - PllllC 16.60 

i. Approximately how many people would reside or work in the completed project? 

None. The SMP will not directly affect population or employment. 

j. Approximately how many people would the completed project displace? 

None. The Sl\llP will not directly affect population or employment. 

k. Proposed measures to avoid or reduce displacement impacts, if any: 

None. The SllllP will not directly affect population or employment. 

I. Proposed measures to ensure the proposal is compatible with existing and projected land 

uses and plans, if any: 

Comprehensive Plan and proposed Sl\llP are consistent. The proposed SMP will not directly 
affect the adopted land use in the Comprehensive Plan but will provide performance standards 
for development within SMA jurisdiction. 

9. Housing 

a. Approximately how many units would be provided, if any? Indicate whether high, middle, or low-income 
housing. 

None. The SMP will not directly affect housing. 

b. Approximately how many units, if any, would be eliminated? Indicate whether high, middle, or low-income 
housing. 

None. The SMP will not directly affect housing. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control housing impacts, if any: 

None. The SMP will not directly affect housing. 

10. Aesthetics 

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s}, not including antennas; what is the principal 
exterior building material(s) proposed? 

9 
288



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

Not applicable. lllo specific structures are proposed in the SMP. Height limits in the SMI' are 
generally consistent with upland zoning. 

b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed? 

No specific facilities that would alter views are proposed in the SMP. The proposed increase in 
maximum height standards for single-family residential use may alter views for some uphill 
properties. The SMP includes policies and regulations lo protect view. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any: 

The SllllP contains a variety of policies and regulations addressing aesthetics which are largely 
beneficial. 

11. light and glare 

a. What type of light or glare will the proposal produce? What time of day would it mainly occur? 

Not applicable. No specific lighting is proposed in the SMP. The SMP addresses lighting in a 
variety of provisions including no net loss of ecological functions. 

b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or interfere with views? 

Not applicable. The SMP addresses light and glare in a variety of provisions including no net 
loss of ecological functions. Impacts of specific projects that may result from policies in the 
SMP will be addressed by project-level SEPA review. 

c. What existing off-site sources of light or glare may affect your proposal? 

None. 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if any: 

The SMP addresses light and glare in a variety of provisions including no net loss of ecological 
functions. 

12. Recreation 

a. What designated and informal recreational opportunities are in the immediate vicinity? 

Recreational uses within the shoreline jurisdictional boundaries include River Park, the dock at 
the RV park, and an existing trail. 

b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses? If so, describe. 

No. The SMP addresses in a variety of provisions including specific provisions for public 
access. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, including recreation opportunities to be 
provided by the project or applicant, if any: 

The SMP includes specific provisions for public access. 

13. Historic and cultural preservation 

a. Are there any places or objects listed on, or proposed for, national, state, or local preservation registers 
known to be on or next to the site? If so, generally describe. 

None known to exist within shoreline jurisdiction. 

b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, archaeological, scientific, or cultural importance 
known to be on or next to the site. 

None known to exist within shoreline jurisdiction. The SMP includes specific provisions for 
cultural resources. 

10 
289



c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if any: 

The SMP includes specific provisions for cultural resources. 

14. Transportation 

City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access to the existing street 
system. Show on site plans, if any. 

There are a wide variety of transportation facilities in the city. 

b. ls site currently served by public transit? If not, what is the approximate distance to the nearest transit 
stop? 

There is public transit service to the city. 

c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have? How many would the project eliminate? 

Not applicable. Parking demand and required supply is not addressed in the SMP. 

d. Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or improvements to existing roads or streets, not 
including driveways? If so, generally describe (indicate whether public or private). 

Nol likely. Policies and regulations in the SMP are not likely lo change transportation demand 
and needed facilities as provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. 

e. Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail, or air transportation? If so, generally 
describe. 

Uses governed by the SMP are adjacent to the water. To the extent that water-dependent uses 
are preferred, some increase in water transportation may occur. 

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the completed project? If known, indicate when 
peak volumes would occur. 

The potential effects ofthe plan on transportation are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental 
Sheet for Non-project Actions. Policies and regulations in the SMP are not likely lo change 
transportation demand from uses provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. 

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any: 

Policies and regulations in the SMP are designed to assure that new uses do not interfere with 
navigation. 

15. Public services 

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example: fire protection, police 
protection, health care, schools, other)? If so, generally describe. 

The potential effects of the plan on public services are addressed in Subsection C Supplemental 
Sheet for Non-project Actions. Policies and regulations in the SMP are no! likely to change !he 
types of uses and needed public services provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. 

b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public services, if any. 

See Subsection C Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions. Policies and regulations in lhe 
SMP are not likely to change the types of uses and needed public services provided for in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

16. Utilities 

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site: electricity, natural gas, water, refuse service, telephone, 
sanitary sewer, septic system, other. 

A variety of utility facilities are available throughout the city. 

11 
290



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the service, and the general 
construction activities on the site or in the immediate vicinity which might be needed. 

Policies and regulations in the SMP are not likely to change the types of uses and needed utility 
services provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Supplemental Sheet for Non-project Actions 

1. How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water; emissions to air; production, storage, or 
release of toxic or hazardous substances; or production of noise? 

The purpose of the Shoreline Master Program (SMP) is to regulate uses on and adjacent lo 
certain waters. 

The policies and regulations in the SMP are not likely to produce or discharge emissions or 
toxins. The SMP addresses water quality and the release of substances to surface water. 

The SMP does not contain specific detailed standards addressing noise but it is addressed to 
some extent in a variety of provisions including no net loss of ecological functions. 

Elements within the SMP that are likely to affect emissions to air, or waler include: 

Section II General Regulations, 16.04.28 Water Quality, Stormwater, and Nonpoint Pollution; and 
Section ill Critical Areas, PMC 16.04.10 through 16.04.60. 

Noise is likely to be produced by a variety of uses permitted by the SMP in both construction and 
use. The SMP does not contain specific policies and regulations addressing noise but it Is 
addressed to some extent through other provisions including no net loss of ecological functions. 

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce pollution increases are: 

Performance standards in the code sections above generally would reduce pollutants, in 
combination with other programs. 

Programs by other city departments that affect discharge to water and water quality include 
Critical Areas, clearing and grading, stormwater management, and floodplain development 
regulations. 

2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish, or marine life? 

Protection and enhancement of aquatic life and overall ecological function is one of the goals of 
the SMP. Major provisions that address this issue include: 

Section Ill Critical Areas- Various sections address buffers and setbacks 

These provisions, together with specific performance standards for Shoreline Uses and 
Shoreline Modification (Section II), are designed to ensure that new development has minimal 
effects on aquatic and upland habitat. 

Provisions for ecological enhancement are provided in the Restoration Plan and would be 
required for non-water-dependent commercial and industrial uses. 

See also Cumulative Effects Analysis. 

Overall, the combined results of the SMP on properties immediately adjacent to shorelines, the 
critical area regulations that address upstream conditions in watersheds not under SMP 

12 
291



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

jurisdiction, and various restoration activities on shorelines and in watersheds are likely to result 
in no net loss of ecological functions on Prosser shorelines. Over time, these actions would 
likely lead lo improvements in the ecosystem. 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish, or marine life are: 

As indicated above, protection and enhancement of aquatic life and overall ecological function is 
one of the goals of the SMP and is addressed by a variety of policies and regulations. 

3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy or natural resources? 

Energy is used in a variety of public and private projects fostered by the City's Comprehensive 
Plan and lhe SMP, 

Natural resources, such as aggregate and lime, are embodied in concrete and masonry, wood 
and other building materials, 

II is not likely !hat the SMP will have a substantial effect on energy use or natural resources, 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are: 

No specific goals or policies in Ille SMP address energy and natural resources, 

4. How would the proposal be likely to use or affect environmentally sensitive areas or areas designated (or 
eligible or under study) for governmental protection; such as parks, wilderness, wild and scenic rivers, 
threatened or endangered species habitat, historic or cultural sites, wetlands, floodplains, or prime 
farmlands? 

Critical areas are defined by RCW 36.70A.030(5) and WAC 365-196-485 as: 

• Wetlands; 

• Areas of critical recharging effect on aquifers used for potable water; 

• Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas; 

• Frequently flooded areas; and 

• Geologica!!y hazardous areas, 

SMP, Section Ill Critical Areas, contains specific buffers and other standards appropriate to 
shorelines. 

The SMP encourages shoreline oriented recreation use and recognizes parks as a major 
resource for public access. 

Historic or cultural sites are addressed in SMP 16.04.27 Archaeological and Historic Resources. 

There are no wilderness areas or wild and scenic rivers in the City of Prosser. The SMP is aimed 
to protect various functions of the Yakima River. 

Proposed measures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce impacts are: 

The SMP will maintain and enhance protection of environmentally sensitive areas, endangered 
species habitat, wetlands, and floodplains in the city. 

5. How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, including whether it would allow or 
encourage land or shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans? 

13 

292



City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

The SMP is intended to influence land uses with the SllllA jurisdiction by fulfilling the general 
goals of the SMA which are: 

• Protect shoreline natural resources, including " ... the land and its vegetation and wildlife, and the 
water of the state and their aquatic life ... " 

• Promote public access: "the public's opportunity to enjoy the physical and aesthetic qualities of 
natural shorelines of the state shall be preserved to the greatest extent feasible consistent with 
the overall best interest of the stale and the people generally." 

• Encourage water-dependent uses: "uses shall be preferred which are conslslen! with control of 
pollution and prevention of damage to the natural environment, or are unique lo or dependent 
upon use of the stales' shorelines ... " 

The general patterns of land use on the Prosser shoreline are well established. Most of lhe 
shoreline is developed and is less likely to change. 

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use impacts are: 

The provisions of Ille SMP are designed to work together to provide a priority to water oriented 
use and provide performance standards to ensure ecological protection, public access and 
promote the land use vision in the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

6. How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on transportation or public services and utilities? 

None of the proposed changes In policies in the SMP are likely to increase demands on 
transportation. Impacts on transportation are likely to be similar to those expected impacts from 
development encouraged by the Comprehensive Plan and zoning. 

The SMP also is not likely to change demands for public services and utilities from development 
impact upon the utility or change current practices. 

Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand(s) are: 

No specific measures are proposed in the SMP to reduce demands on transportation, public 
services and utilities. 

These issues are addressed in the Comprehensive Plan and other city policies and respond to 
city-wide trends. 

7. Identify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, state, or federal laws or requirements for 
the protection of the environment. 

The proposed changes in policies in the SMP do not conflict with any known local, state, or 
federal laws or requirements for the protection of the environment and are designed lo 
implement such programs, specifically the requirements of the SMA. 

14 
293



D. SIGNATURE 

City of Prosser SMP 
Environmental Checklist 

The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the lead agency is relying 
on them to make its decision. 

Signature: 

Name: 

Date Submitted: 

Ferdouse Oneza 

Oneza & Associates 

1508 44th Ave SW, Unit B 

Seattle, WA 98116 

Phone 509-845-2453 

January 23, 2014 

15 

294



March 18, 2014 

Stephen Zetz 
City Planner 
City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, Washington 99350 

Dear Mr. Zetz: 

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the following materials as 
required under RCW 36.?0A.106. Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural 
requirement. 

City of Prosser - Proposed update to the Shoreline Master Plan. These materials were received on 
March 17, 2014 and processed with the Material ID# 20083. 

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies. 

If this submitted material is an adopted amendment, then please keep this letter as documentation that you 
have met the procedural requirement under RCW 36.?0A.106. 

If you have submitted this material as a draft amendment, then final adoption may occur no earlier than sixty 
days following the date of receipt by Commerce. Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment 
to Commerce within ten days of adoption. 

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at review1eam@commerce.wa.gov, 
or call Dave Andersen (509) 434-4491 or Paul Johnson (360) 725-3048. 

Sincerely, 

Review Team 

Growth Management Services 

295



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE EXISTING SHORELINE MASTER 
PROGRAM CONTAINED IN PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 
16.04 AND ADOPTING A NEW SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM. 
THE ORDINANCE ALSO ADOPTS SHORELINE DESIGNATION MAPS. 
THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.1 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.1 Purpose 

A. The City adopts the goals and principles of the Shoreline Management Act (SMA) as provided in 

RCW 90.58.020. 

B. The shoreline is one of the most valuable and fragile of the City's natural resources. 

C. There is a clear and urgent demand for a planned, rational, and concerted effort, jointly 

performed by federal, state, and local governments, to prevent the inherent harm in an 

uncoordinated and piecemeal development within the City's shoreline jurisdiction. 

D. The City's shoreline policies are intended to protect against adverse effects to the public health, 

to the land and its vegetation and wildlife, and to the waters of the state and their aquatic life, 

while generally protecting public rights of navigation and corollary rights incidental thereto. 

E. These policies are intended to preserve the public's opportunity to enjoy the physical and 

aesthetic qualities of natural shorelines to the greatest extent feasible consistent with the overall 

best interest of the state, the City, and the people generally. To this end, uses shall be preferred 

which are consistent with control of pollution, prevention of damage to the natural environment, 

or are unique to or dependent upon use of the state's shoreline. 

Section 2. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.2 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.2 Shoreline Master Program Elements 

The Shoreline Master Program consists of the following elements: 

A. Comprehensive Plan Policies Shoreline Element. 

296



B. Regulations in City of Prosser Code (PMC) Chapter 18.08 Shoreline Management Regulations. 

C. Critical Area Regulations in PMC Chapters 16.10 through 16.60 as herein amended. 

D. The Shoreline Restoration Element of the Shoreline Master Plan on file in the office of the City 

Clerk and made available for examination by the general public, shall not be considered to 

contain regulations but shall be utilized as a guideline for capital improvements planning by the 

City and other jurisdictions undertaking ecological restoration activities within Shoreline 

Management Act jurisdiction. 

E. The Shoreline Environment Overlay Map on file in the office of the City Clerk and made 

available for examination by the general public. 

Section 3. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.3 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.3 Definitions 

A. "A" Definitions: 

1) "Administrator" means the city administrator or the administrator's designee who has been 

charged with the responsibility of administering this title. 

2) "Agriculture" or "Agricultural activities" means agricultural uses and practices including, but 

not limited to: Producing, breeding, or increasing agricultural products; rotating and 

changing agricultural crops; allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie fallow 

(plowed and tilled, but left unseeded); allowing land used for agricultural activities to lie 

dormant as a result of adverse agricultural market conditions; allowing land used for 

agricultural activities to lie dormant because the land is enrolled in a local, state, or federal 

conservation program, or the land is subject to a conservation easement; conducting 

agricultural operations; maintaining, repairing, and replacing agricultural equipment; 

maintaining, repairing, and replacing agricultural facilities, provided that the replacement 

facility is no closer to the shoreline than the original facility; and maintaining agricultural 

lands under production or cultivation. 

3) Agricultural equipment and agricultural facilities includes, but is not limited to: 

a. The following used in agricultural operations: Equipment; machinery; constructed 

shelters, buildings, and ponds; fences; upland finfish rearing facilities; water diversion, 

withdrawal, conveyance, and use equipment and facilities including but not limited to 

pumps, pipes, tapes, canals, ditches, and drains; 

b. Corridors and facilities for transporting personnel, livestock, and equipment to, from, and 

within agricultural lands; 

City of Prosser 2 Shoreline Master Program 

297



c. Farm residences and associated equipment, lands, and facilities; and 

d. Roadside stands and on-farm markets for marketing fruit or vegetables. 

4) "Aquaculture" means the culture or farming of food fish, shellfish, or other aquatic plants and 
animals. 

5) "Average grade level" means the average of the natural or existing topography of the portion 

of the lot, parcel, or tract of real property which will be directly under the proposed building 

or structure: In the case of structures to be built over water, average grade level shall be the 

elevation of the ordinary high water mark. Calculation of the average grade level shall be 

made by averaging the ground elevations at the midpoint of all exterior walls of the proposed 

building or structure; 

B. "B" Definitions: 

1) "Bioengineering" means the use of biological elements, such as the planting of vegetation, 

often in conjunction with engineered systems, to provide a structural shoreline stabilization 

measure with minimal negative impact to the shoreline ecology. 

2) "Boating facility" for the purposes of the Shoreline Master Program means any public or 

private facility for mooring, storing, or transfer of materials from vessels on the water, such 

as docks and piers, including on-land related facilities such as approaches and ramps and 

includes any private and publicly accessible launch sites or facilities. A boating facility does 

not include on-land accessory facilities such as parking or storage. 

3) "Buffer" means an area adjacent to a critical area that, functions to avoid loss or diminution 

of the ecologic functions and values of the critical area. Specifically, a buffer may: 

a. Preserve the ecologic functions and values of a system, including but not limited to 

providing microclimate conditions, shading, input of organic material and sediments, 

room for variation and changes in natural wetland, river, or stream characteristics, 

providing for habitat for lifecycle stages of species normally associated with the resource; 

and 

b. Physically isolate a critical area such as a wetland, river, or stream from potential 

disturbance and harmful intrusion from surrounding uses using distance, height, visual 

and/or sound baniers, and generally including dense native vegetation, but also may 

include man-made features such as fences and other barriers; 

c. Act to minimize risk to the public from loss oflife, well-being, or property damage 

resulting from natural disasters such as from landslide or flooding. 

City of Prosser 3 Shoreline Master Program 

298



4) "Building height in Shoreline Management Act jurisdiction" only means the vertical distance 

between average grade and the highest part of the coping of a flat roof, or the deck line of a 

mansard roof, or the average height of the highest gable of a pitched or hipped roof. The 

height of a stepped or terraced building is the maximum height of any segment of the 

building. 

5) "Bulkhead" means a structure of timber, concrete, steel, rock or similar substance located 

parallel to the shore, which has as its primary purpose to contain and prevent the loss of soil 

by erosion, wave, or cmTent action. 

C. "C" Definitions: 

I) "Channel migration zone" means the area along a river within which the channel( s) can be 

reasonably predicted to migrate over time as a result of natural and normally occurring 

hydrological and related processes when considered with the characteristics of the river and 

its surroundings. For the purpose of this code the CMZ excludes areas separated from the 

active river channel by legally existing artificial structures that are likely to restrain channel 

migration, including but not limited to flood control facilities, transportation facilities, and 

structures built above or constructed to remain intact through the one hundred-year flood. 

2) "Cumulative impacts" are the results of incremental actions when added to past, present, and 

reasonably foreseeable future actions. Cwnulative impacts can be deemed substantial and 

subject to mitigation conditions even though they may be comprised of individual actions 

having relatively minor impacts. 

D. "D" Definitions: 

I) "Dredging" is the removal of earth, sand, gravel, silt, or debris from below the OHWM of 

any river, stream, pond, late or other water body and beneath the area of seasonal saturation 

of any wetland. 

E. "E" Definitions: 

I) "Ecological function" means the work performed or role played by the physical, chemical, 

and biological processes that contribute to the maintenance of the aquatic and terrestrial 

environments that constitute an element of a natural ecosystem. 

F. "F" Definitions: 

1) "Fair market value" means the open market bid price for conducting construction the work, 

using the equipment and facilities, and purchase of the goods, services and materials 

necessary to accomplish the development. This would normally equate to the cost of hiring a 

City of Prosser 4 Shoreline Master Program 

299



contractor to undertake the development from start to finish, including the cost of labor, 

materials, equipment and facility usage, transportation and contractor overhead and profit. 

The fair market value of the development shall include the fair market value of any donated, 

contributed, or found labor, equipment, or materials. 

2) "Feasible" means that an action, such as a development project, mitigation, or restoration 

requirement, meets all of the following conditions: 

a. The action can be accomplished with technologies and methods that have been used in 

the past in similar circumstances, or studies or tests have demonstrated in similar 

circumstances that such approaches are currently available and likely to achieve the 

intended results; 

b. The action provides a reasonable likelihood of achieving its intended purpose; and 

c. The action does not physically preclude achieving the project's primary intended legal 

use. 

d. In cases where these guidelines require certain actions unless they are infeasible, the 

burden of proving infeasibility is on the applicant. In determining an action's 

infeasibility, the City may weigh the action's relative public costs and public benefits, 

considered in short- and long-term time frames. 

3) "Fill" means earth or any other substance or material placed in or on the ground, including 

earth retaining structures. 

4) "Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas 

that either: 

a.Has been established in Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance 

Rate Maps (FIRM) or floodway maps; or 

b.Consists of those portions of a river valley lying waterward from the outer limits of a 

watercourse upon which flood waters are carried during periods of flooding that occur 

with reasonable regularity, although not necessarily annually, said floodway being 

identified, under normal conditions, by changes in surface soil conditions or changes in 

types or quality of vegetative ground cover condition, topography, or other indicators of 

flooding that occurs with reasonable regularity, although not necessarily annually. 

City of Prosser 5 Shoreline Master Program 

300



c. Regardless of the method used to identify the floodway, the floodway shall not include 

those lands that can reasonably be expected to be protected from flood waters by flood 

risk reduction devices maintained by or maintained under license from the federal 

government, the state, or a political subdivision of the state. 

G. "G" Definitions: 

1) "Geotechnical report or geotechnical analysis" means a scientific study or evaluation 

conducted by a qualified expert that includes a description of the ground and surface 

hydrology and geology; estimates of susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other 

geological events; and the extent of risk to the health and safety of persons and property. 

Such a report shall include conclusions and recommendations regarding the effect of the 

proposed development on geologic conditions, the adequacy of the site to be developed, the 

impacts of the proposed development, alternative approaches to the proposed development, 

and measures to mitigate potential site-specific and cumulative geological and hydrological 

impacts of the proposed development, including the potential adverse impacts to adjacent and 

down-current properties. Geotechnical reports shall conform to accepted technical standards 

and must be prepared by qualified professional engineers or geologists who have professional 

expertise about the regional and local geology and processes. 

H. "H" Definitions: 

1) High Water Mark- see "Ordinary High Water Mark" 

I. "!" Definitions: 

1) "In-stream structures" function for the impoundment, diversion, or use of water for 

hydroelectric generation and transmission (including both public and private facilities), flood 

control, irrigation, water supply (both domestic and industrial), recreation, or fisheries 

enhancement 

J. "L" Definitions: 

I) "Local utility" means public or private utilities normally servicing a neighborhood or defined 

subarea in the City, e.g., telephone exchanges; sanitary sewer; stormwater facilities; 

distribution lines, electrical distribution less than fifty five (55) kV, telephone, cable TV, etc. 

K. "M" Definitions: 

I) "Marina" means any commercial or club-owned facility consisting of docks or piers serving 

five or more vessels or a shared moorage serving a subdivision serving ten or more vessels. 

City of Prosser 6 Shoreline Master Program 

301



2) "Mining" means the removal of sand, gravel, soil, minerals, and other earth materials for 

commercial and other uses. 

3) "Mixed use" within an area subject to the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act 

means a combination of compatible uses within one development, in which water-oriented 

and non-water-oriented uses are included. 

4) "Multiple use" means a combination of compatible uses within one development, and may 

include commercial, multi-family, and recreation uses among others. 

L. "N" Definitions: 

I) ) ) "Nonconforming use or development" means a shoreline use or development which was 

lawfully constructed or established prior to the effective date of the act or the applicable 

master program, or amendments thereto, or upon annexation, but which does not conform to 

present regulations or standards of the program. 

2) "No net loss of ecological functions" is the maintenance of existing ecological processes and 

functions at the level that existed at the time of approval of relevant policies and regulations. 

a.No net loss of ecological functions on the level of the City means that the ecological 

processes and functions are maintained within a watershed or other functional catchment 

area. Regulations may result in localized cumulative impacts or loss of some localized 

ecological processes and functions, as long as the ecological processes and functions of 

the system are maintained. Maintenance of system ecological processes and functions 

may require compensating measures that offset localized degradation. 

b.On a project basis, no net loss means that permitted use or alteration of a site will not result 

in on-site or off-site deterioration of the existing condition of ecological functions that 

existed prior to initiation of use or alterations as a direct or indirect result of the project. 

c. No net loss is achieved both through avoidance and minimization of adverse impacts as 

well as compensation for impacts that cannot be avoided. Compensation may include on

site or off-site restoration of ecological functions to compensate for localized 

degradation. 

3) "Non-Water-Dependent Use" means those uses which are not water-dependent. 

City of Prosser 7 Shoreline Master Program 

302



4) "Non-Water-Oriented Use" means those uses which are not water-dependent, water-related, 

or water-enjoyment. 

M. "O" Definitions: 

1) "Open space" means an area that is intended to provide light and air, view, use or passage of 

persons or animals which is almost entirely unobstructed by buildings, paved areas, or other 

man-made structures and is designed or preserved for environmental, habitat, scenic or 

recreational purposes. 

2) "Ordinary high water mark" (or 01-l.WM) means the mark on all lakes and streams that will 

be found by examining the beds and banks and ascertaining where the presence and action of 

waters are so common and usual, and so long continued in all ordinary years, as to mark 

upon the soil a character distinct from that of the abutting upland and vegetation, as that 

condition existed on June 1, 1971, for all lands under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline 

Management Act, or for other lands on the effective date of the relevant provisions of this 

code, or as it may naturally change thereafter, or as it may change thereafter in accordance 

with pe1mits issued by the City or other authorized jurisdictions. In any area where the 

ordinary high water mark cannot be found, it shall be defined in accordance with WAC 

173-22-030, generally the line of the mean higher high tide in areas adjoining salt water, and 

the line of mean high water in areas adjoining freshwater. 

N. "P" Definitions: 

1) "Pier" means docks and similar structures consisting of a fixed or floating platform extending 

from the shore over the water. This definition does not include overwater trails. 

2) "Public access" means physical and/or visual approach to and along the shoreline available to 

the general public. 

0. "R" Definitions: 

1) "Recreation areas or facilities" means any privately or publicly owned passive or active 

facility that provides for activities undertaken for pleasure or relaxation and for the 

refreshment of the mind and body that takes place in the outdoors or in a facility dedicated to 

the use including walking, fishing, photography, viewing, and bird-watching and may 

include parks, playgrounds, sports fields, paths and trails, beaches, or other recreation areas 

or facilities. 

P. "S" Definitions: 

City of Prosser 8 Shoreline Master Program 

303



1) "Shorelands or shoreland areas" means those lands under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline 

Management Act extending landward for two hundred (200) feet in all directions as 

measured on a horizontal plane from the ordinary high water mark; floodways and 

contiguous floodplain areas landward two hundred (200) feet from such floodways; and all 

wetlands and river deltas associated with the streams, lakes, and tidal waters that are subject 

to the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act RCW 90.58.030; the same to be 

designated as to location by the Department of Ecology. 

2) "Shoreline areas" mean all "shorelines of the state" and "shorelands." 

3) "Shoreline Stabilization" means structural and nonstructural methods to address erosion 

impacts to property and dwellings, businesses, or structures caused by natural processes, such 

as currents, floods, tides, wind, or wave action. 

4) "Should" means, in areas that are subject to the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act 

RCW 90.58.030; that a particular action is required unless there is a demonstrated, 

compelling reason, based on policy of the Shoreline Management Act and this chapter, 

against taking the action. The Administrator, in consultation with Ecology, shall make the 

determination about whether or not an applicant has demonstrated that there is a compelling 

reason against taking an action. 

Q. "W" Definitions: 

1) "Water-dependent use" means a use or portion of a use which cannot exist in a location that 

is not adjacent to the water and which is dependent on the water by reason of the intrinsic 

nature of its operations. 

2) "Water-enjoyment use" means a recreational use or other use that facilitates public access to 

the shoreline as a primary characteristic of the use; or a use that provides for enjoyment or 

recreational use of the shoreline for a substantial number of people as a general characteristic 

of the use and which through location, design, and operation ensures the public's ability to 

enjoy the visual and physical qualities of the shoreline. In order to qualify as a water

enjoyment use, the use must be open to the general public and the shoreline-oriented space 

within the project must be devoted to the specific aspects of the use that fosters shoreline 

enjoyment. 

3) "Water-oriented use" means a use that is water-dependent, water-related, or 

water-enjoyment, or a combination of such uses. 

City of Prosser 9 Shoreline Master Program 

304



4) "Water-related use" means a use or portion of a use which is not intrinsically dependent on a 

waterfront location, but whose economic viability is dependent upon a waterfront location 

because: 

a. The use has a functional requirement for a waterfront location such as the arrival or 

shipment of materials by water or the need for large quantities of water; or 

b.The use provides a necessary service supportive of the water-dependent uses and the 

proximity of the use to its customers makes its services less expensive and/or more 

convenient. 

5) "Wetlands" or "wetland areas means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or 

groundwater at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal 

circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in saturated soil 

conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs and similar areas. Wetlands 

do not include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites, 

including, but not limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, 

detention facilities, wastewater treatment facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities, or 

those wetlands created after July I, 1990, that were unintentionally created as a result of the 

construction ofa road, street, or highway. Wetlands may include those artificial wetlands 

intentionally created from nonwetland areas to mitigate the conversion of wetlands. For 

identifying and delineating a regulated wetland, the methodology specified by the 

Department of Ecology shall be utilized. 

6) "Wetlands, Associated jurisdictional wetlands are those wetlands that are in proximity to and 

either influence or are influenced by shoreline areas" subject to the Shoreline Management 

Act. 

7) "Wetland identification and delineation" Identification of wetlands and delineation of their 

boundaries pursuant to this chapter shall be done in accordance with WAC 173-22-035 and 

the approved federal wetland delineation manual and applicable regional supplements. 

Section 4. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.4 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.4 Shoreline Environment Designations 

Shoreline areas are classified into specific environment designations based on the existing use 

pattern, the biological and physical character of the shoreline, and the goals and aspirations of the 

City of Prosser 10 Shoreline Master Program 

305



community as expressed through the City of Prosser Comprehensive plan. Lands not designated are 

assigned an Urban Conservancy environment designation. 

Section 5. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.050 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.5 Shoreline Agribusiness 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this district is to designate land within shoreline jurisdiction best suited 

for commercial or industrial agricultural businesses, including agriculture and agricultural 

products processing and to preserve land best suited for eventual urban development. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Agribusiness Environment is designated in those areas 

within the City limits and Urban Growth Area designated in the Comprehensive Plan as 

Agribusiness. 

C. Management Policies. 

I) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and 

water-enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with 

or limit opportunities for water oriented uses or on sites where there is no direct access to the 

shoreline, and where public access and ecological restoration are provided. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual or physical public access to shorelines will be required as a condition of 

development where appropriate. 

4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

Section 6. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.6 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.6 Shoreline Agri-Tourism 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this district is to designate land within shoreline jurisdiction best suited 

for commercial and other uses that attracts and serves visitors to the agricultural amenities of the 

region, including but not limited to the agriculture, wineries, microbreweries, limited 

agriculture-related manufacture, processing and sale; resorts, hotels, and other lodging facilities; 

and restaurants. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Agri-Tourism Environment is designated in those areas 

within the city limits and Urban Growth Area designated as Agri-Tourism. 

City of Prosser 11 Shoreline Master Program 

306



C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and water

enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with or limit 

opportunities for water oriented uses or on sites where there is no direct access to the 

shoreline and where public access and ecological restoration are provided. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual and/or physical public access will be required as a condition of development. 

4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

Section 7. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.7 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.7 Shoreline Commercial Environment 

A. Purpose. The Shoreline Commercial designation is intended to accommodate various 

commercial operations located in the shoreline jurisdiction. The designation is suitable for 

existing and future high intensity water-oriented uses and water-oriented commercial uses. A 

more limited range of commercial uses is appropriate in the shoreline, as compared to the wide 

range of uses allowed elsewhere in the City. Commercial development that enhances visual and 

physical public access to the shoreline is encouraged. 

13. Designation Criteria. The Commercial Environment is designated in those areas within the city 

limits and Urban Growth Area designated in the Comprehensive Plan for commercial 

development. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Priority is given to water-dependent uses. Second priority is given to water-related and 

water-enjoyment uses. Non-water-oriented uses are allowed where they do not conflict with 

or limit opportunities for water-oriented uses or on sites and in conjunction with providing 

public access and ecological restoration. 

2) Policies and regulations assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions as a result of 

new development. Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup 

and restoration of the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

3) Visual and/or physical public access will be required as a condition of development. 

City of Prosser 12 Shoreline Master Program 

307



4) Aesthetic objectives should be implemented by means such as sign control regulations, 

appropriate development siting, screening, and maintenance of natural vegetative buffers. 

Section 8. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.8 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.8 Shoreline Industrial Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Shoreline Industrial Environment is to provide for industrial 

activities where infrastructure such as transportation, utilities, and other services exist or are 

planned to support such uses, and where sites are not adjacent to commercially-navigable waters. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Industrial Environment is designated for areas within the city limits 

or Urban Growth Area designated for industrial development in the Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Management Policies. 

l) Priority is given to water-dependent and water-related uses in that order of preference. 

Non-water-oriented uses are appropriate because of the limited range of potential 

water-dependent uses; however, a limited range of uses should be allowed within shoreline 

jurisdiction. 

2) To be approved, non-water-oriented uses on sites adjacent to the water must provide public 

benefit in the form of ecological enhancement and public access. 

3) No net loss of shoreline ecological functions shall result from development of a site. 

Where applicable, new development shall include environmental cleanup and restoration of 

the shoreline in accordance with any relevant state and federal laws. 

4) Physical public access should be required as provided for in appropriate policies and 

regulations of this program. 

5) Aesthetic objectives of this program should be implemented by means such as sign control 

regulations, appropriate development siting, height limits, screening, and and maintenance of 

natural vegetative buffers 

Section 9. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.9 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.9 Shoreline Residential Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Shoreline Residential Environment is to maintain areas which are 

currently primarily residential or intended for residential use. This designation will maintain the 

intended character of different residential areas designated by the comprehensive plan and 

provide a variety of residential oppmtunities The density and character of development will 

City of Prosser 13 Shoreline Master Program 

308



require consistency in terms of open space, bulk, scale, and intensity of use with the provisions 

of the Comprehensive Plan and current zoning. This designation also provides appropriate public 

access and recreational uses. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Shoreline Residential Environment is appropriate for those areas of 

the City's shorelines with a residential designation in the Comprehensive Plan and are 

characterized predominantly by residential development. 

C. Management Policies. 

I) Standards for density or minimum frontage width, setbacks, lot coverage limitations, 

buffers, shoreline stabilization, vegetation conservation, critical area protection, and water 

quality shall be set to maintain no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

2) New residential developments shall provide public access where appropriate. 

Section 10. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.10 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.10 Recreation Environment 

A. Purpose. The Recreation Environment is intended to provide areas for recreational and public 

access opportunities along Prosser's shorelines. It is an appropriate designation for areas 

occupied by recreational purposes such as parks and marinas. An additional purpose is to 

maintain and restore ecological functions to the area and preserve open space within the City. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Recreation Environment is designated in those areas where public 

and private lands are devoted or designated for recreation use including parks and open space 

and water-dependent uses such as marinas which provide recreational moorage. 

C. Management Policies. 

1) Recreation development must balance the goal of enhancing recreational use of the 

shoreline and the goal of ecological stewardship ensuring no net loss of ecological function. 

2) Expanded recreational opportunities on the shoreline shall emphasize water-dependent and 

water-related uses including, but not limited to, boating, swimming, walking, hiking, and 

recreational sports. 

3) Recreational opportunities shall be accessible by all. 

4) Park management shall encourage ecological stewardship including, but not limited to, 

such measures as setting activity areas away from the water's edge and planting and 

maintaining native vegetation buffers along the water. 

City of Prosser 14 Shoreline Master Program 

309



Section 11. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.11 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.11 Urban Conservancy Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Urban Conservancy Environment is to protect and restore 

ecological functions of open space, flood plain and other sensitive lands where they exist in the 

city while allowing a limited range of compatible uses. 

B. Designation Criteria. The Urban Conservancy Environment is designated in those areas of 

Prosser with a high level of ecologic functions with open space, flood plains or other sensitive 

areas that should not be more intensively developed; 

C. Management policies. 

l) 

2) 

Uses that preserve the natural character of the area or promote preservation of 

open space, flood plain or sensitive lands either directly or over the long term should be the 

primary allowed uses. 

Uses that result in restoration of ecological functions should be allowed ifthe 

use is otherwise compatible with the purpose of the environment and the setting. 

3) standards for shoreline stabilization measures, vegetation conservation, water quality, and 

shoreline modifications should ensure that new development does not result in a net loss of 

shoreline ecological functions or further degrade other shoreline values. 

4) Public access and public recreation objectives should be carefully controlled to avoid 

ecological impacts .. 

5) Water-oriented uses should be given priority over nonwater-oriented uses. 

Section 12. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.12 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.12 Aquatic Environment 

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Aquatic Environment is to protect, restore, and manage the unique 

characteristics and resources of the areas waterward of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM). 

B. Designation Criteria. The Aquatic Environment is defined as the area waterward of the ordinary 

high water mark of all streams, rivers, and other water bodies constituting shorelines of the state, 

together with their underlying lands and their water column; but does not include associated 

wetlands and other shorelands shoreward of the ordinary high water mark. This designation is 

not found on the Shoreline Environment Map, but shall be assigned based on the description 

above. 

City of Prosser 15 Shoreline Master Program 

310



C. Management Policies. 

1) Water-dependent uses and a limited range of water-oriented uses are allowed in the 

Aquatic Environment, subject to provision of shoreline ecological enhancement and public 

access. 

2) New over-water structures are allowed only to serve water-dependent uses, public access, 

or ecological restoration and should be limited to the minimum necessary to support the 

structure's intended use. 

3) Transportation and utility facilities and Essential Public Facilities may be allowed for 

which no alternative location is feasible. 

4) Ecological enhancement is an allowed and preferred use. 

Section 13. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.20 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.20 General Standards 

This section shall apply to all development activities within the shoreline. 

Section 14. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.21 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.21 Shorelines of Statewide Significance 

A. Applicability. The Shoreline Management Act of 1971 designated certain shoreline areas as 

shorelines of statewide significance. Within the City of Prosser'sjurisdiction, the Yakima River 

is a shoreline of statewide significance. Shorelines thus designated are important to the entire 

state. Because these shorelines are major resources from which all people in the state derive 

benefit, the City gives preference to uses which favor Jong-range goals and support the overall 

public interest. 

B. Decision Criteria. Every project located on a Shoreline of Statewide Significance, shall address 

the following in all permit reviews, in addition to other criteria provided by this program: 

Recognize and protect the statewide interest, including recognizing the following statewide 

interests specific to the Yakima River: 

l) Preserve the natural character of the shoreline and protect the resources and ecology of the 

shoreline: 

City of Prosser 16 Shoreline Master Program 

311



a. Protect and preserve existing diversity of vegetation and habitat values, wetlands, and 

riparian corridors associated with shoreline areas. 

b. Preserve and restore ecological functions, particularly those associated with endangered 

species, commercial and recreational fisheries, and tribal fishing rights. 

2) Result in long-term over short-term benefit: 

a. Promote water-oriented uses, particularly water-enjoyment uses. 

b. Evaluate the short-term economic gain or convenience of developments relative to 

potential long-term impairments to the natural shoreline and preserve resources and 

values for future generations. 

3) Increase public access to publicly-owned areas of the shorelines and increase recreational 

opportunities for the public in the shoreline: 

a. Promote recreational use and public access, including boat launches. 

b. Retain and enhance public access to the shoreline, including passive enjoyment, recreation, 

fishing, and other enjoyment of the shoreline and public waters consistent with the 

enjoyment of property rights of adjacent lands. 

c. Give priority to developing a system of continuous and parallel paths and trails along the 

shoreline and connecting to uplands to enhance access to the community as a whole. 

d. Reserve areas for water-enjoyment uses, restaurants with outside seating, and lodging and 

related uses that enhance the community's economic base while providing opportunities 

for the public to access and enjoy the shoreline. 

Section 15. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.22 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.22 No Net Loss of Ecological Functions 

A. Shoreline land uses and activities that may have adverse impacts on the environment should be 

minimized during all phases of development (e.g., design, construction, management, and use) to 

ensure no net loss of ecological functions and processes. Permitted uses are designed and 

conducted to minimize, in so far as practical, any resultant damage to the ecology and 

environment (RCW 90.58.020). Shoreline ecological functions that shall be protected include, 

but are not limited to, fish and wildlife habitat, food chain support, and water temperature 

City o! Prosser 17 Shoreline Master Program 

312



maintenance. Shoreline processes that shall be protected include, but are not limited to, water 

flow; erosion and accretion; infiltration; ground water recharge and discharge; sediment delivery, 

transport, and storage; large woody debris recruitment; organic matter input; nutrient and 

pathogen removal; and stream charmel formation/maintenance. 

B. An application for any permit or approval shall demonstrate all reasonable efforts have been 

taken to provide sufficient mitigation such that the activity does not result in net loss of 

ecological functions. Mitigation shall occur in the following prioritized order: 

I) Avoiding the adverse impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts of an action, 

or moving the action. 

2) Minimizing adverse impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its 

implementation by using appropriate technology and engineering, or by taking affirmative 

steps to avoid or reduce adverse impacts. 

3) Rectifying the adverse impact by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected 

environment. 

4) Reducing or eliminating the adverse impact over time by preservation and maintenance 

operations during the life of the action. 

5) Compensating for the adverse impact by replacing, enhancing, or providing similar· 

substitute resources or environments. Preference shall be given to measures that replace the 

impacted functions on-site or in the immediate vicinity of the impact. However, alternative 

compensatory mitigation within the watershed that addresses limiting factors or identified 

critical needs for shoreline resource conservation based on watershed or comprehensive 

resource management plans may be authorized. 

6) Monitoring the adverse impact and taking appropriate corrective measures. 

C. Applicants for permits have the burden of proving that the proposed development is consistent 

with the criteria set forth in the Shoreline Master Program and the SMA, including 

demonstrating all reasonable efforts have been taken to provide sufficient mitigation such that 

the activity does not result in net loss of ecological flinctions. 

Section 16. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.23 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 18 Shoreline Master Program 

313



16.04.23 Critical Areas within Shoreline Jurisdiction 

A. Critical Areas within the shoreline jurisdiction shall be regulated in accordance with the 

following provisions of PMC Chapter 16.10 Critical Areas, as amended by Section III of this 

ordinance: 

CRITICAL AREAS 

Sections: 

16. l 0 Critical Areas Protection-General Provisions 

16.20 Wetlands 

16.30 Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas 

16.40 Frequently Flooded Areas 

16.50 Geologically Hazardous Areas 

16.60 Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas 

Section 17. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.24 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.24 Shoreline Vegetation Conservation 

A. In addition to the Critical Areas standards of PMC Chapter 16.20, the following shall apply to 

development on the shoreline: 

1) A vegetation management plan shall be required for all Critical Area buffer areas with 

degraded native vegetation within SMA jurisdiction to include: 

a.Maintain adequate cover of native vegetation including trees and understory. lf a portion of 

the buffer has been cleared, or if tree cover is substantially less than a native climax 

vegetation community, supplemental plantings shall be required. 

b.Provide a dense screen of trees at the perimeter of the buffer to provide and protect 

ecological functions and reduce proximity impacts such as light and glare from adjacent 

areas. 

c. Provide a plan for control of invasive weeds, and removing existing invasive species for 

new plantings. 

d.Provide a monitoring and maintenance plan. This provision may be waived for single 

family residential lots. 

City of Prosser 19 Shoreline Master Program 

314



B. In cases where approved development results in unavoidable adverse impacts to existing 

shoreline vegetation, mitigation shall be required to ensure that there will be no net loss of the 

ecological functions. Mitigation shall take place on-site to the maximum extent feasible. 

Mitigation plans shall be completed before initiation of other permitted activities, unless a 

phased or concurrent schedule assuring completion prior to occupancy has been approved. 

C. Lawns and other non-native vegetation maintained within shoreline jurisdiction shall minimize 

use of chemical fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, or other similar substances. Such chemical 

treatments should generally not be applied within I 0 feet of the OHWM and shall be applied in 

accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Applications in solid time release form shall 

be preferred over liquid or concentrate application. Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be 

implemented in all chemical applications. 

D. Aquatic weed management by prevention is the first priority. Where active removal or 

destruction is necessary, it should be the minimum required to allow water-dependent activities 

to continue, minimize negative impacts to native plant communities, and include appropriate 

handling or disposal of weed materials. 

I) Aquatic weed control shall only occur when native plant communities and associated 

habitats are threatened or where an existing water dependent use is restricted by the presence 

of weeds. Aquatic weed control shall occur in compliance with all other applicable laws and 

standards. 

2) The control of aquatic weeds by derooting, rotovating, or other method which disturbs the 

bottom sediment or benthos, shall be considered development for which a shoreline permit is 

required, unless it will maintain existing water depth for navigation in an area covered by a 

previous permit for such activity, in which case it shall be considered normal maintenance 

and repair and therefore exempt from the requirement to obtain a shoreline permit. 

3) Use of herbicides to control aquatic weeds shall be prohibited except where no reasonable 

alternative exists and weed control is demonstrated to be in the public's interest. A 

conditional use permit, and compliance with applicable federal and state laws shall be 

required. 

Section 18. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.25 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 20 Shoreline Master Program 

315



16.04.25 Public Access 

A. All developments requiring shoreline substantial development or conditional use permits, and all 

residential subdivision or development of more than four (4) lots or non-single family residential 

development, shall provide public access to the shoreline subject to the conditions in criteria (1) 

and (2) below: 

I) Alternatives to on-site public access may be approved in cases where the applicant 

demonstrates that one or more of the following provisions apply: 

a. Unavoidable health or safety hazards to the public would accompany public access that 

cannot be avoided by application of alternative design features or other solutions. 

b. Inherent security requirements of the usc cannot be satisfied through the application of 

alternative design features. 

c. The cost of providing the access, easement, or an alternative amenity, or mitigating the 

impacts of public access, is unreasonably disproportionate to the total long-term cost of 

the proposed development. 

d. Unacceptable environmental harm will result from the public access that cannot be 

mitigated. 

e. Significant undue and unavoidable conflict between access provisions and the proposed 

use and/or adjacent uses would occur and cannot be mitigated. 

f. Public access is provided by a public entity through implementation of a public access 

plan incorporated into its master plan, developed through a public participation process 

and incorporated into this program. 

2) Based on documentation provided by the applicant, the City shall determine that all 

reasonable alternatives have been exhausted, including, but not limited to: 

a. Limiting the size or placement of public access facilities; 

b. Regulating access by such means as maintaining a gate and/or limiting hours of use; 

c. Designing separation of uses and activities (e.g., fences, terracing, use of one-way 

glazing, hedges, landscaping, etc.); and 

d. Providing for access at a site geographically separated from the proposal including 

contribution to regional trail or public access plans. 

City of Prosser 21 Shoreline Master Program 

316



B. The following activities generally are not required to provide public access, except as determined 

on a case-by-case basis as part of development review: 

J) Single family development of four ( 4) or fewer units 

2) Minor additions or changes to an existing use that does not change the configuration of the 

existing use or add substantial facilities. 

3) Resource uses including agriculture. 

4) Ecological restoration or enhancement activities not associated with a development. 

C. Specific provisions for public access shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to ensure that 

they are of the kind, quality, and scope to provide a substantial public benefit with respect to the 

Shoreline Management Act's objectives and do not create a disproportionate impact on 

landowners. 

D. The amount of public access required shall depend on the proposed use(s) and the following 

criteria: 

J) Any development or use that creates increased demand for public access to the shoreline 

shall provide public access to mitigate this impact. 

2) Any development or use that interferes with an existing public access way shall provide 

public access to mitigate this impact. 

3) Uses and developments that utilize public aquatic lands shall provide public access 

consistent with maintaining the use and public safety. Public access shall be provided on 

over-water structures not devoted to water-dependent use, except when accessory to single 

family use. 

4) New or expanded flood control facilities with public funding, shall provide public access, 

preferably through trails along or on top of the facility. 

5) Public roads or other public facilities parallel to or crossing shorelines may be required to 

provide public access. 

6) Public utilities within the shoreline, other than distribution facilities, shall provide public 

access consistent with maintaining the use and public safety. 

E. Public access shall consist of a physical improvement in the form of a walkway, trail, bikeway, 

corridor, viewpoint, park, deck, observation tower, pier, boat-launching ramp, dock or pier area, 

or other area serving as a means of view and/or physical approach to public waters and may 

City of Prosser 22 Shoreline Master Program 

317



include interpretive centers and displays. Public access improvements shall meet the following 

location and design criteria: 

!) Public access shall be provided as close (horizontally and vertically) as feasible to the 

water's edge to provide the general public with opportunity to reach, touch, view, and enjoy 

the water's edge, provided that public access does not adversely affect sensitive ecological 

features or lead to an unmitigated reduction in ecological functions. 

2) If open space is provided along the shoreline in the form of Critical Area buffers, and 

public access can be provided in a manner that will not result in a loss of ecological function, 

a public pedestrian access walkway along and parallel to the waterfront of the property is the 

preferred design. The walkway shall be set back from sensitive features and may provide 

only limited and controlled access to the water's edge. Fencing may be provided to control 

damage to plants and other sensitive features and shall provide for wildlife movement. Soft 

surface trails and limited width should be specified where appropriate to reduce impacts to 

ecologically sensitive resources. 

3) Public access shall be connected directly to the nearest public street; shall include 

provisions for handicapped and physically impaired persons where feasible, and where 

additional impact on ecological functions will not occur. 

4) Design shall minimize intrusions of privacy for both site users and public access users by 

avoiding locations adjacent to windows and/or outdoor private open spaces or by screening 

or other separation techniques. 

5) Design shall provide for the safety of users, including the control of offensive conduct 

through Crime Prevention tln·ough Environmental Design or CPTED principles including 

public visibility, or provision of specific oversight. The Administrator may authorize public 

access to be temporarily closed to develop a program to address offensive conduct. If 

offensive conduct cannot be reasonably controlled, alternative facilities may be approved as a 

permit revision. 

6) Public amenities appropriate to the use of the public access space shall be provided. These 

amenities can include, but are not limited to, benches, picnic tables, public docks, and 

sufficient public parking. 

7) Public restrooms and facilities for animal waste may be required as part of public access 

amenities for developments by public entities or commercial developments that attract a 

substantial number of persons. 

City of Prosser 23 Shoreline Master Program 

318



F. Public access shall be maintained over the life of the use or development. Future actions by the 

applicant successors in interest or other parties shall not diminish the usefulness or value of the 

public access provided. 

I) Required public access sites shall be fully developed and available for public use at the 

time of occupancy of the use or activity or in accordance with provisions for guaranteeing 

installation through a performance assurance. 

2) Public access provisions shall be recorded as an easement or a dedication to the public on 

the face of a plat or short plat. Said recording with the County Auditor's Office shall occur at 

the time of building permit approval or plat recordation, whichever comes first. 

3) Maintenance of the public access shall be the responsibility of the owner unless 

specifically accepted by a public or non-profit agency. 

4) The minimum width of public access easements shall be 15 feet, unless the Administrator 

determines that undue hardship would result. In such cases, easement width may be reduced 

only to the minimum extent necessary to relieve the hardship. Width of the trail improved 

surface shall be 10 ft unless local conditions or ecological sensitivity warrants wider or 

narrower width. Pervious material is encouraged for all trails. 

5) Public access shall be available to the public during daytime hours or business hours 

unless specific exceptions are granted through the substantial development permit process 

where safety hazards or security issues to users or adjacent uses are substantiated. 

6) Public access signs bearing the standard state-approved logo or other approved design 

shall be installed and maintained by the applicant and owner. The sign( s) must indicate the 

public's right of access and hours of access, and shall be installed in conspicuous locations at 

public access sites. Signs may display restrictions of public access as approved by a specific 

condition of permit approval. 

G. Public access afforded by shoreline street ends, public utilities, and rights-of-way shall be 

preserved, maintained, and enhanced pursuant to RCW 35.79.035. 

H. Public access for new and substantially altered development shall incorporate the location and 

design criteria provided for specific reaches in Section 18.08.340 of this program. 

Section 19. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.26 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 24 Shoreline Master Program 

319



16.04.26 Signs 

A. All signs shall be located and designed to be compatible with the aesthetic quality of the existing 

shoreline and adjacent land and water uses. Signs shall minimize interference with vistas, 

viewpoints, and visual access to the shoreline. 

B. Except where no feasible location outside ofSMAjurisdiction is available, signs placed in SMA 

jurisdiction should be limited to public information signs directly relating to a shoreline use or 

activity, water navigational signs, and legally-required highway and railroad signs necessary for 

operation, safety, and direction. 

C. Over-water signs or signs on floats or pilings are prohibited except for warning and hazard signs 

installed by a public entity. 

D. Lighted signs shall be hooded, shaded, or aimed so that lighting will not result in glare when 

viewed from public access facilities or watercourses. 

E. Conceptual sign plans shall be submitted for review and approval at the time of shoreline permit 

application and shall be utilized in future review of sign permits for the property. 

Section 20. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.27 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.27 Archaeological and Historic Resources 

A. Owners of property containing identified or probable historical, cultural, or archaeological sites 

are encouraged to coordinate well in advance of application for development to assure that 

appropriate agencies such as the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation, affected tribes, and historic preservation groups have ample time to assess the site 

and identify the potential for cultural resources. 

B. Prior to approval of development in an area of known or probable cultural resources, the City 

shall require a site assessment by a qualified professional archaeologist or historic preservation 

professional and ensure review by qualified parties. Conditions of approval may require 

preservation or conservation of cultural resources as provided by applicable federal, state and 

local statutes. All permits issued for development in areas known to be archaeologically 

significant shall provide for monitoring of any development activity for previously unidentified 

cultural resources. 

City of Prosser 25 Shoreline Master Program 

320



C. If historical, cultural, or archaeological sites or artifacts are discovered in the process of 

development, work on that portion of the site shall be stopped immediately, the site secured, and 

the find reported as soon as possible to the Administrator. The property owner also shall notify 

the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation and affected tribes. 

The Administrator may provide for a site investigation by a qualified professional and may 

require avoidance or conservation of the resources in coordination with appropriate agencies. All 

shoreline permits shall contain a special provision notifying permittees of this requirement. 

Failure to comply with this requirement shall be considered a violation of the shoreline pe1mit 

and shall subject the permittee to legal action as specified in these provisions and PMC Chapter 

19.07. 

D. All developments proposed for location adjacent to historical sites, which are registered on the 

local, state, or national historic register shall be located and designed so as to be complimentary 

to the historic site .. 

Section 21. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.28 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.28 Water Quality, storm water, and nonpoint pollution 

A. All shoreline development shall comply with the applicable requirements of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, Stormwater Management Performance Standards, and best management 

practices and the Eastern Washington Sto1mwater Manual to prevent impacts to water quality 

and stormwater quantity that would result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions, or a 

significant impact to aesthetic qualities, or recreational opportunities. 

B. Stormwater management structures including ponds, basins, and vaults shall be located outside 

ofSMAjurisdiction where possible and as far from the water's edge as feasible and shall 

minimize disturbance of vegetation buffers. Low impact development (LID) facilities that do not 

substantially change the character of the shoreline, such as vegetation filter strips, grass-lined 

swales, vegetated bioretention, and infiltration facilities, are encouraged for development 

allowed in SMA jurisdiction. 

C. Use of pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizers in or near the land/water interface shall be restricted 

by employing native vegetation where feasible and by strict control of application. Aerial 

application within SMA jurisdiction is prohibited unless as part of a public agency program for 

City of Prosser 26 Shoreline Master Program 

321



control of noxious species, specific pests for quarantine, public health purposes, or for a crisis 

exemption. 

Section 22. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.29 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.29 Boat and Vessel Facilities 

A. All boating uses, development, and facilities shall protect the rights of navigation and shall 

demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological functions and may be required to provide 

on-site and off-site mitigation. 

B. Shared moorage serving single family use consisting of docks and piers with more than four 

berths, commercial moorage available to the general public, and moorage related to clubs or 

other groups not associated with a particular residential development are regulated as marinas 

under section 16.04.53. 

C. Joint-use/shared docks and piers with four (4) or fewer berths or any number of mooring buoys 

are regulated under this Section. 

D. Boating facilities shall: 

1) Avoid braided or meandering river channels where the channel is subject to change in 

alignment or on point bars or other accretion beaches; 

2) Avoid areas where shoreline modification is required for approach and other upland 

facilities; 

3) Not be located where adverse impact upland riparian or nearshore habitat for aquatic species 

is not avoided or adequately mitigated ; 

4) Not adversely affect flood channel capacity or create a flood hazard; 

5) Not be located where water depths for vessels are not adequate without dredging; 

6) Not be located in areas where wave action caused by boating use would increase erosion 

rates on shorelines; and 

7) Require a Conditional Use Permit at sites downstream of the Bureau of Reclamation Dam. 

E. Boating facilities, except those accessory to single family residences, shall provide public access 

in accordance with Section 16.04.25 of this program and shall be located and designed such that 

existing public access to public shorelines is not obstructed nor made hazardous. 

City of Prosser 27 Shoreline Master Program 

322



F. All in- and over-water structures shall be constructed of materials that will not adversely affect 

water quality or aquatic plants and animals over the long term. Wood treated with creosote, 

pentachlorophenol or other similarly toxic materials is prohibited. Docks generally shall be 

constructed of untreated materials, such as untreated wood, approved plastic composites, 

concrete, or steel. 

G. Vessels shall be restricted from extended mooring on waters of the state except as allowed by 

state regulations, a lease or other permission is obtained from the state and impacts to navigation 

and public access are mitigated. 

H. Boat Launches: 

1) Boat launches accessory to single family and multi-family residential uses are prohibited. 

2) Private boat launches shall be allowed only for water-dependent uses and marinas and only 

when it is demonstrated that public boat launches will not feasibly serve the use. Rail and 

track systems are preferred over concrete ramps when feasible. 

3) New public boat launches for general public use, or expansion of public boat launches by 

adding launch lanes shall be approved only by Conditional Use and shall demonstrate that: 

a. They are located downstream of accretion shoreforms, or on stable banks where no or 

minimal current deflections will be necessary. 

b. Water depths are adequate to avoid the need for dredging and eliminate or minimize 

potential loss of shoreline ecological functions or other shoreline resources from offshore 

or foreshore channel dredging. 

c. Adjacent residential properties will not be adversely affected by adverse proximity 

impacts such as noise, light, and glare, or scale and aesthetic impacts. Fencing or 

landscape areas may be required to provide a visual screen. 

d. Exterior lighting will prevent glare, and will avoid illuminating nearby residential 

property to unreasonably infringe on the use and enjoyment of such property. Methods of 

controlling spillover light include, but are not limited to, limits on height of supports, 

limits on light levels of fixtures, light shields, and screening. 

e. Exterior lighting will not adversely impact aquatic species. 

f. Adequate provisions are made for restroom, sewage, and solid waste disposal facilities in 

compliance with applicable health regulations. 

City of Prosser 28 Shoreline Master Program 

323



g. Access and parking shall not produce traffic hazards, shall not result in excessive noise or 

other impacts, shall minimize traffic impacts on nearby streets, and shall include adequate 

parking for boat trailers. Parking on public streets may be allowed for peak periods if it is 

demonstrated that such parking will not adversely impact through traffic or residential 

uses. 

I. New moorage to serve a single family residence may be allowed only if: 

1) An applicant demonstrates that existing facilities (boat launches and public and private 

marinas) are not reasonably available to meet demand. 

2) The lot does not have access to shared moorage in an existing subdivision and there is no 

homeowners association or other corporate entity capable of developing shared moorage. 

3) In cases where new dock or pier is approved, the City may require an agreement to share 

with nearby residences with water frontage and provide for expansion to serve such 

additional users . 

.J. A dock or pier serving a single family residence shall meet the following standards: 

1) Length: A dock or pier (gangway and pier supported or floating structure combined) shall be 

long enough to obtain an adequate operating depth without disturbing the natural condition of 

the river bottom. Maximum length is thirty feet (30') unless a depth of six feet (6') cannot be 

obtained. In such circumstances the dock may be extended until the water depth reaches a 

point of six feet ( 6') in depth at ordinary low water, or to a maximum of forty feet ( 40'), 

whichever is reached first. The dimensional standards may be adjusted as required by the 

City in consultation with state and federal agencies if such adjustment will better preserve 

ecological functions. 

2) The maximum area of over water coverage is 160 square feet. 

3) To prevent damage to shallow water habitat, an access ramp shall bridge the distance 

between the shore and piers or floats and shall extend at least the distance between ordinary 

high water and extreme low water. 

4) Piers and ramps shall be no more than four ( 4) feet in width. 

5) Grating, or clear translucent material, shall cover the entire surface area of the pier and ramp. 

The open area of grating shall have a minimum of fifty percent (50%) open. Clear translucent 

material shall have greater than ninety percent (90%) light transmittance as rated by the 

manufacturer. 

City of Prosser 29 Shoreline Master Program 

324



6) Floats shall not exceed a width of eight (8) feet. Flotation materials shall be permanently 

encapsulated to prevent breakup into small pieces and dispersal in water (e.g., rectangular 

float tubs). Grating for light penetration shall cover one hundred percent (100%) of the 

surface area of the float. The open area of the grating shall be no less than fifty percent 

(50%), as rated by the manufacturer. 

7) Covered moorage is prohibited. 

8) The bottom of the fascia boards on the pier or bottom of the landward edge of the ramp shall 

be at least two (2) feet above the horizontal plane of the OHWM. 

9) Floats shall be constructed and attached so that they do not ground out on the bottom of the 

river. Float stops, tubs, or similar structures may be used. A minimum of one (I) foot of 

elevation above the substrate is required. 

I 0) Pile spacing shall be the maximum feasible to minimize shading and avoid a "wall" effect 

that would block or baffle wave patterns, currents, littoral drift, or movement of aquatic life 

forms, or result in structure damage from driftwood impact or entrapment. Minimum pile 

spacing is eighteen (18) feet on the same side of any component of the overwater structure. 

11) Piling diameter shall be sized to use the minimum possible while meeting the structural 

requirements of expected loads. Generally, piling shall not exceed eight (8) inches in 

diameter. 

12) The dock shall be built with materials that do not leach preservatives or other materials. No 

treated wood of any kind shall be used on any overwater structure (float, pier, or ramp). No 

paint, stain, or preservative shall be applied to the overwater structure. 

13) Boat lifts or watercraft lifts (e.g., jet ski lifts) arc included in the maximum allowable area of 

160 square feet for over water structures and may be approved if the City and other 

permitting agencies find that the proposed boat lift minimizes structure cover, maximizes 

light penetration, and maximizes depth. 

K. Shared residential docks and piers shall generally meet the standards for single family docks 

above, except that the number of floats and the size of piers and other facilities may be increased 

to serve additional slips to provide one moorage space per residence served. 

L. Docks and piers shall be set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from side property lines, except 

that joint-use facilities may be located closer to, or upon, a side property line when agreed to by 

contract or covenant with the owners of the affected properties. This agreement shall be recorded 

with the County Auditor and a copy filed with the shoreline permit application. 

City of Prosser 30 Shoreline Master Program 

325



M. Moorage related to subdivision: 

l) New subdivisions shall contain a restriction on the face of the plat prohibiting individual 

docks. A site for community or shared moorage shall be designated on the plat and owned in 

undivided interest by property owners within the subdivision. Shared moorage facilities shall 

be available to lots with water frontage in the subdivision. The over-water area of the dock 

shall be made available to other lots and the public for community access and may be 

required to provide public access depending on the scale of the facility. 

2) Approval of a shared moorage for a subdivision shall be subject to the following criteria: 

a. There is no reasonably available public or private moorage that can serve the moorage 

needs of the residences or the subdivision. 

b. Shared moorage to serve new development shall be limited to the amount of moorage 

needed to serve lots with water frontage. One moorage space per lot may not be 

presumed. 

c. The size of a dock must consider the use of mooring buoys for some or all moorage needs 

and the use of all or part of the dock to allow tender access to mooring buoys. 

d. Public access shall be provided in all shared docks utilizing public aquatic lands that 

accommodate five (5) or more vessels. 

3) If a community or shared dock is not developed at the time of subdivision, a community 

association shall be established with the authority to levy assessments within the subdivision 

to construct and maintain a community dock in the future. The failure of a subdivision to 

develop a community or shared dock shall not affect the prohibition on individual docks. 

N. Multi-family residences, hotels, motels, and other commercial developments proposing to 

provide moo rage facilities shall meet the criteria for a marina. Use of the moorage must be open 

to the general public on the same basis as residents or occupants and shall provide public access. 

If approved, no more than one joint-use moorage facility may be provided for a parcel or 

development. 

0. Applications for docks or piers serving single commercial or industrial enterprises shall 

demonstrate that: 

l) The facility serves a water-dependent use; 

2) The facility is the minimum size required to serve the proposed use, provided that 

provisions for expansion or future joint use may be provided; and 

City of Prosser 31 Shoreline Master Program 

326



3) The facility minimizes impacts to the extent feasible. Where impacts are unavoidable, the 

facility mitigates impacts to navigation, aquatic habitat, upland habitat, public access to the 

water for recreation, fishing, and similar use, and public access to publicly accessible lands 

below the OHWM. 

P. Commercial or industrial moo rage facilities shall demonstrate that: 

1) The dock or pier shall be the minimum length required to serve the use. 

2) Access from the shore to piers or floats shall minimize water cover in order to minimize 

impacts to shallow water habitat, 

3) Piers and ramps shall be elevated to provide the maximum feasible light penetration. 

4) Grating, or clear translucent material, shall be utilized to the maximum extent feasible to 

provide light penetration. 

5) Floats shall be constructed and attached so that they do not ground out on the bottom of the 

nver. 

6) Pile spacing shall be the maximum feasible to minimize shading and avoid a "wall" effect 

that would block or baffle wave patterns, currents, littoral drift, or movement of aquatic life 

forms, or result in structure damage from driftwood impact or entrapment. 

7) Pile diameter shall be minimized while meeting structural requirements. 

8) Covered structures may be permitted only to serve a water-dependent use where it is 

demonstrated that adequate upland sites are not feasible, and it is demonstrated that the area 

covered is the minimum necessary to serve the use. 

Section 23. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.30 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.30 Shoreline Modification Regulations 

A. In considering an application for a shoreline modification, the decision maker shall make 

findings that the following general principles are met. Appropriate studies by qualified 

professionals shall be required to document compliance. 

1) Shoreline modifications shall only be allowed where it can be demonstrated that the proposed 

activities are necessary to support or protect an allowed use or structure or are necessary to 

allow a water-dependent use, or are necessary for shoreline mitigation, enhancement, or 

restoration purposes. 

City of Prosser 32 Shoreline Master Program 

327



2) Modifications shall only be allowed when impacts are avoided, minimized, and mitigated to 

assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. The adverse effects, as well as the 

number and extent of shoreline modifications, shall be minimized; 

3) The individual and cumulative effects of shoreline modification shall not result in a net loss 

of ecological functions. Preference shall be given to those types of shoreline modifications 

that have a lesser impact on ecological functions. Mitigation of identified impacts resulting 

from shoreline modifications is required. Ecological impacts shall be avoided and mitigated 

in accordance with the mitigation sequence in Section 16.04.022.B of this program and 

WAC 173-26-201 (2)( e) as it now exists, or as it may be hereafter amended. 

Section 24. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.31 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.31 Shoreline Stabilization 

A. New development, including subdivision, shall be located and designed to avoid the need for 

future shoreline stabilization to the maximum extent feasible. New lots shall not be created by 

subdivision that require shoreline stabilization in order for reasonable development to occur. 

New development on steep slopes shall be set back sufficiently to ensure that shoreline 

stabilization is unlikely to be necessary during the life of the structure. Proposed development 

that would require shoreline stabilization which would cause significant impacts to adjacent or 

down-current properties and shoreline areas shall not be allowed. In all cases, compliance with 

this criterion shall be documented by geotechnical analysis by qualified professionals. 

B. The construction of shoreline protection for the primary purpose of retaining or creating dry land 

that is not specifically authorized as a part of the permit is prohibited. 

C. Shoreline stabilization shall be designed and constructed to avoid stream channel direction 

modification, realignment, and straightening or result in increased channelization of normal 

stream flows. 

D. New or enlarged structural shoreline stabilization measures for an existing primary structure, 

including residences, shall not be allowed unless there is conclusive evidence, documented by a 

geotechnical analysis that the structure is in danger from shoreline erosion caused by natural 

processes rather than from upland conditions such as poorly managed stormwater or vegetation 

removal. Normal sloughing, erosion of steep bluffs, or shoreline erosion itself, without a 

scientific or geotechnical analysis, is not demonstration of need. The geotechnical analysis shall 

evaluate on-site drainage issues and address drainage problems away from the shoreline edge 

before considering structural shoreline stabilization. The erosion control structure shall not result 

in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

City of Prosser 33 Shoreline Master Program 

328



E. Alternatives for shoreline stabilization shall be based on the following hierarchy of preference: 

I) No action (allow the shoreline to retreat naturally), increase building setbacks, and relocate 

structures. 

2) Stabilization constructed of natural materials incorporating measures such as soft shore 

protection and bioengineering, including beach nourishment, protective berms, or vegetative 

stabilization. 

3) Soft-shore stabilization, as described above, in combination with rigid works, as described 

below, constructed as a protective measure. 

4) Rigid works constructed of artificial materials such as riprap or concrete. 

F. Shoreline stabilization may be permitted to protect a water-dependent development, or 

single-family residences, when all of the conditions below have been demonstrated to apply and 

are documented by report prepared by a qualified professional: 

1) The erosion is not being caused by upland conditions, such as the loss of vegetation and 

improper management of drainage. 

2) Nonstructural measures, such as placing the development further from the shoreline, 

planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, are not feasible or not 

sufficient. 

3) The need to protect primary structures from damage due to erosion is demonstrated 

through a geotechnical report. 

4) The stabilization structure shall not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

5) Where a geotechnical analysis confirms a need to prevent potential damage to a primary 

structure, but the need is not as immediate as three years, the analysis may still be used to 

justify more immediate authorization for shoreline stabilization using bioengineering 

approaches. 

G. Shoreline stabilization may be permitted to protect an existing non-water-dependent 

development when all of the conditions below are met as documented by report by a qualified 

professional: 

I) The erosion is not being caused by upland conditions, such as the loss of vegetation and 

drainage. 

2) Nonstructural measures, planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, 

are not feasible or not sufficient. 

City of Prosser 34 Shoreline Master Program 

329



3) The need to protect primary structures from damage due to erosion is demonstrated 

through a geotechnical report. 

4) The affected structure cannot be feasibly located or relocated outside of the area affected 

by natural shoreline erosion processes. 

5) The stabilization structure will not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

6) Where a geotechnical analysis confirms a need to prevent potential damage, but the need is 

not as immediate as three years, the analysis may still be used to justify more immediate 

authorization for shoreline stabilization using bioengineering approaches. 

H. Shoreline protection for the restoration of ecological functions or hazardous substance 

remediation projects pursuant to Chapter 70. l 05D RCW, shall meet the conditions below and be 

documented by a qualified professional: 

1) Nonstructural measures, planting vegetation, or installing on-site drainage improvements, 

are not feasible or not sufficient. 

2) The erosion control structure will not result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

I. Replacement of an existing shoreline stabilization structure with a similar structure is permitted 

if there is a demonstrated need to protect existing primary uses, structures, or public facilities 

(e.g., roads, bridges, railways, and utility systems) from erosion caused by stream undercutting 

or wave action. The existing shoreline stabilization structure must be removed from the 

shoreline as part of the replacement activity. The following conditions must be met and 

documented by a qualified professional: 

1) An existing shoreline stabilization structure may be replaced with a similar structure if 

there is a demonstrated need to protect principal uses or structures from erosion caused by 

stream geohydraulic processes. 

2) The replacement structure should be designed, located, sized, and constructed to assure no 

net loss of ecological functions. 

3) Replacement walls or bulkheads shall not encroach waterward of the ordinary high water 

mark or existing structure unless the residence was occupied prior to January 1, 1992, and 

overriding safety or environmental concerns exist. In such cases, the replacement structure 

shall abut the existing shoreline stabilization structure. 

4) Soft shoreline stabilization measures that provide restoration of shoreline ecological 

functions may be permitted waterward of the ordinary high water mark. 

City of Prosser 35 Shoreline Master Program 

330



5) For purposes of this subsection, "replacement" means the construction ofa new structure 

to perform a shoreline stabilization function of an existing structure which can no longer 

adequately serve its purpose. Additions to or increases in size of existing shoreline 

stabilization measures shall be considered new structures. 

J. A publicly-funded shoreline stabilization project shall include appropriate provisions for public 

access to the shoreline, not create barriers to public aceess if in existence, and incorporate 

ecological restoration measures if feasible. 

K. Bioengineered projects shall be designed by a qualified professional in accordance with best 

available science and shall incorporate a variety of native plants, unless demonstrated infeasible 

for the particular site. 

L. Gabions (wire mesh filled with concrete or rocks) shall not be used in bulkhead construction 

where alternatives more consistent with this program are feasible, because of their limited 

durability and the potential hazard to shore users and the shoreline environment. 

Section 25. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.32 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.32 Breakwaters, Jetties, and Groins 

A. Breakwaters, jetties, rock weirs, and groins shall only be permitted by conditional use for 

navigational purposes, water dependent industry, and marinas where water-dependent uses are 

located waterward of the OHWM or to protect existing public facilities such as bridges. 

B. Breakwaters, jetties, rock weirs, and groins may be approved only if analysis by a qualified 

professional demonstrates that they are needed to protect existing or proposed facilities and if 

natural processes such as erosion and accretion processes, riparian habitat, channel migration, 

and floodplain functions will not be adversely affected or are mitigated by a specific program 

implemented over the lifespan of the effect. 

C. The design of new breakwaters, groins, and jetties shall incorporate provisions for public access 

and public fishing if such access is feasible and safe. 

Section 26. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.33 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 36 Shoreline Master Program 

331



16.04.33 Flood Hazard Management 

A. New or substantially altered structural flood hazard reduction measures, such as dikes, levees, 

berms and similar flood control structures, shall be consistent with basin-wide flood control 

strategies in regional flood hazard management plans. 

B. Flood control structures shall be permitted for the following purposes only, as documented 

through a geotechnical or geofluvial analysis: 

l) They are necessary to protect existing development. 

2) Non-structural flood hazard reduction measures are infeasible. 

3) Impacts to ecological processes and functions, priority fish and wildlife species and 

habitats, and the aquatic food chain can be successfully mitigated to assure no net loss of 

functions. 

4) Measures are consistent with an adopted comprehensive flood hazard management plan 

that evaluates cumulative impacts to the watershed system. 

C. Public access shall be provided in accordance with public access policies and regulations of this 

program. If the project is publicly funded the design must provide appropriate public access to 

the shoreline, improve public access to the shoreline, and provide ecological restoration where 

feasible. 

D. Dike and levee design shall, to the maximum extent feasible be: 

l) Limited in size to the minimum height required to protect adjacent lands from the 

predicted flood stage as identified in the applicable comprehensive flood control 

management plan or as required by FEMA for dike recertification. 

2) Placed landward of Fish and Wildlife Conservation Area and Wetland buffers unless there 

is no other feasible alternative to reduce flood hazard to existing development. 

3) Located and designed so as to protect and restore the natural character of the stream, avoid 

the disruption of channel integrity and provide the maximum opportunity for natural 

floodway functions to take place. Design must consider including levee setbacks to allow for 

more natural function of floodplains, channel migration zones, off channel habitat, and 

associated wetlands directly interrelated and interdependent with the stream. 

4) Incorporate appropriate vegetation management. 

City of Prosser 37 Shoreline Master Program 

332



E. All flood protection measures shall demonstrate that downstream flooding will not be increased 

and the integrity of downstream ecological functions will not be adversely affected, including 

disruption of natural drainage flows and stormwater runoff. 

F. Removal of materials from the river channel for flood management purposes may be allowed 

only as part of an adopted integrated flood control management program that demonstrates that 

other flood hazard reduction strategies would not be effective in the absence of gravel removal. 

Section 27. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.34 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.34 Clearing and Grading, Fill 

A. Clearing and grading activities in shoreline areas shall be allowed only in association with a 

permitted shoreline development and shall be limited to the minimum extent necessary to 

accommodate shoreline development. Clearing and grading shall retain natural features and 

functions, including natural topography, to the maximum extent feasible. Excavation waterward 

of the OHWM or within wetlands shall be considered dredging for purposes of this Program. 

B. Fill is restricted in wetlands or Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas in accordance with 

Critical Areas regulations. 

C. Fill may not be placed in floodways. Fill may be placed in other flood hazard areas only where it 

is demonstrated that adverse impacts to hydrogeologic processes will be avoided and the 

provisions of PMC Chapter 15.20 are met. 

D. Fill below, or waterward, of the ordinary high water mark for any use except ecological 

restoration requires a conditional use permit. Fill may be placed below OHWM only when it is 

demonstrated as necessary to: 

I) Accomplish an aquatic habitat restoration plan; 

2) Correct the adverse results of a past shoreline modification that has disrupted natural 

stream geomorphic conditions and adversely affected aquatic or terrestrial habitat; 

3) Provide for cleanup and disposal of contaminated sediments as part of an interagency 

environmental clean-up plan; 

E. Expand or alter transportation facilities of statewide significance currently located on the 

shoreline and then only upon a demonstration that alternatives to fill are not feasible. 

Section 28. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.35 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 38 Shoreline Master Program 

333



16.04.35 Dredging and Dredge Material Disposal 

A. Dredging shall be permitted only: 

I) For flood control purposes, as part of an adopted regional flood control plan; 

2) In conjunction with a water-dependent use of water bodies or adjacent shorelands where 

channel modification is essential to the water dependent use; 

3) As part of an approved habitat improvement project; 

4) In conjunction with a bridge, navigational structure, or wastewater treatment facility for 

which there is a documented public need and where other sites or methods are not feasible. 

B. New dredging shall be permitted only where it is demonstrated by a report by a qualified 

professional that it will avoid adverse impacts to water quality, Fish and Wildlife Habitat 

Conservation Areas and other Critical Areas, flood holding capacity, natural drainage and water 

circulation patterns, significant plant communities, and public access to shorelines. When such 

impacts are unavoidable, they shall be minimized and mitigated such that they result in no net 

loss of ecological functions. 

C. During a low water season, removal of a portion of an accretion point bar below OHWM but 

above the water level at the time of operation may be permitted as a Conditional Use for flood 

control purposes as follows: 

I) It is identified as an element of an adopted integrated flood control management program 

that demonstrates that other flood hazard reduction strategies would not be effective in the 

absence of material removal. 

2) Specific studies accompanying the application must demonstrate that no adverse flood, 

erosion, or other environmental impacts would occur either upstream or downstream of 

extraction sites, including the natural processes of gravel transportation for the river system 

as a whole. 

D. Dredge material disposal shall be permitted only at locations where it is demonstrated by 

analysis by a qualified professional that the disposal will not result in significant or ongoing 

adverse impacts to water quality, Critical Areas, flood holding capacity, natural drainage and 

water circulation patterns, prime agricultural land, or public access to shorelines. When such 

impacts are unavoidable, they shall be minimized and mitigated such that they result in no net 

loss of functions. 

E. Disposal of dredge material within Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas (FWHCA), 

wetlands, within a floodplain, or within a river's channel migration zone shall be allowed only 

City of Prosser 39 Shoreline Master Program 

334



where alternative disposal sites are not feasible. In the limited instances where it is allowed, such 

disposal shall require a conditional use permit. Applicants shall demonstrate that: 

l) The proposed dredge materials disposal site is subject to an approved use under this 

program that: 

a. Is an element of an approved restoration plan for aquatic or upland fish and wildlife 

habitat. 

b. Will create, expand, rehabilitate, or enhance a beach that provides public recreation 

opportunities and is permitted under this program. 

c. If on private land, the site will ultimately be suitable for a use permitted by this program 

or will be subject to buffer or other open space restrictions. 

2) The smallest possible land area is affected. 

3) Sites will be adequately screened from view of local residents or passersby on public 

right-of-ways to the maximum extent practicable (e.g. combination of fencing and 

vegetation). 

4) Sites will be revegetated with appropriate native species as soon as possible to retard 

erosion and restore wildlife habitat and other critical areas functions. 

5) Shoreline ecological functions and processes will be preserved, including protection of 

riparian buffers and surface and ground water. 

Section 29. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.36 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.36 In-Stream Structures 

A. In-stream structures may be allowed only when the public benefits of such facilities clearly 

outweigh any loss of ecological processes and functions, and only when an analysis of 

alternatives demonstrates that the proposed location and design would result in less adverse 

impact than alternative locations and designs. Docks, piers and marinas are not regulated as "in

stream structures" under this section of the SMP. 

B. In-stream structures may be approved only for: 

1) Water-dependent use where the in-stream structure is essential to operation of the use. 

2) A project that has received Governor's certification pursuant to chapter 80.50 RCW. 

3) A project that has received approval and licensing by the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission. 

City of Prosser 40 Shoreline Master Program 

335



4) Projects that are part of the Bureau of Reclamation Yakima River Project. 

C. All in-stream structures shall demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological functions 

and detail all mitigation measures, include detailed mitigation plans, timetables for 

implementation and a monitoring program. 

D. In-stream structures and their support facilities shall be located and designed to minimize the 

need for shoreline stabilization structures. When shoreline stabilization structures are 

demonstrated as necessary, they shall be approved in accordance with Section 16.04.030 

Shoreline Stabilization. 

E. In-stream structures and associated facilities shall avoid, and where avoidance is not feasible 

shall mitigate, adverse land use impacts including impacts to public access facilities, publicly 

owned lands or waters used for recreation, and public and private recreation facilities. Impacts to 

be avoided include the visual impact of the structure or facilities, the intrusion of roads or utility 

corridors into undeveloped area used for recreation, noise, and visual impacts from reduced 

water flows. 

F. In-stream structures shall be designed and constructed to provide public access to and along the 

shoreline, in accordance with the public access policies and regulations contained in this Section 

16.04.024. Existing public access and recreational opportunities should be retained, enhanced, or 

replaced. 

Section 30. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.40 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.40 Development Standards and Use Regulations 

A. Shoreline uses are preferred that are unique to or dependent upon uses of the state's shoreline 

areas and are consistent with the control of pollution and prevention of damage to the natural 

environment, 

B. All shoreline uses shall demonstrate that they result in no net loss of ecological processes and 

functions through incorporation of features or mitigation, including off-site mitigation to protect 

the land and its vegetation and wildlife. 

C. All shoreline uses shall protect the public's health, safety, and welfare, and the property rights of 

others while implementing the policies of the Shoreline Management Act. 

Section 31. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.41 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 41 Shoreline Master Program 

336



16.04.41 Permitted Use Table 

A. The following table determines which shoreline uses are allowed or prohibited in each shoreline 

environment. 

B. Land uses allowed are subject to the preference for water-oriented uses and subject to specific 

criteria for uses and shoreline modification included in these regulations. 

C. Uses allowed in the Aquatic Environment are those allowed in the adjacent upland environment 

and limited to water-dependent use, ecological enhancement, and those transportation and utility 

facilities and Essential Public Facilities for which no alternative location is feasible. 

D. Land uses in the underlying zoning that require a conditional use permit in the underlying zoning 

district, require a shoreline conditional use permit. 

E. If a use is prohibited in the underlying zoning district, it is also prohibited in shoreline 

management act jurisdiction. 

F. KEY: X= Prohibited, P= Permitted, CU= Conditional Use Permit, PA=Permitted only as an 

accessory to a permitted use, Z = Permitted subject to underlying zoning. 

G. A use is considered unclassified when it is not listed in the in the Shoreline Modifications and 

Uses Regulations and is allowed in underlying zoning. A proposed unclassified use may be 

authorized as a conditional use provided that the applicant can demonstrate consistency with the 

requirements of this Master Program and the requirements for conditional uses. 

"' s - ~ ~ "' = -·- ·- = = ... - = = = ~ .. ·- Q = ·- ·;:: ..... ; f: "' Q ... = = "':' s ... ... .. = ..c "' 'C ... ... 
·;:: ·;:: s = ·- ... .. "' 'C "' .. ..c = t>J) t>J) Q & ... ... Q 

Use < < u = =i:: ;;;;, u .... 
Resource 

Aquaculture cu cu cu cu cu x x 
Agriculture, except for dairying, p p x x x x x poultry raising, and livestock 

Dairying; poultry raising; x x x x x x x livestock; and labor camps 

Mining x x x cu x x x 
Residential x x x x x x x 

One single family dwelling per lot z z z z p cu cu 
Duplex x x x x z x x 

City of Prosser 42 Shoreline Master Program 

337



"' s -; ~ "' "' .. ·- ·- -; = = ... -= = " "' :::: " "' ·- ... 
"' " ·- ·- c: .. b = .. 
= ..... s .. "' = ..C> "' "C .. .. ·- ' s = ... OI "' ·;::: ·-... "C "' " ..C> = O,I) O,I) " .. .. ... " Use < < u = i:i:: i:i:: ;;;. u -

Multifamily x z x x z x x 
Mobile home park x x x x z x x 
Accessory Dwelling Unit x x x x p x x (RCW 43.63A.215) 

Bed and breakfast x z x x cu x x 
Home occupation x x x x z x x 

Public and Quasi Public Uses 

Boat launches cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Public recreational facilities p p p p p p cu 
Private recreational facilities p p p p cu p x 
Campgrounds x cu cu x x x x 
Golf courses cu x x x cu x cu 
Trails hard surface p p p p p p cu 
Trails soft surface p p p p p p p 

Commercial recreation: Fitness x x p x x x x centers/spmi clubs 

Commercial amusement facilities x x x x x x x 
Civic and community buildings cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Public or private schools cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Government offices cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Nursery school and day care x x z x cu x x center 

Family day care center (RCW x x p x p x x 35.63.185) 

Museums cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Nursing homes, homes for the x x z x x x x aged 

Hospitals and health care facilities x x cu x x x x 
Churches cu cu cu cu cu cu x 
Irrigation facilities, dams, canals, cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 

City of Prosser 43 Shoreline Master Program 

338



·-· 

= "' .... ,., 
"' "' "' .. ·;:: ] = = = = 

·;:; 'i = "' ·:;; = .. ·- ..... ;::: c: .. .. = = E-
= 

..... .. "' = ,.Q "' "d .. .. 
' "' "' ·- ·;:: 

= = .. 
~ "d ·:;; 

"' ,.Q = 
Use 

!OJ) = = .. .. .. = < u - " " ;;;i u 
f--·--· ·+ 

etc. 

Essential public facilities cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Commercial/Retail x x x x x x x 

Marine sales, service, and rental x p p x x x x 
Marina x cu cu x cu x x 
Bakeries, barber and beauty shops, x p p x x x x etc. 

Commercial laundry and dry x x cu x x x x cleaning 

Retail uses x p p x x x x 
Restaurants x p p cu x x x 
Drinking establishments x p p PA x x x 
Hotel and motel x p p x x x x 
Banqueting halls x p p x x x x 
Resort x p p x x x x 
Recreation vehicle parks x x z x x x x 
Theaters and amphitheaters x p p x x x x 
Veterinarians and kennels x x x x x x x 
Offices serving a permitted use p p p p p p x 
Offices as a primary use x x x x x x x 
Printing and publishing x x z x x x x 
On-site hazardous waste treatment x x x x x x x and storage 

Nurseries and greenhouses p cu x cu x x x 
Lumber and building materials x x p cu x x x 
Automotive, truck, RV sales and x x x x x x x service 

I 

Gasoline service station x x x x x x x 
Industrial 

City of Prosser 44 Shoreline Master Program 

339



"' e - G' "' "' "' .. ·- ·- -; r:: = = .. 
!::: -; = ·- -~ "' ·- .... 

"' = .. ·c: = .... i: = i,.. e .... .. "' = ,.Q "' "C .. .. 
' e = .. OS "' ·c: ·c: "C ·;; "' ,.Q = CJ) CJ) = ~ 

.. .. = Use < < u = ~ ;;;;; u --
Water-dependent industrial z z x p x x x 
Water-related industrial z z x p x x x 
Water-oriented industrial z z x p x x x 
Agriculture products processing p x x p x x x 
Wineries, including sales p p p p x x x 
Microbreweries p p p p x x x 
Municipal and utility yards x x x cu x x x 
Solid waste processing or disposal x x x x x x x 
Hazardous materials processing or x x x x x x x disposal 

Commercial moving and storage x x x x x x x 
Vessel repair x x x p x x x 
Equipment supply, repair, service x x x x x x x 
Manufacturing, other than food x x x p x x x processmg 

Sale of items manufactured on-site p p x p x x x 
Industrial and scientific research x x x p x x x laboratories 

Petroleum, coal, fuel storage x x x x x x x distribution 

Junk or salvage yards x x x x x x x 
Solid waste processing or disposal x x x x x x x 
Hazardous materials processing or x x x x x x x disposal 

Warehouses, storage, distribution x x x p x x x 
Transportation 

Roads and railroads serving p p p p p p p 
shoreline uses 

Roads and railroads N 0 T serving cu cu cu cu cu cu cu shoreline uses 

City of Prosser 45 Shoreline Master Prograrn 

340



"' El = ~ "' "" -"' ·c ·- .. = = = " -= .. ·- = .. ·- .. ..... ·- i: "" = "' ·c = ..... = '"' El ..... "' .. = .r:i "" "Cl ~ " • = .. "" ·c ·c El ·- .r:i = "Cl "' .. 
Use tot tot = = "' ... .. = < < u - ~ ~ ;;;i u 

Park-and-Ride lots x x x x x x x 
Parking areas and facilities serving p p p p p p p 
a primary use within the shoreline 

Parking areas and facilities NOT 
serving a primary use within the x x x x x x x 
shoreline 

Parking as a principal use x x x x x x x 
Utilities 

Public and private utility 
distribution serving shoreline uses, p p p p p p cu water, sewer, electrical, gas, and 
communication 

Public and private utility 
distribution serving uses within p p p p p p cu 
the city 

Utility facilities serving uses not cu cu cu cu cu cu cu within the City 

Electrical transmission of greater cu cu cu cu cu cu cu than 50 Kilovolts 

Gas transmission larger than 6 cu cu cu cu cu cu cu inches in diameter 

Oil or other pipelines cu cu cu cu cu cu cu 
Utility buildings (pump stations, cu cu cu cu cu cu cu etc.) 

Electrical substations cu cu cu cu x x x 

Section 32. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.42 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 46 Shoreline Master Program 

341



16.04.42 Shoreline Bnlk Standards 

The following table determines bulk standards in each shoreline environment. 

"' !3 
";; ~ "' "' " ·;:: ·- - ";; = = = = ~ "' ·- 0 "' ·;;: .... ·-0 " ·;:: = - = ~ = ['- !3 ... "' "' .Q "' 't::I "' ·- • .!. !3 = ·- .. "' "' .. .. 't::I ., 

"' .Q = 
Use 

~D ~ <> = ~ 
., ... <> 

-..-: < u - a: ;;;, u 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Area Buffer from OHWM 
If not established by Table 16.04.043 

Water Dependent Use 1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 
Water Related Use 100' 150' 150' 150' 50'L 50' 200 
Water Enjoyment Use 100' 150' 150' 150' 50'" 50' 200 
Non-Water-Oriented Use 150' 150' 150' 150' 50'L 50' 200 

Building Setback from Critical 
15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 25' 

Areas Ve2etation Buffer 
Buildinl! Setback from OHWM if no Critical Areas Vegetation Buffer is required 

Water Dependent Use 1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA5 
Water Related Use 25' 25' 25' 25' 50'L 25' 25' 
Water E[\joyment Use 75' 75' 75' 75' 50'" 75' 75' 
Non-Water-Oriented Use 100' 100' 100' 100' 50'L 100' 150 

Maximum Height 35' 35' 35' 35' 35' 35 1 25' 
Maximum Imnervious Surface outside of Critical Area Buffers, 

Water Dependent Use' NA NA NA NA NA NA NAS 
Water Related Use 70% 70% 70% 50% 50% 40% NA5 
Water Enjoyment Use 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 40% NA5 
Non-Water-Oriented Use 40% 40% 40% 40% 50% 20% NAS 

Minimum Lot Size As established by underlying zoning 
Minimum Lot Width As established by underlying zoning 
Minimum Lot Denth As established by underlying zoning 
Front Setback As established by underlying zoning 
Street Setback As established bv underlying zoning 

City of Prosser 47 Shoreline Master Program 

342



"' e -; >. 
"' "' - "' .. ·-.. ·- - ell = = = = ~ ell ·- <::> ell ·;;; <::> ·- - ·- = ~ 

.. .. = -= .... e - .. Oil 
..Q "' "O .. • .!. e = .. Oil "' ·i: .. ·- ..Q = "' "' "' Use 

O>J) O>J) <::> = " .. ... <::> 
-<!! -<!! u - 0:: 0:: ;;;i u 

Side Setback As established by underlying zoning 
Rear Setback As established by underlying zoning 
Densitv As established by underlying zoning 
Table Notes: 

1. No vegetated buffer or building setback is required for those elements of a Water-Dependent Use that requires direct access 

to the water. Other elements of the use are subject to the buffer standards for water-related uses. 

2. Does not apply to area within Critical Areas Vegetation buffer, which is normally 0% impervious, does not include 

impervious area of required public access facilities or private trails. 

3. Building setbacks may be adjusted to the average of existing setbacks of the two lots on either side of the subject lot, 

provided that Critical Areas buffers are complied with. 

4. No impervious surface limit applies to those elements of a Water-Dependent Use that requires direct access to the water. 

Other elements of a water dependent use not requiring direct access to the water are subject to the imperious standards for water

related uses. 

5. Applies to all Shoreline Environmental Designations: Standards for Transportation and utility facilities are determined by 

specific conditions at the time of approval of new facilities or expansion of existing facilities. 

Section 33. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.43 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.43 Shoreline Reach Performance Standards 

The following table determines performance standards for each shoreline reach. 

City of Prosser 48 Shoreline Master Program 

343



Shoreline 
Code Inventory Environment 
Reach Reach Desienation Public Access Guidelines Rinarian Buffers 

A Reach la Residential Opportunities for public access along the 30 foot riparian buffer with provision for 
river are limited due to existing residences, minimum 10 foot buffer adjacent to 
short of future redevelopment at a density existing structures, largely to control runoff 
that would trigger requirements. including waterborne fertilizers, pesticides 

A trail system could follow the road with and herbicides 

visual access to the water through gaps in 
the vegetation cover. 

B Reachs 1 a and Parallel Public access trail along the water adjacent Riparian buffer ends at the edge of the 
lb From Byron Road to the road. maintained portion of the road 

to Water: Use of the road for vehicular traffic may be 
Recreation phased out as alternative access is provided 

From Road Inland: to future subdivisions and sections of the 

Industrial existing roadway are narrowed and used 
exclusively as a trail. 

c Reach 2a part Recreation Public access is one feature to be included Maintain and enhance buffer as part of a 
in management of the park. Trails park management plan, except at boat 
generally should retain vegetation buffers launch ramp 
with managed access points to the water's 
edge. 

D Reach 2a part Residential Opportunities for public access along the 50 foot riparian buffer 
river are limited due to existing residences, 
short of future redevelopment at a density 
that would trigger requirements. 

E Reach 2b Commercial Public access area is mandatory if future 30 foot riparian buffer, or 10 feet from the 
use is not water dependent. top of a 40% slope higher than I 0 feet 

City of Prosser 49 Shoreline Master Program 

344



Shoreline 
Code Inventory Environment 
Reach Reach Designation Pu hlic Access Guidelines Riparian Buffers 

F Reach 2a part Residential Opportunities for public access are limited 30 foot riparian buffer, or I 0 feet from the 
to improvements to existing street ends due top of a 40% slope higher than I 0 feet 
to the retention of existing single family 
lots under existing zoning. 

G Reach 3a part Industrial Informal public access available along the No buffer - water-dependent use 
existing alley and provides visual access. USBRDam 
This may be formalized and enhanced for 
better public viewing experience. 

H Reach 3a part Recreation Public access is one feature to be included Maintain and enhance buffer as part of a 
in management of the park. Visual access park management plan 
should be provided at the top of the slope 
with managed access points to the water's 
edge. 

I Reach 3a part Residential Opportunities for public access are limited 30 foot riparian buffer, or 15 feet from the 
to improvements to existing street ends due top of a 40% slope higher than I 0 feet 
to the retention of existing single family 
lots under existing zoning. 

J Reach 3b Industrial Public access area is mandatory if future 30 foot riparian buffer, or 25 feet from the 
use is non-water dependent or if existing top of a 40% slope higher than I 0 feet 
use expands substantially. Public access 
should consist of a trail paralleling the 
water at the top of the bluff. Access to the 
water's edge may be considered if it will 
not adversely affect ecological functions. 

K Reach 3c part Agri-Business Public access area is mandatory if foture Extent of floodplain or 25 feet from top of 
nse is non-water dependent. Public access slope, not to exceed shoreline jurisdiction 
should consist of a trail paralleling the 
water at the top of the bluff. Access to the 
water's edge may be considered if it will 

City of Prosser 50 Shoreline Master Program 

345



Shoreline 
Code Inventory Environment 
Reach Reach Desi1rnation Public Access Guidelines Rinarian Buffers 

not adversely affect ecological functions. 

L Reach 4a part Agri-Business Public access area is mandatory if future Extent of floodplain pins 25 feet from top 
use is non-water dependent. Public access of slope, not to exceed shoreline 
should consist of a trail paralleling the jurisdiction 
water at the top of the bluff. Access to the 
water's edge may be considered if it will 
not adversely affect ecological functions. 

M Reach 4a part Residential Public access area is mandatory if future 60 feet or 15 feet from top of slope 
use is more than 4 units, or non-water 
dependent Public access should consist of a 
trail paralleling the water at the top of the 
bluff. Access to the water's edge may be 
considered if it will not adversely affect 
ecological functions. 

N Reach4a Industrial Public access area is mandatory if future Extent of floodplain plus 25 feet from top 
use is non-water dependent or if existing of slope, not to exceed shoreline 
use expands substantially. Public access jurisdiction 
should consist of a trail paralleling the 
water at the top of the bluff. Access to the 
water's edge may be considered if it will 
not adversely affect ecological functions. 

0 Reach 4b Industrial Public access would need to be carefully Extent of floodplain plus 25 feet from top 
controlled to avoid adverse impacts to the of slope, not to exceed shoreline 
largest area of relatively intact riparian jurisdiction 
habitat in the city. 

p Reach Sa part Residential Pnblic access area will be implemented in From the north-south extension of S. 
subdivisions of more than 5 lots, a Moore Road to the east-west extension of 
continuous trail system located behind the W North River Road - 65 foot riparian 
critical area buffer parallel to the shoreline buffer 

City of Prosser 51 Shoreline Master Program 

346



Shoreline 
Code Inventory Environment 
Reach Reach Desi2nation Public Access Guidelines Riparian Buffers 

to provide common use by residents and North of the east-west extension of W 
the public .. North River road - 30 foot riparian buffer 

Q Reach 5c Agri-Tourist Public access area will be implemented in 7 5 foot riparian buffer 
future development consisting of a 
continuous trail system located behind the 
critical area buffer located parallel to the 
shoreline to provide common use by users 
within the development and the public .. 

R Reach 5d Residential This single family lot would not be 50 foot riparian buffer 
required to provide public access. 

s Reach 6a Public Land Public access should be carefully 200 foot riparian buffer 
controlled to avoid adverse impacts to this 
relatively intact riparian habitat. 

T Reach6b Agribusiness Public access area is mandatory if future l 00 foot riparian buffer to 25 feet above 
use is non-water dependent and should top of slope 
consist of a trail paralleling the water at the 
top of the bluff Access to the water's edge 
may be considered if it will not adversely 
affect ecological functions. 

Section 34. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.50 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

City of Prosser 52 Shoreline Master Program 

347



16.04.50 Shoreline Use Performance Standards 

Section 35. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.51 is hereby enaeted to read as follows: 

16.04.51 Agriculture 

A. This Program shall not restrict lawfully existing agriculture activities that have not been 

discontinued for more than five (5) years. An agricultural use shall not be considered 

discontinued if it is allowed to lie fallow in which it is plowed and tilled but left unseeded; 

allowed to lie dormant as a result of adverse agricultural market conditions; or allowed to lie 

dormant because the land is emolled in a local, state, or federal conservation program. 

B. All new agricultural activities and facilities are governed by this Program and shall observe 

the Critical Area standards and buffer requirements of this Program except for replacement 

of agricultural facilities, provided that the replacement facility is no closer to the shoreline 

than the original facility. 

C. Agricultural activities shall follow recognized best management practices that improve or 

maintain water quality and quantity, reduce soil erosion, maintain, or improve soil 

conditions, and provide for wildlife habitat. The applicant is encouraged to coordinate with 

the County Conservation District and the Natural Resources Conservation Service in the 

development of best management practices for their agricultural activity. 

D. Low Intensity Livestock Activities are those involving less than one (1) Animal Management 

Unit (AMU) per acre of managed pasture and are preferred within the shoreline outside of 

buffers. 

E. New intensive agricultural activities such as animal feeding operations/concentrated animal 

feeding operations (AFO/CAFOs) are prohibited. 

F. Row cropping requiring intensive application of fertilizers, animal waste, herbicides, and 

pesticides shall be located outside of shoreline areas, unless the proposed use is within an 

established agricultural area and no alternative agricultural activity is feasible. New intensive 

agricultural activities shall be implemented in accordance with a farm conservation plan 

including a monitoring program that assures no net loss of ecological functions. 

G. The construction of a barn or similar agricultural structure is exempt from obtaining a 

substantial development pennit, but shall comply with the regulations of the program. 

City of Prosser 53 Shoreline Master Program 

348



Section 36. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.52 is hereby enacted to read as 
follows: 

16.04.52 Aquaculture 

A. Aquacultures is a preferred water-dependent use but may be permitted only if impacts to 

ecological resources and existing land uses can be mitigated. 

B. No aquatic species shall be introduced into City waters without prior written approval of the 

appropriate state or federal regulatory agency for the species proposed for introduction. Such 

approval(s) shall be submitted in writing to the City as part of the shoreline permit 

application. 

C. Fish net-pens shall not occupy more than one-quarter (1/4) surface acre of water, excluding 

booming and anchoring equipment and shall be located greater than one (I) mile from all 

other aquaculture facilities. 

D. No processing of any aquaculture product, except for the sorting or culling of the cultured 

species and the washing or removal of surface materials or species after harvest, shall occur 

in or over the water. All other processing activities and facilities shall be located on land. 

E. Periodic operational monitoring by a City-approved consultant (unless otherwise provided 

for) may be required, at the applicant's expense, and shall continue until adequate 

information is available to determine the success of the project and/or the magnitude of any 

probable significant adverse environmental impacts. 

F. Aquaculture structures and activities that are not water-dependent (including but not limited 

to, warehouses for storage of products, parking and loading facilities) shall be located 

landward of the OHWM and landward of water dependent portions of the project, and shall 

minimize detrimental impacts to the shoreline. 

Section 37. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.53 is hereby enacted to read as 
follows: 

City of Prosser 54 Shoreline Master Program 

349



16.04.53 Marinas 

A. These provisions apply to all vessel moorage facilities serving 5 or more vessels. 

B. Proposals for new marinas must provide sufficient evidence that existing public boat 

launches, dry storage, and moorage is not adequate to meet regional demand for recreational 

boating and that development of new marinas would result in fewer environmental impacts 

than expansion of existing facilities. 

C. In order to protect shoreline ecological functions, efficiently use shoreline space and 

minimize consumption of water surfaces. Boat facilities in order of preference are as 

follows: 

1) Upland dry land boat storage with a launch mechanism. 

2) Mooring buoys with a small lighter dock to provide access to the buoy. 

3) In-water mooring docks. These may be approved only where it is demonstrated that more 

preferred options are not feasible, or it can be demonstrated that in-water mooring docks 

would result in fewer impacts to shoreline ecological functions or enhance public use of 

the shoreline. 

D. Applications for marinas with in-water moorage may be approved as a Conditional Use ifit 

is demonstrated that: 

1) Public navigation will not be impeded. 

2) The location will not result in displacement of wetlands or interrupt natural processes, 

erosion, or deposition. 

3) Water depths are adequate without initial or maintenance dredging. 

4) The location will not require shoreline armoring to compensate for flu vial processes. 

5) The location will not reduce existing public use of the water or shoreline including 

fishing, swimming and boating. 

6) Adverse water quality impacts will not result from inadequate flushing of moorage or 

enclosed water areas. 

7) Impacts to riparian buffers and nearshore aquatic habitat will be minimized. Impact 

minimization may require provision of upland buffers with limited corridors for 

movement between upland and in-water facilities. 

City of Prosser 55 Shoreline Master Program 

350



8) Setbacks from adjacent non-commercial properties are adequate to attenuate proximity 

impacts such as noise, light, and glare, and may address scale and aesthetic impacts. 

Fencing or landscape areas may be required to provide a visual screen. 

9) Facilities including piers, floats, boat launches, and other elements will be located and 

designed to minimize changes in hydraulic and fluvial processes, minimize potential 

flood hazards, and to not limit channel migration in areas where such processes are not 

currently constrained. 

10) Exterior lighting will avoid illuminating nearby properties used for non-commercial 

purposes and to prevent hazards for public traffic. Methods of controlling spillover light 

include, but are not limited to, limits on height of structure, limits on light levels of 

fixtures, light shields and screening. 

11) Exterior lighting will not adversely impact aquatic species. 

12) Adequate provisions are made for restroom, sewage, and solid waste disposal facilities in 

compliance with applicable health regulations. 

13) Access and parking shall not produce traffic hazards, shall not result in excessive noise or 

other impacts, and shall minimize traffic impacts on nearby streets. 

14) On-site parking supply shall be adequate to meet peak demands. Location of parking 

shall be in accordance with parking standards in this program. 

E. Covered moorage is prohibited. 

F. Marinas shall provide public access amenities over public aquatic lands equivalent to a 

minimum 10 percent of over-water coverage and shall provide public walkway access to a 

public street and may be required to provide public parking including handicapped access. 

Section 38. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.54 is hereby enacted to read as 
follows: 

16.04.54 Commercial Development 

A. New commercial uses and developments are subject to the following use preference: 

1) Water-Dependent Uses: Water-dependent commercial uses shall be given preference over 

water-related and water-enjoyment and non-water-oriented commercial uses. Prior to 

approval of water-dependent uses, the City shall review a proposal for design, layout, and 

operation of the use and shall make specific findings that the use qualifies as a 

City of Prosser 56 Shoreline Master Program 

351



water-dependent use. Water-dependent commercial uses shall provide public access in a 

manner that will not interfere with the water-dependent aspects of the use. The portion of 

a site not required for water-dependent use may include multiple use, approved non

water-oriented uses, ecological restoration, and public access. 

2) Water-Related Uses: Water-related commercial uses shall not be approved if they 

displace existing viable water-dependent uses. Prior to approval of a water-related 

commercial use, review of the design, layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that 

the use has a functional requirement for a waterfront location, or the use provides a 

necessary service supportive of water-dependent uses, and/or the proximity of the use to 

its customers makes its services less expensive and/or more convenient. Multiple use 

development within 100 feet of the OHWM shall reserve the ground level for water

oriented use to the extent feasible. 

3) Water-Enjoyment Uses: Water-enjoyment commercial uses shall not be approved if they 

displace existing viable water-dependent or water-related uses or if they occupy space 

designated for water-dependent or water-related use identified in a substantial 

development permit or other approval. Prior to approval of a water-enjoyment use, 

review of the design, layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that the use facilitates 

public access to the shoreline, or the use provides for aesthetic enjoyment of the shoreline 

for a substantial number of people as a primary characteristic of the use. In order to 

qualify as a water-enjoyment use, the use must be open to the general public and the 

shoreline-oriented space within the project must be devoted to the specific aspects of the 

use that fosters shoreline enjoyment. 

4) Non-Water Oriented Uses: Non-water-oriented commercial uses may be permitted 

where: 

a. Located on a site physically separated from the shoreline by another private property in 

separate ownership or a public right-of-way such that access for water-oriented use is 

precluded, or 

b.On a site where navigability is severely limited such that water-dependent use is not 

feasible, or 

City of Prosser 57 Shoreline Master Program 

352



c. The use will be part of a multiple use project that provides significant public benefit 

with respect to the objectives of the SMA including public access and ecological 

restoration; or 

d. The use will be part of a mixed use project including water-dependent and non-water

oriented uses. 

B. All non-water dependent uses shall provide significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA by: 

1. Restoring ecological functions in aquatic and upland environments that will provide 

native vegetation buffers according to the provisions of the Restoration Element of this 

Program and other relevant plans and policies including the WRIA 3 7 Salmon 

Restoration Plans; and 

2. Providing public access in a manner consistent with ecological restoration and 

associated buffers. 

C. Commercial development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in Section 

16.04.022.B of this Program. The use shall be located and designed to maintain required 

buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline ecological functions including shoreline 

geomorphic processes, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, and the aquatic food chain in 

general. Only water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on required vegetated 

buffers and those must retain as much of the buffer as possible while accommodating the 

use. 

D. Over-water structures, or other structures waterward of the OHWM, are allowed only for 

those portions of water-dependent commercial uses that require over-water facilities as an 

essential feature of their function or for public recreation and public access facilities. Design 

of over-water structures or structures beyond the OHWM shall demonstrate that they will not 

interfere with normal stream geomorphic processes, require additional future shoreline 

stabilization, or interfere with navigation or normal public use of the water. 

City of Prosser 58 Shoreline Master Program 

353



E. All new or expanded commercial uses shall take into consideration the scenic and aesthetic 

qualities of the shoreline and compatibility with adjacent uses. They shall make adequate 

provisions such as location of structures, location of parking and other facilities, landscape 

screening, fences, and other measures to protect the privacy and enjoyment of adjacent land 

uses and open space areas. 

F. Accessory development or uses that do not require a shoreline location such as parking, 

service buildings or areas, access roads, utilities, signs, and storage of materials shall be 

located outside of SMA jurisdiction wherever feasible. Siting within SMA jurisdiction 

should be limited to facilities required to serve approved water-oriented uses and/or 

developments and should be located inland away from the land/water interface and landward 

of water-oriented developments. 

G. Signs for all development and uses shall comply with the City of Prosser Sign Code and this 

Program. 

Section 39. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.55 is hereby enacted to read as 
follows: 

16.04.55 Industrial 

A. New industrial use and development is subject to the following use preference: 

5) Water-Dependent Uses: Water-dependent industrial uses shall be given preference over 

water-related and water-enjoyment industrial uses. Prior to approval of water-dependent 

uses, the City shall review a proposal for design, layout, and operation of the use and 

shall make specific findings that the use qualifies as a water-dependent use. Water

dependent industrial uses shall provide public access in a manner that will not interfere 

with the water-dependent aspects of the use. The portion of a site not required for water

oriented use may include multiple use, approved non-water-oriented uses, ecological 

restoration, and public access. 

6) Water-Related Uses: Water-related industrial uses shall not be approved if they displace 

existing viable water-dependent uses. Prior to approval of a water-related industrial use, 

review of the design, layout, and operation of the use shall confirm that the use has a 

functional requirement for a waterfront location, or the use provides a necessary service 

supportive of the water-dependent uses, and/or the proximity of the use to its customers 

makes its services less expensive and/or more convenient. Mixed use development within 

City of Prosser 59 Shoreline Master Program 

354



100 feet of the OHWM that incorporates water-dependent use may not include 

non-water-oriented uses at the ground level. 

7) Non-Water-Oriented Uses: Non-water-oriented industrial uses are likely to be most 

common in Prosser and may be permitted where the use is: 

a. Located on a site physically separated froni the shoreline by another private property in 

separate ownership or a public right-of-way, or other public facility, or are isolated 

from the water by a substantial difference in topography; or 

b. On a site where navigability is severely limited such that water-dependent use is not 

feasible; or 

c. Part of a mixed use project that provides significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA. 

B. Industrial development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of ecological 

functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in Section 

16.04.022.B of this Program. Only water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on 

required Critical Area buffers. 

C. All non-water-dependent uses shall provide significant public benefit with respect to the 

objectives of the SMA by: 

1) Restoring ecological functions both in aquatic and upland environments that will provide 

native vegetation buffers according to the Critical Areas regulations, the Restoration Plan 

of this Program and other plans and policies including the WRIA 3 7 Salmon Restoration 

Plans; and 

2) Providing public access consistent with the criteria and standards of Section 16.04.025. 

D. Accessory development or use that does not require a shoreline location such as parking, 

service buildings or areas, access roads, utilities, signs, and storage of materials shall be 

located outside of SMA jurisdiction wherever feasible. Siting within SMA jurisdiction should 

be limited to facilities required to serve approved water-oriented uses and/or developments 

and should be located inland away from the land/water interface and landward ofwater

oriented developments. 

E. All new or expanded industrial developments shall take into consideration the scenic and 

aesthetic qualities of the shoreline and compatibility with adjacent uses, including public use 

City of Prosser 60 Shoreline Master Program 

355



of the water. They shall make adequate provisions such as location of structures, location of 

parking and other facilities, landscape screening, fences, and other measures to protect the 

privacy and enjoyment of adjacent land uses. 

F. Public access to the shoreline shall be provided in accordance with the standards in 

Section 16.04.025, provided said access does not compromise the integrity or operation of 

the use, does not threaten the safety and welfare of the general public, does not interfere with 

an existing adjacent use, and does not compromise existing ecological functions. In cases 

where on-site public access is not provided, alternative off-site facilities may be provided in 

accordance with provisions of this program. 

G. Signs for all development and uses must comply with the Prosser Sign Code and this 

Program. 

Section 40. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.56 is hereby enacted to read as 
follows: 

16.04.56 Recreation 

A. Recreation facilities within SMA jurisdiction are preferred that are water-oriented or provide 

public access to the water. 

B. Recreation facilities and activities are permitted when they do not displace water-dependent 

uses and are consistent with existing water-related and water-enjoyment uses. State-owned 

shorelines shall be recognized as particularly adapted to providing wilderness beaches, 

ecological study areas, and other recreational uses for the public in accordance with RCW 

90.58. l 00( 4). 

C. Recreation development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of 

ecological functions and the preferred sequence for mitigation of impacts as provided in 

Section 16.04.022.B of this Program. The use shall be located and designed to maintain or 

enhance shoreline ecological functions. The use or development shall be located and 

designed to maintain required buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline ecological functions 

including shoreline geomorphic processes, water quality, fish and wildlife habitat, and the 

aquatic food chain in general. Only water-dependent elements of a proposal may encroach on 

required vegetated buffers. 

D. Development of public recreation facilities shall implement, where applicable, the elements 

within the City Parks and Recreation Plan. 

City of Prosser 61 Shoreline Master Program 

356



E. The highest priority for recreational development on the shoreline shall be to provide the 

maximum possible amount of public access to the shoreline as follows: 

I) Water-dependent recreation such as fishing, swimming, boating, and wading. 

2) Water-related recreation as picnicking, hiking, and walking should be located near the 

shoreline. 

3) Non-water-related recreation facilities shall be located inland. Recreational facilities with 

large grass areas, such as playing fields and facilities with extensive impervious surfaces, 

shall be located as far from the water as feasible. 

F. New over-water structures for recreation use shall be allowed only when: 

1) They accommodate water-dependent recreation use or facilities, or 

2) They allow opportunities for substantial numbers of people to enjoy the shorelines of the 

state, and 

3) They are not located in or adjacent to areas of exceptional ecological sensitivity, 

especially aquatic and wildlife habitat areas, and 

4) No net loss of ecological functions will be achieved. 

G. Private recreation uses and facilities that utilize public aquatic lands shall provide public 

access as provided in Section 16.04.025 or shall provide improved, compensating public 

access at other locations. 

H. Motorized vehicular access including the use of all-terrain and off-road vehicles in the 

shoreline area is prohibited, except for boat launching and maintenance activities and except 

where specific areas for such use are set aside and controlled by a public entity 

Section 41. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.57 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.57 Residential Development 

A. Single-family residential development is a priority use on the shoreline when developed 

in a manner consistent with control of pollution and prevention of damage to the natural 

environment. 

B. Residential development in the shoreline shall meet the criteria of no-net-loss of 

ecological functions in Section 16.04.22 of this program and the preferred sequence for 

mitigation of impacts as provided in Section 16.04.022.B of this program. The use shall be 

City of Prosser 62 Shoreline Master Program 

357



located and designed to maintain required buffers and maintain or enhance shoreline 

ecological functions including shoreline geomorphic processes, water quality, fish and 

wildlife habitat, and the aquatic food chain in general. 

C. New residential development shall cluster dwelling units to provide as little alteration to the 

natural environment as feasible and shall utilize low impact development (LID) techniques to 

reduce physical and visual impacts on shorelines. 

D. Multi-family residential use is not a priority for location on the shoreline under the Shoreline 

Management Act and is subject to the preference for water-dependent and water-oriented 

use. It therefore must meet requirements for providing public benefit through ecological 

restoration and public access. Multi-family development may not be approved if it displaces 

existing water-dependent uses. Multi-family development uses may be permitted only where 

it provides significant public benefit with respect to the objectives of the SMA by: 

1) Restoration of ecological functions both in aquatic and upland environments that shall 

provide native vegetation buffers according to the standards provided for Critical Areas 

or in accordance with the Restoration Element of this document; and 

2) Provision of public access is required in accordance with PMC 16.04.024. 

E. Over-water residences are prohibited. 

F. New residential development shall assure that the development will not require shoreline 

stabilization. Prior to approval, geotechnical analysis of the site and shoreline characteristics 

shall demonstrate that shoreline stabilization is unlikely to be necessary, setbacks from steep 

slopes, bluffs, landslide hazard areas, seismic hazard areas, and riparian erosion areas shall 

be sufficient to protect structures during the life of the lots, and impacts to adjacent, 

downslope, or down-current properties is not likely to occur during the life oflots created. 

G. New residential development shall meet all Critical Area provisions of this program. 

Filling of, or into, water bodies or their associated wetlands for the purpose of subdivision or 

multi-family construction shall be avoided. New subdivisions, short plats, and large lots shall 

preserve the required buffer in a protective tract, public or private land trust dedication, or 

similarly preserved through an appropriate permanent protective mechanism. In cases where 

Critical Areas are placed in separate tracts, each lot owner within the subdivision, short plat, 

or other land division shall have an undivided interest in the tract(s) or protective mechanism 

created. 

City of Prosser 63 Shoreline Master Program 

358



H. Residential developments, including subdivisions, and planned unit developments of five (5) 

or more lots/units shall provide "improved public access" for all residents of the development 

and the general public, in compliance with public access standards contained in Section 

16.04.025. 

I. All new divisions of land shall record a prohibition on new private individual docks on the 

face of the plat. An area reserved for shared moorage may be designated if it meets all 

requirements of this program. 

Section 42. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.58 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.58 Transportation Facilities 

A. Roads and Bridges: 

1) Development of new roads or substantially expanded existing roads shall demonstrate the 

need for a shoreline location and that no feasible upland alternative outside the shoreline 

is available. 

2) Roads shall cross shoreline areas by the shortest, most direct route feasible to minimize 

impacts, unless such route would cause significant adverse impacts based on specific 

local features. 

3) The project configuration, design, and related features will minimize alteration of Critical 

Area buffers, will fit the existing topography as much as feasible, and will minimize 

alterations to the natural or existing topography. 

4) New transportation facilities shall be located and designed to avoid the need for shoreline 

stabilization where feasible. Where demonstrated to be necessary to protect an existing 

facility that is in imminent danger of loss or substantial damage, new or expanded 

structural shore stabilization shall provide mitigation of impacts resulting in no net loss of 

shoreline ecological functions. In cases where substantial shore stabilization is required, 

relocation of facilities further from the shoreline may be required. 

5) New or expanded roads will provide public access in accordance with Section 16.04.025 

and where they afford scenic vistas, pedestrian viewpoints will be provided. 

6) Wetlands shall be avoided whenever feasible. If avoidance is not feasible, bridges shall 

be utilized when crossing wetlands to avoid obstructing movement of surface and 

City of Prosser 64 Shoreline Master Program 

359



groundwater unless it can be demonstrated that fill and compensatory mitigation will 

produce equal or greater ecological functions. 

7) Road crossings of streams shall utilize bridges rather than culverts to the maximum 

extent feasible. 

8) Private access roads or driveways providing ingress and egress for individual single

family residences or lots shall be limited to the minimum allowed by the Fire Code. 

9) Bridges shall be designed and built of sufficient lateral and vertical clearance to allow the 

unimpeded passage of flood flows and debris. In wide streamways, bridges shall employ 

the maximum length of clear spans feasible with pier supports that produce the minimum 

deflection feasible. Bridge approaches in floodways of any stream shall be constructed on 

open piling or other measures to allow free water movement. 

10) Landscape planting may be provided along all shoreline roads, parking, and 

turnout facilities when appropriate, and where provision of irrigation is not necessary to 

support landscaping to: 

a. Provide buffers between pedestrian and auto users; 

b. Enhance the shoreline driving experience; and 

c. Enhance and complement potential views of shoreline areas. 

11) The City shall not vacate any public right-of-way in a shoreline location until adopting a 

Comprehensive Public Access plan for the area showing that the subject right-of-way 

cannot be used as a contributing element in that plan. The City shall vacate a public 

right-of-way abutting a body of water only in compliance with RCW 35.79.035, which 

allows vacations of streets abutting bodies of water only when: 

a. The vacation will enable acquisition of the property for public purposes; 

b. The street or alley is not suitable for certain purposes (e.g., port, park, education); or 

c. The vacation will enable implementation of a public access plan. 

12) In order to improve public access to the shoreline the City may acquire and/or retain 

abandoned or unused road or railroad rights-of-way for public access to and/or along the 

water. 

City of Prosser 65 Shoreline Master Program 

360



B. Non-Motorized Facilities: 

1) Non-motorized facilities shall comply with provision for public access facilities in 

Section 16.04.025. 

2) Trails shall be developed consistent with adopted city and regional system plans. 

3) Non-motorized facilities shall avoid sensitive features of the shoreline to the extent 

feasible, including wetlands and fish and wildlife habitat. Facilities shall be placed 

outside of, or in the outer portions of buffers. Elevated walkways shall be utilized where 

feasible to cross wetlands and streams. 

C. Railroads: 

1) Railroad improvements requiring right-of-way expansion within the shoreline shall 

demonstrate that there is no feasible alternative outside of shoreline jurisdiction. 

2) Expansion of existing railroad facilities within existing rights-of-way (additional track or 

other features) must demonstrate the need for a shoreline location and that no feasible 

upland alternative outside shoreline jurisdiction is feasible. New tracks shall be placed 

upland of existing tracks if feasible and may require relocation of existing tracks. 

3) The project shall be designed to minimize alteration of Critical Area buffers, to fit the 

existing topography as much as feasible, and minimize alterations to the natural or 

existing topography. 

4) Wetlands shall be avoided whenever feasible. Bridges shall be utilized when crossing 

wetlands to avoid obstructing movement of surface and groundwater unless it can be 

demonstrated that fill and compensatory mitigation will produce equal or greater 

ecological functions. 

5) Criteria for road crossings of streams and shoreline stabilization shall apply to railroads. 

D. Parking: 

1) Parking facilities in shorelines are not a preferred use and shall be allowed only as 

necessary to support an authorized use. Parking facilities shall be located outside 

shoreline jurisdiction where possible. Parking in shoreline jurisdiction shall directly serve 

a permitted shoreline use and shall be located outside of Critical Area buffers and as far 

from the water/land interface as possible. 

City of Prosser 66 Shoreline Master Program 

361



2) Parking facilities serving individual buildings on the shoreline shall be located landward 

from the principal building being served. The only exceptions to this would be when the 

parking facility is within or beneath the structure and adequately screened, or in cases 

when an alternate location would have less environmental impact on the shoreline and in 

all cases is prohibited over the water. 

3) Parking facilities shall be designed and landscaped to minimize adverse impacts upon 
adjacent shoreline and abutting properties. Landscaping shall comply with PMC Title 18, 
Zoning, Section 16.04.24 Shoreline Vegetation Conservation and, in addition, 
landscaping between parking areas and public access shall provide effective screening 
within three (3) years of project completion. 

Section 43. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.59 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.59 Utilities 

A. New or substantially expanded utilities serving uses within the City may be located within 

shoreline jurisdiction only if: 

1. The facility is needed within the shoreline jurisdiction to support permitted shoreline 

activities; and 

2. No feasible upland alternative exists based on analysis of system options that assess the 

potential for alternative routes outside shoreline jurisdiction or is set back further from 

the land/water interface. 

B. Regional facilities that serve uses outside the City and all electric transmission facilities with 

a capacity greater than 50 kW shall demonstrate, based on an analysis of alternative routes 

and technology, that: 

1. No upland alternative is feasible, 

2. Utilization of existing corridors is not feasible, including expansion or replacement of 

existing facilities, if new corridors are proposed, 

3. A location within designated industrial environments or existing transportation corridors 

is not feasible, 

4. The proposal has the least feasible adverse impact on the natural environment, and 

City of Prosser 67 Shoreline Master Program 

362



5. The location and design of the facility has the least feasible change in the existing 

character of the shoreline views enjoyed by residences or from public access facilities, 

and will not obstruct scenic views. 

C. Linear facilities consisting of pipelines, sewers, cables and other facilities roughly parallel to 

the shoreline shall be discouraged except where no other feasible alternative exists. At the 

time of replacement of such facilities that are close to their lifespan, or when such facilities 

are expanded, relocation outside of the shoreline may be required as if they were new 

facilities. When permitted, design shall assure that maintenance of the facilities does not 

result in a net loss of shoreline ecological functions or significant impacts to other shoreline 

resources and values. 

D. Utilities shall be located and designed to avoid significant natural, historic, archaeological, or 

cultural sites to the maximum extent feasible, and mitigate unavoidable impacts. 

E Utilities, where permitted, shall meet the following design criteria: 

I) Facilities should occupy as little of the shoreline as feasible. Utility installation parallel to 

the shoreline should be avoided to the maximum extent feasible. Utilities shall cross the 

shoreline area by the shortest, most direct route, unless such route would cause 

substantial significant environmental damage. 

2) Utilities shall be located and designed to minimize alterations to the natural environment 

and fit the existing topography as much as possible. 

3) Facilities shall be located and designed to minimize introducing elements that change the 

existing character of the shoreline views enjoyed by residences or from public access 

facilities, or obstruct scenic views. 

4) Utility crossings of water bodies shall be attached to bridges or located in other existing 

facilities, if feasible. If new installations are required to cross water bodies or wetlands 

they should avoid disturbing banks and streambeds and shall be designed to avoid the 

need for shoreline stabilization. Crossings shall be tunneled or bored where feasible. 

Installations shall be deep enough to avoid failures or need for protection due to exposure 

due to stream bed mobilization, aggregation, or lateral migration. Underwater utilities 

shall be placed in a sleeve if feasible to avoid the need for excavation in the event of the 

need for maintenance or replacement. 

City of Prosser 68 Shoreline Master Program 

363



F. New electrical distribution lines within the shoreline shall be placed underground. 

Distribution lines that cross water or other critical areas may be allowed to be placed above 

ground if: 

1) Underground installation would substantially disrupt ecological functions and processes 

of water bodies and wetlands, and horizontal drilling or similar technology that does not 

disturb the surface is not feasible; 

2) Visual impacts are minimized to the extent feasible; and 

3) If overhead facilities require that native trees and other vegetation in a Critical Areas 

buffer cannot be maintained in a natural condition, compensatory mitigation is provided 

on- or off-site. 

G. Stormwater, wastewater, or water supply pump stations, and stonnwater discharge facilities 

such as dispersion trenches, level spreaders, and outfalls may be located in the shoreline 

jurisdiction if: 

1) Due to topographic or other physical constraints there are no feasible locations for these 

facilities outside the shoreline; 

2) The facility minimizes and compensates for impacts to Critical Area buffers; and 

3) Any discharge facility is designed and maintained to prevent erosion or other adverse 

impacts. 

H. Construction shall be designed to protect the shoreline against erosion, uncontrolled or 

polluting drainage, and other factors detrimental to the environment, both during and after 

construction. 

I. Roadways or other facilities to access utility installations within Critical Area buffers shall be 

no wider than needed to construct, maintain, or repair the utility. 

J. Facilities involving buildings, such as pump stations, electrical substation, or other 

facilities, shall be permitted as a conditional use and shall be in scale with surrounding 

development, and architecturally compatible and landscaped to assure compatibility with 

natural features, public access facilities, and adjacent uses. 

K. Public Access: Utility development shall provide for compatible, multiple use of sites and 

rights-of-way through coordination with local government agencies. Such uses include 

City of Prosser 69 Shoreline Master Program 

364



shoreline access points, trail systems, and other forms of recreation and transportation, 

providing such uses will not unduly interfere with utility operations, endanger public health 

and safety, or create a significant and disproportionate liability for the owner. 

Section 44. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.60 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.60 Shoreline Administration 

Section 45. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.61 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.61 Procedure 

A. All shoreline permits shall be processed in accordance with PMC Title 19 Administration of 

Development Regulations. 

Section 46. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.62 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.62 Coordination with Other Agencies 

A. The City will coordinate on issues relating to ecological conditions, functions, and processes 

and on wetland and ordinary high water delineations with the Department of Ecology, the 

Department of Natural Resources, and the Department of Fish and Wildlife as well as other 

agencies with pennit authority over a project to the extent that agencies are timely in their 

response and coordination does not unduly extend review times. 

B. Interpretation of the provisions of this program shall be in accordance with PMC 19.01.090 

provided that the Administrator shall consult with the Department of Ecology when there is a 

lack of clear guidance in this Master Program or WAC 173-26, the Shoreline Guidelines to 

insure that any formal written interpretations are consistent with the purpose and intent of 

chapter 90.58 RCW and the applicable guidelines. The provisions ofRCW 34.05.328, and 

the policy goals set forth in WAC 173-26-176 and 173-26-181 should be used to assist in 

interpretation of any ambiguous provisions and reconciliation of any conflicting provisions. 

City of Prosser 70 Shoreline Master Program 

365



C. All references to statutes or to provisions of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 

shall be as those provisions are as now existing or as hereafter may be amended 

Section 47. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.63 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.63 Development Compliance 

A. All uses and developments within the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act shall be 

planned and carried out in a manner that is consistent with the Shoreline Master Program and 

the policies of the SMA as required by RCW 90.58.140(1), regardless of whether a shoreline 

permit, statement of exemption, shoreline variance, or shoreline conditional use permit is 

required. The City shall assure compliance with the provisions of the Shoreline Master 

Program for all permits and approvals processed by the City. 

B. Regulation of private property to implement any Program goals, such as public access and 

protection of ecological functions, must be consistent with all relevant constitutional and 

other legal limitations. These include, but are not limited to, property rights guaranteed by 

the United States Constitution and the Washington State Constitution, applicable federal and 

state case law, and state statutes, such as RCW 34.05.328 and 43.21C.060. An applicant 

requesting specific accommodation of constitutional or other legal limits in the application of 

standards and criteria of this Program must do so in application materials. The decision 

maker shall address such requests in specific findings. 

C. The policies and provisions of this program and RCW 90.58 including the permit system, 

shall apply to all nonfederal developments and uses undertaken on federal lands and on lands 

subject to nonfederal ownership, lease or easement, even though such lands may fall within 

the external boundaries of a federal ownership. 

D. Compliance with the provisions of this chapter does not constitute compliance with other 

federal, state, and local regulations and permit requirements that may be required (for 

example, Hydraulic Permit Act [HPA] permits, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 

permits, Washington State Department of Ecology Water Quality Certification [Section 401] 

City of Prosser 71 Shoreline Master Program 

366



National Pollution Discharge Elimination System permits). The applicant is responsible for 

complying with these requirements, apart from the process established in this chapter. 

Section 48. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.64 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.64 Shoreline Overlay 

A. Shoreline regulations shall apply as an overlay and in addition to development regulations, 

including, but not limited to, zoning, environmental regulations, development standards, 

subdivision regulations, and other regulations established by the City. 

B. Allowed uses shall be governed by both the zoning regulations in PMC Title 18 and this 

program. The most restrictive provisions of applicable zoning district and Shoreline 

Environmental designation shall apply. 

C. Allowed uses shall be limited by the general polices and specific regulations regarding use 

preferences for water-dependent and water-oriented uses. Allowed uses may be specified and 

limited in specific shoreline permits. In the case of non-conforming development, the use 

provisions of this code shall be applied to any change of use, including occupancy permits. 

D. In the event of any conflict between shoreline policies and regulations and any other 

regulations of the City, shoreline policies and regulations shall prevail unless other 

regulations provide greater protection of the shoreline natural environment and aquatic 

habitat. 

E. All regulations applied within the shoreline shall be liberally construed to give full effect to 

the objectives and purposes for which they have been enacted. Shoreline Master Program 

policies, found in the City's Comprehensive Plan, establish intent for the shoreline 

regulations in addition to RCW 90.58 and Chapter 173 of the Washington Administrative 

Code (WAC), WAC 173-26 and WAC 173-27 all as now existing or as hereafter may be 

amended. 

Section 49. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.65 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

City of Prosser 72 Shoreline Master Program 

367



16.04.65 Non-Conformities 

A. The provisions of PMC Subsections 18.66.010 through 18.66.030 referencing 

nonconforming lots, structures, and uses are adopted by reference as part of this program, 

subject to the definition in PMC 16.04.2.L and additional provisions below. 

B. Any expansion of a nonconforming use, building, or structure within Shoreline Management 

Act jurisdiction shall meet the following additional criteria: 

1) The expansion or enlargement will not increase its degree of nonconformity in relation to 

the provisions of the Shoreline Master Program; and 

2) The expansion or enlargement will not result in enlargement of the building footprint or 

impervious area in a Critical Area buffer or extends further toward the water unless 

necessary to meet minimum standards of life-safety codes; and 

3) The expansion or enlargement will not result in a net loss of ecological functions; 

Section 50. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.66 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.66 Exemption from Substantial Development Permit 

A. A substantial development permit shall be required for all proposed use and development of 

shorelines unless the proposal is specifically exempt pursuant to RCW 90.58.140(1). 

B. The following shall not be considered substantial developments for the purpose of this 

Master Program and are exempt from obtaining a Shoreline Substantial Development Permit 

(SSDP), provided that any additional exemptions established by legislative amendment of the 

statute shall constitute exemptions without amendment to this code. An exemption from an 

SSDP is not an exemption from compliance with the SMA or the Shoreline Master Program, 

or from any other regulatory requirements. A use or development exempt from a Shoreline 

Substantial Development Permit may require a Conditional Use Permit or a variance: 

1) Governor's Certification: Any project with a certification from the Governor pursuant to 

Chapter 80.50 RCW Energy Facilities - Site Locations. 

2) Projects Valued at $5,000 or less: Any development of which the total cost or fair market 

value does not exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), if such development does not 

City of Prosser 73 Shoreline Master Program 

368



materially interfere with the normal public use of the water or shorelines of the state. The 

$5,000 level is subject to adjustment for inflation by the office of financial management 

every five years. As of July 26, 2012, the adjusted cost is six thousand four hundred 

sixteen dollars ($6,416). 

3) Maintenance and Repair: Normal maintenance or repair of existing structures or 

developments, including damage by accident, fire, or elements. 

a. "Normal maintenance" includes those usual acts to prevent a decline, lapse, or 

cessation from a lawfully established condition. 

b. "Normal repair" means to restore a development to a state comparable to its original 

condition, including, but not limited to, its size, shape, configuration, location, and 

external appearance, within a reasonable period after decay or partial destruction, 

except where repair causes substantial adverse effects to the shoreline resource or 

environment. 

c. Replacement of a structure or development may be authorized as repair where such 

replacement is the common method of repair for the type of structure or development 

and the replacement structure or development is comparable to the original structure 

or development including, but not limited to, its size, shape, configuration, location, 

and external appearance and the replacement does not cause substantial adverse 

effects to shoreline resources or environment. 

4) Emergency Construction: Emergency construction necessary to protect property from 

damage by the elements. 

a. An "emergency" is an unanticipated and imminent threat to public health, safety, or 

the environment which requires immediate action within a time too short to allow for 

full compliance with the Shoreline Master Program. 

b. Emergency construction does not include development of new permanent protective 

structures where none previously existed. Where new protective structures are 

deemed to be the appropriate means to address the emergency situation, upon 

abatement of the emergency situation, the new structure shall be removed or any 

permit which would have been required, absent an emergency, pursuant to chapter 

90.58 RCW, 173 -27 WAC or this Shoreline Program shall be obtained. 

c. All emergency construction shall be consistent with the policies of chapter 90.58 

RCW and the Shoreline Master Program. 

d. In general, flooding or other seasonal events that can be anticipated and may occur, 

but that are not imminent, are not an emergency. 

City of Prosser 74 Shoreline Master Program 

369



5) Agricultural Construction or Practices: Construction and practices normal or necessary 

for farming, irrigation, and ranching activities, including agricultural service roads and 

utilities on shorelands, and the construction and maintenance of irrigation structures, 

including but not limited to head gates, pumping facilities, and irrigation channels. A 

feedlot of any size, all processing plants, other activities of a commercial nature, 

alteration of the contour of the shore lands by leveling or filling, other than that which 

results from normal cultivation, shall not be considered normal or necessary farming or 

ranching activities. A feedlot shall be an enclosure or facility used or capable of being 

used for feeding livestock hay, grain, silage, or other livestock feed, but shall not include 

land for growing crops or vegetation for livestock feeding and/or grazing, nor shall it 

include normal livestock wintering operations. 

6) Construction of Single-Family Residence and Accessory Buildings: Construction on 

shorelands by an owner, lessee, or contract purchaser of a single family residence for his 

own use or for the use of his family, which residence does not exceed a height of35 feet 

above average grade level as defined in WAC 173-27-030, and which meets all 

requirements of the State agency or local government having jurisdiction thereof, other 

than requirements imposed pursuant to this Section. 

a. "Single family" residence means a detached dwelling designed for and occupied by 

one (1) family including those structures and developments within a contiguous 

ownership which are a normal appurtenance. An "appurtenance" is necessarily 

connected to the use and enjoyment of a single family residence and is located 

landward of the OHWM and the perimeter of a wetland. 

b. Construction authorized under this exemption shall be located landward of the 

OHWM. 

7) Construction of Non-Commercial Docks: Cons!rnction of a dock, including a community 

dock designed for pleasure craft only, for the private noncommercial use of the owner, 

lessee, or contract purchaser of single and multi-family residences. This exception applies 

if: 

a. The fair market value of the dock does not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00); 

however, if subsequent construction having a fair market value exceeding two 

thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) occurs within five (5) years of completion 

of the prior construction, the subsequent construction shall require a substantial 

development permit; and 

City of Prosser 75 Shoreline Master Program 

370



b. A dock is a landing and moorage facility for watercraft and does not include 

recreational decks, storage facilities, or other appurtenances. 

c. The dock meets all requirements of this code. 

8) Construction Authorized by the Coast Guard: Construction or modification, by or under 

the authority of the Coast Guard or a designated port management authority, of 

navigational aids such as channel markers and anchor buoys. 

9) Operation, Maintenance, or Construction Related to Irrigation: Operation, maintenance, 

or construction of canals, waterways, drains, reservoirs, or other facilities that now exist 

or are hereafter created or developed as part of an irrigation system for the primary 

purpose of making use of system waters, including return flow and artificially stored 

groundwater for the irrigation of lands. 

10) Marking of Property Lines on State-Owned Lands: The marking of property lines or 

corners on State-owned lands when such marking does not interfere with the normal 

public use of the surface of the water. 

11) Operation and Maintenance of Agricultural Drainage or Dikes: Operation and 

maintenance of any system of dikes, ditches, drains, or other facilities existing on 

September 8, 1975, which were created, developed, or utilized primarily as a part of an 

agricultural drainage or diking system. 

12) Activities Necessary for Permit Application: Site exploration and investigation activities 

that are prerequisites to preparation of an application for development authorization 

under the Shoreline Master Program, if: 

a. The activity does not interfere with the normal public use of the surface waters; 

b. The activity will have no significant adverse impact on the environment including, 

but not limited to, fish, wildlife, fish or wildlife habitat, water quality, and aesthetic 

values; 

c. The activity does not involve the installation of a structure, and upon completion of 

the activity the vegetation and land configuration of the site are restored to conditions 

existing before the activity; 

d. A private entity seeking development authorization under the Shoreline Master 

Program first posts a perfonnance bond or provides other evidence of financial 

responsibility to the Administrator to ensure that the site is restored to pre-existing 

conditions; and 

e. The activity is not subject to the permit requirements ofRCW 90.58.550. 

City of Prosser 76 Shoreline Master Program 

371



13) Removal or Control of noxious Weeds: The process of removing or controlling an 

aquatic noxious weed, as defined in RCW 17.26.020, through the use of an herbicide or 

other treatment methods applicable to weed control that are recommended by a final 

environmental impact statement published by the Department of Agriculture or the 

Department of Ecology jointly with other State agencies under chapter 43.21C RCW. 

14) Watershed Restoration Projects: Watershed restoration projects as defined below: 

a. "Watershed restoration project" means a public or private project authorized by the 

sponsor of a watershed restoration plan that implements the plan or a part of the plan 

and consists of one or more of the following activities: 

(i) A project that involves less than ten (10) miles of stream reach, in which less than 

twenty five (25) cubic yards of sand, gravel, or soil is removed, imported, 

disturbed, or discharged, and in which no existing vegetation is removed except as 

minimally necessary to facilitate additional plantings. 

(ii) A project for the restoration of an eroded or unstable stream bank that employs 

the principles of bioengineering, including limited use of rock as a stabilization 

only at the toe of the bank, and with primary emphasis on using native vegetation 

to control the erosive forces of flowing water. 

(iii)A project primarily designed to improve fish and wildlife habitat, remove or 

reduce impediments to migration of fish, or enhance the fishery resource available 

for use by all of the citizens of the State, provided that any structure other than a 

bridge or culvert or in-stream habitat enhancement structure associated with the 

project is less than two hundred (200) square feet in floor area and is located 

above the OHWM of the stream. 

b. "Watershed restoration plan" means a plan developed or sponsored by a state 

department, a federally recognized Indian tribe, a City, or a conservation district, for 

which agency and public review has been conducted pursuant to chapter 43 .21 C 

RCW, the State Environmental Policy Act. The watershed restoration plan generally 

contains a general program and implementation measures or actions for the 

preservation, restoration, re-creation, or enhancement of the natural resources, 

character, and ecology of a stream, stream segment, drainage area, or watershed. 

15) Projects to Improve Fish and Wildlife Passage or Habitat: A public or private project, the 

primary purpose of which is to improve fish or wildlife habitat or fish passage, when all 

of the following apply: 

City of Prosser 77 Shoreline Master Program 

372



a. The project has been approved in writing by the Department of Fish and Wildlife as 

necessary for the improvement of the habitat or passage and appropriately designed 

and sited to accomplish the intended purpose. 

b. The project has received hydraulic project approval by the Department of Fish and 

Wildlife pursuant to chapter 77.55 RCW. 

c. The Administrator has determined that the project is consistent with this Master 

Program. 

16) Hazardous Substance Remediation: Hazardous substance remedial actions pursuant to 

WAC 173-27-040(3). 

17) Projects on Lands Not Subject to Shoreline Jurisdiction Prior to Restoration: Actions on 

land that otherwise would not be under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act 

except for a change in the location of OHWM or other criteria due to a shoreline 

restoration project creating a landward shift in the ordinary high water mark that brings 

the land under the jurisdiction of the SMA approved in accordance with PMC 16.04.072 

Restoration Project Relocation ofOHWM. 

18) All of the above exemptions are subject to the following regulations: 

a. Exemptions shall be construed narrowly. Only those developments that meet the 

precise terms of one or more of the listed exemptions may be granted exemptions 

from the substantial development permit process. 

b. The burden of proof that a development or use is exempt is on the 

applicant/proponent of the exempt development action. 

c. If any part of a proposed development is not eligible for exemption, then a substantial 

development permit is required for the entire project. 

Section 51. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.67 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.67 Exemption Procedures 

A. A project requiring an additional permit and subject to an exemption to a shoreline 

substantial development permit shall be reviewed under the criteria of the underlying permit 

with an additional finding recorded by the Administrator addressing the grounds under which 

the permit is exempt. 

City of Prosser 78 Shoreline Master Program 

373



B. Any person claiming exemption from the permit requirements of this Master Program as a 

result of the exemptions specified in this Section may make application for an exemption 

certificate to the Administrator in the manner prescribed by the City. 

C. Any project for which Ecology is designated as the coordinating agency for the state with 

regard to permits issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers shall make application for an 

exemption certificate to the Administrator in the manner prescribed by the City. The City 

shall transmit an exemption certificate addressed to the applicant and the department, 

whenever a development is subject to one or more of the following federal permit 

requirements: 

1) A U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 10 permit under the Rivers and Harbors Act of 

1899; (The provisions of section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act generally apply to any 

project occurring on or over navigable waters. Specific applicability information should 

be obtained from the Corps of Engineers.); or 

2) A Section 404 permit under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972. (The 

provisions of Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act generally apply to 

any project which may involve discharge of dredge or fill material to any water or 

wetland area. Specific applicability information should be obtained from the Corps of 

Engineers.) 

3) The letter shall indicate the specific exemption provision from WAC 173-27-040 that is 

being applied to the development and provide a summary of the local government's 

analysis of the consistency of the project with the master program and the act. 

D. The City may attach conditions to the approval of exempted developments and/or uses as 

necessary to assure consistency of any project with the Shoreline Management Act and the 

Shoreline Master Program. 

Section 52. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.68 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

City of Prosser 79 Shoreline Master Program 

374



16.04.68 Land Division: 

A. Prior to approval of any land division, such as short subdivisions, preliminary long plats, and 

boundary line adjustments within shoreline jurisdiction, the City shall document compliance 

with bulk and dimensional standards as well as with policies and regulations of the Shoreline 

Master Program and attach appropriate conditions and/or mitigating measures to such 

approvals to ensure the design, development activities, and future use associated with such 

lands are consistent with the Shoreline Master Program. 

Section 53. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.69 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04.69 Approval Criteria 

A. In order to approve any development within SMP jurisdiction, the City must find that a 

proposal is consistent with the following criteria as well as the criteria of PMC Chapter 

19.04: 

I) All use regulations of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the shoreline 

designation and the type of use or development proposed shall be met, particularly the 

preference for water-oriented uses. If a non-water-oriented use is approved, the decision 

maker shall enter specific findings documenting why water-oriented uses are not feasible. 

2) All bulk and dimensional regulations of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the 

shoreline designation and the type of use or development proposed shall be met, except 

those bulk and dimensional standards that have been modified by approval of a shoreline 

variance. 

3) All policies of the Shoreline Master Program appropriate to the shoreline area designation 

and the type of use or development activity proposed shall be considered and compliance 

demonstrated, subject to liberal construction to give full effect to the objectives and 

purposes for which they have been enacted. 

Section 54. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.70 is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

16.04. 70 Written Findings Required 

A. All permits or statements of exemption issued for development or use within shoreline 

jurisdiction shall include written findings prepared by the decision maker addressing 

compliance with policies and regulations of the Shoreline Master Program. The decision 

City of Prosser 80 Shoreline Master Program 

375



maker may attach conditions to the approval of exempt developments and/or uses as 

necessary to assure consistency of the project with the SMA and this Program. 

Section 55. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.71 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.71 Construction Permit Compliance 

A. For all development within shoreline jurisdiction, the Building Official shall not issue a 

construction permit for such development until compliance with the Shoreline Master 

Program has been documented. If a shoreline substantial development permit is required, no 

pennit shall be issued until all comment and appeal periods have expired. Any permit issued 

by the Building Official for such development shall be subject to the same terms and 

conditions that apply to the shoreline permit. 

Section 56. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04. 72 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04. 72 Restoration Project Relocation of OHWM 

The City may grant relief from Shoreline Master Program development standards and use 

regulations in accordance with RCW 90.58.580 Shoreline restoration projects··- Relief from 

shoreline master program development standards and use regulations. 

Section 57. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04. 73 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.73 Shoreline Permit Application Procedures 

A. In addition to the public notice requirements ofPMC Chapter 19.03, the following notice 

shall be provided for each application for a shoreline management substantial development, 

conditional use, or variance permit. 

I) Within fourteen (14) days after the City bas made a determination of completeness on the 

project permit application the city shall issue public notice including: 

a. The date of application, the date of the notice of completion for the application, and 

the date of the notice of application; 

City of Prosser 81 Shoreline Master Program 

376



b. A description of the proposed project action and a list of the project permits included 

in the application and, if applicable, a list of any studies requested under RCW 

36.70B.070, RCW 36.70B.090, and WAC 173-27-180 as now existing or as hereafter 

may be amended; 

c. The identification of other pe1mits not included in the application to the extent known 

by the local government; 

d. The identification of existing environmental documents that evaluate the proposed 

project, and, if not otherwise stated on the document providing the notice of 

application, such as a city land use bulletin, the location where the application and 

any studies can be reviewed; 

e. A statement of the public comment period, which shall be not less than thirty (30) 

days following the date of notice of application, 

f. A statement of the right of any person to comment on the application, receive notice 

of and participate in any hearings, request a copy of the decision once made, and any 

appeal rights. Public comments shall be accepted at any time prior to the closing of 

the record of an open record hearing, if any, or, if no open record hearing is provided, 

prior to the decision on the project permit; 

g. The date, time, place, and type of hearing, if applicable and scheduled at the date of 

notice of the application; 

h. A statement of the preliminaiy determination, if one has been made at the time of 

notice, of those development regulations that will be used for project mitigation and 

of consistency; and 

1. Any other information determined appropriate by the Administrator. 

2) Public notice shall include: 

a. Mailing of the notice to the latest recorded real property owners as shown by the 

records of the county assessor within at least three hundred feet (300) of the boundary 

of the property upon which the development is proposed. 

b. Posting of Project Site. 

c. Publication shall be in accordance with PMC 19.03 notwithstanding the classification 

of the project pursuant to Chapter 19.01 If an open record public hearing is required, 

a notice shall be provided at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing. 

City of Prosser 82 Shoreline Master Program 

377



Section 58. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.74 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.74 Surety Devices 

A. The Administrator may require the applicant to post a surety device in favor of the City to 

assure full compliance with any terms and conditions imposed on any shoreline permit. Said 

surety device shall be in an amount to reasonably assure the City that any deferred 

improvement will be carried out within the time stipulated and in accordance with approved 

plans. 

Section 59. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.75 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.75 Conditional Use 

A. The objective of a conditional use provision is to provide more control and flexibility for 

implementing the regulations of the Master Program. With provisions to control undesirable 

effects, the scope of allowed uses can be expanded. In authorizing a conditional use, special 

conditions may be attached to the permit by local government or the Department of Ecology 

to prevent undesirable effects of the proposed use and/or to assure consistency of the project 

with the act and the local master program. 

1) Uses which are classified or set forth in the applicable master program as conditional uses 

may be authorized provided that the applicant demonstrates all of the following: 

a. That the proposed use is consistent with the policies, regulations and standards of 

RCW 90.58.020 and the master program; 

b. That the proposed nse will not interfere with the normal public use of public 

shorelines; 

c. That the proposed use of the site and design of the project is compatible with other 

authorized uses within the area and with uses planned for the area under the 

comprehensive plan and shoreline master program; 

d. That the proposed use will cause no significant adverse effects to the shoreline 

environment in which it is to be located; and 

e. That the public interest suffers no substantial detrimental effect. 

City of Prosser 83 Shoreline Master Program 

378



2) In the granting of all conditional use permits, consideration shall be given to the 

cumulative impact of additional requests for like actions in the area. For example, if 

conditional use permits were granted for other developments in the area where similar 

circumstances exist, the total of the conditional uses shall also remain consistent with the 

policies ofRCW 90.58.020 and shall not produce substantial adverse effects to the 

shoreline environment. 

3) Other uses which are not classified or set forth in the applicable master program may be 

authorized as conditional uses provided the applicant can demonstrate consistency with 

the requirements of this Section and the requirements for conditional uses contained in 

the master program. 

4) Uses which are specifically prohibited by the master program may not be authorized 

pursuant to either subsection (a.) or (b.) of this Section. 

Section 60. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04. 76 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.76 Variances: 

A. A development may be granted which is at variance with the criteria established in the SMP 

where, owing to special conditions pertaining to the specific piece of property, the literal 

interpretation and strict application of the criteria established in the SMP would cause undue 

and unnecessary hardship or practical difficulties. A variance may be required for a use that 

does not require a substantial development permit but which may not be approved because it 

does not comply with the provisions of the SMP. 

B. Decision Criteria: The fact that the applicant might make a greater profit by using his 

property in a manner contrary to the intent of the Master Program is not, by itself, sufficient 

reason for a variance. The Board of Adjustment must find each of the following: 

1) That the strict application of the bulk, dimensional or performance standards set forth in 

the applicable master program precludes, or significantly interferes with, reasonable use 

of the property; 

2) That the hardship described in (!) of this subsection is specifically related to the property, 

and is the result of unique conditions such as irregular lot shape, size, or natural features 

City of Prosser 84 Shoreline Master Program 

379



and the application of the master program, and not, for example, from deed restrictions or 

the applicant's own actions; 

3) That the design of the project is compatible with other authorized uses within the area 

and with uses planned for the area under the comprehensive plan and shoreline master 

program and will not cause adverse impacts to the shoreline environment; 

4) That the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege not enjoyed by the other 

properties in the area; 

5) That the variance requested is the minimum necessary to afford relief; and 

6) That the public interest will suffer no substantial detrimental effect. 

Section 61. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04. 77 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.77 Time Requirements for Shoreline Permits 

A. The time requirements of this Section shall apply to all substantial development permits and 

to any development authorized pursuant to a variance or conditional use permit authorized 

under the Shoreline Master Program. 

B. No construction pursuant to such permit shall begin or be authorized and no building, 

grading, or other construction permits or use permits shall be issued by the City until twenty

one (21) days from the date a substantial development permit was filed with the Department 

of Ecology and the Attorney General, or until all review proceedings are completed as were 

initiated within the twenty-one (21) days of the date of filing. Filing shall occur in 

accordance withRCW 90.58.140(6) and WAC 173-27-130 as now existing or as hereafter 

may be amended. 

C. No permits and construction pursuant to a conditional use pennit or variance shall begin or 

be authorized until twenty-one (21) days from the date of notification of approval by the 

Department of Ecology, or until all review proceedings are completed as were initiated 

within the twenty-one (21) days of the date of filing. Filing shall occur in accordance with 

RCW 90.58.140(6) and WAC 173-27-130 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

City of Prosser 85 Shoreline Master Program 

380



D. Unless a different time period is specified in the shoreline permit as authorized by 

RCW 90.58.143, construction activities, or a use or activity for which a permit has been 

granted pursuant to this Master Program, must be commenced within two (2) years of the 

effective date of a shoreline permit, or the shoreline permit shall terminate and a new permit 

shall be necessary. However, the Administrator may authorize a single extension for a period 

not to exceed one ( 1) year based on reasonable factors if a request for extension has been 

filed with the City before the expiration date and notice of the proposed extension is given to 

parties ofrecord and the Department of Ecology. Construction activities or commencement 

of construction means that construction applications must be submitted, permits must be 

issued, and foundation inspections must be approved and completed. 

E. A permit authorizing construction shall extend for a term of no more than five (5) years after 

the effective date of a shoreline permit, unless a longer period has been specified pursuant to 

RCW 90.58.143 and Subsection F of this Section. If an applicant files a request for an 

extension prior to expiration of the shoreline permit, the Administrator shall review the 

permit and upon a showing of good cause may authorize a single extension of the shoreline 

permit for a period of up to one year. Otherwise said permit shall terminate. Notice of the 

proposed permit extension shall be given to parties of record and the Department of Ecology. 

To maintain the validity of a shoreline permit, it is the applicant's responsibility to maintain 

valid construction permits in accordance with adopted Building Codes. 

F. If it is determined that standard time requirements of Subsections D and E should not be 

applied, the Decision Maker, upon a finding of good cause, may establish shorter time limits, 

provided that as a part of action on a conditional use or variance pe1mit the approval of the 

Department of Ecology shall be required. "Good cause" means that the time limits 

established are reasonably related to the time actually necessary to perform the development 

on the ground and complete the project that is being permitted. 

G. For purposes of determining the life of a shoreline permit, the effective date of a substantial 

development permit, shoreline conditional use permit, or shoreline variance permit shall be 

the date of filing as provided in RCW 90.58.140(6) as now existing or as hereafter may be 

amended. The permit time periods do not include the time during which a use or activity was 

City of Prosser 86 Shoreline Master Program 

381



not actually pursued due to the pendency of appeals or legal actions, or due to the need to 

obtain any other government permits and approvals for the development that authorize the 

development to proceed. 

H. It is the responsibility of the applicant to inform the Administrator of the pendency of other 

permit applications filed with agencies other than the City, and of any related administrative 

or legal actions on any permit or approval. If no notice of the pend ency of other permits or 

approvals is given to the City prior to the expiration date established by the shoreline permit 

or the provisions of this Section, the expiration of a permit shall be based on the effective 

date of the shoreline permit. 

l. If the granting of a shoreline permit by the City is appealed to the Shoreline Hearings Board, 

and the Shoreline Hearings Board has approved the granting of the permit, and an appeal for 

judicial review of the Shoreline Hearings Board decision is filed, construction authorization 

may occur subject to the conditions, time periods, and other provisions of RCW 

90.58.140(5)(b ). 

Section 62. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04. 78 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04. 78 Rulings to State 

A. Any ruling on an application for a substantial development permit under authority of this 

Master Program, whether it is an approval or denial, shall, with the transmittal of the ruling 

to the applicant, be filed concurrently with the Department of Ecology and the Attorney 

General by the Administrator. Filing shall occur in accordance with RCW 90.58.140(6) and 

WAC 173-27-130 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

Section 63. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.79 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

City of Prosser 87 Shoreline Master Program 

382



16.04.79 Appeals 

Any person aggrieved by the granting, denying, or rescinding of a permit on shorelines of the 

state pursuant to RCW 90.58.140 may seek review from the shorelines hearings board by 

filing a petition for review within twenty-one (21) days of the date of receipt of the decision 

as provided for in RCW 90.58.140(6) as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

Appeals as provided by PMC 19.01.040 Project permit application framework, may be 

provided only if initiated by the applicant. If such an appeal is initiated by the applicant, the 

final decision shall be the city's appeal decision and shall initiate the 21 day period for 

petition to the shoreline hearings board. 

Section 64. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.80 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.80 Enforcement 

All provisions of this Master Program shall be enforced by the Administrator in accordance 

with Chapter 19.07 PMC. 

Section 65. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.81 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.81 Rescission of Permits 

A. Any shoreline permit issued under the terms of this Master Program may be rescinded or 

suspended upon a finding that a permittee has not complied with conditions of the permit. 

B. Such rescission and/or modification of an issued permit shall be initiated by serving written 

notice of noncompliance on the permittee, which shall be sent by registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to the address listed on the application or to such other address as 

the applicant or permittee may have advised the City; or such notice may be served on the 

applicant or permittee in person or his agent in the same manner as service of summons as 

provided by law. 

C. Before any such permit can be rescinded, a public hearing shall be held by the Board of 

Adjustment. Notice of the public hearing shall be made in accordance with Section 16.04.073 

City of Prosser 88 Shoreline Master Program 

383



of this program. The decision of the Board of Adjustment shall be the final decision of the 

City on all rescinded applications. A written decision shall be transmitted to the Department 

of Ecology, the Attorney General's office, the applicant, and such other departments or 

boards of the City as are affected thereby and the legislative body of the City. 

D. The Department of Ecology may petition the Shoreline Hearings Board for a rescission of the 

permit if Ecology is of the opinion that the noncompliance continues to exist thirty (30) days 

after the date of the notice, and the local government has taken no action to rescind the 

permit, as provided by RCW 90.58.140(8). 

Section 66. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.82 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.82 Violations and Penalties 

A. In addition to the provisions of Chapter 19.07 PMC, every person violating any of the 

provisions of this Master Program or the Shoreline Management Act of 1971 shall be 

punishable under conviction by a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by 

imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and 

each day's violation shall constitute a separate punishable offense. 

B. The City Attorney may bring such injunctive, declaratory, or other actions as are necessary to 

ensure that no uses are made of the Shorelines of the State within the City'sjurisdietion 

which are in conflict with the provisions and programs of this Master Program or the 

Shoreline Management Act of 1971, and to otherwise enforce provisions of this Section and 

the Shoreline Management Act of 1971 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

C. Any person subject to the regulatory program of this Master Program who violates any 

provision of this Master Program or the provisions of a permit issued pursuant thereto shall 

be liable for all damages to public or private property arising from such violation, including 

the cost of restoring the affected area to its condition prior to such violation. The City 

Attorney shall bring suit for damages under this subsection on behalf of the City. Private 

persons shall have the right to bring suit for damages under this subsection on their own 

behalf and on behalf of all persons similarly situated. If liability has been established for the 

City of Prosser 89 Shoreline Master Program 

384



cost of restoring an area affected by violation, the Court shall make provision to assure that 

restoration will be accomplished within a reasonable time at the expense of the violator. In 

addition to such relief, including monetary damages, the Court in its discretion may award 

attorney's fees and costs of the suit to the prevailing party. 

Section 67. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.83 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.83 Shoreline Moratorium 

A. The City Council may adopt moratoria or other interim official controls as necessary and 

appropriate to implement the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act in accordance 

with RCW 90.58.590. 

Section 68. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.84 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.84 Administration Rules Promulgation 

A. The Administrator is authorized to adopt such rules as are necessary and appropriate to 

implement this chapter. The director may prepare and require the use of such forms as are 

necessary to its administration. 

Section 69. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.85 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.85 Amendments Authorized 

A. The provisions of the Shoreline Master Program Use Regulations or the Shoreline 

Environment Map may be amended as provided for in RCW 90.58.120 and 90.58.200 and 

Chapter 173-26 WAC as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

Section 70. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.86 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

City of Prosser 90 Shoreline Master Program 

385



16.04.86 Amendments Adopted by City Council 

A. Adoption of an amendment to the official controls shall be adopted by the City Council by 

ordinance after a public hearing and report by the planning commission. 

Section 71. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.87 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.87 Initiation of Amendments 

A. The Shoreline Use Regulations or Map amendments thereto may be initiated by: 

1) The adoption of a motion by the City Council requesting that the planning commission 

set a matter for hearing and recommendation. 

2) The adoption of a motion by the planning commission. 

3) Application of one or more owners of property affected by the proposal. 

4) A department or agency of the City or governmental entity. 

Section 72. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.88 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.88 Burden of proof 

A. Proponents for Shoreline Environment Map redesignations (i.e., amendments to the 

Shoreline Environment Designation Map) shall bear the burden of proof for demonstrating 

consistency with the shoreline enviromnent criteria of the master program, Chapter 1 73-26 

WAC as now existing or as hereafter may be amended, and the goals and policies of the City 

of Prosser Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 73. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.89 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.89 Transmittal to the Department of Ecology 

Subsequent to final action by the Council adopting or amending the Shoreline Master Program or 

official control, said Master Program, official control, or amendment thereto shall be submitted 

to the Department of Ecology for approval. No such Master Program, official control, or 

City of Prosser 91 Shoreline Master Program 

386



amendment thereto shall become effective until approval by the Department of Ecology is 

obtained pursuant to RCW 90.58.90 as now existing or as hereafter may be amended. 

Section 74. Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.04.900 is hereby enacted to read as 

follows: 

16.04.900 Severability 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase, or word of this chapter 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 

invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 

other section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, phrase or word of this chapter 

Section 75. The City Council adopts the Shoreline Environment Designations Maps, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference. 

Section 76. The City Council hereby adopts the findings made by the Planning 
Commission on May 15, 2014, as the findings of the City Council in support of this ordinance. 
In addition, the City Council finds that it agrees with the recommendations from the Planning 
Commission and finds that there is a factual and legal basis to revise the Shoreline Master 
Program as recommended by the Planning Commission. 

Section 77. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 78. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication of 
an approved summary of this ordinance consisting of its title or after the date the City's 
Shoreline Management Program is approved by the Washington State Department of Ecology 
pursuant to RCW 36. 70.480(2) and RCW 90.58.090(1 ), whichever is later. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this ~~day of 
'2014. --------

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

City of Prosser 92 Shoreline Master Program 

387



Approved as to form: 

CITY ATTORNEY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: ------

City of Prosser 93 Shoreline Master Program 

388



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE EXISTING SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM 
CONTAINED IN PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 16.04 AND ADOPTING A 
NEW SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM. THE ORDINANCE ALSO ADOPTS 
SHORELINE DESIGNATION MAPS. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE 
SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ________ , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

City of Prosser 94 Shoreline Master Program 

389



lI

lI
lI

lI

lI lI lI lI lI

lI
lI lI

lI
lI

lI
lI lI lI

lI

lI

A

B

C

D

F

GH I
J

K

L
M

N

O

P

Q
R

S

T

E

UV22

UV22

UV22

UV221

§̈¦82

§̈¦82
£¤12

LEGEND
Interstates
Highways
Other Roads

lI Regulatory Reach

Incorporated City
Unincorporated Urban
Growth Boundary
OHWM and Floodway
Extent of Shoreline Jurisdiction

Environment Designation
Agri-Business
Agri-Tourist
Commercial
Conservancy
Industrial
Recreation
Residential

Regulatory Reaches
Prosser Shoreline Master Program

Prosser, WA

Q:
\Jo

bs
\12

09
35

-01
.01

_B
en

ton
Cit

y_
Pr

os
se

r_R
ich

lan
d_

SM
P\P

ros
se

r\M
ap

s\F
oli

o\P
ros

_M
ap

fol
io_

En
vir

on
me

ntD
es

ign
ati

on
s.m

xd
  lh

ud
so

n  
6/2

6/2
01

3  
3:0

2:0
1 P

M

0 0.3 0.6
Miles

[

NOTES:
1. This information is to be used for planning purposes only. Data is
displayed as is and without any guarantee of accuracy or completeness.
2. Aerial image courtesy of ESRI and Bing Maps.

DRAFT

£¤12

§̈¦82

UV22

UV221
UV22Prosser

Grandview

ATTACHMENT A

390



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTIONS 16.10.102, 16.10.130, 16.20.010, 16.20.040, 16.20.050, AND 
16.60.040 OF THE CITIES CRITICAL AREAS ORDINANCE TO MAKE 
IS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SHORELINE MASTER 
PROGRAM. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS 
ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR 
PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section l. That portion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Municipal Code Section 16.10.120 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.10.120 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

16.10.120 Exception-Reasonable use. 

A. Except within the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act RCW 90.58, if the 
application of this title would deny all reasonable use of the subject property, the property 
owner may apply for an exception pursuant to this Section. 

Section 2. That pmiion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Municipal Code Section 16.10.130 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.10.130 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

16. Hl.130 General review process. 

A. The city shall follow the process discussed below and as outlined in Figure 1 at the end of 
this section. 

1. Verify the information submitted by the applicant for the applicable permit; 

2. Evaluate the project area and vicinity for critical areas; 

3. For wetland, geologically hazardous and/or fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas 
the city shall require that boundaries be verified and mapped by a qualified professional, 
and such boundaries be submitted to the city as part of the application for the applicable 
permit if the project is: 

a. Within three hundred feet of a wetland or fish and wildlife critical area for which the 
boundaries have not been certified and depicted by the city on the critical areas map 
(see Exhibit 1 of the ordinance codified in this chapter, or the most recent revision 
thereof); and 

391



b. Will not be receiving a no-impact waiver as provided in subsection B of this section. 

The scale of the boundary information shall be the same as the city maps; 

4. Determine whether the proposed project is likely to impact the functions or values of 
critical areas; and 

5. Determine ifthe proposed project adequately addresses the impacts and avoids impacts to 
the critical area associated with the project. 

B. Critical Areas Present, But No Impact-Waiver. If the planning director determines that 
there are critical areas within or adjacent to the project area, but that the proposed activity is 
unlikely to degrade the functions or values of the critical area, the planning director may 
waive the requirement for a report or other applicable information. A waiver may be granted 
if there is substantial evidence that all of the following requirements will be met: 

1. There will be no alteration of the critical area or buffer; 

2. The development proposal will not impact the critical area in a manner contrary to the 
purpose, intent, and requirements of this title; and 

3. The proposal is consistent with other applicable regulations and standards. 

4. The Administrator may recognize that ecological functions of buffers are interrupted by 
permanent man-made features and may recognize such features as the boundary of the 
buffer. Such features may include public roads, railroads, publicly maintained levees and 
other existing permanent improvements that substantially interrupt or impair ecological 
functions performed by buffers in relation to the adjacent wetland or water body. In such 
cases, the Administrator may recognize that the buffer extends from the edge of the 
wetland or the ordinary high water mark of a stream to the edge or the area of vegetation 
management associated with the road, railroad, levee, or similar facility. In the case of 
private facilities, the Administrator may recognize that existing structures and impervious 
surfaces provide the effective limit to buffer functions on existing developed sites and 
recognize such facilities as the boundary of the buffer, provided that upon substantial 
redevelopment of a site or facility, the Administrator may require reconfiguration of a site 
or redesign of features to accommodate buffer dimensions as otherwise provided in this 
chapter. The Administrator may require appropriate studies by a Qualified Professional to 
determine whether buffer functions are interrupted or substantially impaired by existing 
facilities. 

C. Critical Areas Present and Potential Impact Likely. If the planning director determines that 
the proposed project is within, adjacent to, or is likely to impact a critical area, the planning 
director shall: 

I. Notify the applicant that a critical area report or other applicable information must be 
submitted prior to further review of the project, and indicate each of the critical area types 
that should be addressed; 

2. Require a critical area report or other applicable information from the applicant that has 
been prepared by a qualified professional; 

3. Review and evaluate the critical area report and other applicable information to determine 
whether the development proposal conforms to the purpose and performance standards of 

392



this title; 

4. Assess potential impacts to the critical area and determine if they are necessary and 
unavoidable; 

5. Determine if any mitigation proposed by the applicant is sufficient to protect the 
functions and values of the critical area and public health, safety, and welfare concerns 
consistent with the goals, purposes, objectives, and requirements of this title; and 

6. A summary of this analysis and the findings shall be included in any decision on the 
underlying permit(s). Critical area review findings may result in: 

a. No adverse impacts to critical area(s); 

b. List of applicable critical area(s) protection conditions for the underlying permit(s); or 

c. Denial of permit based upon unavoidable impacts to eritieal area(s) functions and 
values. 

D. Within the Jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act RCW 90.58, regulations to protect 
critical areas are intended to be remedial and curative in nature, and to apply retroactively to 
July 27, 2003. 

393



Figure 1. Critical Area Process/Other Permits 

Follow 
existing 

penn!ttin9---f--· --·----
process 

+-

J---1- Waiver I 

Development/Land Use Permit Application 
I 

~ 
Activity/use located in critical area or buffer; or activity within 

500 feet of uncertified wetland or F&W habitat ilrea 

I ,v.. I 
I 

rmm•N~~~r--- I lm~--;;ctlveter~ I 

Potevntial/Yes 

I ;:::nd I ---~-- --+---~~ -- -- -
I 

I CARA I 
,·---~--·····~ 

Fl;oed~d J ~ ~ 
. J_ _______ j 

rOV!Oe-repoi't-atldlbr other require, 
information 

I N~ adverse' I Prat--*'-" ...J ... m~~"-" ----.. --- I I Unavoidable impacts to ........... ..,, .. "r---·- I I __ .. _,, ~· , .. : .. .,_.,_,, ,,, ____ , __ I I functions and values 

=t--. - ··--·· ·····---- ·-
··---------•mm------·- I Pe.mitDeoision I 

NOTE: Appeal process follows route of associated permit. Appeals of administrative decisions regarding provisions of the critical 
areas code use the administrative appeal process contained within the city of Prosser zoning code (Title 18) and plat and divisions 
code (Title 17). 

394



Section 3. That portion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Mu11icipal Code Section 16.20.010 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.20.010 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

16.20.010 Designation, rating and mapping wetlands. 

A. Designating Wetlands. Wetlands are those areas, designated in accordance with the 
"Washington State Wetland Identification and Delineation Manual," that are innndated or 
saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and 
that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation adapted for life in 
saturated soil conditions. All areas within the city of Prosser meeting the wetland 
designation criteria in the "Identification and Delineation Manual," regardless of a11y formal 
identification, are hereby designated critical areas and are subject to the provisions of this 
title. 

B. Wetland Ratings. Wetlands shall be rated according to the Department of Ecology wetland 
rating system fow1d in the Washington State Wetland Rating for Eastern Washington 
(Ecology Publication No. 04-06-015), or as revised by Ecology. This document contains 
definitions and methods for determining ratings. 

Section 4. That portion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Municipal Code Section 16.20.040 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.20.040 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

l 6.20.040 Performance standards-General requirements. 

A. Activities may only be permitted in a wetland or wetland buffer if the applicant can show 
that the proposed activity will not degrade the fnnctions and values of the wetland and other 
critical areas. 

B. Activities and uses shall be prohibited from wetlands and wetland buffers, except as 
provided for in this title. 

C. Wetland Buffers. 

1. Standard Buffer Widths. The standard buffer widths presume the existence of a 
relatively intact native vegetation community in the buffer zone adequate to protect the 
wetland fnnctions and values at the time of the proposed activity. If the vegetation is 
inadequate then the buffer width shall be increased or the buffer should be planted to 
maintain the standard width. Required standard wetland buffers, based on wetland 
category and land use intensity, are as follows: 

WETLAND TYPE 
Category I 

Category I 30-36 habitat points 

BUFFER 

150 feet 

395



Category I 26-29 habitat points 
Category 121-25 habitat points 
Category I >21 habitat points 

Category II 
Category II 30-36 habitat points 
Category II 26-29 habitat points 
Category II 21-25 habitat points 
Category JI >21 habitat points 

Category III 
Category Ill 26-29 habitat points 
Category III 21-25 habitat points 
Category Ill >21 habitat points 

Category IV 

115 feet 
90 feet 
75 feet 

150 feet 
115 feet 
90 feet 
75 feet 

120 feet 
90 feet 
60 feet 
40 feet 

The following measures shall be incorporated into adjacent development: 

I Type of Potential Disturbance 
Lights 

Noise 

L. __ 
I Toxic runoff 

I 
I Stormwater runoff 

~in patterns or water 
I ~~:'f;" 
I Pets and human disturbance 

! Required Measures to Minimize Impacts 

~~~e;:l~~~
1

i~i;~~::
0

e:e:~:::~;se away from wetla;~--l 
If warranted, enhance existing buffer with native vegetation I 
plantings adjacent to noise source. I 

·1 For activities that generate relatively continuous, potentially 
, disruptive noise, such as certain heavy industry or mining, 

I 
establish an additional 10-foot heavily vegetated buffer strip .

1

. 

immediately adjacent to the outer wetland buffer. . 
· Route all new, untreated runoff away from wetla_n_d_w_h_i-le __ __, 

ensuring wetland is not dewatered. I 
Establish covenants limiting use of pesticides within 150 feet of 

, wetland. · 

I Apply integrated pest management. 

Retrofit stormwater detention and treatment for roads and 
. existing adjacent development. 

Prevent channelized flow from lawns that directly enters the 
buffer. 
Use Low Intensity Development techniques (per Eastern 
Washington Low Impact Development Guidance Manual, 
Washington Department of Ecology publication# 13-10-036, 
June 2013 and as may be hereafter amended, supplemented, or 

· replaced.)). 
---c---

Infiltrate or treat, detain, and disperse into buffer new runoff 
; from impervious surfaces and new lawns. 
I Use privacy fencing or-pl_a_n_t -d-en_s_e_v_e_g_e-ta-t-io_n_t_o_d_e_l_in_e_a-te __ _, 

I 
buffer edge and to discourage disturbance using vegetation 

. appropriate for the ecoregion. 

396



Place wetland and its buffer in a separate tract or protect with a \ 

i Maintain connections to offsite areas that are undisturbed. 

conservation easement. 

I Use best management practices to control dust. ~ ~u_s_t --c---

.1 Disruption of corridors or 
[ connect10ns 

I
I Restore corridors or connections to offsite habitats by 

replantmg . 
. ~~~~~~~~- -~~~~~~~~- -~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

2. Measurement of Wetland Buffers. All buffers shall be measured from the wetland 
boundary as surveyed in the field. The width of the wetland buffer shall be determined 
according to the wetland category and the proposed land use. The buffer for a wetland 
created, restored, or enhanced as compensation for wetland alterations shall be the same 
as the buffer required for the category of the created, restored, or enhanced wetland. 

3. Increased Wetland Buffer Widths. The city shall require increased buffer widths in 
accordance with the recommendations of a qualified professional biologist and the best 
available science on a case-by-case basis when a larger buffer is necessary to protect 
wetland functions and values based on site-specific characteristics. This determination 
shall be based on one or more of the following criteria: 

a. A larger buffer is needed to protect other critical areas; 

b. The buffer or adjacent uplands has a slope greater than fifteen percent or is 
susceptible to erosion and standard erosion-control measures will not prevent adverse 
impacts to the wetland; or 

c. The buffer area has minimal vegetative cover. In lieu of increasing the buffer width 
where existing buffer vegetation is inadequate to protect the wetlm1d functions and 
values, implementation of a buffer planting plan may substitute. Where a buffer 
planting plan is proposed, it shall include provisions for monitoring and maintenance to 
ensure success. 

d. At no time shall wetland buffers be increased to a width two times that of the 
standard required buffer. 

4. Reduction of Wetland Buffer Widths. 

a. The city may allow the standard wetland buffer width to be reduced in accordance 
with the report Md the best available science on a case-by-case basis when it is 
determined that a smaller area is adequate to protect the wetland functions and 
values based on site-specific characteristics. 

b. This determination shall be supported by documentation showing that a reduced 
buffer is adequate based on all of the following criteria: 

1. Requiring the standard buffer poses an extraordinary hardship on the 
landowner; 

11. The existing buffer area is well vegetated with native species and has less than 
ten percent slopes; and 

lll. No direct or indirect short-term or long-term adverse impacts to wetlands will 

397



result from the proposed activity. 

c. The city may require long-term monitoring of the buffer and wetland. Subsequent 
corrective actions may be required if adverse impacts to wetlands are discovered 
during the monitoring period. 

d. In no case shall the standard buffer width be reduced by more than fifty percent, or 
the buffer width be Jess than fifty feet, whichever is greater, unless the applicant 
demonstrates an acceptable reasonable use as described in Section 16.10.120. 

e. Isolated Category 3 and 4 wetlands Jess than 1,000 square feet may be exempt from 
the buffer provisions contained in this Chapter and the normal mitigation sequencing 
process. They may be displaced if impacts are fully mitigated. Such wetlands: 

1. Are not associated with riparian areas or buffers. 

11. Are not part of a wetland mosaic. 

111. Do not contain habitat identified as essential for local populations of priority 
species identified by the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

Section 5. That portion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Municipal Code Section 16.20.050 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.20.050 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

16.20.050 Performance standards-Mitigation requirements. 

A. Mitigation Shall Achieve Equivalent or Greater Biological Functions. Mitigation for 
alterations to wetlands shall achieve equivalent or greater biologic functions and shall be 
consistent with the Department of Ecology "Guidelines for Developing Freshwater 
Wetlands Mitigation Plans and Proposals," 1994, as revised. 

B. Mitigation Shall Result in No Net Loss. Wetland mitigation actions shall not result in a net 
loss of wetland area except when the following criteria are met: 

1. The Jost wetland area provides minimal functions and the mitigation action(s) results in a 
net gain in wetland functions as determined by a site-specific function assessment using 
Department of Ecology "Methods for Assessing Wetland Functions, Volume 2, 
Depressional Wetlands in the Columbia Basin of Eastern Washington, Parts 1 and 2," 
December 2000; or 

2. The lost wetland area provides minimal functions as determined by a site-specific 
function assessment and other protected or enhanced habitats provide greater benefits to the 
functioning of the watershed, such as riparian habitat protection and enhancement. 

C. Mitigation for Lost Functions and Values. Mitigation actions shall address functions 
affected by the alteration to achieve functional equivalency or improvement, and shall 
provide similar wetland functions as those lost except when: 

398



1. The lost wetland provides minimal functions as determined hy a site-specific function 
assessment and the proposed mitigation action(s) will provide equal or greater functions or 
will provide functions shown to be limiting within a watershed through a formal watershed 
assessment protocol; or 

2. Out-of-kind replacement will best meet formally identified regional goals, such as 
replacement of historically diminished wetland types. 

D. Preference of Mitigation Actions. Mitigation actions that require compensation by replacing, 
enhancing, or substitution shall occur in the following order of preference: 

1. Restoring wetlands on upland sites that were formerly wetlands. 

2. Creating wetlands on disturbed upland sites such as those with vegetative cover 
consisting primarily of exotic introduced species. 

3. Enhancing significantly degraded wetlands. 

4. Preserving high-quality wetlands that arc under imminent threat. 

E. Type and Location of Mitigation. Mitigation actions shall be conducted within the same 
subdrainage basin and on the site as the alteration except when the following apply: 

I. There are no reasonable on-site opportunities or on-site opportunities do not have a high 
likelihood of success due to development pressures, adjacent land uses, or on-site buffers or 
connectivity are inadequate; 

2. Off-site mitigation has a greater likelihood of providing equal or improved wetland 
functions than the impacted wetland; and 

3. Off-site locations shall be in the same subdrainage basin and the same water resource 
inventory area (WRIA) unless: 

a. The impact is located near the boundary of a WRIA; 

b. Established regional or watershed goals for water quality, flood or conveyance, 
habitat or other wetland functions have been established and strongly justify location of 
mitigation at another site; or 

c. Credits from a state-certified wetland mitigation bank are used as mitigation and 
the use of credits is consistent with the terms of the bank's certification. 

F. Mitigation Timing. Where feasible, mitigation projects shall be completed prior to activities 
that will disturb wetlands. In all other cases, mitigation shall be completed immediately 
following disturbance and prior to use or occupancy of the activity or development. 
Construction of mitigation projects shall be timed to reduce impacts to existing wildlife and 
flora. 

399



The city may authorize a one-time temporary delay, up to one hundred twenty days, in 
completing minor construction and landscaping when environmental conditions could 
produce a high probability of failure or significant construction difficulties. The delay shall 
not create or perpetuate hazardous conditions or environmental damage or degradation, and 
the delay shall not be injurious to the health, safety and general welfare of the public. The 
request for the temporary delay must include a written justification that documents the 
environmental constraints that preclude implementation of the mitigation plan. The 
justification must be verified and approved by the city, and include a financial guarantee in 
the form of a cash bond or similar mechanism 

G. Mitigation Ratios. 

1. Acreage Replacement Ratios. The following ratios shall apply to creation or restoration 
that is in-kind, on-site, the same category, timed prior to or concurrent with alteration, 
and has a high probability of success. These ratios do not apply to remedial actions 
resulting from unauthorized alterations; greater ratios shall apply in those cases. These 
ratios do not apply to the use of credits from a state-certified wetland mitigation bank. 
When credits from a certified bank are used, replacement ratios should be consistent 
with the requirements of the bank's certification. The first number specifies the acreage 
of replacement wetlands and the second specifies the acreage of wetlands altered. 

Wetland Mitigation Ratios 

Category and Type Creation or Rehabilitation Enhancement Preservation 
of Wetland Re-establishment 

Category I: i Not considered 6: 1 Case by case 10:1 
I Bog, Natural Heritage possible 

Site ' : 

, Category I: 6: 1 12: 1 24:1 24:1 

~ature Forested 

ategory I: 4:1 8: 1 16: l 20:1 
; Based on Functions 
i . ··-

I Category II i 3: 1 6: 1 12: 1 20:1 
.. ·-

Category III 2: 1 4: 1 8: 1 15: 1 

Category IV 1.5: \ 3: 1 6: 1 10: I 

Note: Impacts to buffers shall be mitigated at a 1: I ratio. Compensatory buffer mitigation shall 
replace those buffer functions lost from development. 

2. Increased Replacement Ratio. The city may increase the ratios under the following 
circumstances: 

a. Uncertainty exists as to the probable success of the proposed restoration or creation; 
or 

"""-

: 

I 

400



b. A significant period of time will elapse between impact and replication of wetland 
functions; or 

c. Proposed mitigation will result in a lower category wetland or reduced functions 
relative to the wetland being impacted; or 

d. The impact was an unauthorized impact. 

3. Decreased Replacement Ratio. The city may decrease these ratios under the following 
circumstances: 

a. Documentation by a qualified wetlands specialist demonstrates that the proposed 
mitigation actions have a very high likelihood of success; 

b. Documentation by a qualified wetlands specialist demonstrates that the proposed 
mitigation actions will provide functions and values that are significantly greater 
than the wetland being impacted; or 

c. The proposed mitigation actions are conducted in advance of the impact and have 
been shown to be successful. 

4. Minimum Replacement Ratio. In all cases, a minimum acreage replacement ratio of 
one-to-one shall be required. 

H. Wetland Mitigation Banks. 

I. Credits from a wetland mitigation bank may be approved for use as compensation for 
unavoidable impacts to wetlands when: 

a. The bank is certified under Chapter 173-700 WAC; 

b. The city determines that the wetland mitigation bank provides appropriate 
compensation for the authorized impacts; and 

c. The proposed use of credits is consistent with the terms and conditions of the 
bank's certification. 

2. Replacement ratios for projects using bank credits shall be consistent with replacement 
ratios specified in the bank's certification. 

3. Credits from a ce1iified wetland mitigation bank may be used to compensate for 
impacts located within the service area specified in the bank's certification. In some 
cases, bank service areas may include portions of more than one water resource 
inventory area (WRIA) for specific wetland functions. 

I. Wetlands Enhancement as Mitigation. 

1. Impacts to wetlands may be mitigated by enhancement of ex1stmg significantly 
degraded wetlands. Applicants proposing to enhance wetlands must produce a report 
that identifies how enhancement will increase the functions of the degraded wetland 
and how this increase will adequately mitigate for the loss of wetland area and function 
at the impact site. An enhancement proposal must also show whether existing wetland 
functions will be reduced by the enhancement actions. 

401



2. At a minimum, enhancement acreage shall be double the acreage required for creation 
or restoration under subsection G of this section. The ratios shall be greater than double 
the required acreage where the enhancement proposal would result in minimal gain in 
the performance of wetland functions and/or result in the reduction of other wetland 
functions currently being provided in the wetland . 

.J. Wetland Preservation as Mitigation. Impacts to wetlands may be mitigated by 
preservation of wetland areas when used in combination with other forms of mitigation such as 
creation, restoration, or enhancement at the preservation site or at a separate location. 
Preservation may also be used by itself, but more restrictions, as outlined below, will apply. 

1. Preservation in Combination with Other Forms of Compensation. Preservation as 
mitigation is acceptable when done in combination with restoration, creation, or 
enhancement; providing, that a minimum of one-to-one acreage replacement 1s 
provided by restoration or creation and the criteria below are met. 

a. The impact area is small and/or impacts are to a Category III or IV wetland; 

b. Preservation of a high-quality system occurs in the same water resource inventory 
area (WRIA) or watershed basin as the wetland impact; and 

c. Preservation sites include buffer areas adequate to protect the habitat and its 
functions from encroachment and degradation. 

2. Preservation as the Sole Means of Mitigation for Wetland Impacts. Preservation of at
risk, high-quality habitat may be considered as the sole means of mitigation for wetland 
impacts when all of the following criteria are met: 

a. Preservation is used as a form of mitigation only after the standard sequencing of 
mitigation (avoid, minimize, and then compensate) has been applied; 

b. Creation, restoration, and enhancement opportunities have also been considered, 
and preservation is the best mitigation option; 

c. The impact area is small and/or impacts are to a Category III or IV wetland; 

d. Preservation of a high-quality system occurs in the same water resource inventory 
area (WRIA) or a watershed where the wetland impact occurs; 

e. Preservation sites include buffer areas adeqnate to protect the habitat and its 
functions from encroachment and degradation; 

f. The preservation site is determined to be under imminent threat, specifically, sites 
with the potential to experience a high rate of undesirable ecological change due to 
on-site or off-site activities ("potential" includes permitted, planned, or perceived 
actions); and 

g. The area proposed for preservation is of high quality and critical for the health of 
the watershed or basin. Some of the following features may be indicative of high
quality sites: 

1. Category l or II wetland rating; 

11. Rare wetland type (for example, bogs, estuaries); 

402



111. Habitat for threatened or endangered species; 

1v. Wetland type that is rare in the area; 

v. Provides biological and/or hydrological connectivity; 

VI. High regional or watershed importance (for example, listed as priority site in 
watershed plan); and 

VIL Large size with high species diversity (plants and/or animals) and/or high 
abundance. 

3. Mitigation Ratios for Preservation as the Sole Means of Mitigation. Mitigation ratios 
for preservation as the sole means of mitigation shall range from seven-to-one to 
twenty-to-one, as determined by the city, depending on the quality of wetlands being 
mitigated and the quality of the wetlands being preserved. 

K. Mitigation Maintenance and Monitoring. Mitigation areas will be maintained and 
monitored for a minimum of five years after the mitigation has been completed. Annual 
maintenance and monitoring reports will be submitted to the city and shall include: 

1. Descriptive data for vegetation, soils, and hydrology; 

2. Itemized list of dead, dying, and replaced vegetation; 

3. Quantitative assessment of invasive species; 

4. Descriptive photographs; 

5. Statement of overall success of mitigation; 

6. Schedule of activities for the next year of maintenance and monitoring. 

The city may extend maintenance and monitoring for mitigation projects that fail to achieve 
performance standards outlined in the mitigation plan. An example of a performance failure is 
less than eighty percent survival of native vegetation or more than ten percent of the mitigation 
area cover with nonnative invasive species. 

Section 6. That portion of Section 3 of Ordinance Number 03-2417 that enacted Prosser 
Municipal Code Section 16.60.040 and Prosser Municipal Code Section 16.60.040 are both 
hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

16.6!Ul40 Performance standards-Specific habitats. 

A. Endangered, Threatened, and Sensitive Species. 

1. No development shall be allowed within a habitat conservation area or buffer with 
which state or federally endangered, threatened, or sensitive species have a primary 
association. 

2. Whenever activities are proposed adjacent to a habitat conservation area with which 

403



state or federally endangered, threatened, or sens1t1ve species have a primary 
association, such area shall be protected through the application of protection measures 
in accordance with a report prepared by a qualified professional and submitted to the 
city. Approval for alteration of land adjacent to the habitat conservation area or its 
buffer shall not occur prior to consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife 
and the appropriate federal agency. 

3. Bald eagle habitat shall be protected pursuant to the Washington State Bald Eagle 
Protection Rules (WAC 232-12-292). Whenever activities are proposed adjacent to a 
verified nest territory or communal roost, a habitat management plan shall be developed 
by a qualified professional. Activities are adjacent to bald eagle sites when they are 
within eight hundred feet, or within a quarter mile (two thousand six hundred forty feet) 
and in a shoreline foraging area. The city shall verify the location of eagle management 
areas for each proposed activity. Approval of the activity shall not occur prior to 
approval of the habitat management plan by the Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

B. Wetland Habitats. All proposed activities within or adjacent to habitat conservation areas 
containing wetlands shall, at a minimum, conform to the wetlm1d development performance 
standards set forth in Chapter 16.20, in addition to meeting the habitat conservation area 
standards in this chapter. 

C. Riparian Habitat Areas. Unless otherwise allowed in this title, all structures and activities 
shall be located outside of the riparian habitat area. 

1. Establishment of Ripm·ian Habitat Areas. Riparian habitat areas shall be established for 
habitats that include aquatic systems. 

2. Riparian Habitat Area Widths. Recommended riparian habitat area widths are shown in 
the table below. A riparian habitat area shall have the width recommended, unless a 
greater width is required pursuant to subsection (C)(3) of this Section, or a lesser width 
is allowed pursuant to subsection (C)(4) of this Section. Widths shall be measured 
outward, on the horizontal plane, from the ordinary high water mark or from the top of 
bank if the ordinary high water mark cannot be identified. Riparian areas should be 
sufficiently wide to achieve the full range of riparian and aquatic ecosystem functions, 
which include but are not limited to protection of in-stream fish habitat through control 
of temperature and sedimentation in streams; preservation of fish and wildlife habitat; 
and connection of riparian wildlife habitat to other habitats. 

Riparian Habitat Areas 

Stream Type Recommended RHA Widths1 

Types 1 and 2-Shorelines of statewide significance 200 feet 

(Yakima River) 

Where specific reach-based buffers are adopted in Title 16.04 Shoreline Management, the 

404



reach-based buffers may be employed in lieu of the above. 

Type 3 or other perennial or fish-bearing streams 75 feet 

Types 4 and 5 50 feet 

3. Increased Riparian Habitat Area Widths. The recommended riparian habitat area widths 
shall be increased in the following cases: 

a. When the city determines that the recommended width is insufficient to prevent 
habitat degradation and to protect the structure and functions of the habitat area; 

b. When the frequently flooded area exceeds the recommended riparian habitat area 
width, the riparian habitat area shall extend to the outer edge of the frequently 
flooded area; 

c. When the channel migration zone exceeds the recommended riparian habitat area 
width, the riparian habitat area shall extend to the outer edge of the channel 
migration zone; 

d. When the habitat area is in an area of high blowdown potential, the riparian habitat 
area shall be expanded an additional fifty feet on the windward side;2 or 

e. When the habitat area is within an erosion or landslide hazard area or buffer, the 
riparian habitat area shall be the recommended distance, or the erosion or landslide 
hazard area or buffer, whichever is greater. 

4. Riparian Habitat Area Width Averaging. The city may allow the recommended riparian 
habitat area width to be reduced in accordance with a report only if: 

a. The width reduction will not reduce stream or habitat functions, including those of 
nonfish habitat; 

b. The width reduction will not degrade the habitat; 

c. The proposal will provide additional habitat protection; 

d. The total area contained in the riparian habitat area of each stream on the 
development proposal site is not decreased; 

e. The recommended riparian habitat area width is not reduced by more than fifty 
percent in any one location; 

f. The recommended riparian habitat area width is not reduced to less than fifty feet; 

g. The width reduction will not be located within another critical area or associated 
buffer; 

h. The reduced riparian habitat area width is supported by best available science; 

L All undeveloped lands within total area will be left undeveloped in perpetuity by 
covenant, deed restriction, easement or other legally binding mechanism; 

J. The buffer averaging plan shall be conducted in consultation with a qualified 

405



biologist and the plan shall be submitted to the Washington Department of Fish 
and Wildlife for comment; 

k. The director shall use the recommendations of the qualified experts in making 
his/her decision on a plan that uses buffer averaging. 

5. Riparian Habitat Mitigation. Mitigation of adverse impacts to riparian habitat areas 
shall result in equivalent functions and values, on a per function basis, and be located in 
the same subdrainage basin as the habitat impacted. 

6. Alternative Mitigation for Riparian Habitat Areas. The requirements set forth in this 
section may be modified at the city's discretion if the applicant demonstrates that 
greater habitat functions, on a per function basis, can be obtained in the affected 
subdrainage basin as a result of alternative mitigation measures. 

D. Riparian Habitat Areas, Ponds, Lakes, and Waters of the State.3 The following specific 
activities may be permitted within riparian habitat areas, ponds, lakes, waters of the state, or 
associated buffers when the activities comply with the provisions set forth in applicable city 
regulations and subject to the following standards: 

1. Clearing and Grading. When clearing and grading are permitted as part of an authorized 
activity or as otherwise allowed in these standards, the following shall apply: 

a. Grading is allowed only when soil conditions are dry and the potential for erosion 
is low. 

b. Filling or modification of a wetland or wetland buffer is permitted only if it is 
conducted as part of an approved wetland alteration. 

c. The soil duff layer shall remain undisturbed to the maximum extent possible. 
Where feasible, any soil disturbed shall be redistributed to other areas of the 
pro j cct area. 

d. The moisture-holding capacity of the topsoil layer shall be maintained by 
minimizing soil compaction or reestablishing natural soil structure and infiltrative 
capacity on all areas of the project area not covered by impervious surfaces. 

e. Erosion and sediment control that meets or exceeds the standards set forth in the 
adopted storm water management regulations shall be provided. 

2. Shoreline Erosion Control Measures. New, replacement, or substantially improved 
shoreline erosion control measures may be permitted in accordance with a report that 
demonstrates the following: 

a. Natural shoreline processes will be maintained. The project will not result in 
increased beach erosion or alterations to, or loss of, shoreline substrate within one 
quarter mile of the project area. 

b. The shoreline erosion control measures will not degrade fish or wildlife habitat 
conservation areas or associated wetlands. 

c. Adequate mitigation measures ensure that there is no net loss of the functions or 
values of intertidal habitat or riparian habitat as a result of the proposed shoreline 

406



erosion control measures. 

3. Streambank Stabilization. Streambank stabilization to protect new structures from 
future channel migration is not permitted exeept when sueh stabilization is achieved 
through bioengineering or soft armoring techniques in accordance with the report. 

4. Launching Ramps-Public or Private. Launching ramps may be permitted in 
accordance with the report that has demonstrated the following: 

a. The project will not result in increased beach erosion or alterations to, or loss ot: 
shoreline substrate within one-quarter mile of the site; 

b. The ramp will not adversely impact critical fish or wildlife habitat areas or 
associated wetlands; 

c. Adequate mitigation measures ensure that there is no net loss of the functions or 
values of riparian habitat as a result of the ramp. 

5. Docks. Repair and maintenance of an existing dock or pier may be permitted 111 

accordance with the report subject to the following: 

a. There is no increase in the use of materials creating shade for predator species; 

b. There is no expansion in overwater coverage; 

c. There is no increase in the size and number of pilings; and 

d. There is no use of toxic materials (such as creosote) that come in contact with the 
water. 

6. Roads, Trails, Bridges, and Rights-of-Way. Construction of trails, roadways, and minor 
road bridging, less than or equal to thirty feet wide, may be permitted in accordance 
with the report subject to the following standards: 

a. There is no other feasible alternative route with less impact on the environment; 

b. The crossing minimizes interruption of downstream movement of wood and 
gravel; 

c. Mitigation for impacts is provided pursuant to a mitigation plan of the report; 

d. Road bridges are designed according to the Department of Fish and Wildlife "Fish 
Passage Design at Road Culverts," March 1999, and the National Marine Fisheries 
Service "Guidelines for Salmonid Passage at Stream Crossings," 2000; and 

e. Trails and associated viewing platfonns shall not be made of continuous 
impervious materials. 

7. Utility Facilities. New utility lines and facilities may be permitted to cross watercourses 
in accordance with the report if they comply with the following standards: 

a. Fish and wildlife habitat areas shall be avoided to the maximum extent possible; 

b. Installation shall be accomplished by boring beneath the scour depth and hyporheic 
zone of the water body and channel migration zone, where feasible; 

c. The utilities shall cross at an angle greater than sixty degrees to the centerline of 
the channel in streams or perpendicular to the cham1el centerline whenever boring 

407



under the channel is not feasible; 

d. Crossings shall be contained within the footprint of an existing road or utility 
crossing where possible; 

e. The utility route shall avoid paralleling the stream or following a down-valley 
course near the channel; and 

f. The utility installation shall not mcrease or decrease the natural rate of shore 
migration or channel migration. 

8. Public Flood Protection Measures. New public flood protection measures and 
expansion of existing ones may be permitted, subject to the city's review of a report 
and the approval of a federal biological assessment by the federal agency responsible 
for reviewing actions related to a federally listed species. 

9. In-Stream Structures. In-stream structures, such as, but not limited to, high flow 
bypasses, sediment ponds, in-stream ponds, retention and detention facilities, tide gates, 
dams, and weirs shall be allowed only as part of an approved watershed basin 
restoration project approved by the city and upon acquisition of any required state or 
federal permits. The structure shall be designed to avoid modifying flows and water 
quality in ways that may adversely affect habitat conservation areas. 

10. Storm Water Conveyance Facilities. Conveyance structures may be permitted in 
accordance with the report subject to the following standards: 

a. No other feasible alternatives with less impact exist; 

b. Mitigation for impacts is provided; 

c. Stonn water conveyance facilities shall incorporate fish habitat features; and 

d. Vegetation shall be maintained and, if necessary, added adjacent to all open 
channels and ponds in order to retard erosion, filter out sediments, and shade the 
water. 

11. On-Site Sewage Systems and Wells. 

a. New on-site sewage systems and individual wells may be permitted in accordance 
with the report only if accessory to an approved residential structure for which it is 
not feasible to connect to a public sanitary sewer system. 

b. · Repairs to failing on-site sewage systems associated with an existing structure 
shall be accomplished by utilizing one of the following methods that result in the 
least impact: 

1. Connection to an available public sanitary sewer system; 

11. Replacement with a new on-site sewage system located in a portion of the site 
that has already been disturbed by development and is located landward as far 
as possible, provided the proposed sewage system is in compliance with the 
Benton County health department; or 

111. Repair to the existing on-site septic system. 

408



E. Anadromous Fish. 

1. All activities, uses, and alterations proposed to be located in water bodies used by 
anadromous fish or in areas that affect such water bodies shall give special 
consideration to the preservation and enhancement of anadromous fish habitat, 
including, but not limited to, adhering to the following standards: 

a. Activities shall be timed to occur only during the allowable work window as 
designated by the Department of Fish and Wildlife for the applicable species; 

b. An alternative alignment or location for the activity is not feasible; 

c. The activity is designed so that it will not degrade the functions or values of the 
fish habitat or other critical areas; and 

d. Any impacts to the functions or values of the habitat conservation area are 
mitigated in accordance with an approved critical area report. 

2. Structures that prevent the migration of salmon ids shall not be allowed in the portion of 
water bodies used by anadromous fish. Fish bypass facilities shall be provided that 
allow the upstream migration of adult fish and shall prevent fry and juveniles migrating 
downstream from being trapped or harmed. 

3. Fills may only intrude into water bodies used by anadromous fish when the applicant 
demonstrates that the fill is for a water-dependent use that is in the public interest and 
when the fill is consistent with other applicable regulations adopted by the city, 
including but not limited to permitting process construction standards, building code, 
shorelines management program, and environmental review (SEP A) procedures. 

1 Recommended npanan habitat widths are adapted from Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, 1997: "Management Recommendations for Washington's Priority Habitats: 
Riparian." 

2 See "Management Recommendations for Washington's Priority Habitats: Riparian" 
from the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

3The performance standards for riparian habitat areas, ponds, lakes, waters of the state, 
and marine habitat are partially derived from the Pierce County "Draft Critical Areas 
Development Regulations," March 2002. 

Section 7. The City Council hereby adopts the findings made by the Planning 
Commission on May 15, 2014, as the findings of the City Council in support of this ordinance. 

Section 8. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared 
to be severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not as a result of said section, sentence, clause, or phrase be 
held unconstitutional or invalid. 

409



Section 9. Five days after publication of an approved summary of this ordinance 
consisting of its title. and after the date approved by the Washington State Department of 
Ecology pursuant to RCW 36.70.480(2) and RCW 90.58.090(1), whichever is later, this 
ordinance shall be in full force and effect. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this __ day of 

-------' 2013. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

Approved as to form: 

CITY ATTORNEY, HOWARD SAXTON 

Date of Publication: 

410



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the 
title, provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PROSSER MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 16.10.102, 
16.10.130, 16.20.010, 16.20.040, 16.20.050, AND 16.60.040 OF THE CITIES CRITICAL 
AREAS ORDINANCE TO MAKE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SHORELINE 
MASTER PROGRAM. THE ORDINANCE ALSO SETS FORTH THE EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF THE ORDINANCE AND PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE 
FROM ONE ANOTHER AND PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY. 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this __ day of ____ _ • 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

411



I CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON I 

~a Title: Public-Hearin~?R~~eD~et~} ~=: ______ __J 
I Citizen Comment on Proposed Ordinance May 27, 2014 
114- _Modifying the City of Prosser . Regular Meeting 
·ncomprehensive Plan and Land Use Map. I . _ ___j 

Department: .

1

. Director: I Contact Person: I Phone Number: I 
Planning Steve Zetz Steve Zetz (509) 786-8212 [ 

~of Proposal: J----------+1~Account Number: I 

· I i 
~~aunt Budgeted: I Name and Fund# [ 

Reviewed by Finance Department: 
'N/A I 
I Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 
, 

1. Public Hearing Notice 
2. Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes Summary Report 
3. Department of Commerce Letter January 9, 2014 
4. Department of Ecology Letter January 28, 2014 
5. Application 
6. Notice of Application 
7. SEPA Checklist 
8. Proposed Ordinance 14-__ 
9. Proposed Land Use Map 
10. Comprehensive Plan 

~ Sun:imarv Statement: 
i 
I Please see attached summary report. The Comprehensive Plan update also includes an 

amendment to the Section titled "Shoreline Management." That section has been 
amended to include the following new goals: 

1. Goal SH 1 Shoreline Use Element. Ensure appropriate conservation and ' 
development of the City of Presser's shorelines by allowing those uses 
which are water-dependent, as well as other development which provides 
an opportunity for a substantial number of people to enjoy the shorelines. 
This should be done in a manner which will achieve an orderly balance of I 
shoreline uses that improves the quality of the environment. 

2. Goal SH 2 Shoreline Economic Development Element. Give priority 
to those industrial, commercial, and recreational developments that are 
particularly dependent on their location on the City of Presser's shoreline. I 
Encourage development that will provide the public with an opportunity to , 
enjoy the shorelines. No net loss of ecological function is envisioned in I 

~-----the implementation of this goal. . . j 
412



3. Goal SH 3 Shoreline Economic Development Element. Develop safe, 
convenient, and diversified shoreline circulation systems to assure 
efficient movement of goods and people with minimum disruptions to the 
shoreline environment and minimum conflict between the different users. 

4. Goal SH 4 Restoration and Conservation Element. Assure 
protection, preservation, and restoration of City of Prosser's, fragile and I 
scenic nonrenewable resources, while encouraging the best management .

1 
practices to assure no net loss of shoreline ecological functions. 

5. Goal SH 5 Public Access Element. Ensure safe, convenient, and i 
diversified access for the public to the publicly-owned shorelines of the j 

City of Prosser and assure that the intrusions created by public access 1, 

will recognize the rights of private property owners, and will not adversely i 

affect fragile natural areas. J 

6. Goal SH 6 Goal: Recreational Element. Provide additional [ 
opportunities for diverse forms of public recreation and improvement of 

1 

present facilities. : 
7. Goal SH 7 Historical/Cultural Element. Protect, preserve, and J 

encourage restoration of those sites and areas on the shoreline which ! 
have significant historical, cultural, educational, or scientific value. I' 

8. Goal SH 8 Flood Hazard Element. To minimize flood hazards to , 
human life and to property while enhancing the ecological processes of I 
the shoreline. 

New policies are also adopted to implement the goals. The policies may be reviewed in I 
the Comprehensive Plan starting on page 54. These goals and pol"1cies must be adopted '1• 

in accordance with the mandate contained in WAC 173-26-176 and the RCW's 
referenced therein. . 

~onsistent with or Comparison to: -~ 
j EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL I 
, 
i Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 
I 

[ Move to continue Public Hearing to June 24, 2014, Prosser City Council Meeting at 7:00 
I p.m. 

I 
I Review SMP and SMP Ordinances. 

\ Approved by Mayor: ~ ~eviewed by Department I Reviewed b-y-C-it_y_A_tt_o_r_n_e_y_: ~------------
! Director: • --~~-<'.: ~J 
I ~i~ 
[ Date: __ ~~-::, I Date: ~jc{{J}}Ct _ 

7 /-

f7~UJ-I 
1 Date: <J--? 3-/ ~ _J 

413



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 
NOTICE O:F PUBLIC HEARING 

Type of Application: Shorelines Master Program Update 2013/2014 
Name of Applicant: City of Prosser 
Location of Project: Prosser City Limits and Urban Growth Area (UCJA) 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Prosser, 
Washington, that the Prosser City Council will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday May 
27, 2014, 7:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, in the City Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 601 fh Street, Prosser, Washington, Prosser for the purpose of receiving public 
comment on the proposed Shorelines Master Program (SMP) update. The City Hall 
Council Chambers is wheelchair accessible. American with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
accommodations are available upon request to the City Clerk at least 2 days in advance 
by calling (509)-786-2332. 

All available information, including but not limited to, the complete application, and staff 
reports for the proposed SMP changes may be viewed at the City Clerk's Office, located 
at Prosser City Hall, 601 7th St, Prosser, WA 99350, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding official holidays and lunch hours between 
11 :00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m., or may be viewed at www.cityofprosser.com. 

Radie! Shaw, City Clerk 
City of Prosser 

Published: Prosser Record Bulletin 
Publish Date: May 14, 2014 

414



2013 COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN PROPOSED 
CHANGES

5/16/2014 Analysis of proposed changes [Council Version] 

This document cites the 2008 work reports from Dugan Planning 

Services.  

2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes

415



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 1 

Change from Industrial to Low Medium Residential I      LMR 

Located north of I-82 and west of OIE and south of Johnson approximately 59 acres of land currently 
designated as Industrial (I). There are 17 parcels. The land to the south is currently designated Commercial 
(C).   

Existing uses within the proposed change area are primarily residential single family homes. 

Proposed Change Area 

Residential Uses 

Agricultural Uses 

Future Residential 

UGB 

Number of parcels: 17 

Acres: 58.86 

OIE 

I-82 

Page 1 

416



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 2 

Change from Public Lands to Industrial PL        I

Located north and east of the Grant Street Bridge and is commonly known as the old spray-field. It is 
currently undeveloped.  It is currently designated and zoned as Public Facility (PF) and the proposed change it 
to designate a portion of it as Industrial (I). Since the property is located along I-82, and is often impacted by 
odors from the sewer treatment plant and fish hatchery to the south it is not a good location for either 
commercial or residential designations.  

Spray-field Boundary  

Proposed change area 

Number of parcels: 1 

Acres: 22.29 

Page 2 

417



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 3 

Change from Industrial to Commercial I       C

Located along Gap road north of the I-82 Exit 80. The area is currently large parcel residential and 
agricultural uses. The property to the south between the change area and I-82 is designated Commercial (C).  

Proposed Change Area 

Residential Uses 

Agricultural Uses 

UGB 

Number of parcels: 6 

Acres: 80 

Page 3 

418



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 4 

Change from Steep Slope Residential to Public Lands  SSR      PL

Located east and south of Concord Way the parcel is owned by the City of Prosser. It is part of the water 
system that delivers water to the Painted Hills Subdivision.   

Proposed Change Area 

Residential Uses 

Agricultural Uses 

UGB 

Number of parcels: 1 

Acres: 1 

Page 4 

419



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 5 

Change from High Density Residential to Commercial HDR    C

Located at the corner of Wine Country Road and Old Inland Empire Hwy the site is currently occupied by a 
strip mall and a car wash. Staff believes that this area was colored orange (HDR) in error during a previous 
change. 

Proposed Change Area 

High densityResidential Uses 

UGB 

Number of parcels: 1 

Acres: 2.58 

Page 5 

420



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 6 

Change from Low/Medium residential to Public Lands       LMR      PL

This is currently the site of the new standpipe water tower, located along County Route 12. 

Number of Parcels:    1 

Acres: 1.4 

Page 6 

421



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

I N D U S T R I A L  A N A L Y S I S

In 2008 Dugan Planning Services (DPS) conducted a comprehensive analysis of land uses needs and trends. 
The following are references to the DPS Final Report # 2 Land Use Capacity and Absorption dated 
November 10, 2008 and compared to changes in population estimates based on the 2010 census and Office 
of Financial Management population reports.  

Map 3: Industrial Designations 

City of Prosser, Washington

Use of Industrial Plan Designations
Includes Agri-Business

May, 2008

Developed Current Use
Commercial

Industrial
Multiple Family Residen

Residential
Public

Open Current Uses
Agriculture

Large Lot Residential
Vacant

City Limits
Urban Growth Area

River

N

S

0 1 mi

City Percent UGA Percent Total Percent
Developed

Commercial 16.34              5% 17.00              5% 33.34            5%
Industrial 146.13            46% - 0% 146.13          22%
Public 10.69              3% - 0% 10.69            2%
Residential 0.97 0% 4.40 1% 5.36              1%
Total 174.13            54% 21.40              6% 195.52          29%

Undeveloped
Large Lot Residential 32.60              10% 98.86              28% 131.46          20%
Agriculture - 0% 154.14            44% 154.14          23%
Vacant 114.00            36% 78.52              22% 192.52          29%
Total 146.60            46% 331.52            94% 478.11          71%

TOTAL Non-Airport 320.73            100% 352.91            100% 673.64          100%
Airport 118.17            0.60 118.77          

TOTAL WITH AIRPORT 438.89            353.51            792.41          
Includes Agri-Business

Industrial Plan Designation by Existing Use

Page 7 

422



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

The capacity analysis from DPS shows the amount of land needed for industrial designation. It is established 
based on the availability of undeveloped land within the city as compared to the Urban Growth Area (UGA). 
Page 15 of the report identifies a deficiency when comparing the undeveloped Industrial need to the 
availability in the UGA. 

A total of 971 acres is needed to accommodate all of the uses identified, but only 617 acres of unconstrained 
and undeveloped area is available within the city—leaving a deficit of 354 acres that would need to be 
accommodated in the UGA.” 

As noted in the report many of the lots are classified as large lots within the UGA. Because of the limited 
number of owners the decision to develop or not develop will have a greater impact to long term 
planning and City growth. The proposed change does not significantly alter the Industrial Inventory. 
Change # 3 changes approximately 23 acres from Public Facility (PF) to Industrial (I). Change 4 removes 
80 acres of Industrial (I) and replaces it with Commercial (C). The proposal removes a total of 220 acres 
of Industrial and relocates 102 Acres for a net loss of 116.37 acres. A noticeable trend has occurred in 
the industrial development of Prosser is existing and developed industrial lands are expanding and 
partnering with other industrial uses rather than developing new lands and paying for the additional 
expenses of water and sewer line instillation. Staff believes that this trend will continue and that this 

City of Prosser, Washington

Development Potential Of City And Urban Growth Area

-

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Comprehensive Plan Designation

A
cr

es

Developed Vacant or Underdeveloped Developable Large Lot

Developable Large Lot  99.2  11.6  165.0  23.6  337.9  641.0  -    255.0 
Vacant or Underdeveloped  23.8  6.8  143.6  28.6  140.2  501.7  5.5  175.7 
Developed  34.5  6.0  118.7  61.4  314.3  403.1  15.6  192.8 

Agri 
Business Agri Tourist Commercial High Density 

Residential Industrial Low Medium 
Residential Open Space Public

Page 8 

423



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

maximizes land use efficiency while reducing infrastructure costs and impacts associated with new 
development.  

R E S I D E N T I A L  A N A L Y S I S

Map 1: Planned Residential Areas 

Comparing the existing uses in the areas for changes 1&2, the area designated for change 2 has 
developed into smaller parcels for residential uses compared to the change 1 area which has largely 
remained unchanged. The residential density increase in change area 2 also includes a 4 lot subdivision 
which will be built as single family homes on parcels smaller than 2 acres in size.  

City of Prosser, Washington

Use of Residential Plan Designations

May, 2008

Developed Current Use
Commercial

Industrial
Multiple Family Residen

Residential
Public

Open Current Uses
Agriculture

Large Lot Residential
Vacant

City Limits
Urban Growth Area

River

N

S

0 1 mi

City Percent UGA Percent Total Percent
Developed

Commercial 3.01 0% 8.88        1% 11.89         1%
Industrial - 0% 2.07        0% 2.07           0%
Public 31.46 5% 0.76        0% 32.21         2%
Residential 391.83            58% 11.72      1% 403.55       25%
Total 426.30            63% 23.42      3% 449.72       28%

Undeveloped
Large Lot Residential 73.08 11% 448.39    49% 521.47       33%
Agriculture 52.04 8% 418.60    46% 470.64       30%
Vacant 125.40            19% 27.90      3% 153.31       10%
Total 250.52            37% 894.90    97% 1,145.42    72%

TOTAL 676.82            100% 918.31    100% 1,595.14    100%

Residential Uses

Page 9 

424



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

As of November 2013 the Planning Commission has opted not to include change1 in its proposal 
based on objections from property owners.  

C O M M E R C I A L  A N A L Y S I S  

Map 4: Planned Residential Areas 

The proximity to the I-82 exit 80 makes this location ideal for commercial uses. Since commercial uses 
generally generate a larger volume of traffic than residential or industrial uses the close proximity to I-

City of Prosser, Washington

Use of Commercial Plan Designations
Includes Agri-Tourism

May, 2008

Developed Current Use
Commercial

Industrial
Multiple Family Residen

Residential
Public

Open Current Uses
Agriculture

Large Lot Residential
Vacant

City Limits
Urban Growth Area

River

N

S

0 1 mi

City Percent UGA Percent Total Percent
Developed

Commercial 77.17 34% 6.14 3% 83.30            19%
Industrial 1.22 1% - 0% 1.22 0%
Public 15.98 7% - 0% 15.98            4%
Residential 16.48 7% 1.72 1% 18.20            4%
Total 110.85            48% 7.86 4% 118.71          28%

Undeveloped
Large Lot Residential 26.69 12% 115.30            58% 142.00          33%
Agriculture 20.54 9% 61.73 31% 82.27            19%
Vacant 70.58 31% 13.73 7% 84.31            20%
Total 117.81            52% 190.77            96% 308.58          72%

TOTAL 228.66            100% 198.62            100% 427.28          100%
Includes Agri-Tourism

Commercial Plan Designation by Existing Use

Page 10 

425



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

82 should reduce impacts on City roads from travelers and tourists. The addition of commercial 
designations is approximately 80 acres.  

P U B L I C  C O M M E N T S  /  H E A R I N G S

Notice was mailed to each affected property owner. 

There has been strong interest from residents in change area 1 & 2. The residents of change area 1 have 
expressed concern that the City’s land use designation will result in a rezone of their property to 
Industrial by Benton County. The concern is that such a zone would prohibit the property owners ability to 
get insurance or loans. According to the State Farm Kennewick Office the ability to get insurance is not 
hampered by zoning. American Family Insurance in Kennewick stated that if the home was not able to be 
rebuilt upon its loss then they would not be able to insure the property.  

Benton County Code allows for existing residential uses in Industrial zones to be rebuilt, or expanded. The 
Industrial zone would prohibit new residential development on vacant parcels.  

Property owners in change area 2 have expressed an interest in having their designation changed from 
Industrial to Residential.  

Change 1. The initial application included a different change 1. The origional change was for 80 acres to 
change from LMR to Inductrial. Residents were noticed of the proposed change. The residents filed several 
letters and testified in opposition to the proposed change. The City withdrew the proposed change after the 
Planning Commission indicated it was not in favor of the change as well.  

Page 11 

426



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Current Land Use Designations 

0
200
400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

799.6

89.4 105.7

426.3

92.6

1504.4

552
515.2

20.2

435.6

83 86.4
227.8

73.3

568.4
466.2

438.5

20.2

364.1

6.4 19.3
198.5

19.2

935.9

85.8 76.6 0

Total Acres

City Limits

UGA

2011 Changes 

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

Change 1 Change 2 Change 3 Change 4
Total 

Change

-8.65

-38.06

0
8.65

0

80

-11.6

0 0

-19.65

Industrial

Commercial

Residential (RLRM)

High Density

Proposed Changes 2013 

Page 12 

427



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

-120
-100
-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60

80

100

Change 2 Change 3 Change 4 Change 5 Change 7 Total 
Change -58.86

22.29

-80

-116.57

80

2.58

82.58
58.56

-1

57.56

-22.29

1

-21.29

Industrial

Commercial

Residential 
(RLRM)

Proposed 2013 Land Use Designation Final (Acres)

Current (2011) Land Use Map 

Page 13 

428



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Proposed 2013 Land Use Map 

Page 14 

429



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Change 1 Change 2 Change 3 

Change 4 Change 5 

Change 6 

Page 15 

430



2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 

Summary 

Changes to the Land Use Designation Map are identified below 

Change Current Proposed 

1 I LMR 

2 PF I 

3 I C 

4 SSR PL 

7 HDR C 

6 LMR PL 

Page 16 

431



January 9, 2014 

Stephen Zetz 
City Planner 
City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, Washington 99350 

Dear Mr. Zetz: 

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the following materials as 
required under RCW 36.70A.106. Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural 
requirement. 

City of Prosser - Proposed 2013/2014 comprehensive plan and land use map update. These materials 
were received on January 09, 2014 and processed with the Material ID# 19920. 

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies. 

If this submitted material is an adopted amendment, then please keep this letter as documentation that you 
have met the procedural requirement under RCW 36.70A.106. 

If you have submitted this material as a draft amendment, then final adoption may occur no earlier than sixty 
days following the date of receipt by Commerce. Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment 
to Commerce within ten days of adoption. 

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at 
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Dave Andersen (509) 434-4491 or Paul Johnson (360) 725-3048. 

Sincerely, 

Review Team 

Growth Management Services 

432



STATE m Wl\SHINGTON 

IEPARTMIENT Of IECOlcOGY 
I'S MJ Ya!ldn?ie Ave, Sic 200@ Yakima~ lfi/A 98/)()2-3452 0 (SfJ'9) 575-2490 

January 28, 2014 

Steve Zetz 
City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Re: 2013-2014 Comp Plan Updates 

Dear Mr. Zetz: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment during the optional determination of 
nonsignificance process for the Comprehensive Plan Updates. We have reviewed the 
documents and have the following comments. 

SHORELANDS/ENVIRONMENTAL ASSISTANCE 

Ecology appreciates the clarity of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan Proposed Changes 
report by Dugan Planning Services with respect to exactly what changes are being 
proposed in this SEP A action. 

With respect to the proposed change number 3, we do not disagree with the zone change. 
However, we want to note that there appears to be an area adjacent to the river which 
could have wetland characteristics in the area of the proposed zone change. Any 
development on the site would need to be in compliance with local, state and federal law 
if the area is wetland and would be disturbed by development. Any wetland areas within 
200 feet of the Yakima River's Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) or wetlands in the 
floodplain beyond 200 feet from the OHWM that are in hydro logic continuity with the 
River system via surface or groundwater connection, would be within shoreline 
jurisdiction. 

With respect to the proposed change number 4, we do not disagree with the zone change. 
However, we want to note that there appears to be (or has been) a wetland pond and a 
stream or drainage ditch flowing out if it to the south on one of the properties associated 
with the zone change proposal. Development on site will need to be in compliance with 
local, state and federal law if the area is a wetland and would be disturbed by 
development. Information about the water source of the wetland and depth to regional 

® 433



Mr. Zetz 
January 28, 2014 
Page 2 

groundwater tables should be provided in SEP A review packages of any future 
development proposals in this area. Any wetland drainage activities on site in 
preparation for a zone change and/or future development should be described and 
mitigated as appropriate. 

If you have any questions or would like to respond to these Shorelands/Environmental 
Assistance comments, please contact Catherine Reed at (509) 575-2616. 

Sincerely, 

Gwen Clear 
Environmental Review Coordinator 
Central Regional Office 
(509) 575-2012 

2585 

434



LAND USE ZONING & PERMIT APPLICATION 
CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 

LUA-1 

' l f . '1 

APPLICANT'S NAME _ __::(~-'-'-' -'"-}_;-·;,:./_.,.cl_···,:...·+_·· _ _,_Y_· :...' .;;;.'·...;._),::···~"'("''-''-~------------------

PARCEL INFORMATION (Include all parcel(s) infomiation. Attach additional sheets, if necessary.) 

Project Address: C ;_)_ (/de) e. /A · iH.),., U6· A - vrl~a-10 ?/, 
(Leave blank i not assigned) 

Parcel Number (Property Tax Account Number)~: ---------------------

Legal Description_,_:-------------------------------

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION 

Na1ne: 
----------------------------------~ 

Address_,_: __________ City: _________ State: ___ Zip~: _____ _ 

Phone: Cell Phone: -------------- ~-----------------

Email: _____________ ~-----'(-"'e1"'na,,,i,_I w,_,_1"'.ll"'n"'o,_t b"'e'--'u"'se"'d'--'f<"'o,_r t"'ra"'n,,,s1.,,n"'itt"'a,_,l o,,,f_,,o"'ffi,,1c"'ia,,_l -"fiJ"'1d"'ine;g"'"s) 

OWNERS AUTHORIZED AGENT:_----")j_,__,.t:7f'_l=-e.-"'~~2.&""-"'"-'-l-z..=---------------
Address: 601 Z-fi, sf City,_: --1(c.L..>'o"'--;'-=_,_, "-"-'-,.-___ State: '-I/./) Zip: '79..3, S-V 

Phone: (Fo'l) 2 6 b ~ 2 J -? "2 Cell Phone: 
~-------------~ 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
D Site Review 

0 Annexation 
D Change of Zone 
D Accessory Dwelling Unit 

D Overlay Zone 
D Right-of-Way Use Permit 

;gfOther Cc-~17 fl<'<~ 

0 Conditional Use (requires Conditional Use form LUA-SI) 
D Variance (requires Variance request form LUA-S2) 
D Similar Use 

D Encroachment 
D Adult Family Home 

D Continuation and/or Minor Alteration of Non-Conforming Use 

Ji'C'EPA 

PROJECT D ESCRIPTI 0 N ---\,(,,_.twa""-"r!i'l-'---f~_,-lo-"v'--_,4'-'-'-"'---1-,&-'-'re=,-_,_>$""·""'-e.-"-~-_,,f""""'"°'~""d«--_,U."" • ..>'.'-,.e.__Lt':...o_.,,,,,,"""'-o.L._ __ _ 
J I 

PMC-18 

City of Prosser 
601 7th Street 

Prosser WA 99350 · 
(509) 786-2332 Revised 12-29-07 

435



PLEASto ATTACH THE REQUIRED VICINI. i MAP 

ESTIMATED PROJECT VALUATION:$ ____________ _ 

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

Company Name: _________________ Email.~: _____________ _ 

Contact Person: ______________ Contact Ph<o111~;_ ____________ _ 

Address: ________________ City: ______ State: ____ .Zip~: __ _ 

Contractor's Registration No.: ______________ Expiration Date~: ______ _ 

!, the undersigned, do hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information on this application and 
other submitted information is true and correct. In addition, I understand that acceptance of this application and 
fees does not constitute submittal of a valid application until so informed by the City. I have attached, enclosed, 
or submitted the applicable fees for this application. 

¢.')'!/ 20 l? 
Date Owner Signature Date 

If the property owner is other than an individual such as a corporation, partnership or agency, 
please provide proof of signatory authorization. 

SITE REVIEW 
Apnlication must include the following. 
1. Critical Areas Worksheet 

2. Proof of Legal Lot 

3. Proof of ownership or aulhority 

4. 25 year Storn1 Water Calculations stainped by an engineer 

5. Site Plan Dra\ving which shows .. 

D All existing and proposed lot lines. 
D The location of all existing structures to re1nain and the location 

of all proposed structures. 
D The location of all utilities proposed to be used. 
D The proposed nun1ber and location of water tneters. 
D The location of all solid \vaste receptacle areas. 
D The 111ethod of handling stornJ water re1noval. 
D All easements and right-of-vvays. 
D All off-street parking and loading areas. 
D All driveway locations. 
D All landscaping, outdoor lighting and fencing .. 
D A north arrow. 
0 Scale of drawing 

CITY USE ONLY 

Deposits are required al the time an application is 
submitted. You will still get a monthly bill for 
actual costs incurred. Your deposit will not be 
refunded until the project has closed. 

SITE REVIEW 
VARIANCE 
SITE REVIEW 
SEPA 
ANNEXATION 
ZONE CHANGE 
CONDITIONAL USE 

$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 
$1000.00 Deposit 
$500.00 Deposit 

RECIEVED BY_ ·~-----~· ________________ DATE ___ _ 

DATE --------------APPROVED BY _______ _ 

RETURNED BY __________ _ DATE _____ _ 

REASON FOR APPUCA TJON RETURN ___________________ _ 

PMC-18 Revised 12-29-07 
436



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHING TON 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION AND 

OPTIONAL DETERMINATION OF NONSIGNIFICANCE 
2013/2014 Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map Update 

Notice of Application and Optional Determination of Non-significance posted January 15, 
2014 

Type of Application: Comprehensive Plan Update and Land Use Map Update 
Date of Application: August 30, 2013 
Name of Applicant: City of Prosser 
Location of Project: City wide including Urban Growth Area (UGA) 

Description of proposed project: Comprehensive Plan Update. There are 5 changes 
identified and proposed for adoption including the land use designation map. 

Other permits: The following additional permits are associated with this application: NA 
The following studies have been required pursuant to RCW 36. 708.070: SEPA Checklist 

Preliminary determination of consistency: The City has determined that this application is 
consistent with the City's Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan. 

Environmental Review: The City is using the optional process contained in Washington 
Administrative Code (WAC) Section 197-11-355 to make its threshold detennination. The City 
expects to issue a determination of nonsignificance for this project. This may be your only 
opportunity to comment on the environmental impacts of the proposed project. A copy of the 
subsequent threshold dete1111ination for the project may be obtained upon request. The lead 
agency, the City of Prosser, will not act on this proposal for 14 days from the published date 
below. 

City of Prosser Contact: Prosser City Clerk. 

Comments: The public is invited to comment on the application and environmental review. The 
public comment period shall be 15-clays and will begin January 15, 2014. All public comments 
received on the Notice of Application must be received by the City of Prosser by 5:00 pm, 
Jannary 31, 2014. Comments may be mailed or personally delivered to the; 

Prosser City Clerk, Prosser City Hall, 
60 I 7'" Street , 

Prosser, Washington, 99350 

Comments may also be sent by facsimile to (509) 786-3717. Comments should be in writing and 
be as specific as possible. If you have questions about the process you may call City Hall at (509) 
786-2332, however, comments on the proposal must be submitted in writing. 

The person(s) receiving this notice may request a copy of the final decision in this matter. 

The final decisions may be appealed in accordance with the Land Use Petition Act (RCW 
36.70C). 

All available infonnation, including but not limited to the complete application and 
environmental documents, for the proposed project may be viewed at the City Clerk's 
Office, located at Prosser City Hall 601 7'11 St. Prosser, WA 99350, between the hours of 

437



ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

Purpose of checklist: 

The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), chapter 43.21 C RCW, requires all governmental agencies to 
consider the environmental impacts of a proposal before making decisions. An environmental impact 
statement (EIS) must be prepared for all proposals with probable significant adverse impacts on the quality of 
the environment. The purpose of this checklist is to provide information to help you and the agency identify 
impacts from your proposal (and to reduce or avoid impacts from the proposal, if it can be done) and to help 
the agency decide whether an EIS is required. 

Instructions for applicants: 

This environmental checklist asks you to describe some basic information about your proposal. 
Governmental agencies use this checklist to determine whether the environmental impacts of your proposal 
are significant, requiring preparation of an EIS. Answer the questions briefly, with the most precise 
information known, or give the best description you can. 

You must answer each question accurately and carefully, to the best of your knowledge. In most cases, 
you should be able to answer the questions from your own observations or project plans without the need to 
hire experts. If you really do not know the answer, or if a question does not apply to your proposal, write "do 
not know" or "does not apply." Complete answers to the questions now may avoid unnecessary delays later. 

Some questions ask about governmental regulations, such as zoning, shoreline, and landmark 
designations. Answer these questions if you can. If you have problems, the governmental agencies can assist 
you. 

The checklist questions apply to all parts of your proposal, even if you plan to do them over a period of 
time or on different parcels of land. Attach any additional information that will help describe your proposal or 
its environmental effects. The agency to which you submit this checklist may ask you to explain your answers 
or provide additional information reasonably related to determining if there may be significant adverse impact. 

Use of checklist for nonproject proposals: 

Complete this checklist for nonproject proposals, even though questions may be answered "does not 
apply." IN ADDITION, complete the SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FDR NONPROJECT ACTIONS (part D). 

For nonproject actions, the references in the checklist to the words "project," "applicant," and "property or 
site" should be read as "proposal," "proposer," and "affected geographic area," respectively. 

A BACKGROUND 

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable: Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map Update 2013 

2. Name of applicant: City of Prosser 

3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person: 
Steve Zetz 
601 J'h Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

4. Date checklist prepared: August 30, 2013 

5. Agency requesting checklist: City of Prosser 

438



6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable): Fall 2013 

7. Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, or further activity related to or connected with this 
proposal? If yes, explain. No. 

8. List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, or will be prepared, directly 
related to this proposal. 
SEPA Checklist 
Housing Analysis and Land Use Survey 

9. Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals of other proposals directly 
affecting the property covered by your proposal? If yes, explain. No. 

10. List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known. 

11. Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses and the size of the project 
and site. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain aspects of your 
proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this page. (Lead agencies may modify this form to 
include additional specific information on project description.) 

Change 2 

Change from Industrial to Low Medium Residential I LMR 
Located north ofl-82 and west ofOIE and south of Johnson approximately 59 land currently 
designated as Industrial (!). There are 17 parcels. The land to the south is currently designated Commercial 
(C). 

Existing uses within the proposed change area are prhnarily residential single fa1nily homes. 
Proposed Change Area n 
Residential Uses _,, __ 

Agricultural Uses 
Future Residential 
UGB 

Number of parcels: 
Acres: 

2 

17 
58.86 

439



Change 3 

Change from Public Lands to Industrial PL I 
Located north and east of the Grant Street Bridge and is commonly known as the old spray-field. It is 
currently undeveloped. lt is currently designated and zoned as Public Facility (PF) and the proposed change 
it to designate a portion of it as Industrial(!). Since the property is located along 1-82, and is often impacted 
by odors from the sewer treatment plant and fish hatchery to the south it is not a good location for either 
com1nercial or residential desionations. 

Spray-field Boundary 
Proposed change area 

Number of parcels: 
Acres: 

3 

1 
22.29 

440



Change 4 

Change from Industrial to Commercial I C 
Located along Gap road north of the 1-82 Exit 80. The area is currently large parcel residential and 
agricultural uses. The property to the south between the change area and 1-82 is designated Commercial (C). 

Proposed Change Area 
Residential Uses 
Agricultural Uses 
UGB 

Number of parcels: 
Acres: 

4 

6 
so 

441



Change 5 

Change from Steep Slope Residential to Public Lands 

I 

SSR1-~'""'' PL 
Located east and south of Concord Way the parcel is owned by the City of Prosser. It is pai1 of the water 
system that delivers water to the Painted Hills Subdivision. 

Proposed Change Area 
Residential Uses 
Agricultural Uses 
UGB 

Number of parcels: 
Acres: 

5 

442



Change 7 

Change from High Density Residential lo Commercial HDR C 
Located at the comer of Wine Country Road and Old Inland Empire Hwy the site is currently occupied by a 
strip mall and a car wash. Staff believes that this area was colored orange (HDR) in error during a previous 
change. 

Proposed Change Area 
High Density Residential Uses 
UGB 

Number of parcels: 
Acres: 

l 
2.58 

12. Location of the proposal. Give sufficient information for a person to understand the precise location of 
your proposed project, including a street address, if any, and section, township, and range, if known. If a 
proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal 
description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if reasonably available. While you should submit 
any plans required by the agency, you are not required to duplicate maps or detailed plans submitted with 
any permit applications related to this checklist. 

See above maps and descriptions. 

6 

443



c. 
SIGNATURE 

The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the lead 
agency is relying on the1n to n1ake its decision. 

Date Submitted: ')I 
.0"!".~-:-y: AS; <.t? ! 
D. 
SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS 
(do not use this sheet for project actions) 
Because these questions are very general, it 1nay be helpful to read the1n in conjunction with the list 
of the ele1nents of the environ1nent. 
When answering these questions) be av.,iare of the extent the proposal, or the types of activities likely 
to result fron1 the proposal, would affect the ite1n at a greater intensity or at a faster rate than if the 
proposal were not i1nple1nented. Respond briefly and in general tenns. 

I. 
How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water; emissions to air; production, 
storage, or release of toxic or hazardous substances; or production of noise? 

.... --~~-~==11 

The proposed changes will not result in any impacts because the 
porpotions of land designations remains essentially unchanged. See also 
attached repm1. 

Proposed 1neasures to avoid or reduce such increases are: 

If impacts are later identified they will be mitigated at the time of 
development. 

2.How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish, or marine life? 
.... ~~~~~~~~~! 

1~here are no identified itnpacts. 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, aniinals, fish, or marine life are: 
......... -~-----!! 

1 f impacts are later identified they will be mitigated at the time of 
development. 

3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy or natural resources? 

7 

444



The proposed changes will not result in any impacts because the 
porpotions of land designations re1nains unchanged. 

Proposed n1easures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are: 

If impacts are later identified they will be mitigated at the time of 
development. 

..... ~~~~~~=11 

4. How would the proposal be likely to use or affect environn1entally sensitive areas or areas 
designated (or eligible or under study) for governmental protection; such as parks, wilderness, wild 
and scenic rivers, threatened or endangered species habitat, historic or cultural sites, wetlands, 
floodplains, or prime farmlands? 

The proposed changes will not result in any in1pacts because the 
porpotions of land designations re1nains unchanged. 

Proposed 1neasures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce i1npacts are: 
.-.~~~~~~..jl 

If impacts are later identified they will be mitigated at the time of 
development. 

5. How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, including whether it would 
allow or encourage land or shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans? 

...-~~~~~~..jl 
The proposed designation changes are not within shoreline jurisdiction. 

Proposed n1easures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use i1npacts are: 

N/A 

6. 
How would the proposal be likely to increase den1ands on transpo1iation or public services and 
utilities? 

"fhe proposed changes will not result in any in1pacts because the 
propo1iions of land designations re1nains unchanged. 

8 

445



Proposed n1easures to reduce or respond to such detnand(s) are: 

If impacts are later identified they will be mitigated at the time of 
develop1nent. 

, 7. Identify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, state, or federal laws or 
require1nents for the protection of the environment. 

No conflicts \Vith other laws or regulations have been identified. 

9 

446



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 14------

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED BY ORDINANCES NUMBER 07-2592, 09-
2675AND11-2718 TO IMPLEMENT AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE FOLLOWING PORTIONS OF 
THE PLAN: REPLACING THE SECTION ON SHORELINE MANAGEMENT AND 
UPDATING AND AMENDING THE LAND USE MAP. THE ORDINANCE 
AMENDS THE ORDINANCES THAT ADOPTED THE PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF 
THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ADOPTS A SHORELINE RESTORATION 
PLAN. THE ORDINANCE ADOPTS FINDINGS TO SUPPORT THE ADOPTION 
OF THE AMENDED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. THE ORDINANCE PROVIDES 
THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE FROM ONE ANOTHER, PROVIDES 
FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND SETS FORTH THE ORDINANCE'S 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON, DO HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby adopts the findings made by the Planning Commission 
on May 15, 2014, as the findings of the City Council in support of this ordinance. In addition, the 
City Council finds that it agrees with the recommendations from the Planning Commission and finds 
that there is a factnal and legal basis to revise the Comprehensive Plan and the Land Use Map 
contained in the Comprehensive Plan as reconm1ended by the Planning Commission. 

Section 2. The amended Comprehensive Plan filed with the City Clerk on May 16, 2014, 
by the plaiming department, is hereby inc0111orated herein by this reference, as if set forth in full, is 
hereby adopted and approved as the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Prosser, Washington. 

Section 3. The current Comprehensive Plan of the City of Prosser, Washington, adopted by 
Ordinances number 07-2592, 09-2675 and 11-2718 is hereby ainended to incorporate the 
ainendments approved by section 2 above. 

Section 4. This ordinance has been determined to be a minor action and to have a non~ 
significant, adverse effect on the enviromnent An Environmental Impact Statement is not required 
under RCW 43 .21 C.030. The City issued its determination of non-significance on May 15, 2014. 
The City Council retains the DNS issued by the Planning Department 

The City Council finds that this ordinai1ce is not an action requiring an environmental 
statement under WAC 197-11. 

This decision is made upon a detennination into the guidelines of WAC 197-11 and City 
Ordinances. 

1 

447



Section 5. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the Ordinance shall be transmitted to the 
W ashi.ngton State 'f)epartment of Commerce and to the Washington State Department ofEcology for 
final review, as required by Jaw. 

Section 6. City Staff are hereby directed to complete preparation of the final Comprehensive 
Plan document, including conection of any typographical edits, and inclusion of appropriate 
graphics, pictures and illustrations. 

Section 7. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder ofthis ordinance 
shall not as a result of said section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase be held unconstitutional or 
invalid. 

Section 8. The City Cow1cil adopts the City of Prosser Shoreline Master Program Update, 
Restoration Plan (Restoration Plan) as set fotih in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference. The Restoration Plan shall be considered a part of the City's $horeline Master Program 
Policies, adopted pursuant to Section 2 of this Ordinance. 

Section 9. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after publication of an 
approved summary of this ordinance consisting of its title or after the date the City's Shoreline 
Management Program is approved by the Washington State Department of Ecology pursuant to 
RCW 36.70.480(2) and RCW 90.58.090(1), whichever is later. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor, this 271
.H day of May, 2014. 

PAUL WARDEN, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

HOWARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

Date of Publication: ---

2 

448



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-__ 

of the City of Prosser, Washington 

--- ----------------

On the __ day of , 2014, the City of Prosser, Washington, passed 
Ordinance No. . A summary of the content of said ordinance, consisting of the title, 
provides as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED BY ORDINANCES NUMBER 07-2592, 
09-2675 AND 11-2718 TO IMPLEMENT AMENDMENTS TO THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 
FOLLOWING PORTIONS OF THE PLAN: REPLACING THE SECTION ON 
SHORELINE MANAGEMENT AND lJPDA TING AND AMENDING THE LA1''D 
USE MAP. THE ORDINANCE AMENDS THE ORDINANCES THAT ADOPTED 
THE PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PL&'! AND ADOPTS 
A SHORELINE RESTORATION PLAN. THE ORDINANCE ADOPTS FINDINGS 
TO SUPPORT THE ADOPTION OF THE AMENDED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN_ 
THE ORDINANCE PROVIDES THAT ITS PROVISIONS ARE SEVERABLE 

FROM ONE ANOTHER, PROVIDES FOR PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, &ND 
SETS FORTH THE ORDINANCE'S EFFECTIVE DATE 

The full text of this Ordinance will be mailed upon request. 

DATED this ___ day of , 2014 

CITY CLERK, RACHEL SHAW 

3 

449



Classifications

I- Industrial

HDR- High Density Residential

C- Commercial

AT- Agri-Tourism

AB- Agri-Business

LMR- Low Medium Residential

PL- Public Land

SSR- Steep Slope Residential

URB- Urban Residential 

City of Prosser Comprehensive Plan
Land Use Map

05/16/14
450


	5-27-2014 Regular City Council Mtg Agenda
	Consent Item 6a
	Consent Item 6b
	Consent Item 6c
	Consent Item 6d
	Consent Item 6e
	Consent Item 6f
	Consent Item 6g
	Consent Item 6h
	Consent Item 6i
	Item 7a
	Action Item 8a
	Action Item 8b
	Action Item 8c
	Action Item 8d
	Action Item 8e
	Item 9a & 10a
	Item 9b & 10b



